

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

State Report 2007

Sponsored by: Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention Division of Behavioral Health Arkansas Department of Human Services

Conducted by: International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

State Report 2007

Sponsored by: Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention Division of Behavioral Health Arkansas Department of Human Services

Conducted by: International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

Table of Contents

Acknowledgments
Executive Summary1
Introduction16
Section 1: Survey Methods
Survey Questionnaire
Administration
Completion Rate and Ability to Generalize the Results
Survey Participants
Survey Participants by Region
Validity of Data
Section 2: Risk and Protective Factors for Substance Use and Other Problem Behaviors
Community Risk and Protective Factors
Community Risk and Protective Factor Scales
Family Risk and Protective Factors
Family Risk and Protective Factor Scales
School Risk and Protective Factors
School Risk and Protective Factor Scales
Peer/Individual Risk and Protective Factors
Peer/Individual Risk and Protective Factor Scales
Section 3: Substance Use Outcomes
Age of Initiation
Lifetime ATOD Use
Past 30-Dav ATOD Use, By Grade
Past 30-Day ATOD Use by Gender
Intention to Use ATODs
Multiple Drug Use

Table of Contents

Perceived Harmfulness of ATODs	
Perceived Availability of ATODs	71
	72
Section 4: Antisocial Behaviors and Additional Results	
Heavy Substance Use and Other Antisocial Behavior by Grade and Gender	
Handguns	
Academic Performance and Substance Use	02 01
Parents Education and fouth Substance Use	04
Manifurna Use in Relation to Ferceived Farential Acceptability	
Interijuana Ose in Relations to Ferceived Feer Acceptability	
Sources of Obtaining Alashal and Places of Alashal Lies	
Sources of Obtaining Alcohol and Places of Cigarette Llee	
Sources of Obtaining Organetics and Thices of Organetic Ose	
Appendices	
Appendix A. Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment 2007 Student Survey	App:1
Appendix B. Risk and Protective Factors and Associated Survey Scales	App:10
Appendix C. Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category	App:13
Appendix D. Item Dictionary for the 2007 APNA Survey	App:38
Appendix E. Sample Profile Report and Selected Charts for Males Compared to Females	App:50
Appendix F. Lifetime and 30-Day ATOD Use for Participating Regions and Counties	App:115

Table of Contents: Figures and Tables

Executive Summary

Figure 1:	ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 10	5
Figure 2:	Risk Profile, Grade 10	6
Figure 3:	Protective Profile, Grade 10	7
Figure 4:	School Safety Profile, Grade 10	8
Table 1.	Percentage of Arkansas Respondents Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime by Grade	9
Table 2.	Percentage of Arkansas Respondents Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days by Grade	9

Section 1: Survey Methods

Table 3.	Students Providing Data in the 2007 APNA Survey	21
Table 4.	Total N and % of Survey Respondents by Grade and Demographic Characteristics	22
Table 5.	Total N and % of Survey Respondents by Grade and Participating Region	23
Figure 5.	Ethnicity: Breakdown of Students Taking the 2007 APNA Survey	24
Figure 6.	Gender: Breakdown of Students Taking the 2007 APNA Survey	24
Figure 7.	Family Structure: Breakdown of Students Taking the 2007 APNA Survey	24

Section 2: Risk and Protective Factors for Substance Use and Other Problem Behaviors

Table 6.	Youth at Risk: Community	27
Table 7.	Community Domain Risk and Protective Factor Scores	31
Figure 8.	Risk Factors: Community Domain	32
Figure 9.	Protective Factors: Community Domain	32
Table 8.	Youth at Risk: Family	33
Table 9.	Family Domain Risk and Protective Factor Scores	36
Figure 10.	Risk Factors: Family Domain	37
Figure 11.	Protective Factors: Family Domain	37
Table 10.	Youth at Risk: School	38
Table 11.	School Domain Risk and Protective Factor Scores	39
Figure 12.	Risk Factors: School Domain	40
Figure 13.	Protective Factors: School Domain	40
Table 12.	Youth at Risk: Peer/Individual	41

Table of Contents: Figures and Tables

Table 13.	Peer/Individual Domain Risk and Protective Factor Scores	46
Figure 14.	Risk Factors: Peer/Individual Domain	47
Figure 15.	Protective Factors: Peer/Individual Domain	48
Section 3: Substance	e Use Outcomes	
Table 14.	Age of Initiation	49
Figure 16.	Average Age of First Substance Use	50
Figure 17.	Lifetime ATOD Use	52
Table 15.	% of Arkansas Respondents Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime by Grade	53
Figure 18.	Arkansas Lifetime ATOD Use by Gender	54
Table 16.	% of Males by Grade Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime	55
Table 17.	% of Females by Grade Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime	56
Figure 19.	ATOD Use for Each Grade Level: 30-Day Use	
Table 18.	% of Arkansas Respondents Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days by Grade	59
Figure 20.	30-Day ATOD Use: Arkansas Compared to National	60
Figure 21.	Arkansas 30-Day ATOD Use by Gender	61
Table 19.	% of Males by Grade Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days	62
Table 20.	% of Females by Grade Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days	63
Table 21.	% of Youth with Intention to Use ATODs	64
Figure 22.	Intention to Use ATODs	65
Table 22.	% Using Multiple Drugs in the Past 30 Days	66
Figure 23.	Multiple Substance Use: Tobacco Users Who Also Use Other Drugs	67
Table 23.	% of Arkansas and Monitoring the Future Respondents Who Perceive that Using these Substances Places People at "Great Risk"	69
Figure 24.	Perceived Harmfulness of Using Cigarettes, Marijuana, or Alcohol: Arkansas Compared to National	70
Table 24.	% of Arkansas and Monitoring the Future Respondents Who Perceive the Four Substances as "sort of Easy" or "very Easy" to Get	71
Figure 25.	Perceived Availability of Cigarettes, Alcohol, Marijuana, and Other Drugs: Arkansas Compared to National	72
Figure 26.	Arkansas Heavy Substance Use and Antisocial Behaviors: Male, Female, and State Total	74
Table 25.	% of Males who Engaged in Heavy Substance Use and Antisocial Behaviors	75
Table 26.	% of Females who Engaged in Heavy Substance Use and Antisocial Behaviors	75
Table 27.	% of Arkansas Respondents (Grades 6,8,10, and 12 combined) who Engaged in Heavy Substance Use and Antisocial Behaviors	76
Table 28.	% of Youth Who Responded to Questions About Handguns	77

Table of Contents: Figures and Tables

Figure 27.	Students' Use of Handguns and Perceptions About Them	78
Table 29.	% of Youth Who Reported Violence and Gang Activity	80
Figure 28.	Student Violent Activity and Perceptions	81
Table 30.	% Using ATODs by Academic Performance	82
Figure 29.	% Using ATODs by Academic Performance	83
Table 31.	% Using ATODs by Parents' Education	84
Figure 30.	% Using ATODs by Parents' Education	85
Table 32.	Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Parental Acceptability	86
Figure 31.	Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Parental Acceptability	87
Table 33.	Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Peer Acceptability	88
Figure 32.	Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Peer Acceptability	89
Table 34.	% Using ATODs and Level of Depressive Symptoms	90
Figure 33.	% Using ATODs and Level of Depressive Symptoms	91
Table 35.	% of Students Indicating Usual Source of Obtaining Alcohol	93
Table 36.	% of Students Indicating Where They Usually Consumed Alcohol	93
Figure 34.	Students' Sources of Obtaining Alcohol	94
Figure 35.	Usual Place of Student Alcohol Use	95
Table 37.	% of Youth Indicating Usual Source for Obtaining Cigarettes	97
Table 38.	% of Youth Indicating Where They Usually Smoked Cigarettes	97
Figure 36.	Sources for Obtaining Cigarettes	98
Figure 37.	Usual Place of Youth Cigarette Use	99

Acknowledgments

The 2007 Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) was coordinated by the Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention (ADAP), Division of Behavioral Health, Arkansas Department of Human Services, working with International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys. The APNA Project was developed with federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

We would like to extend our sincere appreciation to the 208 Arkansas School Districts that participated in administering this survey. A special "thank you" goes out to the students who completed the survey and their parents who supported their endeavors.

It took many individuals working together to make this effort a success, but it would be remiss for us not to give special recognition to the staff of ADAP's Regional Prevention Resource Centers for the support and effort they contributed to the project. Appreciation is also extended to members of the Arkansas SIG Advisory Committee and community anti-drug coalitions who helped to increase school participation in the survey.

The 2007 survey data results represent the sixth annual survey since 2002. We hope schools and communities find the sixth year's data useful for their planning purposes. We invite ALL public schools in Arkansas to participate in the upcoming year's survey. If interested, please contact ADAP at (501) 686-9030 or your Regional Prevention Resource Center.

Executive Summary

The Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Survey was administered in fall 2007 to students in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12. The APNA Survey was designed to measure the need for prevention services in the areas of substance abuse, delinquency, antisocial behavior, and violence. The questions on the survey ask youth about the factors that place them at risk for substance use and other problem behaviors, along with the factors that reduce the probability of their engaging in problem behaviors. The survey also inquires about the use of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs (ATODs) and participation in various antisocial behaviors.

The 2007 APNA Survey was conducted with federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The APNA Survey was coordinated by the Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention (ADAP), Division of Behavioral Health, Arkansas Department of Human Services. ADAP contracted International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys (ISA) to conduct the survey. The survey was administered to 88,040 students throughout Arkansas. A total of 208 of the state's 245 school districts (84.8%) participated in the APNA Survey.

Participation by Arkansas Youth

An attempt was made to survey all students in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12 in Arkansas. This level of surveying is necessary because program planning often requires knowledge of substance use, antisocial behavior, and risk and protective factors for various subpopulations, such as youth in a specific community, a grade in school, or from single-parent homes. Having a good sample of students allowed ISA to generate profile reports at the school, school district, county, and regional levels. Enrollment figures from the Arkansas Department of Education show that for the 2007-2008 school year, a total of 139,178 students in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12 were eligible to participate in the survey. Among all schools that participated in the APNA Survey, a total of 113,676 were enrolled in the four grade levels. A total of 88,040 students returned completed 2007 APNA surveys. Of this total, 8,442 surveys were removed from the analyses for a variety of reasons (eg, ineligible grade levels, invalid survey responses), leaving a total of 79,598 students in the final data set.

APNA Survey participants were 52.1% female, 47.9% male. The majority of respondents were White (61.3%), with the next largest ethnic groups being African American (16.5%) and Hispanic (8.3%). Other ethnic groups accounted for 13.9% of the respondents.

While not all students participated, the fact that many students across the state completed this voluntary survey makes this survey a good estimate of the rates of ATOD use and levels of risk and protective factors of youth in the state. The survey results provide in-depth information for schools and communities to use in planning prevention services.

The Risk and Protective Factor Framework

Arkansas uses the Risk and Protective Framework to guide prevention efforts aimed at reducing youth problem behaviors. Risk factors are characteristics of school, community, family environments, and students and their peer groups that are known to predict increased likelihood of drug use, delinquency, school dropout, teen pregnancy, and violent behavior among youth. J. David Hawkins, PhD, Richard F. Catalano, PhD and their colleagues at the University of Washington, Social Development Research Group, have investigated the relationship between risk and protective factors and youth problem behavior. For example, they have found that children who live in families with high levels of conflict are more likely to become involved in problem behaviors such as delinquency and drug use than children who live in families with low levels of family conflict.

Protective factors exert a positive influence or buffer against the negative influence of risk, thus reducing the likelihood that adolescents will engage in problem behaviors. Protective factors identified by Hawkins and Catalano include: bonding to family, school, community and peers; healthy beliefs and clear standards for behavior; and individual characteristics. For bonding to serve as a protective influence, it must occur through involvement with peers and adults who communicate healthy values and set clear standards for behavior.

Research on risk and protective factors has important implications for prevention efforts. The premise of the risk and protective factor model is that in order to promote positive youth development and prevent problem behaviors, it is necessary to address those factors that predict the problem behaviors. By measuring risk and protective factors in a population, prevention programs can be implemented that will reduce the elevated risk factors and increase the protective factors. For example, if academic failure is identified as an elevated risk factor in a community, then mentoring, tutoring, and increased opportunities and rewards for classroom participation can be provided to improve academic performance.

Seven-State Norm

In order to make the results of the 2007 APNA Survey more usable, risk and protective profiles were developed that show the percentage of youth at risk, and the percentage of youth with adequate levels of protection, on each scale. Comparisons can be made between youth in Arkansas and youth from a nationally representative normative sample of 200,000 students from Colorado, Illinois, Kansas, Maine, Oregon, Utah, and Washington. The national normative sample was developed during the 1994-2002 time frame by researchers at the University of Washington, School of Social Work.

An example of the substance use rates, risk and protective factor profiles, and school safety profiles contained in the main report can be seen in Figures 1-4. The samples illustrate data for 10th grade students in Arkansas who completed the survey. Similar profiles have been developed for the individual grades (6, 8, 10, and 12), and were sent to each participating school district. These profiles allow prevention planners to more precisely target prevention interventions. Information and charts on profile development are contained in Appendix E of this state report.

Rates of 10th grade ATOD use and antisocial behavior can be seen in Figure 1. Tenth grade students have higher rates of lifetime use and 30-day use for alcohol than any other substance. Note: The heavier use of alcohol relative to other ATOD substances is typical of adolescent populations. For antisocial behaviors, attacking someone with the intent to harm was the most frequently reported antisocial behavior of 10th grade students.

Figure 2 shows the percentage of Arkansas 10th grade students who are at risk for problem behaviors compared to the seven-state norm. Arkansas 10th graders have similar levels of risk compared to students in other states; however, several scales for Arkansas 10th grade students were higher than the seven-state norm: Transitions and Mobility, Interaction with Antisocial Peers, Parent Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior, Academic Failure, Sensation Seeking, and Depression. The scales with the lowest percentage of youth at risk were Peer/Individual Attitudes Favorable to Drug Use, Friends' Use of Drugs, Early Initiation of Drug Use, Perceived Risk of Drug Use, Gang Involvement, and Perceived Availability of Handguns. For the protective factor scales, Arkansas 10th grade students also report a mix of both higher and lower levels of protection (Figure 3) than students from the seven states. Arkansas students who took the survey reported highest protection in the areas of: Belief in Moral Order, School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, Religiosity, Interaction with Prosocial Peers, and School and Peer Rewards for Prosocial Involvement. Lower levels of protection were found in Family Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, Family Rewards for Prosocial Involvement, Community Reward for Prosocial Involvement, Peer/Individual Prosocial Involvement, Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, Social Skills and Family Attachment.

Figure 4 illustrates the school safety profile, which displays the percentage of students who indicated that they did <u>not</u> feel safe in school (24.4% of Arkansas 10th graders), the percentage who did not believe that it was "Very Wrong" to take a handgun to school (12.9% of Arkansas 10th graders), the percentage who indicated they had taken a handgun to school in the past year (1.7% of Arkansas 10th graders), and the percentage who indicated that they had a sibling who had taken a handgun to school in the past year (2.2% of Arkansas 10th graders).

Substance Use Rates

Throughout the 2007 APNA Report, tables provide in-depth data on prevalence rates. The results of the Arkansas students in their use of ATODs are compared to the Monitoring the Future (MTF) Survey, a national study of the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) conducted each year by the University of Michigan. Monitoring the Future provides the best national norms for current drug use.

Table 1 shows the percentages of Arkansas youth in the 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grades who used ATODs in the 13 categories at least once during their life. Lifetime use is the percentage of students who tried the particular substance at least once in their life, and is the best indicator of the ongoing level of experimentation with a particular substance by an adolescent population. NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, methamphetamines, stimulants, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.

When looking at the Arkansas and MTF lifetime survey results (Table 1), more Arkansas survey participants in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades have had tried cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and inhalants at least once in their life than the national sample. The lifetime prevalence for smokeless tobacco for Arkansas youth was 4.4% to 8.1% greater than the national sample for youth in grades 8, 10 and 12; cigarette use was 3.5% to 5.4% greater in Arkansas for grades 8, 10, and 12; and inhalant use was 0.4% to 1.5% greater in Arkansas for grades 8, 10 and 12.

However, Arkansas youth in grades 8, 10, and 12 used the following substances less in their lifetime than students nationally: marijuana (4.7% to 7.6% less than MTF students), hallucinogens (2.4% to 4.4% less than

MTF), cocaine (1.9% to 2.9% less than MTF students), ecstasy (1.1% to 1.8% less than MTF), and any drug (2.7% to 6.8% less than MTF).

Table 1 also shows that rates of lifetime use for the state totals for all drug categories decreased from 2006 to 2007. The same was true in all grade levels with the exception of alcohol and inhalants. Alcohol use increased for 8th grade students by 0.3% while inhalant use increased 0.6% for 8th grade students. Changes less than 1% from year to year are typically not seen as indicating a meaningful trend.

Table 2 shows the percentage of youth in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12 who used ATODs in the 30 days prior to completing the survey. More Arkansas youth in grades 8, 10, and 12 have used smokeless tobacco, inhalants, and sedatives in the past 30 days than the national sample. For smokeless tobacco, 2.3% more Arkansas 8th graders, 3.4% more 10th graders, and 4.2% more 12th graders used than the national sample did. For inhalants, 2.6% more Arkansas 8th graders, 1.6% more 10th graders, and 1.1% more 12th graders used. A comparison of state and national results shows that Arkansas use rates of alcohol and marijuana are lower than the use rates for the nation for grades 8, 10, and 12.

Most rates of 30-day substance use have decreased since the 2002 survey. For example, large decreases in cigarette smoking have been reported since 2002. Cigarette smoking by tenth graders has declined by 8.4%, closely followed by 12th graders (7.1%) and 8th graders (5.8%). The sixth grade decline was smaller (1.9%), but a much smaller overall percentage of 6th graders report smoking in the first place. Other large declines were reported for marijuana, methamphetamines, and the Any Drug category. The only ATOD substance showing any increase over the 2002-2007 time period was inhalants, which increased less than one percent for the 6th through 8th grades. This small change does not indicate a meaningful trend for inhalants. Overall, the 2007 APNA Report provides a very positive long-term trend for Arkansas students.







FIGURE 4



TABLE I

Percentage of Arkansas Res														nts V	Vho l	Jsed .	ATOD)s Du	ring	Their I	ifetir	ne by	Gra	de									
Drug Used			Arka Gra	nsas de 6					Arka Gra	nsas de 8			MTF Grade 8			Arka Grac	nsas de 10			MTF Grade 10			Arka Grac	nsas le 12			MTF Grade 12			То	tal		
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	22.7	21.7	21.1	21.2	19.4	17.7	46.1	44.7	44.4	44.0	40.7	41.0	38.9	66.5	65.4	65.5	64.9	62.4	62.1	61.7	76.0	77.1	76.1	74.4	72.5	71.9	72.2	50.2	51.3	50.1	49.0	46.9	45.5
Cigarettes	18.1	17.5	17.2	15.0	13.2	10.8	39.4	36.0	34.8	32.8	28.8	26.8	22.1	53.9	52.1	49.1	46.5	43.3	40.0	34.6	62.6	61.0	58.7	54.5	51.3	49.7	46.2	41.3	41.0	38.7	35.8	32.8	30.0
Smokeless Tobacco	10.0	10.1	8.5	8.3	7.6	6.1	20.0	17.5	16.1	16.5	14.5	13.5	9.1	25.8	25.8	23.3	22.5	22.2	19.6	15.1	28.4	29.6	26.6	24.3	25.1	23.2	15.1	20.1	20.4	18.0	17.3	16.7	14.8
Marijuana	3.2	3.3	2.4	2.1	2.4	1.5	16.2	14.0	12.1	11.5	10.7	9.5	14.2	32.7	31.8	28.0	25.7	25.5	23.4	31.0	44.6	45.3	39.4	36.7	34.9	34.8	41.8	22.0	22.7	19.2	17.5	17.2	15.5
Inhalants	10.1	9.8	11.6	10.5	9.3	9.3	15.6	14.6	17.4	16.5	15.4	16.0	15.6	14.2	14.6	17.0	15.7	16.3	14.9	13.6	12.6	12.9	14.6	12.9	13.2	12.0	10.5	13.1	13.1	15.3	13.9	13.5	13.0
Hallucinogens	0.9	1.1	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.2	2.8	2.2	1.0	1.0	1.5	0.7	3.1	5.8	5.0	2.7	2.2	3.4	2.0	6.4	7.3	8.6	4.0	3.3	4.7	4.0	8.4	3.9	4.1	1.9	1.6	2.4	1.5
Cocaine	0.9	0.9	0.6	0.6	0.9	0.4	2.4	2.2	1.7	1.6	2.2	1.2	3.1	4.9	4.6	3.9	3.0	4.3	2.4	5.3	7.3	7.8	6.6	5.6	6.5	5.0	7.8	3.5	3.7	3.0	2.5	3.2	2.0
Methamphetamines	0.4	0.5		0.6	0.8	0.4	2.3	1.8		1.6	1.9	1.2	1.8	5.6	4.5		3.4	4.0	2.1	2.8	7.8	8.0		4.7	5.0	3.4	3.0	3.6	3.6		2.4	2.8	1.6
Stimulants			1.1	0.6	0.9	0.5			2.9	2.0	2.6	1.6				6.6	5.5	6.2	4.6				9.0	6.9	7.9	6.9				4.7	3.5	4.1	3.1
Sedatives			4.9	4.4	5.3	4.9			9.7	10.3	10.7	10.2				17.6	17.9	18.6	16.6				21.7	21.5	22.4	20.2	9.3			12.9	12.9	13.6	12.2
Ecstasy	0.6	0.5	0.3	0.2	0.5	0.2	2.9	2.0	1.6	1.4	1.8	1.2	2.3	5.2	4.9	3.3	3.2	4.6	3.4	5.2	7.5	6.7	5.0	4.4	6.5	5.4	6.5	3.7	3.4	2.4	2.1	3.1	2.3
Heroin			0.5	0.3	0.7	0.3			0.8	0.8	1.1	0.6	1.3			1.4	1.2	2.0	1.1	1.5			2.1	2.1	2.6	2.0	1.5			1.1	1.0	1.5	0.9
Any Drug	12.8	12.8	21.4	16.0	13.2	13.2	26.5	24.3	33.9	28.8	24.8	25.0	27.7	38.5	37.7	46.2	39.5	36.7	35.0	39.8	47.9	48.9	52.2	47.1	42.7	42.3	49.1	29.9	30.5	38.4	31.8	28.5	27.4

TABLE 2

	Percentage of Arkansas Responden														io Us	ed A	TODs	: Duri	ng Tl	he Pas	t 30 E	Days	by G	rade									
Drug Used	Arkansas Arkansa: Grade 6 Grade 8							insas de 8			MTF Grade 8	MTF Grade Grade 10						MTF Grade 10			Arka Grad	insas de 12			MTF Grade 12			Tot	tal				
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	8.0	6.6	5.1	4.8	5.1	3.6	22.7	19.7	17.0	16.9	16.4	15.5	15.9	39.0	37.2	34.3	33.6	31.9	30.3	33.4	47.7	48.0	44.6	42.8	42.5	40.3	44.4	27.3	27.1	23.9	22.9	22.8	20.5
Cigarettes	3.8	3.6	3.4	2.7	2.7	1.9	13.9	11.7	11.7	10.1	8.8	8.1	7.1	23.7	21.8	19.9	17.4	17.0	15.3	14.0	30.6	30.0	28.0	24.9	23.8	23.5	21.6	16.6	16.2	14.9	12.9	12.3	11.1
Smokeless Tobacco	2.9	3.1	2.6	2.5	2.5	1.7	7.9	7.3	7.0	6.8	5.8	5.5	3.2	11.2	11.2	11.3	10.3	10.9	9.5	6.1	11.6	13.0	12.3	10.4	11.8	10.8	6.6	8.0	8.5	8.0	7.2	7.44	6.5
Marijuana	1.3	1.5	0.9	0.8	1.0	0.5	8.3	5.9	5.5	5.3	5.2	4.1	5.7	16.3	15.2	13.3	11.8	12.4	10.4	14.2	20.6	20.6	17.5	15.9	16.2	15.3	18.8	10.6	10.3	8.8	7.8	8.1	6.8
Inhalants	4.9	4.4	5.0	4.5	4.1	3.9	6.2	6.2	7.4	6.8	6.5	6.5	3.9	4.3	4.8	4.8	4.7	5.2	4.1	2.5	2.2	2.7	3.1	2.6	3.1	2.3	1.2	4.6	4.6	5.2	4.8	4.8	4.4
Hallucinogens	0.4	0.4	0.3	0.2	0.4	0.1	1.2	0.9	0.5	0.5	0.9	0.3	1.0	2.1	2.2	1.1	0.8	1.5	0.6	1.7	1.9	2.6	1.1	1.1	1.6	1.1	1.7	1.3	1.5	0.7	0.6	1.0	0.5
Cocaine	0.4	0.3	0.4	0.4	0.6	0.2	0.8	0.7	0.9	0.7	1.0	0.5	0.9	1.4	1.4	1.2	0.8	1.6	0.6	1.3	1.8	2.0	2.0	1.4	2.0	0.9	2.0	1.0	1.1	1.1	0.8	1.2	0.5
Methamphetamines	0.1	0.2		0.1	0.4	0.1	1.0	0.7		0.5	0.9	0.4	0.6	2.3	1.9		0.9	1.6	0.6	0.4	2.7	2.9		1.3	1.6	0.6	0.6	1.4	1.4		0.7	1.1	0.4
Stimulants			0.6	0.2	0.5	0.2			1.4	0.9	1.3	0.7				3.1	2.0	2.6	1.4				3.8	2.2	3.1	1.8				2.1	1.2	1.8	0.9
Sedatives			2.0	1.8	2.4	1.9			5.0	4.8	5.3	4.6				8.6	9.3	9.9	7.6				10.8	10.5	11.3	9.2	2.7			6.4	6.3	6.9	5.5
Ecstasy	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.1	1.2	0.9	0.5	0.6	0.8	0.4	0.6	1.4	1.6	1.0	0.9	1.7	1.0	1.2	1.6	1.6	1.3	1.2	2.1	1.4	1.6	1.1	1.1	0.7	0.7	1.2	0.7
Heroin			0.3	0.1	0.3	0.1			0.3	0.3	0.6	0.2	0.4			0.5	0.3	1.0	0.3	0.4			0.4	0.6	1.0	0.6	0.4			0.4	0.3	0.7	0.3
Any Drug	6.4	5.9	10.5	7.5	6.1	5.9	13.4	11.5	18.4	14.8	12.7	12.2	10.1	19.8	19.1	25.1	21.1	19.6	17.1	18.1	22.6	22.8	28.1	23.9	22.6	20.6	22.8	16.2	14.6	20.5	16.3	14.8	13.2

NOTES to Tables 1 and 2

Cells containing the - symbol indicate an area where data are not available either because the question was not asked in that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, International Survey Associates must have the MTF database. The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, International Survey Associates must have the MTF database. The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students, sed the oflowing drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 any Drug category contains the percent of students, sed the oflowing drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 the percent of students, sed the oflowing drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.

Risk Factor Profiles

Arkansas youth report generally lower levels of risk than youth in the sevenstate norm. For the 104 specific risk factor measurements (26 risk factors multiplied by four grade levels) Arkansas youth showed equal or greater risk on 24 (23%) factors compared to the seven-state norm. Overall, this is a very positive finding for Arkansas youth. Risk factor scales that are equal to or greater than the seven-state norm are: 10th grade Community Disorganization; 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grade Transitions and Mobility; 12th grade Perceived Availability of Drugs; 8th grade Family Conflict; 10th and 12th grade Parent Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior; 8th and 10th grade Academic Failure; 8th, 10th, and 12th grade Interaction with Antisocial Peers; 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grade Sensation Seeking; and 12th grade Rewards for Antisocial Behavior.

Protective Factor Profiles

Arkansas youth report generally equal levels of protection when compared to students in the seven-state norm. For the 52 specific protective factor measurements (13 protective factors measured at four grade levels) Arkansas youth were equal to or below the seven-state norm on 26 (50%). While this is not as positive as the risk factor findings, it shows that Arkansas students are demonstrating expected levels of protection. The following protective factor scales were lower than the seven-state norm for all grade levels: Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, Community Rewards for Prosocial Involvement, and Peer/Individual Prosocial Involvement. The scales that were higher than the seven-state norm for all grade levels were Religiosity and Interaction with Prosocial Peers.

Age of Initiation

Students in Arkansas who participated in the APNA Survey began using cigarettes before using any other substance. Of the youth who had used cigarettes, the average age of first use was 12.1 years. A period of one and a half years separates the age of first use of alcohol and the first regular alcohol use, with the first use occurring at 12.6 years, and the first regular use of alcohol at 14.1 years. Of the youth who had used marijuana, the average age of first use was 13.6 years – 0.5 years before youth indicated that they had begun drinking regularly. In comparing the 2002 survey results to this year's survey, the age of first regular use of alcohol dropped by 0.5 years (from 14.6 years in 2002 to 14.1 years in 2007).

Lifetime Substance Use

Lifetime use is seen as a good measure of youth experimentation with alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs. The most commonly used substances are alcohol (45.5% of Arkansas survey participants in the 2007 APNA Survey have used at least once), cigarettes (30.0% have used), smokeless tobacco (14.8% have used), marijuana (15.5% have used), and inhalants (13.0% have used).

When looking at the Arkansas and MTF lifetime survey results, more Arkansas survey participants in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades have had lifetime experience with cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and inhalants than the national sample. However, Arkansas youth in grades 8, 10, and 12 used marijuana (4.7% to 7.6% less than MTF students), hallucinogens (2.4% to 4.4% less than MTF), cocaine (1.9% to 2.9% less than MTF students), ecstasy (1.1% to 1.8% less than MTF), and any drug (2.7% to 6.8% less than MTF). For the state totals, rates of lifetime use of all drugs decreased since the 2006 survey.

30-Day Substance Use

When looking at the percentage of youth who indicated that they used ATODs in the past 30 days, an increase in use by grade level can be seen with all substances except inhalants. For example, only 1.9% of 6th graders had smoked cigarettes in the past 30 days, whereas the rate for 12th graders was 23.5%. However, 30-day inhalant use peaked at grade 8 (6.5%) and declined to 2.3% for grade 12.

More Arkansas youth in grades 8, 10, and 12 have used cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and inhalants in the past 30 days than the national sample. For cigarettes, 1.0% more Arkansas 8th graders, 1.3% more 10th graders, and 1.9% more 12th graders used. For smokeless tobacco, 2.3% more Arkansas 8th graders, 3.4% more 10th graders, and 4.2% more 12th graders used. For inhalants, 2.6% more Arkansas 8th graders, 1.6% more 10th graders, and 1.1% more 12th graders used. Further comparison of state and national results shows that Arkansas usage rates of alcohol were 0.4% to 4.1% lower than the usage rates for the nation in grades 8, 10, and 12. Marijuana past month use is 1.6% to 3.8% lower than the nation in grades 8, 10, and 12.

Since the first survey in 2002, 30-day alcohol use has decreased 4.4% to 8.7% in all grades. Youth-reported marijuana use statewide has decreased since 2002, with total state usage rates at 10.6% in 2002 and usage rates of 6.8% in 2007. In addition, cigarette use has shown steady decreases since 2002, with state total usage rates at 16.6% in 2002 and usage rates of 11.1% in 2007.

Substance Use by Gender

While being female is generally considered a protective factor for substance use, in Arkansas males and females are very similar in their lifetime and 30day use of most substances and generally have substance use rates that are within one to three percent of each other. The exceptions are that males in all grades use much more smokeless tobacco, over three times the lifetime use rate of females (23.4% for males, 7.1% for females). Female lifetime sedative use is consistently higher than male use in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades.

Since 2006, total male lifetime use of cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, marijuana, inhalants, stimulants, and any drug decreased 1.0% to 2.8%. Total female lifetime alcohol, cigarette, marijuana, stimulant, and any drug use decreased 1.1% to 2.9% in the past year.

In comparing male and female lifetime use in the 2007 APNA Survey to the 2002 survey, overall use for both groups has declined since 2002. In some cases, the decline has been dramatic. For example, for females, the decline in cigarette smoking has been 10.9% and, for males, 11.9% since 2002.

Intention to Use ATODs

A majority of the youth do not intend to use cigarettes or marijuana, although 60% of high school seniors intend to use alcohol. The intention to use all substances increases as youth get older. Intention to use cigarettes, alcohol, marijuana, and other illegal substances in 2007 peaked in the 12th grade. In comparing the six years of survey data, intentions to smoke cigarettes have decreased since the 2002 survey.

Multiple Drug Use

Many of the youth who use marijuana also use alcohol. For example, the total percentage using marijuana is 6.8% and those using alcohol and marijuana is 5.4%. Thus, only 1.4% of students use marijuana but not alcohol. A review of tobacco use and any drug use during the past 30 days shows that more than half of the youth who use tobacco also use an illegal drug (14.3% tobacco use compared to 5.6% tobacco and any drug use).

Perceived Harmfulness of Drugs: Arkansas Compared to National Sample

In all grades, more Arkansas students than MTF students perceived great risk in smoking marijuana once or twice. In this category, 6.0% more 8th grade Arkansas youth, 6.7% more Arkansas 10th graders, and 5.3% more Arkansas 12th graders than national sample youth in the same grades perceived there was great risk in smoking marijuana once or twice. However, for perceived harmfulness of smoking marijuana regularly, Arkansas youth in the 8th and 10th grades perceived slightly less risk in this category than did youth in the same grades nationwide. Also, Arkansas youth in the 10th and 12th grades perceived less harmfulness in smoking one or more packs of cigarettes per day than did national 10th and 12th graders. Further, Arkansas youth in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades perceived less risk in drinking five or more drinks once or twice a weekend than did national 8th, 10th, and 12th graders.

Perceived Availability of Drugs: Arkansas Compared to National Sample

The results reveal that Arkansas survey participants do not perceive cigarettes, alcohol, and marijuana as being as easy to get as do the youth from the national sample (no national comparison is available for other illegal drugs or for 12th grade cigarette availability). For perceived availability of cigarettes, alcohol, and marijuana for various grade levels, there are differences of 13.6% to 19.7% between Arkansas results and national results. The substances that students perceive as most easy to get are cigarettes and alcohol.

Heavy Substance Use and Antisocial Behavior by Grade and Gender

Male-female differences also extend to heavy use of alcohol and tobacco and antisocial behavior. Some of the largest differences were in being suspended from school (17.7% of males compared to 9.4% of females) and selling illegal drugs (5.6% of males compared to 2.7% of females). Overall, binge drinking appears to be the largest antisocial problem among Arkansas youth with 13.6% of youth binge drinking at least once in the past two weeks. The results indicate that, for Arkansas 6th and 8th graders, the largest antisocial problem is being suspended (11.1% of 6th graders, 16.6% of 8th graders). The antisocial behaviors that 10th and 12th graders participated in the most were binge drinking (19.3% of 10th graders, 26.0% of 12th graders) and being drunk or high at school (15.0% of 10th graders, 18.7% of 12th graders).

Handguns

Responses to most questions on handguns show a very low percentage of students who carry handguns or take them to school. However, a greater percentage of youth believe that their parents would not know if they carried a gun (20%) or that the police would not catch them carrying a gun (48.5%). Rates of students reporting that they believed the police would not catch an adolescent with a handgun decreased slightly in each grade, except the 6th grade, since the 2002 survey.

Violence

In the past year, 16.0% of Arkansas survey participants have attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them in the past 12 months, and 20.0% reported having attacked someone at least once in their lifetime.

The percent of students indicating that they attacked someone in their lifetime and in the past year has increased since the initiation of the APNA Survey in 2002. For example, in the 2002 survey, 9.9% of 6th graders indicated that they had attacked someone to harm them in their lifetime, and 8.3% of 6th graders indicated attacking someone in the past year. In the 2007 APNA Survey, 6th grade lifetime attacks had gradually risen to 14.6% and past-year attacks for 6th graders had risen to 13.1%. The same significant increases in attack to harm are found for all grades. Similarly, the percent of students indicating that if they were pushed, they would push the person back has significantly increased in all grades since the 2002 survey.

Students' Academic Performance and Substance Use

A clear relationship exists between substance use and school performance. Of the students who reported getting better grades, fewer have tried ATODs and fewer are currently using ATODs than those who report poorer grades. For example, failing (D or F) students are nearly six times more likely to have indicated use of marijuana in the past 30 days than students achieving A grades.

Parents' Education and Youth Substance Use

As with academic grades, a correlation exists between parent education and drug use, with lower levels of parent education corresponding with higher levels of youth drug use. In Arkansas, youth whose parents did not graduate from high school have a 30-day cigarette usage rate that is 8.9% higher than the usage rate of youth whose parents had at least a college degree.

Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Parental Acceptability

Favorable parental attitudes toward drugs influence the attitudes and behavior of their children. Even a small amount of perceived parental acceptability can lead to substance use. For example, relatively few students (3.9%) reported using marijuana in the past 30 days when their parents thought it was "Very Wrong" to use it. In contrast, when students believed that their parents agree with use somewhat (ie, the parent only believed that it was "Wrong," as opposed to "Very Wrong") use increased to 24.3% for 30-day use.

Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Peer Acceptability

As with perceived parental acceptability, even small increases in perceived peer acceptability are associated with an increased likelihood that an adolescent will use ATODs. For example, when youth thought there was "No or Very Little Chance" that they would be seen as cool if they used marijuana, only 1.8% had used marijuana in the past month. However, when youth thought that there was even a "Little Chance" that they would be seen as cool, marijuana usage rates were more than six times higher for past-month use (11.9%).

Depressive Symptoms and Substance Use

The APNA Survey demonstrated a strong link between youth who reported depressive symptoms and ATOD use. When compared to the non-depressed group, the depressed youth were more than four times as likely to use cigarettes in the 30 days prior to the survey, more than three times as likely to use marijuana in the past 30 days, and more than five times as likely to have used any drug in the past 30 days. These results suggest that when a youth does receive a diagnosis of depression, they should also be assessed for substance abuse. Also, youth caught using substances should be assessed for depression.

Sources of Obtaining Alcohol

Across all grades, Arkansas youth reported that the most common source of alcohol is from someone older than 21 years of age. This source becomes increasingly used as students progress from the 6th grade to the 12th grade (1.6%, 29.7%, respectively). The likelihood of alcohol-using students obtaining alcohol from someone less than 21 years of age, buying alcohol with or without a fake ID, and obtaining alcohol from a stranger also increases with grade level. Encouragingly, obtaining alcohol with a fake ID is rare, with only 0.1% of 6th graders, 0.2% of 8th graders, 0.3% of 10th graders, and 0.6% of 12th graders indicating that they obtained alcohol through use of a fake ID.

Places of Using Alcohol

Students in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grade indicated that they usually drank alcohol at someone else's house. Students become more likely to drink at someone else's house as they advance through the grades (2.3% in the 6th grade, 11.6% in the 8th grade, 26.6% in the 10th grade, and 36.9% in the 12th grade). The second most popular place where youth usually drank was at their homes (4.0% in the 6th grade, 10.6% in the 8th grade, 13.2% in the 10th grade, and 11.7% in the 12th grade).

Sources of Obtaining Cigarettes

In the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades, Arkansas youth most frequently obtained cigarettes from someone more than 18 years of age. This source becomes increasingly more used as students progress from the 6th grade to the 12th grade (0.7% in the 6th grade, 3.5% in the 8th grade, 8.9% in the 10th grade, and 13.5% in the 12th grade). The next most popular source for obtaining cigarettes in the 6th, 8th, and 10th grades was someone less than 18 years of age (0.7% in the 6th grade, 3.1% in the 8th grade, and 4.3% in the 10th grade). As with obtaining alcohol, the rate of youth obtaining cigarettes with a fake ID is not high, with only 0.1% of 6th and 8th graders, 0.3 of 10th graders and 0.5% of 12th graders indicating that they obtained cigarettes through use of a fake ID.

Places of Using Cigarettes

Sixth, 8th, and 10th grade students indicated that they most often smoked at home (1.5% for 6th grade, 4.3% for 8th grade, 7.7% for 10th grade, and 8.0% in 12th grade) and at someone else's home (1.3% for the 6th grade, to a high of 6.3% for the 10th grade). Twelfth graders most often smoked in a car (9.6%). Another area where students indicated that they usually smoked was in an open area (1.2% in the 6th grade, 3.5% in the 8th grade, 4.6% in the 10th grade and 5.7% in the 12th grade).

Introduction

The Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Survey was administered to Arkansas' youth in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12 in November 2007. Arkansas survey results can be compared to youth nationwide. The APNA Survey was designed to measure the need for prevention services in the areas of substance abuse, delinquency, teen pregnancy, school dropout, and violence.

The 2007 Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Project was conducted with federal funds from the Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, United States Department of Health and Human Services. The APNA Survey was coordinated by the Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention (ADAP), Division of Behavioral Health, Arkansas Department of Human Services. ADAP contracted with International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys, to conduct the survey. The survey was administered to 88,040 youth throughout Arkansas.

Arkansas 2007 Report: Overview of Sections

This report is divided into four sections. The first section, Survey Methods, describes how the survey was conducted, who participated, and procedures that were used to ensure that valid information was collected.

The second section, **Risk and Protective Factors for Substance Abuse and Other Problem Behaviors**, provides a description of the Risk and Protective Factor Model of substance abuse prevention, including the four domains of risk and protection (community, family, school, and peer/ individual), and risk and protective factor results for each of the four domains.

Results are presented for each grade. Also presented is a description of

the scale scores that are used to quantify levels of risk and protection and determine the percentage of youth at-risk for problem behaviors. Additionally, information is provided on how the Risk and Protective Factor Model can be used to select programs that are effective in preventing youth problem behavior.

The third section, **Substance Use Outcomes**, describes ATOD use and antisocial behavior among Arkansas youth. The survey provides results on the current use (within 30 days prior to the survey) and use during the youth's lifetime of 12 different substances and "Any Drug," which is defined as using one or more of the 9 drugs measured by the survey (alcohol, cigarettes, and smokeless tobacco are not included). These results are compared to the results of a national survey, Monitoring the Future (MTF).

Use is presented by grade, gender, and other demographic variables. Additional analyses include perceived harmfulness and availability of drugs, intention to use substances, and multiple drug use.

The final section, **Antisocial Behaviors and Additional Results**, provides information on student behaviors and attitudes regarding handguns and violence. Further, it provides examples of how risk factors actually relate to drug and alcohol use. By looking at how factors such as parents' educational background, level of school achievement, degree of parental acceptance of drug use, degree of peer acceptability of drug use, and depression affect substance use, we can begin to understand how the risk and protective factor model of prevention works, and how it can be used to target the needs of schools and communities. Finally, this section also takes a look at students' sources of alcohol and cigarettes, and the places that they use these substances. All Arkansas students in grades 6, 8, 10 and 12 were invited to participate in the survey. Allowing all students to participate in the survey, rather than surveying just a random sample of students across the state, is beneficial because program planning often requires detailed knowledge of specific, locally defined subpopulations, such as youth in a specific community, a specific grade in school, or students from single-parent families. When detailed student data are available, more effective prevention services at the community level can be designed, developed, and implemented. In the 2007 APNA Survey, 88,040 students were surveyed. While not all Arkansas 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grade students participated, the survey results still provide considerable information for communities to use in assessing youth problem behavior and for planning and evaluating prevention services.

The remainder of this section will discuss the survey questionnaire, how it was administered, the demographics of participants, completion rates, and the ability to generalize the results to other populations.

The Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey Questionnaire

The original survey questionnaire on which the APNA survey is based was developed by the Social Development Research Group at the University of Washington. The development process was funded by the Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP). The goal of the project was to develop a survey that provided scientifically sound information about: 1) the prevalence of youth ATOD use and antisocial behavior in the community; and 2) the prevalence of risk and protective factors in a community. The survey was further refined through a second project, the "Diffusion Consortium Project," which involved seven states and was funded by four federal agencies: the National Institute of Drug Abuse (NIDA), Safe and Drug Free Schools Program, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, and CSAP. Normative data for the survey were developed in these two studies based on testing with more than 200,000 students in the United States.

This basic questionnaire was modified in 2002 to create the APNA Survey. Modifications, including the addition of specific questions about substance use, tobacco availability, and tobacco use, allowed the APNA Survey to better meet the needs of Arkansas. In each year since, the questionnaire has been slightly modified to meet new requests for additional data. However, the measurement of risk and protective factors, along with the prevalence of ATOD use and antisocial behaviors, has always been maintained. See Appendix A for a copy of the 2007 APNA Survey questionnaire.

The Prevalence of ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior

The APNA survey measures the current prevalence of a broad range of ATOD substances. The substances include: 1) alcohol, 2) cigarettes, 3) smokeless tobacco, 4) marijuana, 5) hallucinogens, 6) cocaine, 7) inhalants, 8) stimulants, 9) sedatives, 10) methamphetamines, 11) ecstasy, and 12) heroin. The questions that ask about substance use are similar to those used in the Monitoring the Future Survey. Using comparable ATOD questions means that comparisons between the two surveys can be made.

Rísk and Protective Factors

Arkansas uses the Risk and Protective Framework to guide prevention efforts aimed at reducing youth problem behaviors. This framework, developed by J. David Hawkins, PhD, Richard F. Catalano, PhD, and their colleagues at the University of Washington, Social Development Research Group, explains the relationship between risk and protective factors and youth problem behaviors. Risk factors are characteristics of school, community, and family environments, as well as characteristics of students and their peer groups, that predict increased likelihood of drug use, delinquency, school dropout, teen pregnancy, and violent behavior among youth. For example, Hawkins and Catalano have found that children who live in families with high levels of conflict are more likely to become involved in problem behaviors such as delinquency and drug use than children who live in families with low levels of family conflict.

Protective factors exert a positive influence or buffer against the negative influence of risk, thus reducing the likelihood that adolescents will engage in problem behaviors. Protective factors identified through research reviewed by Hawkins and Catalano include: bonding to family, school, community and peers; healthy beliefs and clear standards for behavior; and individual characteristics. For bonding to serve as a protective influence, it must occur through involvement with peers and adults who communicate healthy values and set clear standards for behavior.

Research on risk and protective factors has important implications for prevention efforts. The premise of the risk and protective factor model is that in order to promote positive youth development and prevent problem behaviors, it is necessary to address those factors that predict the problem behaviors. By measuring risk and protective factors in a population, prevention programs can be implemented that will reduce the elevated risk factors and increase the protective factors. For example, if academic failure is identified as an elevated risk factor in a community, then mentoring, tutoring, and increased opportunities and rewards for classroom participation can be provided to improve academic performance.

A total of 19 risk factors and 13 protective factors are measured in the 2007 APNA Survey. Some of the risk factors require more than one scale for adequate measurement. As a result, there are 26 separate risk factor scales and 13 protective factor scales measured by the survey. Appendix B provides a complete list of the risk and protective factors and the corresponding risk and protective factor scales within the Risk and Protective Factor Model.

Before the percentage of youth at-risk on a given scale could be calculated, a scale value or "cut point" needed to be determined that would separate the at-risk group from the group that was not at-risk. Cut points are specific risk or protective factor threshold values that are used to classify a youth as being elevated on risk factors scales, or having insufficient levels of protection as measured by protective factor scales. The cut-point score best classifies youth into those who are more at-risk or less at-risk for ATOD use and other problem behaviors. The cut-points have remained stable in youth populations and will be used to produce the profiles for future surveys.

In the 2007 APNA Survey, students responded to a total of 254 items. The questions were printed in a test booklet that was scored by a machine. See Appendix A for a complete copy of the questionnaire. A complete item dictionary that lists the risk and protective factor scales and the items they contain, as well as the outcome variables, can be found in Appendix D.

APNA 2006 Data

As has been reported previously, some methodological problems were encountered in the 2006 survey year. These problems resulted in some uncertainties for a small number of the risk and protective factor prevalence estimates. In this report, when examining multi-year trend data, the 2006 prevalence estimates as previously reported in the 2006 state report are used. This approach allows for the most accurate interpretation of statelevel long-term trend data. As a consequence, the 2007 reports for specific geographic areas of the state (ie, regional or school district reports) will have a small number of variations from this report in regard to their reported 2006 state-level prevalence estimates for risk and protective factors.

Administration

In August 2007, a recruiting packet was developed and emailed to each regional Prevention Resource Coordinator (PRC) by the Project Director. The recruiting packet included a school agreement form, survey fact sheet, a handout covering the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act requirements in relationship to the survey, a copy of the survey instrument, administration instructions for the school contact coordinator, teacher administration instructions, and a copy of the parent notification letter.

PRC personnel were encouraged to personally visit each of their school districts to obtain school participation. A phone call to the previous year's participants was also initiated as needed. PRC personnel followed up by phone, fax and email to obtain the school participation agreement form from superintendents. A concerted effort was made to contact every public school district in the state to participate in the survey.

Surveys were mailed to participating schools during October 16-19, 2007. Administration of the surveys took place during November 2007. The school contacts were given specific instructions on how to maintain student confidentiality and how to collect and return the completed surveys. Teachers in surveyed classrooms were given a script to read. They also were asked to record how many students took the survey, how many were absent from school, and how many refused to take the survey. Completed surveys were returned to sub-contractor, International Survey Associates, dba Pride Surveys, by December 1, 2007. International Survey Associates staff followed up with phone calls directly to school contacts to ensure that all completed and unused surveys were returned.

Completion Rate and Ability to Generalize the Results

Not all Arkansas students participated in the APNA Survey. School absence on the day of the survey was the primary reason for non-participation, although a small number of students chose not to participate or the students' parents refused consent for them to participate.

Enrollment figures from the Arkansas Department of Education show that 113,767 students (public and state-funded schools) were enrolled for the 2007-2008 school year in grades 6, 8, 10, and 12, in the participating school districts. A total of 88,040 students returned completed 2007 APNA surveys, resulting in a completion rate of 77.4%. Of this total, 3,785 students reported either being at a grade level not in the survey population (ie, 7th, 9th or 11th grades) or reported a grade level that was not taught at their school (eg, 12th grade at an elementary school). A separate total of 5,645 students were identified as providing an invalid survey by one or more validity checks (see Validity of the Data section below for validity criteria). A combined total of 8,442 students provided an invalid grade level and/or an invalid survey (988 students were identified by both). After the 8,442 surveys were removed from the dataset, a total of 79.598 students were included in the final dataset and available for analysis. This is a more than sufficient number to provide valid and generalizable results for the statewide APNA Survey.

Survey Participants

The characteristics of the youth who took the survey are presented in Table 3. The 2007 results are also shown separately for grades 6, 8, 10, and 12. A nearly equal number of males and females took the survey in all grades (female -52.1% and males -47.9%). The majority of respondents were

White (61.3%), 16.5% were African American, and 8.3% were Hispanic. Other ethnic groups accounted for 13.9% of the respondents. In comparison to information provided from the Arkansas Department of Education for the 2007-2008 school year, the demographic makeup of the 2007 APNA Survey is similar to that of the Arkansas student population. The Arkansas Department of Education indicates that the Arkansas student population was 67.3% White, 22.4% African American, and 8.0% Hispanic.

An analysis of the family structure of respondents showed that 49.2% lived with both of their biological parents, 19.5% lived in a step-family structure, and 25.8% lived with a single parent.

Survey Participants by Region

The State of Arkansas has 75 counties, divided into 13 ATOD service regions. Several tables have been prepared which supply regional- and county-level results for the 13 categories of substances. In Appendix F, results are provided for the substance use rates for the past 30 days and lifetime for each of the 13 participating regions and 73 participating counties in Arkansas.

Because ATOD use, antisocial behavior, and the prevalence of risk and protective factors normally vary by grade level, large differences in grade level participation by region would be cause for concern and would complicate comparisons between regions. Fortunately, the grade level variation in participation between regions was small. For example, 6th grade was the grade at which there was the greatest regional variation in participation. Sixth graders made up 28.8% of the statewide total. Region 9 had the highest percentage of 6th graders (32.7%) as a proportion of the region's population, and Region 11 had the lowest percentage of sixth graders as a proportion of the region's population (25.5%). The other regions show smaller percentage differences from the statewide 6th grade percentage. This amount of variation between regions and the statewide totals is small enough to support useful regional comparisons of the survey results.

Validity of the Data

The information presented in this report is based entirely on the truthfulness, recall, and comprehension of the youth who participated in the survey. Many studies have shown that most adolescents are truthful in their responses to the questions on similar surveys. For example, ATOD trends for repeated national and state surveys are very similar. Also, the changes reported by youth parallel the changes during the same period in adolescent admissions to treatment for substance abuse. Finally, the relationships between different kinds of behaviors and the problems adolescents report is very consistent over a wide range of studies. This study was carefully designed to ensure honest responses from participants.

Several measures taken during the survey's development to reduce response bias include: careful cognitive pretesting of the questionnaire to ensure that students understand the meaning of each question; creation of a welldeveloped and debugged administration protocol; and the development of uniform instructions read to all students who participate in the survey.

At the time of the survey, the confidentiality of the survey was stressed to Arkansas students through the instructions and administration procedures. Students were assured that the survey was voluntary, anonymous, and confidential. They were told that no one would see their answers and that there was no way that a survey could be traced back to an individual student. Because the survey was anonymous, most of the reasons for students to exaggerate or deny behaviors were eliminated. However, several checks were built into the data screening process to minimize the inclusion of students who were not truthful in their responses. All surveys that were deemed to be not truthful were eliminated from the final analysis. Invalid individual student surveys were identified using four specific criteria. The four criteria were: 1) the student indicated that he or she was "Not Honest At All" in completing the survey (1,207 surveys); 2) the student indicated that he or she had used the non-existent drug phenoxydine (4,068 surveys); 3) the student reported an impossibly high frequency of multiple drug use (1,243 surveys); and 4) the student report contained logical inconsistencies between past-month use and lifetime use rates (1,642 surveys). A total of 5,645 surveys were removed from the final data set and later analyses as a result. The numbers removed on the basis of each criteria total to only 5,645 because 3,387 students were identified by more than one validity criteria.

TABLE 3. STUDENTS PROVIDING DATA IN THE 2007 APNA SURVEY

Total Surveyed 6 th , 8 th , 10 th , and 12 th Grade Students	88,040
Total Students Providing Invalid Surveys	5,645 (6.4 %)
Students Reporting They Were in the 7 th , 9 th , or 11 th Grades or Grade Level Not Taught at the Surveyed School	3,785 (4.3%)
Total Surveys Removed Prior to Analysis	8,442 (9.0 %)
Surveys Included in Final Data Set	79,598 (90.4 %)

A Final Methods Note Regarding Long-Term Trend Data

The 2006 procedures varied from those used in this report, as well as those used in the 2005 and earlier reports. Non-standard procedures for calculating: 1) drug prevalence rates, and 2) scores on the risk and protective factor questions, were used in the 2006 report. The variation in 2006 procedures related to how missing data (ie, instances where the student did not respond to a question) were counted. The effect of the 2006 procedure was to slightly reduce the reported prevalence levels for all drugs and to lower the calculated scores for the risk and protective factor questions. TABLE 4

Total Number and Percentage of Survey Respondents by Grade and Demographic Characteristics Grade 6 Grade 8 Grade 10 Grade 12 2007 Total 2006 Total 2005 Total 2004 Total 2003 Total 2002 Total																				
	Gra	de 6	Gra	de 8	Grad	le 10	Grad	le 12	2007	Total	2006	Total	2005	Total	2004	Total	2003	Total	2002	Total
	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%
Total Sample	22,910	28.8	22,082	27.7	19,315	24.3	15,291	19.2	79,598	100.0	66,652	100.0	53,489	100.0	39,999	100.0	18,148	100.0	25,056	100.0
Gender																				
Male	11,023	48.9	10,634	49.0	8,971	47.0	6,986	46.1	37,614	47.9	31,480	48.3	25,455	48.3	18,897	48.3	8,757	48.6	11,916	47.9
Female	11,499	51.1	11,074	51.0	10,107	53.0	8,155	53.9	40,835	52.1	33,702	51.7	27,293	51.7	20,223	51.7	9,264	51.4	12,957	52.1
Race/Ethnicity	ace/Ethnicity																			
White	15,007	57.1	14,976	59.7	13,799	64.0	11,133	67.1	54,915	61.3	47,646	63.4	37,741	64.5	28,584	66.9	12,600	73.3	17,690	73.9
Native American	1,755	6.7	1,167	4.7	874	4.1	437	2.6	4,233	4.7	3,508	4.6	2,581	4.4	1,764	4.1	606	3.5	692	2.9
Hispanic	2,419	9.2	2,211	8.8	1,634	7.6	1,122	6.8	7,386	8.3	5,918	7.9	3,907	6.7	3,207	7.5	851	4.9	956	4.0
African American	4,403	16.8	4,301	17.2	3,391	15.7	2,657	16.0	14,752	16.5	11,214	14.9	9,920	17.0	6,267	14.7	2,544	14.8	3,886	16.2
Asian or Pacific Islander	438	1.7	494	2.0	489	2.3	405	2.4	1,826	2.0	1,654	2.2	1,157	2.0	761	1.8	248	1.4	257	1.1
Other	2,261	8.6	1,920	7.7	1,382	6.4	843	5.1	6,406	7.2	5,242	7.0	3,185	5.4	2,162	5.1	346	2.0	449	1.9
Family Structure																				
Both Parents	11,850	51.7	10,735	48.6	9,151	47.4	7,430	48.6	39,166	49.2	32,109	51.6	25,304	47.3	18,649	46.6	8,946	49.3	12,373	49.4
Step-Families	4,248	18.5	4,481	20.3	3,999	20.7	2,766	18.1	15,494	19.5	13,937	22.4	10,416	19.5	7,574	18.9	3,575	19.7	4,836	19.3
Single Parent	5,845	25.5	5,756	26.1	5,010	25.9	3,899	25.5	20,510	25.8	16,222	26.1	11,691	21.9	8,804	22.0	4,419	24.4	6,208	24.8
the second as second as a second second base	te d he ve vefi				awad a ask a	(the states		diana Tha	unforma theory								lan unta ind			

*Numbers and percentages listed here reflect only those students who answered each of the demographic questions. Therefore, the numbers and percentages in the Total column do not add up to the final completion rate indicated in the text of the report.

TABLE 5

				1	otal Nur	nber and	d Percen	tage of S	Survey F	Respond	ents by	Grade a	nd Partio	cipating	Region					
	Gra	de 6	Gra	de 8	Grad	le 10	Grad	le 12	2007	Total	2006	Total	2005	Total	2004	Total	2003	Total	2002	Total
	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%	#	%
Region 1	3698	16.1	3570	16.2	2698	14.0	2065	13.5	12031	15.1	9584	14.4	5988	11.2	5907	14.8	3182	17.5	3913	15.6
Region 2	981	4.3	974	4.4	848	4.4	716	4.7	3519	4.4	3591	5.4	853	1.6	202	0.5	498	2.7		
Region 3	2203	9.6	2081	9.4	1899	9.8	1664	10.9	7847	9.9	6107	9.2	5993	11.2	4656	11.6	539	3.0	602	2.4
Region 4	2420	10.6	2319	10.5	1959	10.1	1740	11.4	8438	10.6	7709	11.6	8110	15.1	7128	17.8	4813	26.5	4784	19.1
Region 5	2180	9.5	2243	10.2	2304	11.9	1687	11.0	8414	10.6	7079	10.6	6647	12.4	5157	12.9	3444	19.0	1628	6.5
Region 6	1684	7.4	1716	7.8	1563	8.1	1150	7.5	6113	7.7	5202	7.8	2400	4.5	1576	3.9				
Region 7	1087	4.7	971	4.4	775	4.0	555	3.6	3388	4.3	2258	3.4	2926	5.5	457	1.1	536	3.0	410	1.6
Region 8	1538	6.7	1531	6.9	1420	7.4	979	6.4	5468	6.9	4750	7.1	4591	8.6	3539	8.8	1275	7.0	1717	6.9
Region 9	3538	15.4	2897	13.1	2464	12.8	1920	12.6	10819	13.6	8726	13.1	5006	9.3	1518	3.8	651	3.6	6543	26.1
Region 10	1133	4.9	1235	5.6	987	5.1	781	5.1	4136	5.2	3185	4.8	2245	4.2	2288	5.7	1058	5.8	1770	7.1
Region 11	866	3.8	896	4.1	840	4.3	794	5.2	3396	4.3	3325	5.0	3670	6.9	3441	8.6	1570	8.7	1170	4.7
Region 12	959	4.2	1024	4.6	962	5.0	769	5.0	3714	4.7	2921	4.4	3565	6.7	2588	6.5	582	3.2	1146	4.6
Region 13	623	2.7	625	2.8	596	3.1	471	3.1	2315	2.9	2215	3.3	1563	2.9	1542	3.9			1373	5.5
Total	22910	100.0	22082	100.0	19315	100.0	15291	100.0	79598	100.0	66,652	100.0	53557	100.0	39999	100.0	18148	100.0	25056	100.0
Cells containin	ng the sym	bol indicate a	an area whei	re data are i	not available	because the	region did n	ot participate	e in either the	e 2002 or 20	03 survey.									











Section 2: Risk and Protective Factors for Substance Use and Other Problem Behaviors

The Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Survey is based upon the Risk and Protective Factor Model of Substance Abuse Prevention. In medical research, risk factors have been found for heart disease and other health problems. Through media campaigns to inform the general public about the risk factors for heart disease, many people are now aware that behaviors or characteristics such as eating high-fat foods, smoking, high cholesterol, being overweight, and lack of exercise, place them at risk for heart disease. Just as medical research discovered the risk factors for heart disease, social scientists have defined a set of risk factors that place young people atrisk for the problem behaviors of substance abuse, delinquency, violence, teen pregnancy, and school dropout. They have also identified a set of protective factors that help to buffer the harmful effects of risk.

J. David Hawkins, PhD, Richard F. Catalano, PhD, and their colleagues at the University of Washington have reviewed more than 30 years of existing work on risk factors from various fields and have completed extensive work of their own to identify risk factors for youth problem behaviors. They identified risk factors in important areas of daily life: 1) the **community**, 2) the **family**, 3) the **school**, and 4) within **individuals** themselves and their peer interactions. Many of the problem behaviors faced by youth – delinquency, substance abuse, violence, school dropout, and teen pregnancy – share many common risk factors. Programs designed to reduce those common risk factors will have the benefit of reducing several problem behaviors.

Using the risk and protective factor model, Hawkins, Catalano and their colleagues developed an approach that communities can use to reduce youth problem behaviors. An overview of the risk factors and protective factors that have been shown to be related to youth problem behaviors and their link to the APNA Survey can be found in Appendix B.

This section of the report is organized according to the four domains, important to a young person's life: community, family, school, and peer/ individual. For each domain, the definition of each risk factor is presented and then risk and protective results for Arkansas are provided by grade. Risk and protective factor charts are also provided to illustrate Arkansas risk and protection in relation to other states. Two components of the risk and protective factor charts are key to understanding the information that the charts contain: 1) the cut points for the risk and protective factor scales; and 2) the dashed lines that indicate a "national" value.

Cut Points

Before the percentage of youth at-risk on a given scale could be calculated, a scale value or cut point needed to be determined that would separate the at-risk group from the group that was not at-risk. The APNA Survey instrument was designed to assess adolescent substance use, antisocial behavior and the risk and protective factors that predict these adolescent problem behaviors. Since risk and protective factor model surveys have been given to more than 200,000 youth nationwide, it was possible to select two groups of youth, one that was more at-risk for problem behaviors and another group that was less at-risk. A cut-point score was then determined for each risk and protective factor scale that best divided the youth from the two groups into their appropriate group, more at-risk or less at-risk. The criteria for selecting the more atrisk and the less at-risk groups included academic grades (the more at-risk group received "D" and "F" grades, the less at-risk group received "A" and "B" grades), ATOD use (the more at-risk group

had more regular use, the less at-risk group had no drug use and use of alcohol or tobacco on only a few occasions), and antisocial behavior (the more at-risk group had two or more serious delinquent acts in the past year, the less at-risk group had no serious delinquent acts).

The cut points that were determined by analyzing the results of the more at-risk and less at-risk groups remain constant and are used to produce the profiles for future surveys. Since the cut points for each scale will remain fixed, the percentage of youth above the cut point on a scale (at-risk) will provide a method for evaluating the progress of prevention programs over time. For example, if the percentage of youth at-risk for family conflict in a community prior to implementing a communitywide family/parenting program was 60% and then decreased to 50% one year after the program was implemented, the program would be viewed as helping to reduce family conflict.

Dashed Line

Levels of risk and protection in your community also can be compared to a national sample. The dashed line on each risk and protective factor chart represents the percentage of youth at-risk or with protection for the seven-state sample of 200,000 students upon which the cut points were established. The seven states included in the norm group were: Colorado, Illinois, Kansas, Maine, Oregon, Utah, and Washington. All the states have a mix of urban and rural students.
Community Risk and Protective Factors

When looking at the community domain, it is important to consider other factors in addition to how members of a community interact with the youth of the community. Youth benefit from living in an area where neighbors and community members show concern for them, offer them support, and give encouragement and praise. Youth benefit from living in a community that functions in a socially healthy manner. What is the community like? Are drugs and guns readily available? Is there an active presence of law enforcement officers in the community? Is the community lacking in economic resources? Do community members, businesses, or police turn a blind eye toward drug use and antisocial behaviors, or condone such behaviors? Is there a sense of community disorganization or do members of the community work together toward common goals?

All of these community issues, and more, play significant roles in shaping the behaviors of the youth who live within a particular community. By understanding how youth perceive their neighborhood, Arkansas communities can get a better sense of how they need to change in order to reduce the risk that youth will participate in problem behaviors.

Definitions of all community domain risk factors, as well as scale scores for the community domain are provided on the next pages. Table 6 shows the links between the community risk factors and the five problem behaviors. The check marks indicate where at least two well-designed, published research studies have shown a link between the risk factor and the problem behavior.

Availability of Drugs Linked to Substance Abuse and Violence

As drugs become more available in a community, there is a higher risk that young people will abuse drugs in that community. Perceived availability of drugs is also associated with risk. For example, in schools where youth just *think* drugs are more available, a higher rate of drug use occurs.

TABLE 6

	PRO	BLEM	BEHA	VIORS	5
Youth at Risk: Community	Substance Abuse	Delinquency	Teen Pregnancy	School Dropout	Violence
Availability of drugs	~				~
Availability of firearms		~			~
Community laws and norms favorable toward drug use, firearms and crime	~	~			~
Media portrayals of violence					~
Transitions and mobility	~	~		~	
Low neighborhood attachment and community disorganization	~	~			~
Extreme economic and social deprivation	~	~	~	~	~

Availability of Firearms Línked to Delínquency and Víolence

Firearm availability and firearm homicide have increased since the late 1950s. If a gun is present in the home, it is much more likely to be used against a relative or friend than an intruder or stranger. Also, when a firearm is used in a crime or assault instead of another weapon or no weapon, the outcome is much more likely to be fatal. While a few studies report no association between firearm availability and violence, more studies show a positive relationship. Given the lethality of firearms, the increase in the likelihood of conflict escalating into homicide when guns are present, and the strong association between availability of guns and homicide rates, firearm availability is included as a risk factor.

Community Laws and Norms Favorable Toward Drug Use, Firearms, and Crime Linked to Substance Abuse, Delinquency, and Violence

Community norms, the attitudes and policies a community holds about drug use and crime, are communicated in a variety of ways: through laws and written policies, through informal social practices, and through the expectations parents and other community members have of young people. When laws and community standards are favorable toward drug use or crime, or even if they are just unclear, youth are at higher risk.

Transitions and Mobility Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, and School Dropout

Even normal school transitions predict increases in problem behaviors. When children move from elementary school to middle school, or from middle school to high school, significant increases in the rates of drug use, school misbehavior, and delinquency result.

Communities with high rates of mobility appear to be linked to an increased risk of drug use and crime problems. The more often people in a community move, the greater the risk of both criminal behavior and drug-related problems in families. While some people find buffers against the negative effects of mobility by making connections in new communities, others are less likely to have the resources to deal with the effects of frequent moves and are more likely to have problems.

Low Neighborhood Attachment and Community Disorganization

Linked to Substance Abuse, Delinquency, and Violence

Higher rates of drug problems, juvenile delinquency and violence occur in communities or neighborhoods where people have little attachment to the community, where the rates of vandalism are high, and where there is low surveillance of public places. These conditions are not limited to low-income neighborhoods; they can also be found in wealthier neighborhoods. The less homogeneous a community (in terms of race, class, religion, and even the mix of industrial to residential neighborhoods) and the less connected its residents may feel to the overall community, the more difficult it is to establish clear community goals and identity. The challenge of creating neighborhood attachment and organization is greater in these neighborhoods.

Perhaps the most significant issue affecting community attachment is whether residents feel they can make a difference in their lives. If the key players in the neighborhood – merchants, teachers, police, and human services personnel – live outside the neighborhood, residents' sense of commitment will be less. Lower rates of voter participation and parental involvement in schools also indicate lower attachment to the community.

Extreme Economic Deprivation Linked to Substance Abuse, Delinquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Violence

Children who live in deteriorating and crime-ridden neighborhoods characterized by extreme poverty are more likely to develop problems with delinquency, violence, teen pregnancy, and school dropout. Children who live in these areas, and have behavior and adjustment problems early in life, are also more likely to have problems with drugs later on. Please note that a scale has not been developed for this risk factor, and the APNA Survey does not gather results for this risk factor.

Media Portrayals of Violence Violence

The role of media violence on the behavior of viewers, especially young viewers, has been debated for more than three decades. Research over that time period has shown a clear correlation between media portrayal of violence and the development of aggressive and violent behavior. Exposure to violence in the media appears to have an impact on children in several ways: 1) children learn violent behavior from watching actors model that behavior; 2) they learn violent problem-solving strategies; and 3) media portrayals of violence appear to alter children's attitudes and sensitivity to violence. Please note that a scale has not been developed for this risk factor, and the APNA Survey does not gather results for this risk factor.

Community Risk and Protective Factor Scales

Risk Factors

In all grades, a majority of Arkansas survey participants were not at-risk in the community domain. The highest scaled score was for 10th grade, Transitions and Mobility (60.5% at-risk), followed by 8th grade, Transitions and Mobility (56.6% at-risk) (Table 7).

In looking at Arkansas' community risk factor scales in relation to the sevenstate norm, Figure 8 illustrates that Arkansas' levels of risk are similar to other states for most grades. Tenth grade levels of Community Disorganization were only slightly higher than other states. Twelfth grade levels of Perceived Availability of Drugs, and levels of Transitions and Mobility for all grades, were significantly higher than the seven-state norm. Other community domain risk factors were lower—some substantially lower—than the seven-state norms.

Protective Factors

Two protective factor scales for the community domain – Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement and Community Rewards for Prosocial Involvement – have been established in the research literature. For Rewards for Prosocial Involvement, Arkansas students' rates were below the seven-state norm for all grades, with 8th graders having the lowest protection (43.3%) and the 10th graders having the highest protection (49.3%). For Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, rates were approximately 4%-12% lower than the seven-state norm. These results indicate that community domain is an area where prevention programming could benefit Arkansas communities.

Comparisons to 2002 thru 2007 APNA Survey Data

Six years of risk and protective factor data are available for Arkansas. Since the 2002 APNA Survey, many risk factor scales have slowly declined. These include the risk factors Low Neighborhood Attachment, Laws and Norms Favorable to Drug Use, Perceived Availability of Drugs, and Perceived Availability of Handguns. The one risk factor that has not declined is Transitions and Mobility. This risk factor has increased substantially for Arkansas students at all grade levels in the past six years.

Since the 2002 APNA Survey, community domain protective factor scores have also shifted. For Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, rates have increased for all grade levels. In contrast, rates for Community Rewards for Prosocial Involvement have declined for all grade levels from 2002 to 2007.

Appendix E contains risk and protective factor charts for the 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grades. These profile charts contain all of the risk and protective factors with comparisons to the previous year's state survey data.

				Co	mmu	nity D	omair	n Risk	and	Protec	ctive F	actor	Scor	es										
			Gra	de 6					Gra	de 8					Grad	le 10					Grad	le 12		
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
RISK FACTORS																								
Low Neighborhood Attachment	43.3	42.0	42.2	43.8	44.3	41.1	38.0	36.0	33.9	35.8	33.9	36.2	44.2	42.0	40.7	41.6	40.5	41.6	48.5	47.8	43.5	43.0	42.7	45.3
Community Disorganization	38.7	38.5	40.9	38.5	39.4	37.1	35.4	31.9	35.7	34.3	32.7	32.8	44.2	44.7	48.8	47.5	46.9	45.2	43.0	41.1	44.7	44.6	44.6	43.3
Transitions and Mobility	42.4	42.1	48.6	49.9	40.0	51.2	42.1	43.9	53.2	53.1	53.4	56.6	43.6	45.7	58.6	58.5	58.1	60.5	36.5	40.5	47.9	47.5	49.5	49.6
Laws & Norms Favor Drug Use	41.0	38.6	41.5	42.7	63.4	41.0	38.2	34.9	34.9	37.0	25.9	34.9	45.0	42.1	44.5	44.8	18.3	40.9	38.3	37.8	36.5	36.5	9.8	33.6
Perceived Availability of Drugs	27.7	26.8	25.9	24.6	24.4	24.4	32.9	28.1	30.3	30.1	29.0	27.6	45.3	42.7	45.1	45.1	42.9	38.9	53.7	49.8	51.6	51.2	48.9	45.8
Perceived Availability of Handguns	29.4	27.5	28.0	27.2	28.2	25.1	43.9	40.0	41.1	40.8	37.2	39.3	32.4	31.7	35.2	35.9	33.1	33.1	40.0	37.0	41.0	41.5	38.8	38.7
PROTECTIVE FACTORS																								
Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	46.2	47.2	48.6	48.4	54.7	44.7	46.9	52.4	53.8	52.9	69.6	50.5	38.3	46.3	50.7	49.9	71.2	48.4	34.6	44.0	49.5	48.8	73.4	48.4
Community Reward for Prosocial Involvement	54.4	55.9	54.4	53.8	53.1	48.2	44.9	47.4	45.4	45.2	42.2	43.3	52.4	54.4	51.9	51.2	47.5	49.3	53.2	54.2	52.3	52.1	48.3	48.4



FIGURE 9



FAMILY RISK AND PROTECTIVE FACTORS

For the family domain, one must consider more than parents' personal interaction with their children. Youth benefit from being bonded with their family and from belonging to a family in which their parents offer support, encouragement, and praise. Other important factors that can contribute to youth problem behaviors are whether or not the youth's parents or siblings have used substances, approve of the use of substances, or have participated in antisocial behaviors. If a youth's living situation is full of conflict (fights and arguments) and disorganization (lack of family communication or parents not knowing the whereabouts or doings of their children), the youth is also at-risk for problem behaviors.

Definitions of all family domain risk factors, as well as scores for the family domain are provided on the following pages. The table below shows the links between the family risk factors and the five problem behaviors. The check marks indicate where at least two well-designed, peer-reviewed research studies have shown an association between the risk factor and the problem behavior.

TABLE 8

	PRO	BLEM	BEHA	/IORS	
Youth at Risk: Family	Substance Abuse	Delinquency	Teen Pregnancy	School Dropout	Violence
Family History of the Problem Behavior	~	~	~	~	~
Family Management Problems	~	~	~	~	~
Family Conflict	~	~	~	~	~
Favorable Parental Attitudes and Involvements In the Problem Behavior	~	~			~

Family History of the Problem Behavior Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

If children are raised in a family with a history of addiction to alcohol or other drugs, the risk of the child having alcohol and other drug problems increases. If children are born or raised in a family with a history of criminal activity, their risk of juvenile delinquency increases. Similarly, children who are raised by a teenage mother are more likely to become teen parents, and children of dropouts are more likely to drop out of school themselves. Family Management Problems Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

Poor family management practices include lack of clear expectations for behavior, failure of parents to monitor their children (knowing where they are and who they are with), and excessively severe or inconsistent punishment.

Family Conflict Línked to Substance Abuse, Delín

Linked to Substance Abuse, Delinquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Violence

Persistent, serious conflict between primary caregivers or between caregivers and children appears to enhance risk for children raised in these families. Conflict between family members appears to be more important than family structure. Whether the family is headed by two biological parents, a single parent, or some other primary caregiver, children raised in families high in conflict appear to be at-risk for all of the problem behaviors.

Favorable Parental Attitudes and Involvement in the Behavior Linked to Substance Abuse, Delinquency, and Violence

Parental attitudes and behavior toward drugs, crime, and violence influence the attitudes and behavior of their children. Parental approval of young people's moderate drinking, even under parental supervision, increases the risk of the young person using marijuana. Similarly, children of parents who excuse their children for breaking the law are more likely to develop problems with juvenile delinquency. In families where parents display violent behavior toward those outside or inside the family, there is an increase in the risk that a child will become violent. Further, in families where parents involve children in their own drug or alcohol behavior, for example, asking the child to light the parent's cigarette or to get the parent a beer, there is an increased likelihood that their children will become drug abusers in adolescence.

FAMILY RISK AND PROTECTIVE FACTOR SCALES

Risk Factors

In all grades, a majority of Arkansas survey respondents were not at-risk in the family domain. Table 9 shows that the highest scale scores were for Parent Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior for 10th graders (50.1% at-risk) and 12^{th} graders (48.4%), followed by Family Conflict for 8th graders (47.6% at-risk).

Figure 10 illustrates that most Arkansas' levels of family risk factors are similar to, or lower than, other states for most grades. Eighth grade scores for Family Conflict, and 10th and 12th grade scores for Parental Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior, were above the seven-state norm. Poor Family Management scale scores for all grades were lower than the seven-state norm, as well as 6th and 8th grade scores for Parental Attitudes Favorable to Drug Use.

Protective Factors

There are three protective factor scales for the family domain – Family Attachment, Family Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, and Family Rewards for Prosocial Involvement. In the family domain, most protective factor rates for the state are similar to the seven-state norm for nearly all grades. Rates of Family Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement (6th and 8th grades), and Family Rewards for Prosocial Involvement (8th grade) were 6.1% to 8.2% above the seven-state norm.

Comparisons to 2002 thru 2007 APNA Survey Data

As can be seen in Table 9, levels of risk for the Parental Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior scale increased from 6.5% (6th grade) to 8.0% (12th grade) since the 2002 APNA Survey. Family conflict has also increased slightly since the first 2002 survey. In contrast, two other risk factors in the family domain, Poor Family Management and Family History of Antisocial Behavior have shown moderate declines.

In contrast to the mixed results for the family domain risk factors, students are reporting slightly to moderately lower levels of protection in all three family domain protective factors. The largest decline in protection was seen for Family Attachment, with the greatest decline of 4.8% since 2002 being reported by 12th grade students.

Appendix E contains risk and protective factor charts for the 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grades. These profile charts contain all risk and protective factors with comparisons to the previous years' state survey data.

				F	amily	Dom	ain Ri	sk an	d Pro	tectiv	e Fact	or Sc	ores											
			Gra	de 6					Gra	de 8					Grac	le 10					Grac	le 12		
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
RISK FACTORS																								
Poor Family Management	37.6	35.1	34.1	35.4	31.2	35.9	39.8	36.0	36.8	37.5	33.0	38.2	38.7	37.4	37.1	38.8	35.7	37.5	43.0	40.3	38.8	39.7	37.0	39.6
Family Conflict	35.2	33.1	38.8	39.9	33.1	36.2	44.1	42.3	49.6	51.0	42.4	47.6	36.7	36.9	41.6	41.9	37.3	39.4	33.6	33.7	38.3	38.4	34.7	35.4
Family History of Antisocial Behavior	38.7	37.8	40.0	39.2	33.0	34.9	40.9	39.0	41.3	41.3	34.4	37.1	42.6	43.0	43.9	44.0	39.6	40.8	41.4	39.5	42.6	40.7	36.2	37.7
Parent Attitudes Favor Antisocial Behavior	26.2	26.4	32.2	33.7	13.1	32.7	37.5	36.4	43.5	44.8	24.6	45.3	42.4	42.2	46.9	49.7	39.7	50.1	40.4	41.5	45.7	46.6	50.3	48.4
Parent Attitudes Favor Drug Use	12.2	11.6	15.1	15.1	29.6	13.3	25.5	24.5	28.4	28.6	40.1	27.0	41.3	40.1	42.6	43.2	47.8	41.7	41.5	42.8	44.1	42.0	28.4	41.4
PROTECTIVE FACTORS																								
Family Attachment	60.1	59.2	57.2	56.5	45.3	57.0	56.1	55.9	53.9	52.5	45.1	52.6	47.3	48.3	46.4	43.9	40.0	45.3	61.0	58.8	57.7	56.7	51.0	56.2
Family Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	63.9	64.0	62.0	62.9	49.5	62.1	64.5	65.8	65.1	63.6	54.2	63.9	56.1	57.7	57.2	55.2	49.1	55.1	57.1	57.5	55.7	56.5	50.5	55.6
Family Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	57.2	57.6	56.3	56.0	43.1	55.8	65.7	66.2	66.3	64.6	53.7	64.2	55.2	57.2	56.3	55.5	48.0	54.7	57.0	55.7	55.3	55.1	48.6	54.4





FIGURE 1



SCHOOL RISK AND PROTECTIVE FACTORS

In the school domain, the early years are important for creating or decreasing the level of risk for children. Academic failure in elementary school puts children at-risk for substance use, delinquency, teen pregnancy, school dropout, and violence later in life. Further, a child with early and persistent antisocial behavior is at risk for substance use and other problems later in life.

These two factors (academic failure and early engagement in antisocial behavior) indicate that prevention programs should begin early in a student's schooling. Programs that can effectively target the needs of the school population will help to decrease the level of risk, thereby decreasing problem behaviors later in school. The Arkansas data will help schools target the problem behaviors and student populations that are at the greatest need for services.

As with the community and family domains, bonding at the school level also buffers against the effects of risk factors and increases protection. When youth have healthy relationships with their teachers, when they feel as if they are able to play an active role in their classes and in their school, and when they receive encouragement and support, they are more bonded to their school and their commitment to school is less likely to falter.

Definitions of all school domain risk factors, as well as scores for the school domain, are provided on the next pages. Table 10 shows the links between the school risk factors and the five problem behaviors. The check marks indicate where at least two well-designed, peer-reviewed research studies have shown an association between the risk factor and the problem behavior.

TABLE 10

	PRO	BLEM	BEHA	VIORS	5
Youth at Risk: School	Substance Abuse	Delinquency	Teen Pregnancy	School Dropout	Violence
Academic Failure Beginning in Late Elementary School	~	~	~	~	~
Lack of Commitment to School	~	~	~	~	~

Academic Failure in Elementary School Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

Beginning in the late elementary grades, academic failure increases the risk of drug abuse, delinquency, violence, teen pregnancy, and school dropout. Youth fail for many reasons. It appears that the experience of failure, not necessarily the student's ability, increases the risk of problem behaviors.

Lack of Commitment to School Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

Lack of commitment to school means the young person has ceased to see the role of student as a viable one. Young people who have lost this commitment to school are at higher risk for all five problem behaviors.

School Risk and Protective Factor Scales

Risk Factors

The two risk factor scales for the school domain are Academic Failure and Low Commitment to School. Rates for both risk factors were similar to the seven-state norm for all grades. Rates of Academic Failure were slightly higher than the seven-state norm for the 8th and 10th grades, and rates of Low Commitment to School were lower in all grades.

Risk factor rates are very close for all grades, indicating that in the school domain, youth are equally affected by the risk factors.

Protective Factors

The two protective factor scales for the school domain are School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement and School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement. The following rates were well above the seven-state norm: 8th, 10th, and 12th grade rates of Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement, and 6th and 10th grade rates for Rewards for Prosocial Involvement.

Comparisons to 2002 thru 2007 APNA Survey Data

Since 2002, both school domain risk factors have shown slight-to- moderate rate decreases. The greatest decrease was for Low Commitment to School, where substantial and meaningful decreases ranged from 2.5% (6th grade) to 6.9% (8th grade).

Equally good news, both of the protective factors have shown moderate-tolarge rate increases in the reported levels of protection for Arkansas students. Opportunities for positive involvement increased by 3.6% (6th grade) to 12% (10th and 12th grades). Large rate increases (4.6% to 9.6%) were also reported for Rewards for Positive Involvement. These changes should be regarded as substantial and meaningful improvements in the school domain for Arkansas students.

TABLE	
-------	--

					Sc	nool [)omai	n Ris	k and	Prote	ctive	Facto	r Sco	res										
			Gra	de 6					Grad	de 8					Grad	e 10					Grad	le 12		
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
RISK FACTORS																								
Academic Failure	45.4	44.6	48.3	46.5	37.2	44.2	49.5	46.3	49.8	50.1	43.7	47.0	48.8	47.8	49.2	49.3	46.7	48.5	42.4	43.3	43.2	43.3	41.6	41.3
Low Commitment to School	44.5	41.4	40.1	41.9	50.9	42.0	42.2	38.7	35.1	35.7	31.4	35.3	44.6	41.5	38.2	38.0	31.2	39.5	46.2	43.5	43.4	41.5	38.3	42.2
PROTECTIVE FACTORS																								
Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	45.6	44.4	47.9	45.2	44.9	49.2	60.7	61.3	65.6	62.9	63.0	66.5	53.5	59.9	62.5	61.3	60.1	65.3	53.2	59.9	61.6	62.1	61.8	65.2
Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	54.3	58.2	61.4	59.5	56.0	58.9	47.8	52.6	58.4	56.0	55.3	56.1	54.9	60.6	65.6	64.8	62.7	64.5	41.1	45.4	50.3	50.4	49.1	50.0



FIGURE 13



$\ensuremath{\mathsf{Peer}}\xspace/\ensuremath{\mathsf{Individual}}\xspace$ Risk and Protective Factors

The fourth domain, peer/individual, addresses peer influence as well as factors that spring from the individual. Youth are at-risk for problem behaviors when they have friends who engage in unfavorable behaviors or when they have friends who have favorable attitudes toward the behaviors (ie, it is seen as "cool"). In addition, youth are at-risk for problem behaviors when they are depressed, rebellious, or feel alienation and are more likely to use drugs and show antisocial behavior. Other constitutional (that is, biological) factors also play a part in whether or not a student is at risk for ATOD use or antisocial behaviors.

Definitions of all peer/individual domain risk and protective factors, as well as a description of individual characteristics, bonding, and healthy beliefs and clear standards, are presented in this section. Also in this discussion of peer/ individual risk factors, scores for the scales in this domain are provided (Table 13, Figures 14-15). Table 12 shows the links between the peer/individual risk factors and the five problem behaviors. The check marks indicate where at least two well-designed, peer-reviewed research studies have shown an association between the risk factor and the problem behavior.

Early and Persistent Antisocial Behavior Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

Boys who are aggressive in grades K-3 are at higher risk for substance abuse and delinquency. When a boy's aggressive behavior in the early grades is combined with isolation or withdrawal, there is an even greater risk of problems in adolescence. This increased risk also applies to aggressive behavior combined with hyperactivity or attention deficit disorder.

TABLE 12

	PRO	BLEM	BEHA	VIORS	5
Youth at Risk: Peer/Individual	Substance Abuse	Delinquency	Teen Pregnancy	School Dropout	Violence
Early and Persistent Antisocial Behavior	~	~	~	~	~
Rebelliousness	~	~		~	
Friends Who Engage In a Problem Behavior	~	~	~	~	~
Gang Involvement	~	~			~
Favorable Attitudes Toward the Problem Behavior	~	~	~	~	
Early Initiation of the Problem Behavior	~	~	~	~	~
Depressive Symptoms	~	~			
Intention to Use ATODs	~				
Constitutional (Biological) Factors	~	~			~

This risk factor also includes persistent antisocial behavior in early adolescence, like misbehaving in school, skipping school, and getting into fights with other children. Young people, both girls and boys, who engage in these behaviors during early adolescence are at increased risk for drug abuse, delinquency, teen pregnancy, school dropout, and violence.

Alienation, Rebelliousness, and Lack of Bonding to Society Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, and School Dropout

Young people who feel they are not part of society, are not bound by rules, don't believe in trying to be successful or responsible, or who take an active rebellious stance toward society, are at higher risk of drug abuse, delinquency, and school dropout.

Friends Who Engage in the Problem Behavior Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

Research has demonstrated that youth who associate with peers who engage in problem behaviors are much more likely to engage in the same problem behaviors. Even when young people come from well-managed families and do not experience other risk factors, just hanging out with those who engage in problem behaviors greatly increases their risks. However, young people who experience a low number of risk factors are less likely to associate with those who are involved in problem behaviors.

Gang Involvement Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, School Dropout, and Víolence

Youth who belong to gangs are more at-risk for antisocial behavior and drug use. Gang membership has been linked to violence, shootings, destruction of public property, and involvement in other illegal behaviors including distribution of drugs.

Favorable Attitudes Toward the Problem Behavior Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, and School Dropout

During the elementary school years, children usually express anti-drug, anticrime, and prosocial attitudes. They have difficulty imagining why people use drugs, commit crimes, and drop out of school. In middle school, as others they know participate in such activities, their attitudes often shift toward greater acceptance of these behaviors. This places them at higher risk.

Early Initiation of the Problem Behavior Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, Teen Pregnancy, School Dropout, and Víolence

The earlier young people begin using drugs, committing crimes, engaging in violent activity, becoming sexually active, and dropping out of school, the greater the likelihood that they will have problems with these behaviors later on. For example, research shows that young people who initiate drug use before 15 years of age are at twice the risk of having drug problems as those whose initial use is after 19 years of age.

Depressive Symptoms Línked to Substance Abuse and Delínquency

Young people who are depressed are more frequently involved in the criminal justice system and are more likely to use drugs. When depressed, youth have difficulty in identifying and engaging in prosocial activities. They consequently do not gain recognition for demonstrating positive behaviors or do not develop attachments to their schools or communities. In the 2007 APNA survey, youth who scored highest on the items measuring depressive symptoms also scored significantly higher on all of the drug use questions.

Intention to Use ATODs Linked to Substance Abuse

Many prevention programs focus on reducing the intention of participants to use ATODs later in life. Reduction of intention to use ATODs often follows successful prevention interventions.

Constitutional Factors Línked to Substance Abuse, Delínquency, and Víolence

Constitutional factors are factors that may have a biological or physiological basis. These factors are often seen in young people with behaviors such as sensation-seeking, low harm-avoidance, and lack of impulse control. These factors appear to increase the risk of young people abusing drugs, engaging in delinquent behavior, and/or committing violent acts.

Some young people who are exposed to multiple risk factors do not become substance abusers, juvenile delinquents, teen parents, or school dropouts.

Balancing the risk factors are protective factors, those aspects of people's lives that counter risk factors or provide buffers against them. They protect by either reducing the impact of the risks or by changing the way a person responds to the risks. A key strategy to counter risk factors is to enhance protective factors that promote positive behavior, health, well-being, and personal success. Research indicates that protective factors for this domain fall into three basic categories: Individual Characteristics, Bonding, and Healthy Beliefs and Clear Standards.

Individual Characteristics

Research has identified four individual characteristics as protective factors. These attributes are considered to be inherent in the adolescent and are difficult, if not impossible, to change.

Gender. Given equal exposure to risks, girls are less likely to develop health and behavior problems in adolescence than are boys.

A Resilient Temperament. Young people who have the ability to quickly adjust to, or recover from, misfortune or changes are at reduced risk.

A Positive Social Orientation. Young people who are good- natured, enjoy social interactions, and elicit positive attention from others are at reduced risk.

Intelligence. Bright children are less likely to become delinquent or drop out of school. However, intelligence does not protect against substance abuse.

Bonding

Research indicates that one of the most effective ways to reduce children's risk is to strengthen their bond with positive, prosocial family members, teachers, or other significant adults, and/or prosocial friends. Children who are attached to positive families, friends, schools, and their community, and who are committed to achieving the goals valued by these groups, are less likely to develop problems in adolescence. Children who are bonded to others who hold healthy beliefs are less likely to do things that threaten that bond, such as use drugs, commit crimes, or drop out of school. For example, if children are attached to their parents and want to please them, they will be less likely to risk breaking this connection by doing things of which their parents strongly disapprove. Studies of successful children who live in high-risk neighborhoods or situations indicate that strong bonds with a caregiver can keep children from getting into trouble. Positive bonding makes up for many disadvantages caused by risk factors or environmental characteristics.

Healthy Beliefs and Clear Standards

Bonding is only part of the protective equation. Research indicates that another group of protective factors falls into the category of healthy beliefs and clear standards. The people with whom youth are bonded need to have clear, positive standards for behavior. The content of these standards is what protects young people. For example, being opposed to youth alcohol and drug use is a standard that has been shown to protect young people from the damaging effects of substance abuse risk factors. Children whose parents have high expectations for their school success and achievement are less likely to drop out of school. Clear standards against criminal activity and early, unprotected sexual activity have a similar protective effect.

The negative effects of risk factors can be reduced when schools, families, and/or peer groups teach young people healthy beliefs and set clear standards for their behavior. Examples of healthy beliefs include believing it is best for children to be drug- and crime-free and to do well in school. Examples of clear standards include establishing clear no drug and alcohol family rules, establishing the expectation that an adolescent does well in school, and having

PEER/INDIVIDUAL RISK AND PROTECTIVE FACTOR SCALES

Risk Factors

For many risk factor scales in the peer/individual domain, the levels of risk most often increase with increasing age and peak in the 10th or 12th grades. For example, in the Rewards for Antisocial Behavior risk scale, 22.1% of 6th graders, 37.4% of 8th graders, 41.3% of 10th graders, and 54.8% of 12 graders were at risk. The jump in risk from grade 6 to grade 8 is similar in the jump in drug and alcohol use that usually occurs during that time frame. Other factors such as Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior, Attitudes Favorable to Drug Use, Interaction with Antisocial Peers, Friends Use of Drugs, Depressive Symptoms scale and Gang Involvement gradually increased from the 6th grade to the 10th grade, then decreased from the 10th to 12th grade.

When looking at the grades individually, the highest risk scores were: 6th grade - Sensation Seeking (50.6% at-risk); 8th grade - Interaction with Antisocial Peers (50.6% at-risk); 10th grade - Interaction with Antisocial Peers (52.1% at-risk); and 12th grade - Rewards for Antisocial Behavior (54.8% at-risk).

In comparison to the seven-state norm, risk factor scores for Arkansas youth in the peer/individual domain are generally below the norm. Some factors that are higher than the seven-state norm for most or all grades were: Sensation Seeking for all grades; Interaction With Antisocial Peers for the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades; Rewards for Antisocial Behavior for the 12th grade; and Rebelliousness for the 6th grade. Factors that are lower than the norm for all grade levels are: Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior and Drug Use, Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior and Drug Use, Perceived Risk of Drug Use, Friends' Use of Drugs, Intention to Use Drugs, and Gang Involvement.

Protective Factors

There are six protective factor scales for the peer/individual domain. The 2007 APNA Survey results show that the Prosocial Involvement scale score is well below the seven-state norm for all grades. Scale scores for Religiosity, Interaction with Prosocial Peers, and Social Skills were above the seven-state norm in all grades. Further, 6th, 8th, and 10th grade Belief in the Moral Order scores were above the seven-state norm and 6th, 8th, and 10th grade Peer/Individual Rewards for Prosocial Involvement scores were also above the seven-state norm.

Comparisons to 2002 thru 2007 APNA Survey Data

In comparing 2002 data to 2007 data, results showed a moderate downward trend in peer-individual domain risk factors. In the 6th grade, risk factor scores declined for eight scales, and declines were reported in seven scales for the 8th, 10th and 12th grades.

In the negative direction, a notable increase since 2002 has been observed in gang involvement. The reported level of gang involvement rose between 2002 and 2005, and has remained relatively stable at the higher level since then.

For protective factors, the changes since 2002 have been smaller and less uniform. The largest increase has been for Belief in the Moral Order for 6th grade students (5.9%) while the largest decrease of 4.2% was observed for Religiosity for 12th grade students.

Appendix E contains risk and protective factor charts for the 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grades. These profile charts contain all risk and protective factors with comparisons to the previous years' state survey data.

TABLE	I	3
-------	---	---

				Pe	er/Ind	lividu	al Doi	main I	Risk a	nd Pr	otecti	ive Fa	ctor S	Scores	6									
			Gra	de 6					Gra	de 8					Grad	le 10					Grac	le 12		
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
RISK FACTORS																								
Rebelliousness	47.2	46.9	49.0	50.3	47.0	46.8	34.6	33.9	39.0	40.4	36.9	38.1	39.6	39.6	45.3	48.7	46.0	44.6	37.3	38.1	43.2	45.3	42.5	43.0
Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior	20.4	19.5	23.4	25.5	25.7	25.9	32.5	30.3	34.3	35.4	35.9	37.3	35.3	35.5	38.9	40.4	41.4	40.6	34.1	36.4	38.5	38.6	40.1	39.1
Early Initiation of Drug Use	30.3	28.5	32.0	30.1	29.2	25.4	36.6	33.9	35.0	32.9	16.3	28.7	39.6	38.0	37.7	36.2	34.4	32.4	40.0	40.5	39.4	35.2	55.4	33.0
Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior	40.4	39.5	36.5	37.7	37.4	37.5	35.0	34.7	33.0	32.3	32.3	33.3	43.8	40.0	40.0	42.0	42.8	41.7	39.9	41.6	38.0	37.8	39.7	39.0
Attitudes Favorable to Drug Use	24.2	22.4	22.3	20.8	19.9	17.9	29.2	26.6	26.4	25.5	23.5	22.8	40.6	37.7	35.8	35.4	35.2	33.1	38.2	38.8	34.3	32.2	33.1	32.9
Perceived Risk of Drug Use	29.6	27.5	29.9	31.8	31.7	32.6	38.6	35.7	36.2	37.9	36.1	36.4	39.2	36.8	34.3	35.5	36.1	34.6	43.1	43.4	39.0	39.0	40.7	41.6
Interaction with Antisocial Peers	32.4	30.5	37.0	38.7	37.8	38.9	46.0	43.6	49.5	51.1	49.5	50.6	48.8	48.4	52.8	53.6	52.9	52.1	48.1	48.4	49.7	49.7	49.3	49.4
Friends' Use of Drugs	24.2	24.2	25.2	23.9	22.9	20.6	36.6	33.8	35.5	34.7	39.8	30.8	39.9	38.9	38.9	37.2	48.3	33.1	39.4	37.8	35.4	32.3	46.9	31.0
Sensation Seeking	36.6	36.4	54.0	52.3	53.5	50.6	38.1	38.2	51.9	50.7	50.1	49.6	41.9	40.7	48.5	49.5	50.2	48.4	45.4	43.9	51.4	50.1	51.1	50.5
Rewards for Antisocial Behavior	24.2	21.6	26.5	23.9	23.5	22.1	39.4	36.9	41.8	39.4	36.8	37.4	36.9	35.8	46.1	43.1	41.9	41.3	45.7	45.2	57.3	54.1	54.1	54.8
Depression Scale	45.8	47.3	46.7	43.3	40.1	39.5	48.3	49.2	48.7	46.6	43.6	44.1	49.1	48.6	49.5	47.1	45.9	46.2	43.2	45.6	44.8	42.5	41.0	40.4
Intention to Use			34.0	36.1	36.2	35.3			28.6	28.0	26.7	26.4			40.0	40.4	40.2	38.3			29.8	28.3	28.7	28.7
Gang Involvement	14.7	15.5	24.2	24.0	9.8	20.2	16.9	17.3	21.0	20.4	9.7	21.5	14.9	17.7	25.2	25.4	9.6	25.7	11.4	12.8	21.7	22.6	5.8	22.7
PROTECTIVE FACTORS																								
Religiosity	65.4	65.4	67.2	67.3	65.3	63.7	69.4	69.2	69.0	68.8	68.0	68.0	67.4	65.8	67.3	67.5	65.0	64.9	90.3	87.7	88.1	88.5	59.7	86.1
Social Skills	73.8	74.1	71.5	70.3	82.3	71.0	67.9	69.2	67.7	67.4	83.1	66.9	57.5	58.7	57.7	56.4	75.3	57.4	67.1	67.0	66.8	68.0	86.1	67.4
Belief in Moral Order	59.1	61.0	63.0	62.1	67.5	65.0	61.3	62.7	63.9	63.4	57.2	64.4	64.6	66.0	67.5	64.7	83.2	66.5	49.6	50.4	51.3	51.7	72.6	51.4
Interaction with Prosocial Peers			59.6	57.8	83.7	56.7			64.5	62.6	86.2	65.3			63.5	62.3	86.7	63.3			61.7	61.1	86.7	60.5
Prosocial Involvement			46.8	46.3	44.7	43.2			47.6	47.9	48.8	47.6			50.2	49.3	48.3	49.1			43.6	44.1	42.6	43.5
Rewards for Prosocial Involvement			65.4	64.0	62.1	63.2			72.1	68.2	68.1	69.8			66.1	63.0	62.5	64.1			54.4	53.1	53.9	53.9









Section 3: Substance Use Outcomes

Age of Initiation

Arkansas youth were asked to report when, if ever, they first used ATODs. In calculating the average age of initiation, only the ages indicated by youth who had used the substance before were taken into account.

The results show that youth begin using cigarettes before using any other substance. Of the youth who had used cigarettes, the average age of first use was 12.1 years. A period of about 18 months separates the age of first use of alcohol and the first regular alcohol use, with the first use occurring at 12.6

years, and the first regular use of alcohol at 14.1 years. The results also show that youth begin trying marijuana earlier than expected. Of the youth who had used marijuana, the average age of first use was 13.6 years, nearly six months before youth indicated that they had begun regular alcohol use.

In comparing 2006 APNA Survey results to those from the 2007 survey, results were unchanged for first use of all substances. However, comparing 2002 survey results to this year's survey, a decrease in age is seen in first regular use of alcohol, from 14.6 years in 2002 to 14.1 years in 2007.

Age of Initiation						
Drug Used	Average That Th	e Age of F ev Had Us	irst Use sed)	of Stude	nts Who I	ndicated
5	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
First Cigarette Use	11.9	11.9	11.9	12.0	12.0	12.1
First Marijuana Use	13.6	13.6	13.4	13.5	13.5	13.6
First Alcohol Use or More	12.6	12.7	12.5	12.5	12.5	12.6
First Regular Alcohol Use	14.6	14.2	14.1	14.1	14.1	14.1

TABLE 14





LIFETIME ATOD USE

Lifetime Use by Grade

Lifetime use is recorded when a student reports that they have used a substance at least once in their lifetime. Lifetime use is typically viewed as the best measure of youth experimentation with alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs. In the 2007 APNA Survey, the most commonly used substances are alcohol (45.5% have used at least once), cigarettes (30.0%), smokeless tobacco (14.8%), marijuana (15.5%), and inhalants (13.0%).

Arkansas Results Compared to National Results

Figure 17 and Table 15 illustrate the differences in lifetime ATOD use by Arkansas 8th, 10th, and 12th grade participants and national Monitoring the Future (MTF) participants in the same grades. Arkansas survey participants in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades typically have had higher lifetime experience with cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and inhalants when compared to the national findings. The greatest discrepancies were: smokeless tobacco use was 4.4% to 8.1% greater in Arkansas than for the national sample for youth in grades 8, 10 and 12; cigarette use was 3.5% to 5.4% greater in Arkansas for all grades; and inhalant use was 0.4% to 1.5% greater in Arkansas for all grades.

Alcohol use by Arkansas students was roughly equivalent to national use, with only a slight variation in this comparison for the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades.

However, compared to the national sample, Arkansas youth reported less lifetime use in these substances: marijuana (4.7% to 7.6% less than MTF students), hallucinogens (2.4% to 4.4% less than MTF), cocaine (1.9% to

2.9% less than MTF students), ecstasy (1.1% to 1.8% less than MTF), heroin (0.4% to 0.7% less than MTF), and any drug (2.7% to 6.8% less than MTF).

2007 Results Compared to Previous Years' Results

Since the 2002 APNA Survey, lifetime use of most substances by Arkansas youth has decreased, sometimes dramatically. For example, use of substances has significantly decreased in each grade and in the state total for alcohol, cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and marijuana. Also since 2002, lifetime hallucinogen and ecstasy use has decreased in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades and overall. Cocaine and methamphetamine lifetime use has also decreased in the 10th and 12th grades, and for the state total since 2002.

Table 15 also shows that rates of lifetime cigarette use decreased 1.6% to 3.3% in each grade and 2.8% for the state total since the 2006 survey. The state total for stimulant use decreased 1.6% since 2004, from 4.7% in 2004 to 3.1% in 2007. The only exception to this pattern was for inhalant use. Arkansas students have maintained steady levels of inhalant use over the 2002-2007 time span.

Youth in Arkansas report rates of decline in ATOD use that generally mirrors the national sample. While not shown on Table 15, a downward trend in substance use has been recorded by MTF during the same (2002-2007) period.

NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA Survey that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of youth reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of youth reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of youth reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of youth reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, methamphetamines, stimulants, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results, because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.



Percentage of	Arka	nsas	Resp	onde	ents \	Who I	Used	ATO	Ds Di	uring	Thei	r Life	time by	/ Gra	de																		
Drug Used	Arka Grad	nsas e 6					Arkar Grade	nsas e 8					MTF Grade 8	Arkaı Grad	nsas e 10					MTF Grade 10	Arkar Grade	nsas e 12					MTF Grade 12	Total					
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	22.7	21.7	21.1	21.2	19.4	17.7	46.1	44.7	44.4	44.0	40.7	41.0	38.9	66.5	65.4	65.5	64.9	62.4	62.1	61.7	76.0	77.1	76.1	74.4	72.5	71.9	72.2	50.2	51.3	50.1	49.0	46.9	45.5
Cigarettes	18.1	17.5	17.2	15.0	13.2	10.8	39.4	36.0	34.8	32.8	28.8	26.8	22.1	53.9	52.1	49.1	46.5	43.3	40.0	34.6	62.6	61.0	58.7	54.5	51.3	49.7	46.2	41.3	41.0	38.7	35.8	32.8	30.0
Smokeless Tobacco	10.0	10.1	8.5	8.3	7.6	6.1	20.0	17.5	16.1	16.5	14.5	13.5	9.1	25.8	25.8	23.3	22.5	22.2	19.6	15.1	28.4	29.6	26.6	24.3	25.1	23.2	15.1	20.1	20.4	18.0	17.3	16.7	14.8
Marijuana	3.2	3.3	2.4	2.1	2.4	1.5	16.2	14.0	12.1	11.5	10.7	9.5	14.2	32.7	31.8	28.0	25.7	25.5	23.4	31.0	44.6	45.3	39.4	36.7	34.9	34.8	41.8	22.0	22.7	19.2	17.5	17.2	15.5
Inhalants	10.1	9.8	11.6	10.5	9.3	9.3	15.6	14.6	17.4	16.5	15.4	16.0	15.6	14.2	14.6	17.0	15.7	16.3	14.9	13.6	12.6	12.9	14.6	12.9	13.2	12.0	10.5	13.1	13.1	15.3	13.9	13.5	13.0
Hallucinogens	0.9	1.1	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.2	2.8	2.2	1.0	1.0	1.5	0.7	3.1	5.8	5.0	2.7	2.2	3.4	2.0	6.4	7.3	8.6	4.0	3.3	4.7	4.0	8.4	3.9	4.1	1.9	1.6	2.4	1.5
Cocaine	0.9	0.9	0.6	0.6	0.9	0.4	2.4	2.2	1.7	1.6	2.2	1.2	3.1	4.9	4.6	3.9	3.0	4.3	2.4	5.3	7.3	7.8	6.6	5.6	6.5	5.0	7.8	3.5	3.7	3.0	2.5	3.2	2.0
Methamphetamines	0.4	0.5		0.6	0.8	0.4	2.3	1.8		1.6	1.9	1.2	1.8	5.6	4.5		3.4	4.0	2.1	2.8	7.8	8.0		4.7	5.0	3.4	3.0	3.6	3.6		2.4	2.8	1.6
Stimulants			1.1	0.6	0.9	0.5			2.9	2.0	2.6	1.6				6.6	5.5	6.2	4.6				9.0	6.9	7.9	6.9				4.7	3.5	4.1	3.1
Sedatives			4.9	4.4	5.3	4.9			9.7	10.3	10.7	10.2				17.6	17.9	18.6	16.6				21.7	21.5	22.4	20.2	9.3			12.9	12.9	13.6	12.2
Ecstasy	0.6	0.5	0.3	0.2	0.5	0.2	2.9	2.0	1.6	1.4	1.8	1.2	2.3	5.2	4.9	3.3	3.2	4.6	3.4	5.2	7.	6.7	5.0	4.4	6.5	5.4	6.5	3.7	3.4	2.4	2.1	3.1	2.3
Heroin			0.5	0.3	0.7	0.3			0.8	0.8	1.1	0.6	1.3			1.4	1.2	2.0	1.1	1.5			2.1	2.1	2.6	2.0	1.5			1.1	1.0	1.5	0.9
Any Drug	12.8	12.8	21.4	16.0	13.2	13.2	26.5	24.3	33.9	28.8	24.8	25.0	27.7	38.5	37.7	46.2	39.5	36.7	35.0	39.8	47.9	48.9	52.2	47.1	42.7	42.3	49.1	29.9	30.5	38.4	31.8	28.5	27.4

NOTE: Cells containing the -- symbol indicate an area where data are not available because either the question was not asked in that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, International Survey Associates must have the MTF database.

NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA Survey that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other of 2002/2003 results, because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.

Lifetime Use By Gender

Being male is generally considered a risk factor for substance use; males generally show higher levels of use. However, for Arkansas students, males and females are generally similar in their ATOD use, with rates that are within 1%-3% of each other. (Figure 18, Tables 16-17). The exceptions are that males in all grades use much more smokeless tobacco, with over three times the lifetime usage rate of females (23.4% for males, 7.1% for females), and use more marijuana in each grade. Female lifetime sedative use is consistently higher than male use in the 6th grade (0.9% higher), 8th grade (4.7% higher), 10th grade (6.5% higher), and 12th grade (2.5% higher).

Lifetime usage rates in the 8th grade are more similar, with male and female usage rates differing by only 0.0% to 0.8% (not including smokeless tobacco, marijuana, inhalants, sedatives and any drug). However, the differences in use increases in the 10th and 12th grades, with male use increasing at a higher rate than female use. Such a finding indicates that females may be experimenting with drug use at equal or higher rates as males in the middle or junior high school, but in high school, males take over as the more frequent substance users.

Since 2006, total male lifetime use for all substances decreased 0.8% to 2.8%. Total female lifetime use decreased for all substances from 0.1% to 2.9%, with the exception of inhalants, which increased by 0.1%. In the past four years, male rates for use of alcohol, cigarettes,

smokeless tobacco, and marijuana have decreased in all grades and for the state total. During the past four years, the female substance usage rate has also decreased for the same substances.



Percentage of M	ercentage of Males by Grade Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime																													
Drug Used	Arkan Grade	sas 6					Arkansas Grade 8						Arkan Grade	sas 10			1		Arkan Grade	sas 12		1			Total	1				
Ĵ	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	26.7	24.8	23.9	24.6	21.8	21.0	47.2	44.6	44.3	44.4	41.1	41.1	65.9	65.2	65.2	64.3	61.8	61.0	76.0	78.0	75.6	74.5	72.2	71.2	51.3	52.3	50.4	49.5	47.4	45.7
Cigarettes	20.5	19.2	19.0	15.8	14.2	12.1	40.5	36.3	33.1	32.6	27.8	27.1	54.1	52.9	49.7	45.8	43.4	40.0	64.1	62.0	61.1	56.0	53.3	51.4	42.4	41.9	39.1	35.8	33.3	30.5
Smokeless Tobacco	15.2	15.4	13.1	12.4	11.3	9.4	30.3	27.4	24.3	25.3	21.7	20.5	41.6	39.6	38.0	36.2	34.2	31.7	49.2	47.8	45.0	40.3	40.3	38.6	32.2	32.0	28.9	27.3	25.8	23.4
Marijuana	4.5	4.4	2.9	2.8	3.0	1.9	19.9	15.9	12.6	13.0	12.0	10.8	35.2	35.0	31.4	27.5	27.66	25.2	48.5	48.7	43.5	39.1	38.4	38.1	24.5	25.1	21.0	18.7	18.9	16.7
Inhalants	10.9	11.2	13.2	11.8	10.7	10.3	15.2	13.6	16.1	15.5	14.5	14.3	13.5	14.1	17.5	14.4	15.9	14.0	14.8	15.4	16.8	14.4	14.7	12.5	13.5	13.5	15.9	14.0	13.8	12.8
Hallucinogens	1.1	1.4	0.3	0.3	0.7	0.3	3.4	2.0	1.0	1.0	1.4	0.8	6.4	5.4	3.3	2.3	3.9	2.1	8.7	10.3	5.6	4.3	6.2	4.9	4.4	4.6	2.3	1.8	2.9	1.8
Cocaine	1.1	1.2	0.5	0.7	0.9	0.5	2.2	2.0	1.6	1.6	2.1	1.0	4.9	4.8	4.3	3.1	4.7	2.3	8.5	8.5	7.8	6.0	7.5	5.4	3.7	4.0	3.3	2.6	3.5	2.0
Methamphetamines	0.5	0.5		0.6	1.0	0.4	2.4	1.8		1.4	1.7	1.3	5.2	4.3		3.1	4.0	1.7	7.9	8.1		4.2	4.9	3.2	3.6	3.5		2.1	2.7	1.5
Stimulants			0.9	0.7	1.0	0.5			2.4	2.0	2.5	1.5			6.4	5.3	6.3	4.1			10.0	7.2	8.2	7.0			4.6	3.5	4.2	2.9
Sedatives			4.5	4.2	4.9	4.4			7.4	8.7	8.3	7.8			14.9	15.0	16.0	13.1			22.0	20.2	21.4	18.8			11.5	11.2	12.0	10.1
Ecstasy	0.8	0.5	0.3	0.3	0.7	0.2	3.0	2.0	1.6	1.4	1.7	1.2	5.1	5.4	3.4	3.2	5.1	3.0	7.9	7.3	6.3	5.0	7.5	6.1	3.8	3.7	2.7	2.2	3.5	2.3
Heroin			0.4	0.4	0.9	0.3			0.7	0.7	1.2	0.7			1.8	1.3	2.5	1.3			3.2	2.8	3.5	2.6			1.4	1.2	1.9	1.1
Any Drug	14.6	15.2	24.3	17.8	14.5	14.2	28.9	25.2	33.5	29.1	24.2	23.5	40.1	40.4	48.9	39.2	37.2	34.6	52.1	52.8	55.8	48.6	45.0	44.4	32.2	32.9	40.4	32.4	28.6	27.3
NOTE: Cells containi use to Arkansas drug	ng the - i use, In	- symbo ternatio	ol indica onal Sur	ate an a vey Ass	rea whe sociates	ere data must h	are no ave the	t availat MTF d	ole beca atabase	ause eiti e.	her the	questio	n was n	ot aske	d in tha	t year's	survey,	or the	MTF da	nta are r	iot com	oarable	to the J	Arkansa	s data.	То асси	irately c	compare	∙MTF a	lrug

Percentage of Females by Grade Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime																														
Drug Used	Arkan Grade	sas 6					Arkansas Grade 8						Arkan Grade	sas 10					Arkan Grade	sas 12					Total					
Ű	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	19.0	18.7	18.5	17.9	16.8	14.6	45.3	44.5	44.4	43.5	40.3	40.9	67.1	65.5	65.6	65.5	63.0	63.1	76.0	76.2	76.6	74.4	72.88	72.3	49.4	50.4	49.7	48.5	46.6	45.5
Cigarettes	15.8	15.9	15.8	14.1	12.0	9.5	38.5	35.8	36.3	32.8	29.5	26.3	53.8	51.5	48.5	46.9	43.0	40.0	61.4	60.1	56.7	53.3	49.3	48.2	40.4	40.2	38.4	35.7	32.4	29.5
Smokeless Tobacco	5.1	5.2	4.4	4.2	3.8	3.0	10.2	8.1	8.2	8.6	7.8	7.0	11.5	13.2	10.6	10.8	10.8	9.2	10.6	12.0	10.7	10.5	11.0	10.4	9.1	9.5	8.3	8.4	8.2	7.1
Marijuana	2.0	2.2	1.9	1.5	1.8	1.1	12.8	12.1	11.5	10.1	9.5	8.2	30.3	29.0	25.0	24.1	23.4	22.0	41.1	42.2	35.9	34.7	31.6	32.0	19.7	20.4	17.6	16.3	15.5	14.5
Inhalants	9.3	8.4	9.9	9.2	8.0	8.4	15.8	15.4	18.7	17.2	16.3	17.5	14.8	15.2	16.5	16.9	16.8	15.7	10.6	10.7	12.6	11.7	11.7	11.5	12.6	12.6	14.6	13.9	13.2	13.3
Hallucinogens	0.8	0.9	0.5	0.2	0.3	0.1	2.4	2.4	1.0	1.0	1.6	0.6	5.2	4.7	2.2	2.2	2.9	1.9	6.2	6.9	2.7	2.4	3.2	3.2	3.4	3.6	1.5	1.4	1.9	1.3
Cocaine	0.7	0.6	0.6	0.5	0.7	0.3	2.6	2.4	1.8	1.6	2.2	1.3	4.9	4.5	3.5	3.0	3.8	2.5	6.2	7.2	5.6	5.1	5.6	4.6	3.3	3.5	2.8	2.4	2.9	2.0
Methamphetamines	0.3	0.6		0.5	0.7	0.5	2.2	1.8		1.7	2.0	1.1	5.9	4.7		3.7	4.0	2.3	7.6	8.0		5.1	5.1	3.4	3.7	3.6		2.6	2.8	1.7
Stimulants			1.3	0.5	0.8	0.4			3.2	2.1	2.5	1.8			6.7	5.6	6.2	5.1			8.2	6.7	7.7	6.8			4.7	3.5	4.1	3.3
Sedatives			5.2	4.6	5.7	5.3			11.9	11.9	12.7	12.5			19.8	20.6	21.0	19.6			21.6	22.5	23.4	21.3			14.3	14.4	15.2	14.1
Ecstasy	0.5	0.5	0.3	0.2	0.4	0.1	2.8	2.1	1.7	1.4	1.9	1.2	5.3	4.5	3.2	3.1	4.1	3.7	7.0	6.2	4.1	3.9	5.5	4.7	3.6	3.2	2.2	2.0	2.8	2.2
Heroin			0.5	0.2	0.5	0.2			0.8	0.8	1.0	0.5			1.0	1.1	1.5	0.9			1.1	1.4	1.8	1.4			0.8	0.9	1.1	0.7
Any Drug	11.0	10.5	18.4	14.1	12.0	12.3	24.1	23.3	34.2	28.4	25.2	26.4	36.9	35.6	43.6	39.8	36.2	35.4	44.2	45.4	48.9	45.7	40.5	40.3	27.9	28.3	36.3	31.3	27.8	27.5
NOTE: Cells containing use to Arkansas drug	ng the use, In	- symbo ternatio	l indica nal Sur	te an ai vey Ass	rea whe ociates	re data must h	are not ave the	availab MTF da	le beca atabase	use eith	er the o	questio	n was n	ot asked	d in that	' year's	survey,	or the l	MTF da	ta are n	ot comp	oarable	to the A	rkansa	s data.	То асси	rately c	ompare	MTF d	rug

NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use any of the following drugs: marijuana, ecstasy, hallucinogens, cocaine, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results, because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.

PAST-30-DAY ATOD USE, BY GRADE

Arkansas 30-Day Use

Past-30-day use is recorded when youth report that they have used a substance at least once in the past 30 days. Past 30-day use is typically viewed as the best measure of the *ongoing* use of alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs. As with lifetime prevalence, the most commonly used substances are alcohol, cigarettes and marijuana. Table 18 shows the past-30-day results for all substances. Figure 19 shows the past-30-day prevalence rates for alcohol, cigarettes, marijuana and inhalants. As is typical, there is an increase in past-30-day use by grade level for alcohol, tobacco and marijuana. For example, only 1.9% of 6th graders had smoked cigarettes in the past 30 days, whereas 23.5% of 12th graders smoked cigarettes. However, 30-day inhalant use peaks at grade 8 (6.5%) and declines to 2.3% by grade 12. This is a typical pattern for inhalants, where use normally peaks in the 8th to 10th grade range.

Arkansas Results Compared to National Results

Table 18 and Figure 20 compare the percentage of Arkansas youth to youth nationwide (2007) who used ATODs in the past 30 days. Comparison of state and national results shows that Arkansas usage rates of alcohol were 0.4% to 4.1% lower than the usage rates for the national sample of students in grades 8, 10, and 12. Marijuana past-month use was also 1.6% to 3.8% lower than the national sample for grades 8, 10, and 12. More Arkansas youth in grades 8, 10, and 12 have used smokeless tobacco, cigarettes, and inhalants. In contrast, for smokeless tobacco, 2.3% more Arkansas 8th graders, 3.4% more 10th graders, and 4.2% more 12th graders used. For cigarettes, 1.0% more Arkansas 8th graders, 1.3% more 10th graders, and

1.9% more 12th graders used as compared to MTF results. For inhalants, 2.6% more Arkansas 8th graders, 1.6% more 10th graders, and 1.1% more 12th graders used. Further comparison of state and national results shows that Arkansas usage rates of alcohol were 0.4% to 4.1% lower than the usage rates for the nation sample in grades 8, 10, and 12. Marijuana past-month use was 1.6% to 3.8% lower than the nation sample in grades 8, 10, and 12.

2007 Results Compared to Past Years

For almost all substances, past 30-day substance use has decreased since the 2004 survey. Positive changes since 2004 are notable in alcohol, cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, marijuana, and inhalants. Other substances also show declines. While the declines are sometimes small, it is more important that the declines are evident through the full range of substances. The only substance that shows no change in prevalence for the state total was ecstasy, which remained steady at 0.7%.

FIGURE 19



Percentage of A	centage of Arkansas Respondents Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days by Grade																																
Drug Used	Arka Grad	nsas e 6					Arkansas Grade 8						MTF Grade 8	Arkansas Grade 10						MTF Grade 10	Arkar Grade	nsas e 12					MTF Grade 12	Total	Total				
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	8.0	6.6	5.1	4.8	5.1	3.6	22.7	19.7	17.0	16.9	16.4	15.5	15.9	39.0	37.2	34.3	33.6	31.9	30.3	33.4	47.7	48.0	44.6	42.8	42.5	40.3	44.4	27.3	27.1	23.9	22.9	22.8	20.5
Cigarettes	3.8	3.6	3.4	2.7	2.7	1.9	13.9	11.7	11.7	10.1	8.8	8.1	7.1	23.7	21.8	19.9	17.4	17.0	15.3	14.0	30.6	30.0	28.0	24.9	23.8	23.5	21.6	16.6	16.2	14.9	12.9	12.3	11.1
Smokeless Tobacco	2.9	3.1	2.6	2.5	2.5	1.7	7.9	7.3	7.0	6.8	5.8	5.5	3.2	11.2	11.2	11.3	10.3	10.9	9.5	6.1	11.6	13.0	12.3	10.4	11.8	10.8	6.6	8.0	8.5	8.0	7.2	7.4	6.5
Marijuana	1.3	1.5	0.9	0.8	1.0	0.5	8.3	5.9	5.5	5.3	5.2	4.1	5.7	16.3	15.2	13.3	11.8	12.4	10.4	14.2	20.6	20.6	17.5	15.9	16.2	15.3	18.8	10.6	10.3	8.8	7.8	8.1	6.8
Inhalants	4.9	4.4	5.0	4.5	4.1	3.9	6.2	6.2	7.4	6.8	6.5	6.5	3.9	4.3	4.8	4.8	4.7	5.2	4.1	2.5	2.2	2.7	3.1	2.6	3.1	2.3	1.2	4.6	4.6	5.2	4.8	4.8	4.4
Hallucinogens	0.4	0.4	0.3	0.2	0.4	0.1	1.2	0.9	0.5	0.5	0.9	0.3	1.0	2.1	2.2	1.1	0.8	1.5	0.6	1.7	1.9	2.6	1.1	1.1	1.6	1.1	1.7	1.3	1.5	0.7	0.6	1.0	0.5
Cocaine	0.4	0.3	0.4	0.4	0.6	0.2	0.8	0.7	0.9	0.7	1.0	0.5	0.9	1.4	1.4	1.2	0.8	1.6	0.6	1.3	1.8	2.0	2.0	1.4	2.0	0.9	2.0	1.0	1.1	1.1	0.8	1.2	0.5
Methamphetamines	0.1	0.2		0.1	0.4	0.1	1.0	0.7		0.5	0.9	0.4	0.6	2.3	1.9		0.9	1.6	0.6	0.4	2.7	2.9		1.3	1.6	0.6	0.6	1.4	1.4		0.7	1.1	0.4
Stimulants			0.6	0.2	0.5	0.2			1.4	0.9	1.3	0.7				3.1	2.0	2.6	1.4				3.8	2.2	3.1	1.8				2.1	1.2	1.8	0.9
Sedatives			2.0	1.8	2.4	1.9			5.0	4.8	5.3	4.6				8.6	9.3	9.9	7.6				10.8	10.5	11.3	9.2	2.7			6.4	6.3	6.9	5.5
Ecstasy	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.1	1.2	0.9	0.5	0.6	0.8	0.4	0.6	1.4	1.6	1.0	0.9	1.7	1.0	1.2	1.6	1.6	1.3	1.2	2.1	1.4	1.6	1.1	1.1	0.7	0.7	1.2	0.7
Heroin			0.3	0.1	0.3	0.1			0.3	0.3	0.6	0.2	0.4			0.5	0.3	1.0	0.3	0.4			0.4	0.6	1.0	0.6	0.4			0.4	0.3	0.7	0.3
Any Drug	6.4	5.9	10.5	7.5	6.1	5.9	13.4	11.5	18.4	14.8	12.7	12.2	10.1	19.8	19.1	25.1	21.1	19.6	17.1	18.1	22.6	22.8	28.1	23.9	22.6	20.6	22.8	14.9	14.6	20.5	16.3	14.8	13.2

NOTE: Cells containing the -- symbol indicate an area where data are not available because either the question was not asked in that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, International Survey Associates must have the MTF database.

NOTÉ: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin due to the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin due to the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin due to the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin due to the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sed atives, or heroin due to the following drugs: marijuana, hallowing drugs: marijuana,



PAST 30-DAY ATOD USE BY GENDER

Tables 19 and 20 show the percentage of ATOD use in the past 30 days by males and females in the four grades and the total for all males and all females.

As with male and female lifetime usage rates, past-month use rates were generally similar for males and females and vary only by 1%-3%, with some variations noted below. The past 30-day prevalence rate of smokeless tobacco was significantly higher for males than females (11.4% vs 2.0%, respectively). Sedative use by females (6.3%) is consistently higher than males (4.6%).

While males and females are quite similar in their usage patterns, increasing differences were found between males and females at the 12th grade level. For example, alcohol use for males was 43.4% vs 37.7% for females. There is also a 5% difference in marijuana use (18.0%, males vs 13.0%, females). At the 12th grade level, the gender difference was eliminated for sedative use; males at that age reported using sedatives as frequently as females, which is a change from the earlier grade levels. While males were generally reporting higher levels of substance use, it is worth noting again that the overall prevalence rates are consistently trending downward for Arkansas youth, both male and female. While there are slight variations in the decrease in rates, most substances are showing reduced overall use. The one exception remains inhalants, which has remained fairly stable over the past six years.



Percentage of Males by Grade Who Used ATODs During the Past 30 Days																															
Drug Used	Arkan Grade	isas 9 6					Arkan Grade	Arkansas Grade 8						isas e 10					Arkan Grade	sas 12					Total	al					
Ĵ	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	
Alcohol	9.6	7.5	6.0	5.5	4.0	4.3	23.6	20.7	16.4	16.9	16.3	15.4	40.4	38.7	36.1	35.5	33.6	31.2	52.4	53.4	49.7	46.1	46.3	43.4	29.1	29.2	25.3	23.9	23.9	21.2	
Cigarettes	4.5	4.2	3.6	3.0	2.2	2.1	14.3	11.5	10.4	9.7	8.0	8.0	24.0	23.1	20.7	17.0	17.7	15.2	32.9	31.3	30.8	26.0	26.2	25.0	17.3	17.0	15.2	12.8	12.8	11.2	
Smokeless Tobacco	4.6	4.8	4.0	3.8	0.9	2.6	12.9	12.0	11.7	11.5	9.5	9.2	19.9	19.1	21.0	18.9	19.0	17.4	22.8	22.7	23.5	19.8	21.7	20.7	14.0	14.4	14.3	12.8	12.9	11.4	
Marijuana	1.7	2.1	1.2	1.2	0.6	0.6	10.6	6.5	5.5	6.0	5.7	4.8	18.5	18.1	15.1	13.0	14.3	11.7	23.7	24.3	20.6	18.6	19.4	18.0	12.5	12.3	9.9	8.8	9.5	7.7	
Inhalants	5.2	5.1	5.2	5.0	3.6	3.9	6.3	5.3	6.2	6.0	5.6	5.5	4.1	5.0	4.7	4.4	5.2	3.8	2.7	3.5	3.9	2.7	3.9	2.6	4.8	4.8	5.1	4.7	4.9	4.1	
Hallucinogens	0.5	0.5	0.3	0.2	0.2	0.2	1.6	0.7	0.5	0.5	0.9	0.3	2.1	2.5	1.2	0.8	1.9	0.7	2.2	2.6	1.7	1.3	2.1	1.5	1.5	1.5	0.9	0.6	1.3	0.6	
Cocaine	0.5	0.4	0.5	0.5	0.5	0.3	1.0	0.7	1.0	0.7	1.0	0.4	1.1	1.6	1.5	0.9	1.9	0.7	2.1	2.0	2.6	1.5	2.6	1.0	1.1	1.1	1.3	0.9	1.5	0.5	
Methamphetamines	0.1	0.1		0.2	0.3	0.1	1.0	0.7		0.4	0.9	0.4	2.3	1.9		0.9	1.7	0.6	3.0	3.0		1.3	1.7	0.7	1.4	1.3		0.6	1.2	0.4	
Stimulants			0.6	0.3	0.3	0.2			1.3	0.7	1.3	0.7			3.2	2.0	2.9	1.4			4.2	2.5	3.6	1.9			2.2	1.3	2.0	1.0	
Sedatives			1.8	1.8	2.5	1.6			3.7	3.7	3.8	3.3			7.4	8.0	9.1	5.9			12.1	11.0	11.6	9.2			5.9	5.6	6.3	4.6	
Ecstasy	0.3	0.2	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.1	1.4	0.7	0.7	0.6	0.8	0.5	1.5	2.0	1.1	1.1	2.1	1.0	2.1	2.0	2.0	1.3	2.7	1.8	1.2	1.2	0.9	0.8	1.4	0.8	
Heroin			0.4	0.2	0.2	0.2	-		0.4	0.3	0.7	0.3			0.6	0.5	1.5	0.5			0.8	1.0	1.5	0.9			0.5	0.4	1.0	0.4	
Any Drug	7.4	7.2	11.6	8.4	5.5	5.9	15.5	11.3	16.9	14.1	11.8	11.2	21.6	21.9	26.8	21.2	20.6	17.0	26.2	26.7	31.9	25.9	25.7	22.8	16.8	16.5	21.7	16.6	15.6	13.2	
NOTE: Cells containing th	10 svm	hol indic	ate an ar	rea wher	'e data a	re not av	ailable because either the question was not asked in						n that ve	ar's sun	ev or the	o MTE d:	ata are n	ot comp	arahle to	the Ark:	ancac da	ta To ac	curately	compare	MTE dr	mational					

NOTE: Cells containing the -- symbol indicate an area where data are not available because either the question was not asked in that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, Internationa Survey Associates must have the MTF database.

NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, se datives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. While 2002 and 2003 Any Drug rates are comparable to each other, 2004 and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results, because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.
Percentage of Fe	males	s by G	arade	Who	Used	ATOD	s Dur	ing Th	ne Pa	st 30 [Days																			
Drug Used	Arkan Grade	sas 6					Arkan Grade	sas 8					Arkar Grade	isas e 10					Arkan Grade	sas 12					Total					
5	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Alcohol	6.6	5.7	4.3	4.2	4.3	3.0	21.9	18.7	17.4	16.9	16.3	15.4	37.9	35.8	32.5	31.9	30.3	29.4	43.7	42.8	40.1	40.1	39.1	37.7	25.9	25.0	22.6	22.0	21.4	20.0
Cigarettes	3.1	3.0	3.2	2.4	2.3	1.7	13.6	11.8	12.8	10.4	9.44	8.2	23.4	20.8	18.9	17.7	16.3	15.4	28.5	28.7	25.7	23.8	21.3	22.1	16.0	15.6	14.5	12.9	11.7	11.0
Smokeless Tobacco	1.3	1.6	1.3	1.2	0.9	0.9	3.2	2.9	2.6	2.6	2.4	2.0	3.4	4.0	3.2	2.9	3.2	2.7	2.0	3.6	2.5	2.4	2.6	2.7	2.5	3.0	2.4	2.3	2.2	2.0
Marijuana	1.0	0.9	0.6	0.5	0.7	0.4	6.0	5.2	5.4	4.7	4.6	3.4	14.4	12.5	11.6	10.7	10.4	9.3	17.8	16.9	14.8	13.6	13.2	13.0	9.0	8.5	7.8	6.9	6.8	6.0
Inhalants	4.6	3.8	4.8	4.0	3.6	3.8	6.0	7.0	8.6	7.6	7.3	7.4	4.5	4.6	4.7	4.9	5.1	4.4	1.7	1.9	2.3	2.5	2.3	2.0	4.4	4.5	5.3	4.9	4.7	4.6
Hallucinogens	0.3	0.4	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.9	1.1	0.5	0.5	0.8	0.3	2.1	2.0	1.0	0.8	1.0	0.5	1.5	2.5	0.5	0.8	1.1	0.8	1.2	1.5	0.5	0.5	0.8	0.4
Cocaine	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.2	0.7	0.7	0.7	0.8	0.9	0.5	1.6	1.3	1.0	0.8	1.3	0.6	1.6	2.0	1.5	1.3	1.5	0.9	1.0	1.1	0.9	0.8	1.0	0.5
Methamphetamines	0.2	0.3		0.0	0.3	0.1	1.0	0.8		0.5	0.8	0.4	2.3	1.9		0.9	1.5	0.6	2.5	2.8		1.4	1.4	0.5	1.4	1.4		0.7	1.0	0.4
Stimulants			0.6	0.1	0.3	0.2			1.5	1.0	1.1	0.6			2.9	1.9	2.2	1.4			3.4	2.0	2.6	1.6			2.0	1.2	1.5	0.9
Sedatives			2.2	2.0	2.5	2.2			6.2	5.9	6.6	5.9			9.7	10.5	10.6	9.0			9.7	10.1	11.0	9.1			6.8	6.9	7.4	6.3
Ecstasy	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	1.1	1.0	0.4	0.7	0.8	0.4	1.4	1.3	0.8	0.7	1.2	0.9	1.2	1.3	0.7	1.2	1.5	1.0	0.9	0.9	0.5	0.6	0.9	0.6
Heroin			0.1	0.0	0.2	0.0			0.3	0.3	0.5	0.2			0.4	0.1	0.5	0.2			0.1	0.4	0.5	0.3			0.2	0.2	0.4	0.2
Any Drug	5.5	4.7	9.4	6.7	5.6	5.8	11.4	11.4	19.5	15.3	13.3	13.0	18.2	16.5	23.5	21.0	18.4	17.2	19.5	19.0	24.7	22.0	19.7	18.8	13.1	12.8	19.4	15.9	13.9	13.2
NOTE: Cells containing t	he svm	bol indic	ate an a	rea whe	re data a	re not av	ailable b	ecause e	ither the	auestio	n was no	ot asked i	in that ve	ar's sun	ev or th	e MTF d	ata are r	not comp	arable to	the Ark	ansas da	ta. To ac	curately	compare	MTF dr	ua use ta	Arkans	as drug i	ISE	

NOTE: Cells containing the -- symbol indicate an area where data are not available because either the question was not asked in that year's survey, or the MTF data are not comparable to the Arkansas data. To accurately compare MTF drug use to Arkansas drug use, International Survey Associates must have the MTF database. NOTE: The Any Drug category includes all drugs that were included in the APNA that year. Therefore, the 2002 and 2003 Any Drug categories contain the percent of students reporting use any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, or methamphetamines. The 2004 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of any of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, or heroin. The 2005 thru 2007 Any Drug category contains the percent of students reporting use of the following drugs: marijuana, hallucinogens, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, sedatives, cocaine, ecstasy, inhalants, and 2005 thru 2007 rates should not be compared to each other or to 2002/2003 results, because the substances considered in each year's Any Drug data are not identical.

Intention to Use ATODs

Youth were asked whether they would use cigarettes, alcohol, or marijuana when they became an adult. The response categories were NO!, no, yes, and YES! The percentages of youth in each grade answering "YES" or "yes" to the questions are listed in Table 21.

As can be seen, a majority of the youth do not intend to use cigarettes or marijuana, although 60.3% of high school seniors intend to use alcohol. This intention rate for alcohol closely mirrors actual adult alcohol use in the United States.

The intention to use all substances increases as youth get older. Intention to use cigarettes, alcohol, marijuana, and other illegal substances in 2007 peaks in the 12th grade. However, this is not the complete story. More critical is the rapid increase in intentions that occurs in the 6th through 10th grades. The actual increase in intention to use between 10th and 12th grades is fairly small. Just as with substance usage rates, youth intentions to use ATODs increased the most after the 6th grade. From the 6th grade to the 8th grade, intention to smoke cigarettes doubled (from 3.6% in the 6th grade to 8.2% in the 8th grade), intention to drink alcohol doubled (from 15.4% in the 6th grade to 36.6% in the 8th grade), and intention to smoke marijuana increases from 1.0% to 5.7% in the 8th grade. These data clearly point out the critical need for prevention programs early in adolescence. Youth need prevention programs prior to the onset of substance use and then at regular intervals to maintain low rates of substance use and intention to use. Once the students are in the 12th grade, the decisions to use or not use have likely been made.

In comparing the six years of APNA Survey data, 6th, 8th, 10th, and 12th grade intention to smoke cigarettes has decreased. This mirrors the downward trend that has been previously observed with lifetime and past 30-day prevalence rates.

Percentage of Yo	uth w	ith Ini	tentio	n to U	lse A1	ODs																								
Question	Grade	6					Grade	8					Grade	e 10					Grade	12					Total					
Question	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Smoke Cigarettes	6.0	5.9	4.6	4.6	4.4	3.6	12.7	10.6	10.8	9.6	8.8	8.2	15.7	14.6	13.6	12.5	13.33	11.8	18.3	18.0	17.4	15.5	15.4	15.0	12.7	12.2	11.2	10.1	10.1	9.1
Drink Alcohol	21.5	11.6	15.4	15.3	16.1	15.4	29.7	29.8	35.9	36.3	35.4	36.6	45.4	46.5	52.5	54.0	53.1	53.4	51.0	53.6	60.0	59.0	59.0	60.3	33.0	35.2	39.8	39.5	39.5	39.3
Smoke Marijuana	1.7	1.7	1.3	1.4	1.6	1.0	8.5	6.7	6.3	6.3	6.2	5.7	13.7	11.7	12.1	11.2	13.0	10.6	13.6	14.0	13.3	12.3	12.9	12.8	8.9	8.4	7.9	7.4	8.0	7.0
Other Illegal Substances			0.4	0.3	0.5	0.4			1.1	1.0	1.3	0.8			1.7	1.7	2.5	1.4			2.3	2.0	2.9	2.2			1.3	1.2	1.7	1.1
NOTE: Cells containing th	e sym	bol indic	ate an ar	ea wher	e data ai	re not av	vailable b	ecause	the ques	tion was	not aske	ed in that	year's s	urvey.																

FIGURE 22



Multiple Drug Use

The percentage of youth who used various substances individually and in combination with other substances is shown in Table 22. "Any Substance" is defined as using one or more of the 12 substances measured by the survey. For 12th graders, 50.2% reported using at least one substance in the past 30-days . The categories of alcohol, marijuana, and tobacco are contained in other tables in this report, but are shown here for reference. For most substances, a large increase in use was found between the 6th grade and 8th grade, and between the 8th and 10th grades, after which there was a smaller increase from the 10th to the 12th grade. These findings indicate that efforts to prevent substance use must start before the 8th grade and include booster sessions in the 8th and 9th grade to help prevent the increase in drug use as students move into high school.

Many of the youth who used marijuana also used alcohol. For example, the total percentage using marijuana was 6.8% and those using alcohol and marijuana was 5.4%. Thus, only 1.4% of students used marijuana, but not alcohol, in the past 30 days. A review of tobacco use and any drug use during the past 30 days shows that more than one half of the youth who used tobacco also used an illegal drug (14.3% tobacco use compared to 5.6% tobacco and any drug use). Most youth who used either alcohol or tobacco, also used at lease one other drug, which was most often marijuana.

Percentage Using Multiple	Drugs in	the Past 3	30 Days (2	2007)	
	Grade 6	Grade 8	Grade 10	Grade 12	Total
Any Substance	9.6	24.6	40.1	50.2	29.1
Alcohol	3.6	15.5	30.3	40.3	20.5
Cigarettes	1.9	8.1	15.3	23.5	11.1
Smokeless Tobacco	1.7	5.5	9.5	10.8	6.5
Tobacco (cigarette or smokeless)	3.0	11.0	20.2	28.0	14.3
Marijuana	0.5	4.1	10.4	15.3	6.8
Tobacco and Alcohol	1.1	6.3	13.4	20.4	9.3
Tobacco and Marijuana	0.3	2.7	6.6	9.9	4.4
Alcohol and Marijuana	0.3	3.0	8.0	12.7	5.4
Marijuana and Tobacco and Alcohol (all three)	0.2	2.2	5.5	8.7	3.7
Alcohol and Any Other Drug	1.2	6.2	11.9	16.2	8.1
Alcohol and Any 1 Other Drug	0.8	3.7	7.0	9.9	4.9
Alcohol and Any 2 Other Drugs	0.3	1.5	2.9	3.5	1.9
Tobacco and Any Other Drug	0.8	4.3	8.1	11.7	5.6
Tobacco and Any 1 Other Drug	0.5	2.3	4.3	6.5	3.1
Tobacco and Any 2 Other Drugs	0.2	1.1	2.2	2.8	1.4

FIGURE 23



Perceived Harmfulness of ATODs

When youth perceive that a substance is harmful, they are less likely to use it. The APNA Survey asked youth, "How much do you think people risk harming themselves (physically or in other ways) if they smoked cigarettes heavily, tried marijuana, smoked marijuana regularly, drank alcohol regularly, or engaged in binge drinking regularly?" Response categories were that the previously named substance categories placed them at "No Risk," "Slight Risk," "Moderate Risk," or "Great Risk."

While perceived harmfulness of smoking one or more packs of cigarettes per day increases with increased grade level, perceived harmfulness of trying marijuana, using marijuana regularly, regular alcohol use, and regular binge drinking all decrease with increased grade level.

In all grades, more Arkansas students than national MTF survey participants perceived great risk in smoking marijuana once or twice. In this category, 6.0% more Arkansas 8th graders, 6.7% more Arkansas 10th graders, and

5.3% more Arkansas 12th graders than national sample youth in the same grades perceived there was great risk in smoking marijuana once or twice.

However, for perceived harmfulness of smoking marijuana regularly, Arkansas youth in the 8th, 10th and 12th grades perceived slightly less risk in this category than did youth in the same grades nationwide. Also, Arkansas youth in the 10th and particularly 12th grades perceived less harmfulness in smoking one or more packs of cigarettes per day than did national 10th and 12th graders. Such a finding is consistent with the higher cigarette use by Arkansas youth. Further, Arkansas youth in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades perceived less risk in drinking five or more drinks once or twice a weekend than did national 8th, 10th, and 12th graders. This finding was most pronounced in the 10th grade, with nearly a 10% differential between Arkansas and MTF students.

A comparison of 2006 and 2007 results shows only small variations in perceived harmfulness from year to year. Most of the variations were less than 3%. The largest fluctuation was an increase from 2006 to 2007 of 2.9% in the 10th grade in the perceived harmfulness of regular cigarette use.

Percentage of	Arka	nsas	and	Moni	toring	g the	Futu	re Re	spon	dents	s Who	Per	ceive t	hat U	sing	these	e Sub	stand	ces P	laces	Peop	e at '	'Grea	t Ris	k"								
Question	Arka Grad	nsas e 6					Arkar Grade	nsas e 8					MTF Grade 8	Arkar Grade	nsas e 10					MTF Grade 10	Arkaı Grade	nsas e 12					MTF Grade 12	Total					
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Smoke one or more packs of cigarettes per day	61.8	65.5	65.5	63.7	63.0	64.5	58.5	62.9	65.1	63.6	64.4	67.2	61.1	58.6	60.9	65.3	64.8	64.7	67.6	68.2	60.2	61.8	66.6	67.6	65.9	67.1	77.3	59.8	62.8	65.6	64.7	64.4	66.5
Try marijuana once or twice	49.4	51.9	42.6	43.4	40.9	41.8	39.2	42.6	39.1	38.2	38.0	38.8	32.8	26.8	28.1	28.6	27.4	27.2	28.9	22.2	20.9	21.8	24.1	24.0	23.9	23.9	18.6	35.5	36.7	34.4	34.1	33.2	34.3
Smoke marijuana regularly	76.1	77.9	78.1	75.0	70.8	73.9	69.5	73.6	75.0	73.3	69.8	73.3	74.3	56.2	59.4	63.6	61.9	58.1	62.3	64.5	49.5	50.9	55.3	55.7	52.2	52.7	54.8	64.1	66.1	68.9	67.5	63.5	66.8
Drink one or two alcoholic beverages nearly every day	45.0	46.7	39.1	39.1	37.6	38.0	38.2	38.7	31.8	31.3	31.8	32.4	32.6	34.7	33.8	28.4	27.8	29.1	29.3	33.3	35.8	33.1	29.0	30.0	29.3	29.9	25.1	38.8	38.2	32.2	32.3	32.2	32.7
5 or more drinks once or twice a weekend			52.9	52.9		53.6			48.4	49.2		51.1	57.9			43.8	43.7		45.5	54.1			38.0	41.8		42.7	45.8			46.3	47.4		48.8
NOTE: Cells containir	ng the -	- symbol	indicat	e an are	a when	e data a	ire not a	vailable	or unre	liable b	ecause	questic	n was no	t asked	in that y	ear's si	irvey.																





Perceived Availability of ATODs

Availability of ATODs has been linked to substance abuse and violence. On the survey questionnaire, a question asked if the participant wanted to get the substances listed in Table 24, "how easy would it be to get some." The response choices were, "Very Hard," "Sort of Hard," "Sort of Easy," and "Very Easy." Table 24 contains the percentage of youth who reported that it was "Sort of Easy" or "Very Easy" to get the substances.

The results reveal that Arkansas survey youth do not perceive cigarettes, alcohol, and marijuana as being as easy to get as do the youth from the national sample (no national comparison is available for other illegal drugs or for 12th grade cigarette perceived availability). For perceived availability of cigarettes, alcohol, and marijuana for the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades, there are differences of 13.6% to 19.7% between Arkansas results and national

results (Figure 25). The substance that students perceive as most easy to get is cigarettes.

In comparing the 2006 and 2007 survey data, results show that, for all grades and substances, students perceived it as more difficult to obtain the substances than the year before. The largest difference was for 10th grade, where perceived availability declined by 3.6% for marijuana, and 4.3% for cocaine, LSD, or amphetamines.

Across all years, perceived availability has generally declined. The most notable exception is that of alcohol, in the 8th and 10th grades. For these two grades perceived availability has increased by approximately 4% since data were first collected in 2002, although the current year's data indicate a decrease from the peaks reported in 2005.

Percentage of	Arka	nsas	and	Moni	toring	g the	Futu	re Re	spon	dents	s Wh	o Per	ceive t	he Fo	ur Sı	ıbsta	nces	as "S	Sort o	of Easy	/" or	"Very	Eas	y" to	Get								
Question	Arkaı Grad	nsas e 6					Arkar Grade	nsas e 8					MTF Grade 8	Arkaı Grad	nsas e 10					MTF Grade 10	Arkaı Grad	nsas e 12					MTF Grade 12	Total					
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Cigarettes	24.8	24.5	20.4	19.6	20.3	17.6	46.8	43.1	43.7	42.7	40.9	39.3	55.6	71.3	67.9	69.8	69.1	66.4	63.4	78.2	87.8	85.5	87.5	85.9	83.3	82.8		54.9	54.5	53.8	52.2	51.1	48.0
Alcoholic beverage	17.2	15.9	18.6	18.6	19.4	17.5	38.4	36.0	42.6	42.8	42.4	42.3	62.0	63.1	61.6	69.4	70.1	67.8	66.7	82.6	78.0	75.8	81.3	81.0	79.1	78.6	92.2	46.6	46.7	51.7	51.2	50.8	48.8
Marijuana	9.1	8.5	7.9	7.3	8.2	6.2	30.9	25.7	24.7	25.1	23.8	22.3	37.4	61.3	58.6	55.9	55.7	53.8	50.2	69.0	77.9	74.7	72.1	71.8	68.0	66.7	83.9	41.9	41.1	38.7	37.8	36.9	33.7
Cocaine, LSD, or Amphetamines	5.9	5.6	4.8	4.9	5.4	4.0	14.4	12.0	11.2	12.0	11.9	11.0		26.9	24.8	26.7	26.5	26.9	22.6		39.1	33.4	34.5	36.6	35.2	31.6		20.0	18.6	18.6	18.9	19.0	16.1
NOTE: Cells containir	ng the	symbo	l indicat	e an are	ea wher	e data a	are not a	vailable	becaus	se the q	uestion	was no	t asked in t	hat yea	r's surve	ey.																	





Section 4: Antisocial Behaviors and Additional Results

Heavy Substance Use and Other Antisocial Behavior by Grade and Gender

Male-female differences also extend to heavy use of alcohol, heavy use of tobacco, and antisocial behavior. Figure 26 and Tables 25 and 26 show that males engage in these behaviors more than females. Some of the largest differences were in being suspended from school (17.7% of males compared to 9.4% of females) and selling illegal drugs (5.6% of males compared to 2.7% of females). As with substance use, male-female differences in antisocial behavior tend to increase with grade level. For example, in the 6th grade, 1.3% more males than females reported binge drinking; in the 8th grade, 0.8% more males than females reported binge drinking; and in the 12th grade, 8.2% more males than females reported binge drinking.

Table 27, which contains rates of heavy substance use and antisocial behavior, shows that, unlike ATOD usage, antisocial behavior does not always increase with grade level. The reported rate of youth being suspended from school peaked in grade 8. The reported rate of stealing a vehicle peaked in grade 10. Reported rates of being drunk or high at school, binge drinking, regular cigarette use, and selling illegal drugs peaked in the 12th grade.

Overall, binge drinking appears to be the largest antisocial problem among Arkansas youth, with 13.6% of youth binge drinking at least once in the past two weeks. The results indicate that, for Arkansas 6th and 8th graders, the largest antisocial problem is being suspended (11.1% of 6th graders, 16.6% of 8th graders). The antisocial problem least reported by 6th and 8th graders is regular cigarette use (0.1% of 6th graders, 0.7% of 8th graders). The antisocial behaviors that 10th and 12th graders participated in the most were binge drinking (19.3% of 10th graders, 26.0% of 12th graders) and being drunk or high at school (15.0% of 10th graders, 18.7% of 12th graders). The behavior that the fewest 10th and 12th graders reported was vehicle theft (3.4% of 10th graders, 2.2% of 12th graders).

For the entire survey population, antisocial behavior rates in all grades showed little change since the 2006 APNA Survey. For example, the rate of regular cigarette smoking decreased 0.4% (from 1.7% in 2006 to 1.3% in 2007). Since the 2002 APNA Survey, rates of school suspensions have increased 2.5% to 3.6% in each grade and 2.9% for all grades combined. However, school suspension rates are sensitive to changes in policies and procedures, which evolve over time; small changes may not reflect actual changes in the students' behavior.



Percentage of Ma	ales w	ho Ei	ngage	d in ⊦	leavy	Subs	tance	Use a	Ind A	ntisoc	ial Be	havio	rs																	
Drug Used/	Grade	6					Grade	8					Grade	10					Grade	12					Total					
Antisocial Behavior	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Binge drinking	4.2	4.2	4.2	4.8	5.0	4.2	13.7	11.1	11.2	10.9	11.5	10.6	25.9	25.4	24.6	23.6	23.3	21.1	36.9	37.6	35.4	32.4	32.6	30.4	18.3	18.8	17.4	16.5	17.0	15.0
Pack / day cigarettes	0.3	0.5	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.1	2.0	1.6	0.6	1.1	1.1	0.8	4.1	4.0	1.2	2.3	2.5	1.9	7.7	6.9	2.3	4.6	4.1	3.5	3.1	3.1	1.0	1.8	1.9	1.4
Suspended from school	12.6	12.0	14.3	15.5	14.7	16.2	17.6	16.6	18.6	20.5	20.8	21.4	15.5	14.9	17.2	18.2	18.8	18.5	11.5	11.2	13.2	13.0	14.7	13.2	14.5	13.9	16.1	17.1	17.4	17.7
Drunk or high at school	3.0	2.8	3.3	3.0	3.4	2.1	10.0	8.2	8.2	8.7	9.3	8.2	19.2	19.2	19.6	18.2	20.0	15.7	26.3	25.8	23.8	23.8	26.3	23.1	13.4	13.5	12.7	12.2	13.9	11.0
Sold illegal drugs	0.9	0.5	0.5	0.8	1.3	0.5	4.4	3.8	3.1	3.8	4.4	3.7	10.0	10.5	9.7	9.2	10.8	8.6	13.2	12.3	13.2	12.8	14.4	12.6	6.4	6.6	6.1	6.0	7.2	5.6
Stolen a vehicle	1.5	1.7	2.0	2.3	2.5	1.8	3.6	3.7	3.5	3.5	4.3	3.5	3.7	5.2	5.2	4.9	6.0	4.4	2.8	2.6	3.2	3.5	4.9	3.2	2.9	3.3	3.5	3.5	4.3	3.2
Been arrested	3.3	2.8	3.7	3.4	3.7	3.4	7.3	6.4	6.9	7.6	8.4	7.8	8.7	10.3	10.7	9.5	12.0	9.6	9.4	10.2	10.1	10.3	11.9	10.1	6.9	7.4	7.6	7.4	8.7	7.4

Percentage of Fe	males	who	Enga	ged ir	n Hea	vy Su	bstan	ce Us	e and	Antis	ocial	Behav	viors																	
Drug Used/	Grade	6					Grade	8					Grade	e 10					Grade	12					Total					
Antisocial Behavior	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Binge drinking	2.4	2.9	3.7	3.5	3.8	2.9	10.2	8.7	11.4	11.0	10.9	9.8	18.1	19.5	19.5	19.1	18.1	17.7	23.0	23.8	23.2	22.4	22.8	22.2	12.5	13.2	13.9	13.4	13.3	12.4
Pack / day cigarettes	0.4	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	1.0	0.8	0.3	0.9	0.8	0.6	2.6	2.7	0.8	1.7	2.1	1.7	4.7	4.5	1.2	3.2	2.9	2.7	2.0	1.9	0.6	1.4	1.4	1.2
Suspended from school	3.9	3.7	4.6	5.2	5.0	6.1	8.4	8.6	10.4	10.7	10.8	11.9	9.3	8.5	10.2	10.8	10.6	11.4	5.6	5.9	6.9	7.4	8.2	8.2	6.8	6.8	8.1	8.6	8.7	9.4
Drunk or high at school	1.9	1.4	2.0	1.9	2.1	1.9	8.8	8.2	9.6	9.0	9.0	8.3	16.2	14.6	15.3	15.4	15.9	14.4	16.6	16.8	16.2	15.7	15.6	14.9	10.2	10.0	10.4	10.0	10.3	9.4
Sold illegal drugs	0.2	0.4	0.2	0.3	0.5	0.3	1.3	1.6	1.5	1.9	2.0	1.6	5.0	4.0	4.1	4.4	4.8	4.4	5.5	6.8	4.9	5.2	5.8	5.4	2.8	3.0	2.5	2.7	3.1	2.7
Stolen a vehicle	0.7	0.6	0.9	0.9	1.1	0.7	1.9	2.2	1.8	2.1	2.7	1.9	2.9	2.8	3.0	2.9	3.0	2.5	0.9	1.3	1.1	1.4	1.7	1.4	1.6	1.8	1.7	1.8	2.1	1.6
Been arrested	0.8	0.6	1.0	1.1	1.4	0.9	3.2	3.2	3.8	3.7	3.9	3.8	4.6	4.5	4.9	5.5	5.6	5.4	3.3	5.3	4.8	5.0	4.7	4.6	2.9	3.3	3.5	3.7	3.8	3.5

Percentage of Ar	kansa	s Res	pond	ents (Grade	es 6, 8	, 10, a	and 12	2 com	bined) who	Enga	ged i	n Hea	vy Su	bstan	ce Us	e and	Antis	social	Beha	viors								
Drug Used/	Grade	6					Grade	8					Grade	10					Grade	e 12					Total					
Antisocial Behavior	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Binge drinking	3.3	3.5	4.0	4.1	4.5	3.5	11.9	9.9	11.4	11.0	11.2	10.3	21.8	22.2	22.0	21.2	20.8	19.3	29.5	30.5	28.9	27.0	27.5	26.0	15.2	15.9	15.6	14.9	15.1	13.6
Pack / day cigarettes	0.3	0.3	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.1	1.5	1.2	0.5	1.0	1.0	0.7	3.4	3.3	1.0	1.9	2.3	1.8	6.1	5.7	1.7	3.8	3.5	3.1	2.5	2.5	0.8	1.6	1.7	1.3
Suspended from school	8.1	7.7	9.4	10.3	10.0	11.1	13.0	12.5	14.7	15.5	15.9	16.6	12.3	11.6	13.5	14.3	14.8	14.8	8.3	8.5	9.9	10.0	11.4	10.6	10.5	10.2	12.1	12.7	13.1	13.4
Drunk or high at school	2.5	2.1	2.7	2.4	2.9	2.0	9.4	8.3	9.0	8.9	9.2	8.3	17.6	16.8	17.4	16.7	18.0	15.0	21.1	21.2	19.7	19.5	20.7	18.7	11.7	11.7	11.6	11.1	12.1	10.1
Sold illegal drugs	0.5	0.5	0.4	0.6	0.9	0.4	2.8	2.7	2.3	2.8	3.2	2.6	7.4	7.1	6.7	6.7	7.8	6.4	9.1	9.5	8.8	8.7	9.9	8.7	4.5	4.7	4.2	4.3	5.1	4.1
Stolen a vehicle	1.1	1.1	1.5	1.6	1.8	1.3	2.7	2.9	2.7	2.7	3.5	2.7	3.3	4.0	4.1	3.8	4.5	3.4	1.8	1.9	2.1	2.3	3.2	2.2	2.2	2.5	2.6	2.6	3.2	2.4
Been arrested	2.0	1.7	2.3	2.2	2.6	2.2	5.2	4.8	5.4	5.7	6.1	5.7	6.5	7.3	7.7	7.4	8.8	7.4	6.2	7.7	7.3	7.5	6.2	7.1	4.8	5.3	5.5	5.5	6.3	5.4

HANDGUNS

The issue of youth handgun carrying is a serious concern for communities, schools, and families. The APNA Survey has several questions about handguns as shown in Table 28. Most of the responses show a very low percentage of students who carry handguns or take them to school. However, even low percentages of this behavior should be taken seriously by schools and communities. For example, 0.7% of the youth surveyed reported taking a handgun to school in the past 12 months; 5.1% of youth surveyed reported carrying a handgun in the past 12 months, and 5.9% said they had carried a handgun some time in their lifetime. Further, many youth believed that they would not be caught by their parents (20.7%) or by the police (48.5%) if they carried a handgun. On a more positive note, however, only 5.6% of students think that they would be seen as cool if they carried a handgun. Only a minority of students (27.1%) perceived that it would be "Very Easy" or "Sort of Easy" to get a handgun if they wanted one.

When looking at the results by grade, 10th and 12th graders reported the highest rate of taking a handgun to school in the past year (0.9% for both) and carrying a handgun in the past year (6.0% and 5.7%, respectively). Eighth graders reported taking a gun to school and carrying a handgun in the past year at the rates of .8% and 5.3%, respectively. Twelfth graders reported the highest rate of carrying a handgun in their lifetime (6.9%), perceiving that it was "Very Easy" or "Sort of Easy" to get a handgun (38.7%), perceiving that their parents would not know if they carried a handgun (32.9%), and believing that the police would not catch an adolescent carrying a handgun (62.2%). Tenth graders reported the highest rate of believing that there was a very good or pretty good chance they would be seen as cool if they carried a handgun (6.6%).

Fluctuations of rates across the 2002-2007 time span have been small, with the prevalence rates remarkably stable. Variations from year-to-year by 1% or less are not statistically meaningful. The one exception to this is the percentage of students who believed that their parents would find out if they carried a handgun. That percentage has declined for all grade levels by about 2%-4% from 2002 to 2007.

Percentage of Youth Who Respon	ded t	o Qu	estio	ns Al	oout I	Hand	guns	;																						
	Grad	e 6					Grad	e 8					Grad	e 10					Grade	e 12					Total					
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Taken a Handgun to School in the Past 12 Months	0.2	0.3	0.4	0.5	0.7	0.4	0.8	0.8	0.7	0.9	1.2	0.8	0.7	0.9	1.0	1.1	1.6	0.9	0.7	0.6	1.0	1.0	1.4	0.9	0.6	0.7	0.7	0.8	1.2	0.7
Carried a Handgun in the Past 12 Months	4.1	4.3	4.0	4.6	4.8	4.0	5.9	5.1	6.4	5.1	6.0	5.3	4.8	6.4	6.1	6.1	7.0	6.0	5.1	5.1	5.6	5.6	6.8	5.7	4.9	5.2	5.5	5.3	6.1	5.1
Carried a Handgun - Lifetime	4.1	4.5	4.6	5.0	5.2	4.6	6.4	5.7	6.8	5.5	6.5	5.7	5.8	7.0	7.0	6.6	8.0	6.7	6.1	7.0	6.3	6.8	7.9	6.9	5.5	6.0	6.2	5.9	6.8	5.9
Very Easy or Sort of Easy to Get a Handgun	15.3	15.3	16.6	16.3	17.2	15.2	26.1	22.7	24.8	25.5	25.4	25.0	32.4	31.7	35.2	35.9	35.4	33.1	40.0	37.0	41.0	41.5	40.9	38.7	27.4	26.5	28.9	29.0	29.2	27.1
Not At All Wrong to Take a Handgun to School	0.5	0.8	0.6	0.6	0.7	0.5	1.0	1.2	0.8	1.0	1.2	0.9	1.0	0.8	1.2	1.0	1.4	1.0	0.9	0.7	1.0	0.8	1.2	1.0	0.8	0.9	0.9	0.9	1.1	0.8
Very or Pretty Good Chance You Would Be Seen As Cool if You Carried a Handgun	4.6	4.6	5.2	4.1	4.6	4.0	5.5	5.2	6.4	6.3	6.3	6.4	3.7	4.2	5.6	6.0	6.6	6.6	2.6	3.1	4.5	5.2	5.8	5.7	4.2	4.3	5.5	5.4	5.8	5.6
Parents Wouldn't Know if You Carried a Handgun	13.3	13.0	9.6	10.3	11.1	11.4	21.3	18.2	15.7	16.5	17.5	17.1	28.4	27.8	24.7	25.5	26.6	24.9	36.2	33.9	31.8	32.8	32.5	32.9	24.0	23.2	19.9	20.5	21.5	20.7
Police Wouldn't Catch Kid Carrying a	31.2	28.9	31.4	32.6	33.7	32.1	49.9	46.5	45.2	47.4	47.2	47.1	60.8	58.4	57.7	60.2	59.4	57.6	64.5	61.2	61.3	63.5	62.2	62.2	50.2	48.6	48.3	50.0	50.0	48.5

TABLE 28



VIOLENCE

The APNA Survey also asked several questions about youths' violent behaviors and attitudes toward violence (Table 29, Figure 28). A review of the 2007 youth responses reveals that 20.0% of the youth in Arkansas have attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them at some time in their life, and 16.0% have attacked someone in the past 12 months. However, only a small percentage (3.6%) believe that it is not at all wrong to attack someone to seriously hurt them. Although these results show that violent students are in the minority, it is still too many youth in Arkansas who believe that violence is an acceptable way to resolve problems and are willing to hurt another person.

When looking at the results by grade, it appears that 8th and 10th graders have the most problems with violent behavior and attitudes. This is typical of

adolescent populations. Tenth graders reported the highest rate of attacking someone in their lifetime (23.0%), and believing it was not wrong at all to attack someone (4.4%). Tenth graders had the highest rates of believing it was not wrong at all to pick a fight (7.0%) and 8th graders had the highest rate for belonging to a gang in their lifetime (9.5%). Consistent with these findings, Arkansas 8th and 10th graders also showed the highest rates of not feeling safe at school (23.3% of 8th graders and 24.4% of 10th graders).

Since the 2006 APNA Survey youth reports of not feeling safe in school have fluctuated only slightly. Reports of belonging to a gang in their lifetime have also decreased slightly, by 1.4% for 6th graders, 0.9% for 8th graders, and 1.1% for 10th graders since the 2006 APNA Survey.

Percentage of Yo	uth W	ho Re	eporte	d Vio	lence	and C	ang /	Activi	ty																					
	Grade	6					Grade	8					Grade	10					Grade	12					Total					
	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Attacked Someone to Seriously Hurt Them in Their Lifetime	9.9	9.9	13.4	14.7	14.4	14.6	17.1	15.8	19.6	19.7	20.5	21.6	18.3	18.4	22.0	22.9	24.1	23.0	17.6	18.6	21.7	21.3	22.5	21.8	15.4	15.6	19.0	19.4	20.2	20.0
Attacked Someone to Seriously Hurt Them in Past 12 Months	8.3	8.5	11.7	13.2	13.1	13.1	14.4	13.1	17.1	17.8	17.9	18.1	13.6	14.0	18.0	18.4	19.2	18.0	11.4	12.7	15.3	15.9	16.2	14.6	11.9	12.1	15.6	16.3	16.6	16.0
Not At All Wrong to Attack Someone to Seriously Hurt Them	2.1	2.4	2.2	2.4	2.6	2.3	4.7	4.6	4.1	4.3	4.4	4.3	4.6	5.1	4.8	4.7	5.3	4.4	4.2	4.1	3.7	3.8	4.5	3.8	3.8	4.1	3.7	3.8	4.1	3.6
Not At All Wrong to Pick a Fight	4.4	5.0	4.0	4.0	3.8	3.5	9.0	8.5	7.0	7.6	7.4	6.8	7.1	7.0	6.9	6.9	8.1	7.0	5.6	5.8	4.7	5.1	5.9	5.0	6.5	6.7	5.8	6.0	6.3	5.6
I Do Not Feel Safe At My School (response of "NO" or "no" to the statement "I feel safe at my school")	15.8	13.8	14.1	15.7	15.3	15.4	26.3	22.7	21.6	24.2	22.5	23.3	25.8	23.0	22.2	25.4	24.6	24.4	20.6	17.2	16.0	19.5	19.4	18.9	22.0	19.4	18.7	21.2	20.4	20.5
If a Person Pushes You, Push Them Back	10.3	11.0	13.1	13.6	13.1	13.8	15.6	14.1	16.6	17.3	18.2	18.6	14.3	14.8	16.2	16.6	18.8	17.2	11.4	13.0	13.4	13.7	15.0	13.6	12.9	13.3	14.9	15.4	16.3	15.9
Have you ever belonged to a gang?*	6.1*	7.1*	9.7	8.4	8.2	6.8	8.0*	8.0*	12.0	9.7	10.4	9.5	5.8*	7.7*	10.3	8.6	9.9	8.8	4.4*	5.6*	6.3	5.9	6.9	6.4	6.2*	7.2*	9.9	8.3	9.0	7.9
*For 2002 and 2003, the p you ever belonged to a ga	percent re na?" Bei	eported r cause the	eflects the auestic	nose ans on was a	wering "j sked diffe	es" to th	e questio 2002/20	on "Have 103 and 2	you eve 2004 thru	er belong i 2007. d	ed to a g lirect con	nang?". F	or 2004, s betwee	the percent	cent repo 2003 and	rted refle 2004 th	ects thos ru 2007	e answe data sho	ring "Yes uld not b	, in the p e made	oast," "Ye	es, belon	g now," c	or "Yes, b	out would	l like to g	et out," t	o the qu	estion "H	ave



Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

Students' Academic Performance and Substance Use

A strong correlation between substance use and academic performance was found in the 2007 APNA Survey (Table 30, Figure 29). Of the youth who reported getting better grades, fewer have tried ATODs and fewer are currently using ATODs than those who report poorer grades. Failing (earning grades of D or F) youth are greater than two times more likely to have used alcohol in the past 30 days, five times more likely to have used cigarettes in the past 30 days, nearly six times more likely to have used marijuana in the past 30 days, and three times more likely to have used any drug in the past 30 days than youths receiving grades of A. Similar and more dramatic differences can be seen for individual drugs.

It is likely that the youth earning As are more invested in the education process and more bonded to school than their peers receiving poorer grades. One of the challenges for prevention programs is to develop methods of keeping all youth interested in learning and feeling attached to school.

TABLE 30				
Percentage Using ATO	Ds by Acade	emic Perform	nance (2007)	
		Academic	Performance	
Drugs Used	Mostly As	Mostly Bs	Mostly Cs	Mostly Ds or Fs
Alcohol lifetime	33.8	48.8	57.2	57.6
Alcohol 30 days	13.3	22.1	28.2	29.6
Marijuana lifetime	7.6	15.9	24.8	30.7
Marijuana 30 days	2.8	6.4	12.0	15.8
Cigarettes lifetime	16.9	31.8	43.4	50.3
Cigarettes 30 days	4.8	11.1	18.5	24.2
Any drug lifetime	17.9	28.8	37.0	44.0
Any drug 30 days	7.4	13.3	19.6	25.6





PARENTS' EDUCATION AND YOUTH SUBSTANCE USE

Research has shown that one indicator of socioeconomic level is the parents' education. Like academic grades, a relationship exists between parent education and youth drug use, with lower levels of parent education corresponding with higher levels of youth drug use. In Arkansas, youth whose parents did not graduate from high school have a 8.9% higher 30-day usage rate of cigarettes, 6.1% higher 30-day usage rate of marijuana, 8.5% higher 30-day usage rate of alcohol, and 8.7% higher 30-day usage rate of any drug than youth whose parents were college or graduate school graduates. Trends for all educational levels can be seen in Figure 30. Thus, higher educational levels appear to be related to less substance use among all categories of drugs.

ABLE 31				
Percentage Using ATO	Ds by Parent	s' Education	(2007)	
	Parents' Educ	ation		
Drugs Used	Not Graduated High School	Graduated High School	Some College	Completed College or Graduate School
Alcohol lifetime	59.1	53.4	52.1	42.1
Alcohol 30 days	28.3	24.2	24.2	19.8
Marijuana lifetime	25.4	19.5	18.3	13.0
Marijuana 30 days	11.8	8.3	7.8	5.7
Cigarettes lifetime	44.0	37.0	34.5	24.0
Cigarettes 30 days	18.0	14.0	12.5	9.1
Any drug lifetime	38.7	31.1	31.1	24.1
Any drug 30 days	20.1	14.8	14.6	11.4





Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Parental Acceptability

When parents have favorable attitudes toward drugs, they influence the attitudes and behavior of their children. For example, parental approval of young people's moderate drinking, even under parental supervision, increases the risk of the young person using marijuana. Further, in families where parents involve children in their own drug or alcohol behavior, for example, asking the child to light the parent's cigarette or to get the parent a beer, there is an increased likelihood that their children will become drug abusers in adolescence.

Table 32 and Figure 31 illustrate how even a small amount of perceived parental acceptability is associated with increased substance use. In the APNA Survey, students were asked how wrong their parents felt it was to use different ATODs. Relatively few students (11.1% lifetime, 3.9% 30-day) use marijuana when their parents think it is "Very Wrong" to use it. In contrast, when students believe that their parents agree with use somewhat (ie, the parent only believes that it is "Wrong," not "Very Wrong"), use increases to 50.2% for lifetime use and 24.3% for 30-day use. Rates of use continue to increase as the perceived parental acceptability increases. These results make a strong argument for parents having solid and clear standards and rules for youth ATOD use.

TABLE 32						
Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Parental Acceptability (2007)						
	Has Used Mar	Has Used Marijuana				
How wrong do your parents feel it would be for you to smoke marijuana?	At Least Once in Lifetime Days					
Very Wrong	11.1	3.9				
Wrong	50.2	24.3				
A Little Bit Wrong	69.9	44.1				
Not Wrong At All	67.1	50.1				





Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Peer Acceptability

During the elementary school years, children usually express anti-drug, anticrime, and prosocial attitudes. They have difficulty imagining why people use drugs, commit crimes, and drop out of school. In middle school, as others they know participate in such activities, their attitudes often shift toward greater acceptance of these behaviors. This places youth at higher risk. The results provided in Table 33 and Figure 32 illustrate the relation between peer acceptability and individual drug use.

As with perceived parental acceptability, an increase in perceived peer acceptability is associated with an increased chance that a teen will use ATODs.

When youth thought there was "No or Very Little Chance" that they would be seen as cool if they used marijuana, only 6.2% had tried marijuana in their lifetime and only 1.8% had used it in the last month. However, when youth thought that there was even a "Little Chance" that they would be seen as cool, marijuana use rates were five times higher for lifetime use (30.8%) and six times higher for past-month use (11.9%). Youth who thought that there was a "Very Good Chance" they would be seen as cool were eight times more likely to use marijuana in their lifetime than youth who perceived that marijuana use was not cool. Further, the youth who thought there was a "Very Good Chance" they would be seen as cool were 17 times more likely to use marijuana in the past month than youth who perceived that marijuana use was not cool.

TABLE	33
-------	----

Marijuana Use in Relation to Perceived Peer Acceptability (2007)						
	Has Used Marijuana					
What are the chances you would be seen as cool if you smoked marijuana?	At Least Once in Lifetime	At Least Once in Past 30 Days				
No or very little chance	6.2	1.8				
Little chance	30.8	11.9				
Some chance	41.3	19.7				
Pretty good chance	42.6	21.6				
Very good chance	50.6	32.1				

FIGURE 32



DEPRESSIVE SYMPTOMS AND SUBSTANCE USE

The substance usage rate of youth who reported depressive symptoms is much greater than for those who have a more positive outlook on life. The four items to assess depressive symptoms on the survey questionnaire were: 1) Sometimes I think that life is not worth it; 2) At times I think I am no good at all; 3) All in all, I am inclined to think that I am a failure; and 4) In the past year, have you felt depressed or sad MOST days, even if you felt OK sometimes? The questions were scored on a scale of 1 to 4 (NO!, no, yes, YES!). The survey respondents were divided into three groups. Those who scored a mean of *greater than* 3.75 were categorized as depressed. These youth marked "YES!" to all four items or marked "yes" to one item and "YES!" to three. Those who marked "NO!" to all four items were categorized as optimistic; a middle category was assigned to all remaining respondents. According to this methodology, the APNA Survey categorized 3,379 youth as depressed, 12,272 youth as optimistic and 60,958 youth in the middle category. (Table 34).

A strong link exists between youth who reported depressive symptoms and ATOD use. When compared to the optimistic group, the depressed youth were more than two times as likely to use alcohol in the 30 days prior to the survey, four times as likely to use cigarettes in the 30 days, three times as likely to use marijuana in the past 30 days, and five times as likely to have used any drug in the past 30 days.

The ATOD usage rates of the youth in the middle group, comprising most youth, were closer to the rates of the optimistic group than they were to the depressed. For all substances, the usage rates for this group were from 2.3% to 14.3% higher than that found among the non-depressed group. Thus, individuals with a positive outlook on life (even with some depressive symptoms) tend to use fewer substances than peers with a high level of depressive symptoms.

Percentage Using ATODs and Level of Depressive Symptoms (2007)					
	Level of Depressive Symptoms				
	Optimistic Middle Depress				
Number of youth	12,272	60,958	3,379		
Alcohol lifetime	32.6	46.9	69.9		
Alcohol 30 days	14.8	20.8	36.5		
Marijuana lifetime	10.4	15.8	30.6		
Marijuana 30 days	4.5	6.8	15.3		
Cigarettes lifetime	18.6	30.8	57.7		
Cigarettes 30 days	6.2	11.2	28.6		
Any drug lifetime	15.3	28.3	56.5		
Any drug 30 days	6.8	13.3	36.4		

FIGURE 33



Sources of Obtaining Alcohol and Places of Alcohol Use

Tables 35 and 36 provide data related to sources and places of alcohol use for Arkansas youth (if they used at all). Figure 35 shows where students usually obtained alcohol, and Figure 36 shows the place where they usually used alcohol. While youth using alcohol may have obtained alcohol in various ways and used alcohol in various locations, youth were asked to select the one best answer that typically described their method for obtaining alcohol and the place where they usually drank alcohol.

Sources of Obtaining Alcohol

Across all grades, the most prominent source of alcohol among Arkansas youth was from someone 21 years of age or older. This source becomes increasingly used as youth progress from the 6th grade (1.6% obtained alcohol from someone 21 years of age or older) to the 12th grade (29.7% obtained alcohol from someone 21 years of age or older). The likelihood of alcohol-using youth obtaining alcohol from someone less than 21 years of age, buying alcohol with or without a fake ID, and obtaining alcohol from a stranger also increases with grade level.

For 6th and 8th graders, the major sources for obtaining alcohol were getting it from: home without a parent's permission (2.1% and 4.9%, respectively); from someone 21 years of age or older (1.6% and 6.3%, respectively); and from another source (2.7% and 5.3%, respectively). For 10th and 12th graders, the major sources for obtaining alcohol were getting it from: someone 21 years of age or older (16.9% and 29.7%, respectively); someone less

than 21 years of age (8.7% and 9.2%, respectively);, or from another source (7.3% and 7.4%, respectively).

Encouragingly, obtaining alcohol with a fake ID was rare, with only 0.1% of 6th graders, 0.2% of 8th graders, 0.3% of 10th graders, and 0.6% of 12th graders indicating that they obtained alcohol by using a fake ID.

Places of Using Alcohol

Students in the 8th, 10th, and 12th grade indicated that they usually drank alcohol at someone else's house. Students became more likely to drink at someone else's house as they advance in grade (2.3% in the 6th grade, 11.6% in the 8th grade, 26.6% in the 10th grade, and 36.9% in the 12th grade). The second most popular place where youth drank was at their home (4.0% in the 6th grade, 10.6% in the 8th grade, 13.2% in the 10th grade, and 11.7% in the 12th grade).

The likelihood of drinking at someone else's home, in an open area, a sporting event or concert, a restaurant, bar, or club, a hotel or motel, and in a car all increased with advanced grade level. Perhaps this is explained by the fact that students are provided more places to drink as they age and it may explain why preference to drink at home peaks in the 10th grade.

т	1	
IADLL	•••	~

Percentage of Students Indicating Usual Source of Obtaining Alcohol						
	Grade 6 Grade 8	Grade 8	Grade 10	Grade 12	Total	
	2007	2007	2007	2007	2007	
Did not drink	90.4	71.9	50.2	38.3	65.3	
Bought it with a fake ID	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.6	0.3	
Bought it without a fake ID	0.1	0.2	0.6	2.0	0.6	
I got it from someone over 21	1.6	6.3	16.9	29.7	12.2	
I got it from someone under 21	0.5	3.2	8.7	9.2	5.0	
I got it from a brother or sister	0.3	1.4	2.2	2.0	1.4	
I got it from home with a parent's permission	2.1	4.9	6.2	5.1	4.5	
I got it from home without a parent's permission	1.0	3.3	3.2	1.3	2.2	
I got it from another relative	1.0	2.8	3.4	2.5	2.4	
A stranger bought it for me	0.1	0.3	0.8	1.5	0.6	
I took it from a store	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.2	
Other	2.7	5.3	7.3	7.4	5.5	

Percentage of Students Indicating Where They Usually Consumed Alcohol						
	Grade 6 Grade 8 Grade 10 Grade 12 Tota					
	2007	2007	2007	2007	2007	
Did not drink	91.7	73.1	51.6	39.3	66.5	
At home	4.0	10.6	13.2	11.7	9.6	
At someone else's home	2.3	11.6	26.6	36.9	17.6	
At an open area	1.1	2.7	5.1	7.5	3.8	
At a sporting event or concert	0.2	0.4	0.7	0.5	0.4	
At a restaurant, bar, or club	0.3	0.5	0.8	1.3	0.7	
At an empty building or construction site	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.2	
At a hotel or motel	0.1	0.3	0.6	0.9	0.4	
In a car	0.2	0.6	1.3	1.6	0.8	





Sources of Obtaining Cigarettes and Places of Cigarette Use

The APNA Survey asked Arkansas youth where they obtained and where they used cigarettes, if they used at all (Tables 37, 38; Figures 36, 37). While students using cigarettes may have obtained cigarettes in various ways and used cigarettes in various locations, students were asked to select the one best answer that typically described their method for obtaining cigarettes and the place where they usually smoked cigarettes.

Sources of Obtaining Cigarettes

In the 8th, 10th, and 12th grades, the largest source of cigarettes among Arkansas youth is from someone 18 years of age or older. This source becomes increasingly more used as youth progress from the 6th grade to the 12th grade (0.7% in the 6th grade, 3.5% in the 8th grade, 8.9% in the 10th grade, and 13.5% in the 12th grade). The next largest source for obtaining cigarettes in the 6th, 8th, and 10th grades is someone less than 18 years of age (0.7% in the 6th grade, 3.1% in the 8th grade, and 4.3% in the 10th grade).

The percent of youth reporting that they obtained cigarettes through someone less than 18 years of age peaked in the 10th grade (4.3%) and decreased to 2.9% in the 12th grade. This may occur because many 18-year-old 12th graders have legal access to cigarettes. Further, the percent of youth buying cigarettes without a fake ID also peaked in the 12th grade at 7.8%, reflecting

the ability of 18-year-old 12th graders to legally purchase cigarettes with their own state-issued ID.

For a small percentage of youth, their family is a source for cigarettes. For the entire survey population, 0.8% of students indicated that they got their cigarettes from a brother or sister, 1.3% indicated that they got them from home without a parent's permission, and 0.9% indicated that they got them from another relative. As with obtaining alcohol, the rate of youth obtaining cigarettes with a fake ID is not high, with only 0.1% of 6th and 8th graders, 0.3 for 10th graders and 0.5% of 12th graders indicating that they obtained cigarettes by using a fake ID.

Places of Using Cigarettes

Sixth, 8th, and 10^{th} grade youth indicated that they most often smoked at home (1.5%, 4.3%, and 7.7%, respectively) and at someone else's home (1.3%, 4.6%, and 6.3%, respectively). Twelfth graders most often smoked in a car (9.6%). Another area where youth indicated that they usually smoked was in an open area (1.2% of 6th graders, 3.5% of 8th graders, 4.6% of 10th graders, 5.7% of 12th graders, and 3.5% for the state total).

The likelihood of smoking at a restaurant, bar, or club, at home, at an open area, and in a car all peaked in the 12th grade and generally increased with grade level. A number of factors may contribute to this behavior, eg, students are provided more places to smoke as they age, public smoking and smoking at home may become more accepted as students age, and many 12th grade students turn 18 years of age and become legally able to purchase cigarettes.

T	27
ADIE	
	51

Percentage of Youth Indicating Usual Source for Obtaining Cigarettes						
	Grade 6	Grade 6 Grade 8 Grade 10 Grade 12				
	2007	2007	2007	2007	2007	
Did not smoke	94.4	85.0	76.3	67.3	82.0	
Bought them with a fake ID	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.5	0.2	
Bought them without a fake ID	0.0	0.3	1.2	7.8	1.9	
I got them from someone over 18	0.7	3.5	8.9	13.5	6.0	
I got them from someone under 18	0.7	3.1	4.3	2.9	2.7	
I got them from a brother or sister	0.4	0.9	1.2	0.7	0.8	
I got them from home with a parent's permission	0.2	0.5	1.1	1.1	0.7	
I got them from home without a parent's permission	0.9	2.0	1.7	0.5	1.3	
I got them from another relative	0.5	1.1	1.4	0.6	0.9	
A stranger bought them for me	0.1	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.2	
I took them from a store	0.1	0.2	0.2	0.2	0.2	
Other	1.9	3.0	3.2	4.6	3.0	

Percentage of Youth Indicating Where They Usually Smoked Cigarettes						
	Grade 6	Grade 6 Grade 8 Grade 10 Grade 12				
	2007	2007	2007	2007	2007	
Did not smoke	95.5	86.4	78.1	69.4	83.6	
At home	1.5	4.3	7.7	8.0	5.1	
At someone else's home	1.3	4.6	6.3	6.2	4.4	
At an open area	1.2	3.5	4.6	5.7	3.5	
At a sporting event or concert	0.0	0.2	0.3	0.2	0.2	
At a restaurant, bar, or club	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.5	0.2	
At an empty building or construction site	0.2	0.3	0.2	0.2	0.2	
At a hotel or motel	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	
In a car	0.1	0.6	2.7	9.6	2.7	




Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey

Appendices

Appendix A. Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment 2007 Student Survey	App:2
Appendix B. Risk and Protective Factors and Associated Survey Scales	.App:10
Appendix C. Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category	.App:13
Appendix D. Item Dictionary for the 2007 APNA Survey	.App:38
Appendix E. Sample Profile Report and Selected Charts for Males Compared to Females	.App:50
Appendix F. Lifetime and 30-Day ATOD Use for Participating Regions and Counties	App:115

Survey Student Assessment **Prevention Needs** Arkansas

Thank you for agreeing to participate in this survey. The purpose of this survey is to learn how students in our schools feel about their community, family, peers, and school. The survey also asks about health behaviors.

The survey is completely voluntary and anonymous. DO NOT put your name on the questionnaire ิณ่ 3. This is not a test, so there are no right or wrong answers. We would like you to work quickly so you can finish

4. All of the questions should be answered by completely filling in one of the answer spaces. If you do not find an answer that fits exactly, use the one that comes closest. If any question does not apply to you, or you are not sure what it means, just leave it blank. You can skip any question that you do not wish to answer.

For questions that have the following answers: NO! no yes YES! Mark (the BIG) YES! if you think the statement is DEFINITELY TRUE for you. Mark (the little) yes if you think the statement is MOSTLY TRUE for you. Mark (the little) no if you think the statement is MOSTLY NOT TRUE for you. Mark (the BIG) NO! if you think the statement is DEFINITELY NOT TRUE for you. <u>ى</u>

Example: Chocolate is the best ice cream flavor.

ONO! Ono Syes OYES!

In the example above, that student marked "yes" because he or she thinks the statement is mostly true.

completely filling in the oval with a #2 pencil. Please mark only one answer for each question by ശ്

Please fill in the following information with the help of your teacher/survey assistant.



Produced by the Arkansas Department of Human Services (Choose all Grandfather Uncle Other Adults Broher(s) Stepbrother(s) Sister(s) Stepsister(s) Other Children the following people live there with you? 00000000 O Mother O Stepmother O Foster Mother Grandmother Aunt Father Stepfather Foster Father that apply.) 00000 Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander Other (Please Specify 5. What is your race? Select one or more. Are you Hispanic or Latino? Black or African American 3. What grade are you in? O Yes American Indian Alaska Native White Asian °2 0 0 000000 ы сі 4

[SERIAL]

PLEASE DO NOT WRITE IN THIS AREA

Phone: (501) 686-9866.

The next section asks about your e	experio	ences	at sc	hool.	23. During the LAST FOUR WEEKS how man days of school have voir missed because	Ž	ĕ.	•		
	Q	ŝ	20V	VEC.	skipped or 'cut'?	Ś				
 In my school, students have lots of chances to help decide things like class activities and rules. 	0	0	0	0	ONone 01 03 06-10 02 04-5 011 or	лог	U			
 Teachers ask me to work on special classroom projects. 	0	0	0	0	The next questions ask about your fee experiences in other parts of you	ii ji	ŝ.	ŭ	-	
10. My teacher(s) notices when I am doing a good job and lets me know about it.	0	0	0	0	24. Think of your four best friends (the friends you feel closest to). In the	- 0	tu tri	e p	ž	
 There are lots of chances for students in my school to get involved in sports, clubs, and other 	0	0	0	0	past year (12 montns), now many of your best friends have: a. participated in clubs, organizations or	0 (÷ (N	8	4 (
scriool activities outside of class. 12. There are lots of chances for					activities at scriool ? b. smoked cigarettes?	0 0	δĬŎ	ÍÍ	ÍĬŎ	1 + 0
students in my school to talk with a teacher one-on-one.	0	0	0	0	c. tried beer, wine or hard liquor (for example vordes whickey or div) when	C				
13. I feel safe at my school.	0	0	0	0	example; vouce, witskey, or gin/ wrien their parents didn't know about it?))		\sim)
14. The school lets my parents know when I have done something well.	0	0	0	0	d. made a commitment to stay drug-free?	0	0		ň	
15. My teachers praise me when I work hard in school	0	0	0	0	e. used marijuana? f tried to do well in school?	0 0	ŏlŏ		<u>n n</u>	$\cap \cap \cap$
16. Are your school grades better than the grades of most students in vour class 5	0	0	0	0	g. used LSD, cocaine, amphetamines, or other illegal drugs?	0				
17. I have lots of chances to be part					h. been suspended from school?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	
of class discussions or activities.	0	0	0	0	i. liked school?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	()
		A last	-		j. carried a handgun?	0	0	$\overline{\cap}$	$\overline{0}$	()
18. Now thinking back over the past year in school,	iteme a		ostalv	ays	k. sold illegal drugs?	0	Ŏ	ň	ň	$ \cap $
	qom	ß			I. regularly attended religious services?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	\cap
a. enjoy being in school?	0	0	0	0	m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle?	0	$\overline{0}$	0	<u> </u>	\cap
b. hate being in school?	0	0	0	0	n. been arrested?	0	$\tilde{0}$	$\overline{\cap}$	ň	
c. try to do your best work	С	С	C	С	o. dropped out of school?	0	ŏ	$\overline{\cap}$	ň	$ \cap $
10 How often do vou feel that))))	p. been members of a gang?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	\cap
the school work you are assigned is meaningful and important?	0	0	0	0	25. What are the chances Ven you would be seen as Pretty go cool if vour	e d g	od o chai	hai	e C	
20. Putting them all together, what w last vear?	/ere yo	our gr	ades	ike	COULD YOU. Little ch No or very little chance	e lo				
O Mostly F's	tly B's				a. smoked cigarettes?	0 0	$\frac{1}{0}$		<u>n</u> t c	() (
O Mostly C's	uy A s				D. Worked hard at School?		5	Ť	ί†-	
21. How important do you think the t learning in school are going to b	things e for y	you a our la	ıre iter lif	e?	c. began uninning according beverages regularly, that is, at least once or twice a month?	0	$\overline{0}$	0	ň	
Overy important Osligh Oquite important ONot 6 Eaidy important	utly imp at all ir	portan	jt t		d. defended someone who was being verbally abused at school?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	
2. How interesting are most of vour		cae to			e. smoked marijuana?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	()
Very interesting are most of your	202		'n		f. carried a handgun?	0	ŏ	ň	ň	()
Cutte interesting and Sligh Outte interesting Overy	ntly du / dull	_			 regularly volunteered to do community service? 	0	$-\frac{0}{0}$			()

 \cap

0 0

0 0

 $\left(\right)$ \cap

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix A

0 0 0

29. How many times have you done the following things?	Once a week or more 2 or 3 times a month	About once a month Less than once a month I've done it, but not in the past year Never	a. done what feels good no	b. done something dangerous	do it. Concerned a larea you to cocococococococococococococococococo	30. How many times in the past 30 to 39 times year (12 months) have you: 20 to 29 times	10 to 19 times 6 to 9 times 3 to 5 times 1 to 2 times	Never	a. been suspended from	b. carried a handgun?	c. sold illegal drugs?	d. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o o	e. participated in clubs, organizations or activities at	f. been arrested?	g. done extra work on your own		II. attacked someone with the idea of seriously but into the or seriously	i. been drunk or high at	j. volunteered to do community	k. taken a handgun to school?	10 Australian and the second se	 Are you currenny on probation, or assigned a probation officer with Juvenile Court? 	ONo OYes	32. Have you ever belonged to a gang? ONo OYes, belong now ONo, but would like to OYes, but would like to get out OYes, in the past	 33. If you have ever belonged to a gang, did that gang have a name? ONo OYes OI have never belonged to a gang 	
17 or older 16 15	26. How old were you	when you Tirst: 10 or younger Never	a. smoked marijuana?	b. smoked a cigarette, even just a puff?	c. had more than a sip or two of beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)?	d. began drinking alcoholic beverages regularly, that is, at least once or twice a month?	e. used phenoxydine (pox,	f. got suspended from school?	g. got arrested?	h. carried a handgun?	i. attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them?	j. belonged to a gang?	27. How wrong do you think it is for someone vour at is to react the bit wrong at all wrong the bit wrong at all bit wrong at	your age to:	a. take a handgun to school?	b. steal anything worth more than \$5?	c. pick a fight with someone?	d. attack someone with the idea of seriously OOOO	e. stay away from school all day when their oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo	f. drink beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, odka, whiskey, or gin) regularly?	g. smoke cigarettes?	h. smoke marijuana?	i. use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or ooo	28. At school during the past 12 months, did you receive help from the resource teacher, speech therapist or other special education teacher?	ONo OYes	

۳.	U
Ā	\bigcirc
HIS	Õ
Fz	Õ
μ	0
RIT	0
≥	0
ò	0
õ	0
	0
AS	0
2	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	\cap

⊲

[SERIAL]

You're looking at CD's in a music store with a friend. You look up and see her slip a CD under her coat. She smiles and says "Which one do you want? Go ahead, take it while nobody's around." There is nobody in sight, no employees and no other customers. What would you do now? З.

Ignore her Grab a CD and leave the store Tell her to put the CD back Act like it is a joke, and ask her to put the CD back 0000

You are visiting another part of town, and you don't know any of the people your age there. You are walking down the street, and some teenager you don't know is walking toward you. He is about your size, and as he is about to pass you, he deliberately bumps into you and you almost lose your balance. What would you say or do? 35.

Push the person back
 Say "Excuse me" and keep on walking
 Say "Watch where you are going" and keep on walking
 Swear at the person and walk away

You are at a party at someone's house, and one of your friends offers you a drink containing alcohol. What would you say or do? 36.

Orink it Tell you

- suggest J else Timum, Tiell your friend, "No thanks, I don't drink" and sur Tiell your and your friend go and do something els Uust say, "No thanks" and walk away Make up a good excuse, tell your friend you had something else to do, and leave
 - 00
- It's 8:00 on a weeknight and you are about to go over to a friend's home when your mother asks you where you are going. You say "Oh, just going to go hang out with some friends." She says, "No, you'll just get into trouble if you go out. Stay home tonight." What would you do now? 37.

- Leave the house anyway
 Explain what you are going to do with your friends, tell her when you will get home, and ask if you can go out
 Not say anything and start watching TV
 Get into an argument with her
- How often do you attend religious services or activities? 38.

Never 00

O 1-2 Times a Month O About Once a Week or More

I do the opposite of what people tell me, just to get them mad. 39.

Somewhat True Very True 00 Overy False Somewhat False I like to see how much I can get away with. 6

Overy False Somewhat False

Comewhat True OVery True

4

in my way. 41. I ignore rules that get 00

OSomewhat True Very False Somewhat False

 Sometimes we don't know what we will do as adults, but we may have an idea. Please answer how true these statements may be for vou. 50.

iÖN

answer now true these statements mav be for vou.	iÖN	ou	yes	YES!
WHEN I AM AN ADULT I WILL:				
a. smoke cigarettes	0	0	0	0
b. drink beer, wine, or liquor	0	0	0	0
c. smoke marijuana	0	0	0	0
d. use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or another illegal drug	0	0	0	0

Great risk $\left(\right)$ risk 0 Slight risk No risk Moderate 0 smoked one or more packs of cigarettes .⊆ . How much do you think people risk harming themselves (physically or ir other ways) if they: per day? а. 5

 \cap

0000	0000	0 0 0	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
b. try marijuana once or twice?	c. smoke marijuana regularly?	d. take one or two drinks of an alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, liquor) nearly every day?	e. have five or more drinks once or twice each weekend?

[SERIAL]	OCCASIONS	0 1-2 3-5 6-9 10-19 20-39 40+ 0 0 1-2 3-5 6-9 10-19 20-39 40+	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	ly have you smoked cigarettes during the le cigarette per day aff pack per day ack pack per day ack pack per day ack per day nd one-half packs per day in morth, about how many marijuana it month, about how many marijuana the equivalent, did you smoke a day, on (if you shared them with other people, a day a day
	On how many occasions (if any) have you:	52. had alcoholic beverages (beer, wine or hard liquor) to drink in your lifetime – more than just a few sips?	53. had beer, wine or hard liquor to drink during the past 30 days ?	54. used marijuana (grass, pot) or hashish (hash, hash oil) in your lifetime ?	55. used marijuana (grass, pot) or hashish (hash, hash oil) during the past 30 days ?	56. used LSD or other psychedelics in your lifetime?	57. used LSD or other psychedelics during the past 30 days ?	58. used cocaine or crack in your lifetime?	59. used cocaine or crack during the past 30 days ?	60. sniffed glue, breathed the contents of an aerosol spray can, or inhaled other gases or sprays, in order to get high in your lifetime ?	61. sniffed glue, breathed the contents of an aerosol spray can, or inhaled other gases or sprays, in order to get high during the past 30 days ?	62. used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze) in your lifetime ?	63. used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze) during the past 30 days ?	64. used sedatives (tranquilizers, such as valium or xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pil without a doctor telling you to take them, in your lifetime ?	65. used sedatives (tranquilizers, such as valium or xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pil without a doctor telling you to take them, during the past 30 days ?	66. used Methamphetamines (meth, speed, crank, crystal meth) in your lifetime ?	67. used Methamphetamines (meth, speed, crank, crystal meth) in the past 30 days?	68. used stimulants, other than Methamphetamines (such as amphetamines, Ritalin or Dexedrine) without a doctor telling you to take them, in your lifetime ?	69. used stimulants, other than Methamphetamines (such as amphetamines, Ritalin or Dexedrine) without a doctor telling you to take them, during the past 30 days ?	70. used heroin or other opiates in your lifetime ?	71. used heroin or other opiates during the past 30 days ?	72. used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) in your lifetime ?	73. used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) during the past 30 days ?	74. been drunk or very high from drinking alcoholic beverages during the past 30 days	75. Think back over the last two weeks. How many times have you had five or more alcoholic drinks in a row? how frequent have you had five or more alcoholic drinks in a row? Once of Twice 0.6-9 times 0.10 or more times 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of Twice 0.6-9 times 0.10 or more times 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of Two pacco (chew, snuft, plug, dipping tobacco, or chewing tobacco)? Once of Two pacco or chewing tobacco)? Once or whee a condition the past 30 days? Once of the past 30 days? Once of the past 30 days? Once of the pact of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once or twice 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the past 30 days? Once of the pact 0.00 to the past 30 days? Once of the past 30

- I did not drink alcohol in the past year
 I bought it myself with a fake ID
 I bought it myself without a fake ID
 I bought it from someone I know age 21 or older
 I got it from someone I know under age 21
 I got it from my brother or sister
 I got it from home with my parents' permission
 I got it from a store or shop
 I from a store or shop
 O got it from a store or shop
- If you drank alcohol (not just a sip or taste) in the past year, where did you usually drink it? Select the one best answer. 8

- at my home at someone else's home at an open area like a park, beach, field, back road, woods, or a street corner at a sporting event or concert at a restrurant, bar, or a nightclub at an empty building or a construction site at a hotel/motel in a car at school I did not drink alcohol in the past year
 at my home
 at someone else's home
 at an open area like a park, beach, fie

- If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff or drag) in the past year, how did you usually get them? Select the one best answer. 8.

- I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year
 I bought them myself with a fake ID
 I bought them myself without a fake ID
 I got them from someone I know age 18 or older
 I got them from someone I know under age 18
 I got them from home with my parents' permission
 I got them from home without my parents' permission
 I got them from another relative
 A stranger bought them for me
- Other
- ouff or drag) in smoke them? If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff the past year, where did you usually smo Select the one best answer. 8
- I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year
- 0000
- at my home
 at someone else's home
 at an open area like a park, beach, field, back road, woods, or a street corner
 at a sporting event or concert
 at a restaurant, bar, or a nightclub
 at a mempy building or a construction site
 at a car
 at school

 - 00

- During the past 30 days, how many times did you ride in a car or other vehicle driven by someone who had been drinking alcohol? 85.

O 6 or more times O 2 or 3 times O 4 or 5 times 0 times

past 30 days, how many times did you or other vehicle when you had been During the past 30 drive a car or other drinking alcohol? 86.

OI did not drive a car in the past 30 days
 O times ○2 or 3 times ○6 or more times
 O1 time ○4 or 5 times

G

These questions ask about the neighborhood and community where you live.

adults (over 21) in your neighborhood think it is How wrong would most for kids your age: 87.

al

A little bit wrong at

Wrong

Very wrong

a. to use marijuana?	0	0	0	<u> </u>
b. to drink alcohol?	0	0	0	<u> </u>
c. to smoke cigarettes?	0	0	0	<u> </u>

0 0 0

How much do each of the following statements describe 88.

tatements describe	ld/or drug selling		npty or abandoned	affiti
ö	0	0	0	0
2	0	0	0	0
yes	0	0	0	0
₽	U	0	0	0
isi			-	

89. If I had to move, I would miss the neighborhood I now live in.	2	yes	Y EU:
90. My neighbors notice when I am	0	0	0
doing a good job and let me know	0	0	0
91. I like my neighborhood.	0	0	0
92. There are lots of adults in my neighborhood I could talk to about something important.	0	0	0
93. I'd like to get out of my orighborhood.	0	0	0
94. There are people in my neighborhood who are proud of me when I do something well.	0	0	0
95. There are people in my neighborhood who encourage me to do my best.	0	0	0
96. I feel safe in my neighborhood.	0	0	0

Which of the following activities for people your age are available in your community? 97.

∪Yes	OYes	ΟYes	ΟYes	OYes	
ONO	0N0	0N0	0N0	0N0	
a. sports teams	b. scouting	c. boys and girls clubs	d. 4-H clubs	e. service clubs	

ΥE	0	0	0	S	0	0	0	0	0
es	0	0	0	ry ea	0	0	0	0	
~				Ve t of e t har	0	0	0	0	0
č	0	0	0	Sor ort of y ha	_	ard ?), ard	o D D	~	_
ÖN	0	0	0	<pre>Contemporal</pre>	, how	or h or gi	ne, L t be f	easy	, how
	98. If a kid smoked marijuana in your neighborhood would he or she be caught by the police?	99. If a kid drank some beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) in your neighborhood would he or she be caught by the police?	100. If a kid carried a handgun in your neighborhood would he or she be caught by the police?		101. If you wanted to get some cigarettes easy would it be for you to get some	102. If you wanted to get some beer, wine liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, how easy would it be for you to get s	103. If you wanted to get a drug like cocai or amphetamines, how easy would i you to get some?	104. If you wanted to get a handgun, how would it be for you to get one?	105. If you wanted to get some marijuana easy would it be for you to get some

During the past 12 months, have you participated in any alcohol prevention programs or seen any alcohol prevention messages in your school or community? (Please check all that apply) 106.

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix A

- Yes, a school-based program focused on preventing underage drinking and/or drinking and driving.
 Yes, a community-based program focused on preventing underage drinking and/or drinking and driving (for example, through your church or temple or through youth groups like Boys and Girls Club or 4-H).
 Yes, a media campaign anddressing underage drinking and/or drinking and driving (for example, newspaper ads, posters, pamphlets, radio, TV).

The next few questions ask about your family. When answering these questions please think about the people you consider to be your family, for example, parents, stepparents, grandparents, aunts, uncles, etc.

A little bit wrong at a Wrong Very wrong (for example, a. drink beer, wine or hard liquor (for vodka, whiskey or gin) regularly? How wrong do your parents feel it would be for YOU to: b. smoke cigarettes? 107.

d. steal something worth more than \$5? smoke marijuana? ы

0

0

0

 $\mathbf{0}$

 \cap

 \cap

 $\left(\right)$

0 \bigcirc

 \bigcirc

0 \cap 0 \cap

0

 \mathbf{O}

all

e. draw graffiti, write things, or draw pictures on buildings or other property (without the owner's permission)?

f. pick a fight with someone?

Ē

~ 0

0

0

0

ever: of your brothers or sisters 108. Have any

73

I don't have any brothers o	r si	stei	ູ	
	۳ و	<u> </u>		
a. drunk beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey or gin)?	0	0	0	
b. smoked marijuana?	0	0	0	-
c. smoked cigarettes?	0	0	0	-
d. taken a handgun to school?	0	0	0	-
e. been suspended or expelled from school?	0	0	0	-

During the past 12 months, have you talked with at least one of your parents about the dangers of underage drinking and/or drinking and driving? By parents, we mean either your biological parents, adoptive parents, stepparents, or adult guardians -whether or not they live with you? 109.

O Yes

°N O

	iON	ou	yes	ΥES!
110. The rules in my family are clear.	0	0	0	0
111. People in my family often insult or yell at each other.	0	0	0	0
112. When I am not at home, one of my parents knows where I am and who I am with.	0	0	0	0
113. We argue about the same things in my family over and over.	0	0	0	0
114. If you drank some beer or wine or liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) without your parents' permission, would you be caught by your parents?	0	0	0	0
115. My family has clear rules about alcohol and drug use.	0	0	0	0
116. If you carried a handgun without your parents' permission, would you be caught by your parents?	0	0	0	0
117. If you skipped school would you be caught by your parents?	0	0	0	0
118. Do you feel very close to your mother?	0	0	0	0
119. Do you share your thoughts and feelings with your mother?	0	0	0	0
120. My parents ask me what I think before most family decisions affecting me are made.	0	0	0	0
121. Do you share your thoughts and feelings with your father?	0	0	0	0
122. Do you enjoy spending time with your mother?	0	0	0	0
123. Do you enjoy spending time with your father?	0	0	0	0
124. If I had a personal problem, I could ask my mom or dad for help.	0	0	0	0

10		ÖN	6	yes	ΥES!	138. How many times have you changed s	chools	since	9	
3	your father?	0	0	0	0	middle and middle to high school)?		מווימו א	2	
126	. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them.	0	0	0	0	Onever 3 or 4 times 0 or 2 times 0 or 2 times 0 or 2 times 0 or 6 time	7 or mor imes	Ð		
127.	. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done.	0	0	0	0	139. Has anyone in your family ever had s drug problems?	evere a	Icohol	ŗ	
128.	. People in my family have serious arguments.	0	0	0	0	ONO OYes 140. About how many adults				
129.	. Would your parents know if you	(((((over 21) have you known personally who in the past Ni	umber o	f Adul	ts	
	did not come home on time?	C	C	C	C	year have: 0	1 2	3-4	5+	
081	 It is important to be honest with your parents, even if they become upset or you get punished. 	0	0	0	0	a. used marijuana, crack, cocaine, or other drugs?	0	0	0	
ţ	ob and I nodill collect of the second s		1	4	_	b. sold or dealt drugs?	0	0	0	
2	 My parents notice when I am do let me know about it. O Never or Almost Never 	Dften				c. done other things that could get them in trouble with the police, like stealing, selling	0	0	0	
132.	 Sometimes How often do your parents tell v 	All the t ou the	ime v're p	roud o	÷	stolen goods, mugging or assaulting others, etc.?				
	you for something you've done	c.	- - -			d. gotten drunk or high?	0	0	0	
	ONEVER or Almost Never	Often All the t	ime			141. Have you attended a RAVE party?				
133.	. How many brothers and sisters, destended and sisters, destended and stepsisters, destended and stepsisters, de	incluc volu h	ling ave th	at are		ONO! Ono Oyes O	ΥES!			
	younger than you?					142. Have you used drugs while attending	a RAVE	party'	C .	
	00 01 03 05 05 05	, more				ONO! Ono Oyes O	ΥES!			
134	. How many brothers and sisters stepbrothers and stepsisters, do older than you?	incluc you h	ling lave th	nat are		143. Think of your four best friends (the friends you feel closest to). In the par year (12 months), how many of your best friends have:	0 81	Numb of frier 1 2	ber nds 3 4	
	00 01 03 05 060	, more				a. attended a RAVE party?	0	0	0	
135.	. Have you changed homes in the 12 months)?	e past y	/ear (t	he las	÷	b. used drugs while at a RAVE party?	0	0	0	
	ONo OYes					144. How honest were you in filling out thi	s surve	λż		
136	. How many times have you chan since kindergarten?	ged hc	mes			OI was very honest OI was honest pretty much of the time				
	ONEVER O3 or 4 times 01 or 2 times 05 or 6 times	0 ₫	or mo mes	е		OI was noticed some of the unite OI was not honest and all				
137	. Have you changed schools (inc elementary to middle and middl the past year?	luding e to hig	chanc gh scł	jing fr iool) i	Ē					
	ONo OYes									
				•		-				
		Than	ik ya	ou fe	or co	ompleting the survey.				
							AL]			

APPENDIX B. RISK AND PROTECTIVE FACTORS SURVEY SCALES

Community Domain Protective Factors	Protective Factor	Associated Scales
	Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement
	Community Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	Community Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement
Community Domain Risk Factors	Risk Factor	Associated Scales
	Low Neighborhood Attachment and Community Disorganization	Low Neighborhood Attachment Community Disorganization
	Transitions & Mobility	Transitions & Mobility
	Laws and Norms Favorable to Drug Use, Firearms, and Crime	Laws and Norms Favorable to Drug Use
	Availability of Drugs and Firearms	Perceived Availability of Drugs Perceived Availability of Handguns
	Media Portrayals of Violence	No Scale
	Extreme Economic Deprivation	No Scale
Family Domain Protective Factors	Protective Factor	Associated Scales
	Family Attachment	Family Attachment
	Family Opportunities for Positive Involvement	Family Opportunities for Positive Involvement

ļ	۱pp	pend	ix	B	: R	lis	k and	F	Pro	tect	ive	Fac	tors S	Survey	Scal	les
---	-----	------	----	---	-----	-----	-------	---	-----	------	-----	-----	--------	--------	------	-----

	Family Rewards for Positive Involvement	Family Rewards for Positive Involvement
Family Domain Risk Factors	Risk Factor	Associated Scales
	Family Management Problems	Poor Family Management
	Family Conflict	Family Conflict
	Family Involvement in the Problem Behavior	Family History of Antisocial Behavior
	Favorable Parental Attitudes Towards The Problem Behavior	Parental Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior Parental Attitudes Favorable to Drug Use
		-
School Domain Protective Factors	Protective Factor	Associated Scales
School Domain Protective Factors	<u>Protective Factor</u> School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	Associated Scales School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement
School Domain Protective Factors	Protective Factor School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	Associated Scales School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement
School Domain Protective Factors School Domain Risk Factors	Protective Factor School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement <u>Risk Factor</u>	Associated Scales School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement
School Domain Protective Factors School Domain Risk Factors	Protective Factor School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement Risk Factor Academic Failure Beginning in Late Elementary School	Associated Scales School Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement School Rewards for Prosocial Involvement Associated Scales Academic Failure

	Protective Factor	Associated Scales
Individual-Peer Protective Factors	Religiosity	Religiosity
	Social Skills	Social Skills
	Belief in the Moral Order	Belief in the Moral Order
	Prosocial Involvement	Prosocial Involvement
	Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	Rewards for Prosocial Involvement
	Interaction with Prosocial Peers	Interaction with Prosocial Peers
Individual-Peer Risk Factors	Risk Factor	Associated Scales
	Rebelliousness	Rebelliousness
	Early and Persistent Antisocial Behavior	Early Initiation of Drug Use Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior
	Friends Who Engage in the Problem Behavior	Interaction with Antisocial Peers Friends' Use of Drugs Rewards for Antisocial Behavior
	Favorable Attitudes Toward the Problem Behavior	Attitudes Favorable Toward Antisocial Behavior Attitudes Favorable Toward Drug Use Perceived Risks of Drug Use Intention to Use
	Early Initiation of the Problem Behavior	Early Initiation of Drug Use Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior
	Gang Involvement	Gang Involvement
	Constitutional Factors	Sensation Seeking Depressive Symptoms

Appendix C. Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category

Question	Response	#	%
1. Sex	Male	37,614	47.9
	Female	40,835	52.1
2. Age	10 or younger	51	0.1
	11	13,972	17.7
	12	8,013	10.1
	13	14,126	17.9
	14	7,631	9.7
	15	12,847	16.3
	16	6,658	8.4
	17	11,056	14.0
	18	4,422	5.6
	19 or older	275	0.3
3. Grade	6th	22,910	28.8
	8th	22,082	27.7
	10th	19,315	24.3
	12th	15,291	19.2
4. Are you Hispanic or Latino?	No	68,661	90.3
	Yes	7,386	9.7
5. What is your race?			
a. Black or African American	No	64,846	81.5
	Yes	14,752	18.5
b. Asian	No	78,259	98.3
	Yes	1,339	1.7

	Question	Response	#	%
c.	American Indian	No	75,557	94.9
		Yes	4,041	5.1
d.	Alaska Native	No	79,406	99.8
		Yes	192	0.2
e.	White	No	24,683	31.0
		Yes	54,915	69.0
f.	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific	No	79,111	99.4
	Islander	Yes	487	0.6
g.	Other	No	73,192	92.0
		Yes	6,406	8.0
6.	What is the highest level of	Completed grade school or less	1,798	2.3
	schooling completed by your mother or father?	Some high school	6,010	7.8
	mother of father.	Completed high school	15,532	20.1
		Some college	12,374	16.0
		Completed college	17,857	23.1
		Graduate or professional school after college	7,205	9.3
		Don't know	15,685	20.3
		Does not apply	952	1.2
7.	Think of where you live most of the you?	time. Which of the following po	eople live the	e with
a.	Mother	No	11,803	14.8
		Yes	67,795	85.2
b.	Stepmother	No	75,224	94.5
		Yes	4,374	5.5

Question	Response	#	%		Question	Response	#	%
c. Foster Mother	No	79,232	99.5					
	Yes	366	0.5	n	Sister(s)	No	46.854	58.9
					2	Yes	32,744	41.1
d. Grandmother	No	71.500	89.8	0.	Stepsister(s)	No	76.380	96.0
	Yes	8,098	10.2			Yes	3.218	4.0
		- ,					- , -	
e. Aunt	No	76,477	96.1	p	Other Children	No	75,485	94.8
	Yes	3,121	3.9			Yes	4,113	5.2
f. Father	No	34,049	42.8	8.	In my school, students have lots of	NO!	13,644	17.4
	Yes	45,549	57.2		chances to help decide things like	no	27,573	35.1
					class activities and fules.	yes	30,520	38.9
g. Stepfather	No	67.350	84.6			YES!	6,767	8.6
	Yes	12,248	15.4					
		,		9.	Teachers ask me to work on special	NO!	8,492	10.8
h Foster Father	No	79 335	99.7		classroom projects.	no	30,584	38.9
ii. Tostel Funci	Yes	263	0.3			yes	31,871	40.5
	103	209	0.9			YES!	7,669	9.8
	N	76 112	04.4					
1. Grandfather	No	10,110	94.4	10	My teacher(s) notices when I am	NO!	4,398	5.6
	Ies	4,480	5.6	10	doing a good job and lets me know	no	14,300	18.2
					about it.	ves	40.093	51.0
j. Uncle	No	76,520	96.1			YESI	19,779	25.2
	Yes	3,078	3.9				,	2312
				11	These and late of changes for	NOL	2 2 4 4	2.0
k. Other Adults	No	77,498	97.4	11.	students in my school to get	NO!	2,544	5.0 7.0
	Yes	2,100	2.6		involved in sports, clubs, and other	no	20 252	27.2
					school activities outside of class.	VESI	29,555 41 364	52.5
l. Brother(s)	No	44,853	56.3			1 EO!	41,204	(.2ر
	Yes	34,745	43.7					
m. Stepbrother(s)	No	76,074	95.6					
	Yes	3,524	4.4					

	Question	Response	#	%
12.	12. There are lots of chances for students in my school to talk with a teacher one-on-one.	NO!	3,804	4.8
		no	14,233	18.1
	teacher one-on-one.	yes	38,756	49.4
		YES!	21,718	27.7
13.	13. I feel safe at my school.	NO!	6,011	7.7
	no	10,047	12.8	
		yes	37,945	48.3
	YES!	24,504	31.2	
14.	The school lets my parents know	NO!	14,142	18.1
	when I have done something well.	no	30,102	38.5
		yes	24,324	31.1
		YES!	9,717	12.4
15.	My teachers praise me when I	NO!	10,557	13.5
	work hard in school.	no	27,478	35.2
		yes	30,983	39.7
		YES!	9,027	11.6
16.	Are your school grades better than	NO!	6,671	8.6
	class?	no	23,308	29.9
		yes	34,568	44.3
		YES!	13,475	17.3
17.	I have lots of chances to be part of class discussions or activities	NO!	3,298	4.2
	נומסס נוסבעססוטווס טו מבעיועכט.	no	12,134	15.5
		yes	42,709	54.7
		YES!	19,975	25.6

	Question	Response	#	%
18.	Now thinking back over the past yea	ar in school, how often did you:		
a.	enjoy being in school?	Never	6,217	7.9
		Seldom	8,998	11.4
		Sometimes	31,025	39.5
		Often	20,046	25.5
		Almost always	12,314	15.7
b.	hate being in school?	Never	8,284	10.6
		Seldom	20,126	25.7
		Sometimes	27,653	35.3
		Often	13,659	17.4
		Almost always	8,605	11.0
c.	try to do your best work in school?	Never	588	0.8
		Seldom	2,108	2.7
		Sometimes	10,921	14.0
		Often	22,569	28.9
		Almost always	42,042	53.7
19.	How often do you feel that the	Never	5,025	6.4
	school work you are assigned is	Seldom	12,884	16.5
	meaningful and important:	Sometimes	24,664	31.5
		Often	21,392	27.3
		Almost always	14,298	18.3
20.	Putting them all together, what	Mostly F's	1,148	1.5
	were your grades like last year?	Mostly D's	3,204	4.2
		Mostly C's	16,718	21.9
		Mostly B's	29,775	38.9
		Mostly A's	25.616	33.5

	Question	Reenance	#	0/_
91		Vanuimportent	20.450	27 E
21.	21. Flow important do you think the things you are learning in school are going to be for your later life?		29,459	26.0
	are going to be for your later life?		20,405	20.0
		Fairly important	9.465	10.9
		Slightly important	8,465	10.8
		Not at all important	1,970	2.5
22.	How interesting are most of your courses to you?	Very interesting and stimulating	8,815	11.3
		Quite interesting	21,490	27.5
		Fairly interesting	28,742	36.8
		Slightly dull	13,421	17.2
		Very dull	5,586	7.2
23.	During the LAST FOUR WEEKS	None	56,824	74.1
	how many whole days of school	1	8,148	10.6
	skipped or 'cut'?	2	4,580	6.0
		3	3,166	4.1
		4-5	2,556	3.3
		6-10	901	1.2
		11 or more	546	0.7
24.	Think of your four best friends (the months), how many of your best frie	friends you feel closest to). In ends have:	the past year	(12
a.	participated in clubs, organizations	0	9,263	11.9
	or activities at school?	1	9,244	11.9
		2	14,001	18.0
		3	12,537	16.1
		4	32,606	42.0
			,-00	

0 1

2

3

4

b. smoked cigarettes?

	Question	Response	#	%
c.	tried beer, wine or hard liquor (for	0	39,684	51.1
	example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)	1	10,104	13.0
	about it?	2	8,207	10.6
		3	6,035	7.8
		4	13,698	17.6
d.	made a commitment to stay drug-	0	16,363	21.1
	free?	1	8,911	11.5
		2	7,700	9.9
		3	8,000	10.3
		4	36,468	47.1
e.	used marijuana?	0	56,325	72.8
		1	7,275	9.4
		2	4,916	6.4
		3	3,332	4.3
		4	5,479	7.1
f.	tried to do well in school?	0	2.810	3.6
		1	4.229	5.5
		2	9.066	11.7
		3	14.998	19.3
		4	46,446	59.9
			-, -	
a	used ISD cocsine amphetamines	0	68 544	88 3
5.	or other illegal drugs?	1	4 621	6.0
		2	2.043	2.6
		3	1.002	1.3
		4	1.409	1.8
			.,	
հ	been succeeded from school?	0	48 306	62.4
п.	שברה ששארותכת ווסווו שנווססו:	1	13 702	17.8
		2	7 226	0.3
		3	3 180	9.J 4 1
		4	4,938	6.4

50,526

10,560

6,715

3,931

5,955

65.0

13.6

8.6

5.1 7.7

i. liked school? 0 19,401 25.0 1 9,871 12.7 2 15,939 20.5 3 13,797 17.8 4 18,559 23.9 j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5	Question	Response	#	%
1 9,871 12.7 2 15,939 20.5 3 13,797 17.8 4 18,559 23.9 j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 911 1.2 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 7 1 3,375 4.3 motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 1 3,375 4.3 4.48 0.6 4 668 0.9 4.48 0.6 0.9 1.171 1.5 3 4.48 <td>i. liked school?</td> <td>0</td> <td>19,401</td> <td>25.0</td>	i. liked school?	0	19,401	25.0
2 15,939 20.5 3 13,797 17.8 4 18,559 23.9 j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 20.1 3 13,841 18.1 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 3 44 2,3375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		1	9,871	12.7
3 13,797 17.8 4 18,559 23.9 j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 11 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 3 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 668 0.9		2	15,939	20.5
4 18,559 23.9 j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 3 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 44 668 0.9		3	13,797	17.8
j. carried a handgun? 0 70,884 91.2 1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 		4	18,559	23.9
1 3,193 4.1 2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3.4 2 1,435 1.9 1.4 1.45 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3.4 2 14,606 19.1 3.44 18.1 2.2,415 29.3 motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 1 3.375 4.3 2.1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	j. carried a handgun?	0	70,884	91.2
2 1,536 2.0 3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 20.1 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 7 7 7 motor vehicle such as a car or 4 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 448 0.6 0.9 1.171 1.5		1	3,193	4.1
3 702 0.9 4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 3 13,841 18.1 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motor cycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 668 0.9		2	1,536	2.0
4 1,379 1.8 k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		3	702	0.9
k. sold illegal drugs? 0 68,319 88.4 1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 668 0.9		4	1,379	1.8
1 4,466 5.8 2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	k. sold illegal drugs?	0	68,319	88.4
2 2,116 2.7 3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		1	4,466	5.8
3 911 1.2 4 1,435 1.9 1. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motor vehicle such as a car or 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9		2	2,116	2.7
4 1,435 1.9 1. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		3	911	1.2
I. regularly attended religious services? 0 15,340 20.1 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		4	1,435	1.9
services? 1 10,270 13.4 2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motor vehicle such as a car or 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9 0.9 0.9	l. regularly attended religious	0	15,340	20.1
2 14,606 19.1 3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	services?	1	10,270	13.4
3 13,841 18.1 4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		2	14,606	19.1
4 22,415 29.3 m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		3	13,841	18.1
m. stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 0 72,086 92.7 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9		4	22,415	29.3
motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? 1 3,375 4.3 2 1,171 1.5 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	m. stolen or tried to steal a	0	72,086	92.7
motorcycle : 2 1,171 1.5 3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	motor vehicle such as a car o	or 1	3,375	4.3
3 448 0.6 4 668 0.9	motorcycle ?	2	1,171	1.5
4 668 0.9		3	448	0.6
		4	668	0.9

	Question	Response	#	%
n.	been arrested?	0	63,646	81.9
		1	7,884	10.1
		2	3,346	4.3
		3	1,223	1.6
		4	1,578	2.0
о.	dropped out of school?	0	69,866	89.9
		1	5,185	6.7
		2	1,571	2.0
		3	516	0.7
		4	569	0.7
p.	been members of a gang?	0	65,614	84.5
		1	4,884	6.3
		2	2,331	3.0
		3	1,258	1.6
		4	3,545	4.6
25	What are the changes you way	ld be seen as seel if your		
20. a.	smoked cigarettes?	No or very little chance	54,507	70.3
u		Little chance	11.688	15.1
		Some chance	6.684	8.6
		Pretty good chance	2.664	3.4
		Very good chance	1,944	2.5
			,	
b.	worked hard at school?	No or very little chance	9,316	12.0
		Little chance	10,925	14.1
		Some chance	16,958	21.9
		Pretty good chance	17,209	22.2

Very good chance

29.8

23,102

	Question	Response	#	%			Question	Response	#	%
c.	began drinking alcoholic beverages	No or very little chance	44,412	57.2	2	26.	How old were you when you first:			
	regularly, that is, at least once or twice a month?	Little chance	10,785	13.9		a.	smoked marijuana?	Never	65,571	83.6
		Some chance	9,974	12.9				10 or younger	1,220	1.6
		Pretty good chance	7,497	9.7				11	987	1.3
		Very good chance	4,927	6.3				12	1,553	2.0
								13	2,362	3.0
d.	defended someone who was being	No or very little chance	12,302	15.9				14	2,271	2.9
	verbally abused at school?	Little chance	9,145	11.8				15	2,064	2.6
		Some chance	16,558	21.4				16	1,565	2.0
		Pretty good chance	17,727	22.9				17 or older	804	1.0
		Very good chance	21,638	28.0						
						b.	smoked a cigarette, even just a	Never	52,286	66.9
•	emoked marijuana?	No or very little chance	55 359	71.5			puff?	10 or younger	9,280	11.9
с.	smokeu marjuana:	Little chance	8 005	10.3				11	3,528	4.5
		Some chance	6 152	7.9				12	3,357	4.3
		Pretty good chance	3 904	5.0				13	3,270	4.2
		Very good chance	3 970	5.1				14	2,376	3.0
		very good chance	5,770	5.1				15	1,992	2.5
		N7 1-1 1	(2.050	01.4				16	1,327	1.7
f.	carried a handgun?	No or very little chance	62,878	81.4				17 or older	790	1.0
		Little chance	6,428	8.3						
		Some chance	3,630	4.7		c	had more than a sin or two of beer	Never	39 566	50.6
		Pretty good chance	1,899	2.5		с.	wine or hard liquor (for example,	10 or younger	10 171	13.0
		Very good chance	2,449	3.2			vodka, whiskey, or gin)?	11	4 371	5.6
								12	4 766	6.1
g.	regularly volunteered to do	No or very little chance	23,550	30.4				12	5 700	7.3
	community service?	Little chance	14,813	19.2				14	5.038	6.4
		Some chance	16,578	21.4				15	4 432	5.7
		Pretty good chance	10,923	14.1				16	2 722 7 723	3.5
		Very good chance	11,482	14.8				17 or older	1.343	1.7

	Question	Response	#	%	Question	Response	#	%
d.	began drinking alcoholic beverages	Never	63,762	81.4	g. got arrested?	Never	72,501	92.9
	regularly, that is, at least once or	10 or younger	979	1.3		10 or younger	584	0.7
	twice a month:	11	817	1.0	1	11	574	0.7
		12	1,281	1.6	1	12	714	0.9
		13	2,070	2.6	1	13	917	1.2
		14	2,428	3.1	1	14	905	1.2
		15	2,991	3.8	1	15	782	1.0
		16	2,492	3.2	1	16	626	0.8
		17 or older	1,485	1.9		17 or older	442	0.6
e.	used phenoxydine (pox, px,	Never	77,418	100.0	h. carried a handgun?	Never	73,316	94.1
	breeze)?	10 or younger			1	10 or younger	1,324	1.7
		11			1	11	729	0.9
		10			1	12	599	0.8
		12			1	13	535	0.7
		13			1	14	422	0.5
		14			1	15	401	0.5
		15				16	318	0.4
		14				17 or older	230	0.3
		10						
		17 or older			i. attacked someone with the idea of	Never	62,509	80.0
					seriously hurting them?	10 or younger	4,516	5.8
f.	got suspended from school?	Never	60,573	77.6	1	11	2,455	3.1
		10 or younger	5,481	7.0		12	2,139	2.7
		11	2,774	3.6		13	2,295	2.9
		12	2,583	3.3		14	1,620	2.1
		13	2,570	3.3		15	1,308	1.7
		14	1,818	2.3		16	837	1.1
		15	1,215	1.6		17 or older	431	0.6
		16	709	0.9				
		17 or older	336	0.4				

	Question	Response	#	%
j.	belonged to a gang?	Never	73,381	93.8
		10 or younger	1,028	1.3
		11	786	1.0
		12	779	1.0
		13	883	1.1
		14	519	0.7
		15	437	0.6
		16	231	0.3
		17 or older	157	0.2
27. a.	How wrong do you think it is for s take a handgun to school?	omeone your age to: Very wrong Wrong A little bit wrong Not wrong at all	70,099 6,113 1,559 662	89.4 7.8 2.0 0.8
b.	steal anything worth more than	Very wrong	47,708	61.0
	\ # J:	Wrong	22,071	28.2
		A little bit wrong	6,863	8.8
		Not wrong at all	1,550	2.0
c.	pick a fight with someone?	Very wrong	32,840	42.1
		Wrong	25,024	32.1
		A 11.1 1 1.	15 720	20.2

					i.
c.	pick a fight with someone?	Very wrong	32,840	42.1	
		Wrong	25,024	32.1	
		A little bit wrong	15,729	20.2	
		Not wrong at all	4,336	5.6	
					28.
d.	attack someone with the idea of	Very wrong	52,735	67.5	
	seriously hurting them?	Wrong	15,396	19.7	
		A little bit wrong	7,136	9.1	
		Not wrong at all	2,848	3.6	

	Question	Response	#	%
e.	stay away from school all day when	Very wrong	46,131	59.0
	their parents think they are at school?	Wrong	18,598	23.8
	School.	A little bit wrong	10,109	12.9
		Not wrong at all	3,320	4.2
f.	drink beer, wine or hard liquor (for	Very wrong	46,091	58.9
	example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) regularly?	Wrong	13,484	17.2
		A little bit wrong	12,258	15.7
		Not wrong at all	6,356	8.1
g.	smoke cigarettes?	Very wrong	50,610	64.8
		Wrong	13,310	17.0
		A little bit wrong	8,356	10.7
		Not wrong at all	5,862	7.5
h.	smoke marijuana?	Very wrong	60,082	76.9
		Wrong	8,121	10.4
		A little bit wrong	5,193	6.6
		Not wrong at all	4,712	6.0
		X 7	71.057	02.1
1.	use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or another illegal drug?	Very wrong	2 952	92.1
		A little Litterener	1 204	4.9
		A little bit wrong	1,500	1.7
		Not wrong at all	974	1.2
28.	At school during the past 12 months, did you receive help	No	60,258	86.9
	from the resource teacher, speech therapist or other special education teacher?	Yes	9,121	13.1

	Question	Response	#	%
29.	How many times have you done the	following things?		
a.	done what feels good no matter	Never	23,503	30.6
	what.	I've done it, but not in the past year	11,331	14.8
		Less than once a month	8,265	10.8
		About once a month	6,910	9.0
		2 or 3 times a month	9,004	11.7
		Once a week or more	17,710	23.1
Ь.	done something dangerous because	Never	41,030	52.8
	someone dared you to do it.	I've done it, but not in the past year	17,231	22.2
		Less than once a month	7,593	9.8
		About once a month	4,566	5.9
		2 or 3 times a month	3,767	4.8
		Once a week or more	3,505	4.5
c.	done crazy things even if they are a	Never	28,743	37.0
	little dangerous.	I've done it, but not in the past year	17,440	22.5
		Less than once a month	9,419	12.1
		About once a month	6,687	8.6
		2 or 3 times a month	6,659	8.6
		Once a week or more	8,688	11.2
30.	How many times in the past year (12	2 months) have you:		
a.	been suspended from school?	Never	67,636	86.6
		1 to 2 times	8,086	10.3
		3 to 5 times	1,446	1.9
		6 to 9 times	510	0.7
		10 to 19 times	243	0.3
		20 to 29 times	92	0.1
		30 to 39 times	21	0.0
		40+ times 30	99	0.1

	Question	Response	#	%
b.	carried a handgun?	Never	73,971	94.9
		1 to 2 times	1,764	2.3
		3 to 5 times	668	0.9
		6 to 9 times	433	0.6
		10 to 19 times	313	0.4
		20 to 29 times	164	0.2
		30 to 39 times	68	0.1
		40+ times 30	606	0.8
c.	sold illegal drugs?	Never	74,144	95.9
		1 to 2 times	1,240	1.6
		3 to 5 times	501	0.6
		6 to 9 times	341	0.4
		10 to 19 times	291	0.4
		20 to 29 times	170	0.2
		30 to 39 times	98	0.1
		40+ times 30	519	0.7
d.	stolen or tried to steal a	Never	76,031	97.6
	motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle?	1 to 2 times	1,206	1.5
	motorcycle.	3 to 5 times	254	0.3
		6 to 9 times	132	0.2
		10 to 19 times	67	0.1
		20 to 29 times	25	0.0
		30 to 39 times	22	0.0
		40+ times 30	135	0.2

Question	Response	#	%	[Question	Response	#	%
e. participated in clubs, organizations	Never	16,164	20.8	-	h.	attacked someone with the idea of	Never	65,399	84.0
or activities at school?	1 to 2 times	16,927	21.8			seriously hurting them?	1 to 2 times	7,863	10.1
	3 to 5 times	11,737	15.1				3 to 5 times	2,112	2.7
	6 to 9 times	7,108	9.2				6 to 9 times	991	1.3
	10 to 19 times	6,361	8.2				10 to 19 times	538	0.7
	20 to 29 times	4,096	5.3				20 to 29 times	276	0.4
	30 to 39 times	1,963	2.5				30 to 39 times	118	0.2
	40+ times 30	13,327	17.2				40+ times 30	520	0.7
f. been arrested?	Never	73,546	94.6		i.	been drunk or high at school?	Never	69,915	89.9
	1 to 2 times	3,253	4.2				1 to 2 times	3,721	4.8
	3 to 5 times	527	0.7				3 to 5 times	1,368	1.8
	6 to 9 times	172	0.2				6 to 9 times	709	0.9
	10 to 19 times	83	0.1				10 to 19 times	627	0.8
	20 to 29 times	46	0.1				20 to 29 times	351	0.5
	30 to 39 times	13	0.0				30 to 39 times	159	0.2
	40+ times 30	92	0.1				40+ times 30	951	1.2
g. done extra work on your own for	Never	23,036	29.7		j.	volunteered to do community	Never	40,186	51.8
school?	1 to 2 times	18,582	24.0			service?	1 to 2 times	15,460	19.9
	3 to 5 times	11,756	15.2				3 to 5 times	8,202	10.6
	6 to 9 times	7,698	9.9				6 to 9 times	4,979	6.4
	10 to 19 times	6,117	7.9				10 to 19 times	3,365	4.3
	20 to 29 times	3,458	4.5				20 to 29 times	1,916	2.5
	30 to 39 times	1,688	2.2				30 to 39 times	863	1.1
	40+ times 30	5,145	6.6				40+ times 30	2,580	3.3

	Question	Response	#	%
k.	taken a handgun to school?	Never	77,207	99.3
		1 to 2 times	243	0.3
		3 to 5 times	90	0.1
		6 to 9 times	47	0.1
		10 to 19 times	43	0.1
		20 to 29 times	21	0.0
		30 to 39 times	12	0.0
		40+ times 30	108	0.1
31.	Are you currently on probation, or	No	74,644	96.7
	assigned a probation officer with Juvenile Court?	Yes	2,515	3.3
32.	Have you ever belonged to a gang?	No	70,138	90.4
		No, but would like to	1,326	1.7
		Yes, in the past	3,253	4.2
		Yes, belong now	2,565	3.3
		Yes, but would like to get out	343	0.4
33.	If you have ever belonged to a	No	6,170	8.0
	gang, did that gang have a name?	Yes	5,771	7.5
		I have never belonged to a gang	64,897	84.5
34.	You're looking at CD's in a music	Ignore her	14,285	18.5
	store with a friend. You look up	Grab a CD and leave the store	6,222	8.1
	coat. She smiles and says 'Which one do you want? Go ahead, take	Tell her to put the CD back	34,469	44.7
	it while nobody's around.' There is nobody in sight, no employees and no other customers. What would you do now?	Act like it is a joke, and ask her to put the CD back	22,188	28.8

	Question	Response	#	%
35.	You are visiting another part of	Push the person back	12,197	15.9
	town, and you don't know any of the people your age there. You are walking down the street, and some	Say 'Excuse me' and keep on walking	36,677	47.9
	teenager you don't know is walking toward you. He is about your size, and as he is about to pass you, he	Say 'Watch where you are going' and keep on walking	20,267	26.4
	deliberately bumps into you and you almost lose your balance. What would you say or do?	Swear at the person and walk away	7,492	9.8
20	Y	D : 1 :	10 (4 4	25.6
30.	house, and one of your friends	Drink it	19,044	25.0
	offers you a drink containing alcohol. What would you say or do?	drink' and suggest that you and your friend go and do something else	26,373	34.3
		Just say, 'No thanks' and walk away	22,163	28.8
		Make up a good excuse, tell your friend you had something else to do, and leave	8,694	11.3
37.	It's 8:00 on a weeknight and you	Leave the house anyway	5,022	6.6
	are about to go over to a friend's home when your mother asks you where you are going. You say 'Oh, just going to go hang out with some friends.' She says, 'No, you'll just get into trouble if you go out. Stay home tonight.' What would	Explain what you are going to do with your friends, tell her when you will get home, and ask if you can go out	48,892	63.9
		Not say anything and start watching TV	16,259	21.2
	you do now?	Get into an argument with her	6,343	8.3
30	How often do you attand ralistant	Navor	10 402	12.6
30.	services or activities?	Rarely	16 747	21.0
		1-2. Times a Month	11.072	14.5
		About Once a Week or More	38.170	50.0
			-, -	
39.	I do the opposite of what people	Very False	32,008	41.8
	tell me, just to get them mad.	Somewhat False	22,148	29.0
		Somewhat True	19,476	25.5
		Very True	2,861	3.7

	Question	Response	#	%
40.	I like to see how much I can get	Very False	31,926	41.7
	away with.	Somewhat False	18,942	24.8
		Somewhat True	19,647	25.7
		Very True	5,998	7.8
41.	I ignore rules that get in my way.	Very False	34,552	45.8
		Somewhat False	21,075	27.9
		Somewhat True	15,964	21.1
		Very True	3,904	5.2
42.	I think sometimes it's okay to cheat at school	NO!	29,864	39.0
		no	23,092	30.1
		yes	19,383	25.3
		YES!	4,295	5.6
40		NO	1 750	2.2
43.	It is important to think before you act.	NO!	1,758	2.3
		no	3,596	4.7
		yes	27,345	35.8
		YES!	43,752	57.2
44.	Sometimes I think that life is not	NO!	36.452	48.2
	worth it.	no	18.007	23.8
		ves	14,901	19.7
		YES!	6,261	8.3
45.	At times I think I am no good at	NO!	24,692	32.6
	all.	no	20,219	26.7
		yes	22,469	29.6
		YES!	8,454	11.1

	Question	Response	#	%
46.	All in all, I am inclined to think	NO!	37,925	50.4
	that I am a failure.	no	23,341	31.0
		yes	9,967	13.2
		YES!	4,014	5.3
47.	In the past year, have you felt	NO!	21,513	28.3
	depressed or sad MOST days, even if you felt okay sometimes?	no	19,189	25.3
		yes	21,854	28.8
		YES!	13,343	17.6
48.	It is all right to beat up people if	NO!	24,746	32.6
	they start the fight.	no	15,857	20.9
		yes	18,303	24.1
		YES!	17,013	22.4
49.	I think it is okay to take something	NO!	47,632	62.8
	without asking if you can get away with it.	no	22,113	29.2
		yes	4,455	5.9
		YES!	1,590	2.1

50. Sometimes we don't know what we will do as adults, but we may have an idea. Please answer how true these statements may be for you. WHEN I AM AN ADULT I WILL:

a.	smoke cigarettes.'	NO!	56,763	74.8
		no	12,250	16.1
		yes	4,868	6.4
		YES!	2,024	2.7
Ь.	drink beer, wine, or liquor.	NO!	31,894	42.1
		no	14,082	18.6
		yes	22,232	29.4
		YES!	7,503	9.9

	Question	Response	#	%
c.	smoke marijuana'	NO!	61,726	81.6
		no	8,676	11.5
		yes	3,375	4.5
		YES!	1,895	2.5
d.	use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines	NO!	69,999	92.3
	or another illegal drug	no	4,996	6.6
		yes	529	0.7
		YES!	305	0.4

51. How much do you think people risk harming themselves (physically or in other ways) if they:

a.	smoked one or more packs of	No risk	5,636	7.5
	cigarettes per day?	Slight risk	5,047	6.7
		Moderate risk	14,598	19.3
		Great risk	50,269	66.5
b.	try marijuana once or twice?	No risk	12,999	17.3
		Slight risk	18,217	24.2
		Moderate risk	18,137	24.1
		Great risk	25,799	34.3
c.	smoke marijuana regularly?	No risk	7,520	10.2
		Slight risk	6,043	8.2
		Moderate risk	10,923	14.8
		Great risk	49,167	66.8
d.	take one or two drinks of an	No risk	9,994	13.3
	alcoholic beverage (beer, wine,	Slight risk	18,118	24.1
	nquoi) nearly every uay:	Moderate risk	22,498	29.9
		Great risk	24,622	32.7

	Question	Response	#	%
e.	have five or more drinks once or	No risk	8,019	10.6
	twice each weekend?	Slight risk	10,740	14.2
		Moderate risk	19,860	26.3
		Great risk	36,770	48.8
52.	On how many occasions have you	0	41,091	54.5
	had alcoholic beverages (beer, wine	1-2	11,048	14.6
	lifetime - more than just a few sips?	3-5	6,114	8.1
		6-9	4,123	5.5
		10-19	4,367	5.8
		20-39	3,113	4.1
		40+	5,605	7.4
53.	On how many occasions have you	0	59,789	79.5
	had beer, wine or hard liquor to	1-2	8,078	10.7
	drink during the past 50 days:	3-5	3,283	4.4
		6-9	1,985	2.6
		10-19	1,212	1.6
		20-39	376	0.5
		40+	516	0.7
54.	On how many occasions have you	0	63,455	84.5
	used marijuana (grass, pot) or	1-2	3,444	4.6
	lifetime?	3-5	1,797	2.4
		6-9	1,163	1.5
		10-19	1,237	1.6
		20-39	962	1.3
		40+	3,071	4.1

	Question	Response	#	%		Question	Response	#	%
55.	On how many occasions have you	0	70,136	93.2	 59.	On how many occasions have you	0	74,756	99.5
	used marijuana (grass, pot) or hashish (hash, hash oil) during the	1-2	1,948	2.6		used cocaine or crack during the	1-2	264	0.4
	past 30 days?	3-5	863	1.1			3-5	64	0.1
		6-9	543	0.7			6-9	28	0.0
		10-19	575	0.8			10-19	11	0.0
		20-39	410	0.5			20-39	10	0.0
		40+	782	1.0			40+	17	0.0
56	On how many occasions have you	0	74 072	98.5	60	On how many occasions have you	0	65 412	87.0
00.	used LSD or other psychedelics in	1-2	590	0.8	00.	sniffed glue, breathed the contents	1-2	5 367	7.1
	your lifetime?	3-5	224	0.0		of an aerosol spray can, or inhaled	3-5	1 784	2.4
		6-9	133	0.2		get high in your lifetime?	6-9	989	1.3
		10-19	93	0.1			10-19	683	0.9
		20-39	49	0.1			20-39	331	0.4
		40+	73	0.1			40+	651	0.9
57.	On how many occasions have you	0	74,867	99.5	61.	On how many occasions have you	0	71,907	95.6
	used LSD or other psychedelics during the past 30 days?	1-2	233	0.3		sniffed glue, breathed the contents	1-2	2,096	2.8
	auning the past of aujor	3-5	64	0.1		other gases or sprays, in order to	3-5	595	0.8
		6-9	31	0.0		get high during the past 30 days?	6-9	253	0.3
		10-19	10	0.0			10-19	166	0.2
		20-39	9	0.0			20-39	54	0.1
		40+	11	0.0			40+	111	0.1
58.	On how many occasions have	0	73,780	98.0	62.	On how many occasions have	0	74,896	100.0
	you used cocaine or crack in your	1-2	845	1.1		you used phenoxydine (pox, px,	1-2		
	lifetime?	3-5	238	0.3		breeze) in your lifetime?	2 5		
		6-9	135	0.2			5-5		
		10-19	119	0.2			6-9		
		20-39	63	0.1			10-19		
		40+	117	0.2			20-39		
							40+		

Question	Response	#	%			Question	Response	#	%
63. On how many occasions have	0	74,789	100.0	6	67 .	On how many occasions have you	0	74,611	99.6
you used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze) during the past 30 days?	1-2				used Methamphetamines (meth, speed, crank, crystal meth) in the	1-2	181	0.2	
breeze, during the past of days.	3-5					past 30 days?	3-5	49	0.1
	6.0						6-9	30	0.0
	0-9						10-19	20	0.0
	10-19						20-39	12	0.0
	20-39						40+	21	0.0
	40+								
				6	58 .	On how many occasions have	0	72,552	96.9
64 On how many occasions have you	0	65 865	87.8			you used stimulants, other than Methamphetamines (such	1-2	986	1.3
used sedatives (tranquilizers, such	1-2	3.613	4.8			as amphetamines, Ritalin or	3-5	461	0.6
as valium or xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pills) without a doctor	3-5	1,776	2.4			Dexedrine) without a doctor telling	6-9	290	0.4
telling you to take them, in your	6-9	1.049	1.4			you to take them, in your metime:	10-19	178	0.2
lifetime?	10-19	1.005	1.3				20-39	119	0.2
	20-39	596	0.8				40+	267	0.4
	40+	1,109	1.5						
				6	69 .	. On how many occasions have	0	74,152	99.1
65 On how many occasions have you	0	70 892	94 5			you used stimulants, other than Methamphetamines (such	1-2	410	0.5
used sedatives (tranquilizers, such	1-2	2.230	3.0			as amphetamines, Ritalin or	3-5	119	0.2
as valium or xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pills) without a doctor	3-5	891	1.2			Dexedrine) without a doctor telling	6-9	74	0.1
telling you to take them, during the	6-9	459	0.6			30 days?	10-19	37	0.0
past 30 days?	10-19	285	0.4				20-39	34	0.0
	20-39	121	0.2				40+	25	0.0
	40+	118	0.2						
				7	70.	On how many occasions have you	0	74,088	99.1
66. On how many occasions have you	0	73,715	98.4			used heroin or other opiates in vour lifetime?	1-2	340	0.5
used Methamphetamines (meth,	1-2	610	0.8			,	3-5	116	0.2
speed, crank, crystal meth) in your lifetime?	3-5	196	0.3				6-9	73	0.1
	6-9	101	0.1				10-19	54	0.1
	10-19	96	0.1				20-39	25	0.0
	20-39	71	0.1				40+	70	0.1
	40+	137	0.2						

	Question	Response	#	%
71.	71. On how many occasions have you used heroin or other opiates during the past 30 days?	0	74,551	99.7
		1-2	108	0.1
	the past 50 days.	3-5	38	0.1
		6-9	22	0.0
		10-19	11	0.0
		20-39	7	0.0
		40+	20	0.0
72.	On how many occasions have you	0	72,924	97.7
	used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) in your lifetime?	1-2	934	1.3
		3-5	310	0.4
		6-9	167	0.2
		10-19	115	0.2
		20-39	59	0.1
		40+	101	0.1
73.	On how many occasions have you	0	74,004	99.3
	used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) during the past 30 days?	1-2	335	0.4
	B F J	3-5	64	0.1
		6-9	35	0.0
		10-19	21	0.0
		20-39	11	0.0
		40+	25	0.0
74.	On how many occasions have you	0	65,296	87.3
	been drunk or very high from drinking alcoholic beverages	1-2	5,008	6.7
	during the past 30 days?	3-5	2,003	2.7
		6-9	1,024	1.4
		10-19	725	1.0
		20-39	274	0.4
		40+	472	0.6

	Question	Response	#	%
75.	Think back over the last two	None	64,458	86.4
	weeks. How many times have you	Once	4,105	5.5
	in a row?	Twice	2,643	3.5
		3-5 times	2,035	2.7
		6-9 times	626	0.8
		10 or more times	762	1.0
76.	Have you ever used smokeless	Never	63,493	85.2
	tobacco (chew, snuff, plug, dipping	Once or Twice	5,511	7.4
	tobacco, or cnewing tobacco):	Once in a while but not regularly	2,127	2.9
		Regularly in the past	1,354	1.8
		Regularly now	2,047	2.7
77.	How often have you taken smokeless tobacco during the past 30 days?	Not at all	69,644	93.5
		Once or twice	1,991	2.7
		Once or twice per week	529	0.7
		Three to five times per week	357	0.5
		About once a day	365	0.5
		More than once a day	1,560	2.1
78.	Have you ever smoked cigarettes?	Never	52,095	70.0
		Once or Twice	10,983	14.8
		Once in a while but not regularly	4,804	6.5
		Regularly in the past	2,908	3.9
		Regularly now	3,626	4.9
79.	How frequently have you smoked	Not at all	66,115	88.9
	cigarettes during the past 30 days?	Less than one cigarette per day	3,597	4.8
		One to five cigarettes per day	2,557	3.4
		About one-half pack per day	1,182	1.6
		About one pack per day	589	0.8
		About one and one-half packs per day	219	0.3
		Two packs or more per day	137	0.2

	Question	Response	#	%
80.	During the last month, about how	None	68,715	92.5
	many marijuana cigarettes, or the equivalent, did you smoke a day,	Less than 1 a day	2,382	3.2
	on the average?	1 a day	789	1.1
		2-3 a day	1,224	1.6
		4-6 a day	593	0.8
		7-10 a day	217	0.3
	11 or more a day	396	0.5	
81. If you drank alcohol (not just a sip or taste) in the past year, how did you usually get it?	I did not drink alcohol in the past year	47,097	65.3	
	I bought it myself with a fake ID	206	0.3	
		I bought it myself without a fake ID	446	0.6
		I got it from someone I know age 21 or older	8,766	12.1
		I got it from someone I know under age 21	3,573	5.0
		I got it from my brother or sister	1,028	1.4
		I got it from home with my parents' permission	3,215	4.5
		I got it from home without my parents' permission	1,615	2.2
		I got it from another relative	1,727	2.4
		A stranger bought it for me	425	0.6
		I took it from a store or shop	125	0.2
		Other	3,932	5.4

	Question	Response	#	%
82.	If you drank alcohol (not just a sip or taste) in the past year, where did	I did not drink alcohol in the past year	47,398	66.3
	you usually drink it?	at my home	6,826	9.5
		at someone else's home	12,502	17.5
		at an open area like a park, beach, field, back road, woods, or a street corner	2,679	3.7
		at a sporting event or concert	311	0.4
		at a restaurant, bar, or a nightclub	468	0.7
		at an empty building or a construction site	150	0.2
		at a hotel/motel	309	0.4
		in a car	587	0.8
		at school	254	0.4
83.	If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff or drag) in the past year, how	I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year	59,110	82.0
	did you usually get them?	I bought them myself with a fake ID	161	0.2
		I bought them myself without a fake ID	1,373	1.9
		I got them from someone I know age 18 or older	4,332	6.0
		I got them from someone I know under age 18	1,946	2.7
		I got them from my brother or sister	565	0.8
		I got them from home with my parents' permission	496	0.7
		I got them from home without my parents permission	956	1.3
		I got them from another relative	650	0.9
		A stranger bought them for me	174	0.2
		I took them from a store or shop	123	0.2
		Other	2,182	3.0

	Question	Response	#	%			
84.	If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff or drag) in the past year,	I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year	59,445	83.4			
	where did you usually smoke them?	at my home	3,590	5.0			
	them.	at someone else's home	3,129	4.4			
		at an open area like a park, beach, field, back road, woods, or a street corner	2,505	3.5			
		at a sporting event or concert	119	0.2			
		at a restaurant, bar, or a nightclub	119	0.2			
		at an empty building or a construction site	150	0.2			
		at a hotel/motel	68	0.1			
		in a car	1,941	2.7			
		at school	227	0.3			
85.	85. During the past 30 days, how many times did you ride in a car or other	0 times	55,574	76.3			
		1 time	7,089	9.7			
	been drinking alcohol?	2 or 3 times	5,701	7.8			
		4 or 5 times	1,570	2.2			
		6 or more time	2,917	4.0			
86.	During the past 30 days, how many times did you drive a car or	I did not drive a car in the past 30 days	33,695	88.1			
	other vehicle when you had been drinking alcohol?	0 times	2,109	5.5			
		1 tim	1,410	3.7			
		2 or 3 times	409	1.1			
		4 or 5 times	643	1.7			
		6 or more times					
87.	87. How wrong would most adults (over 21) in your neighborhood think it is for kids your						
a.	to use marijuana?	Very wrong	58,453	80.6			
	-	Wrong	7,920	10.9			
		A little bit wrong	4,031	5.6			
		Not wrong at all	2,099	2.9			

	Question	Response	#	%
b.	to drink alcohol?	Very wrong	45,066	62.4
		Wrong	13,172	18.2
		A little bit wrong	10,001	13.8
		Not wrong at all	4,037	5.6
c.	to smoke cigarettes?	Very wrong	46,807	64.8
		Wrong	12,509	17.3
		A little bit wrong	8,114	11.2
		Not wrong at all	4,751	6.6
88.	How much do each of the follow	ing statements describe your nei	ghborhood?	
a.	crime and/or drug selling	NO!	50,001	69.4
		no	11,926	16.5
		yes	6,779	9.4
		YES!	3,364	4.7
b.	fights	NO!	43,455	60.4
		no	14,340	19.9
		yes	9,781	13.6
		YES!	4,344	6.0
c.	lots of empty or abandoned	NO!	49,757	69.2
	buildings	no	15,233	21.2
		yes	4,901	6.8
		YES!	1,968	2.7
d.	lots of graffiti	NO!	54,814	76.6
		no	12,699	17.8
		yes	2,506	3.5
		YES!	1,507	2.1

	Question	Response	#	%		Question	Response	#	%
89. If I had	l to move, I would miss the	NO!	11,490	16.0	95.	There are people in my	NO!	17,110	24.0
neighbo	orhood I now live in.	no	11,128	15.5		neighborhood who encourage me to do my best. y	no	16,803	23.6
		yes	21,695	30.2		to to my beat.	yes	22,266	31.3
		YES!	27,535	38.3			YES!	14,987	21.1
90. My nei	ghbors notice when I am	NO!	27,239	38.1	96.	I feel safe in my neighborhood.	NO!	6,777	9.5
doing a	a good job and let me know t	no	23,119	32.3			no	7,436	10.5
about I		yes	13,792	19.3			yes	27,982	39.4
		YES!	7,363	10.3			YES!	28,910	40.7
91. I like m	ny neighborhood.	NO!	8,351	11.7	97.	Which of the following activities for	vities for people your age are available in your		
		no	8,297	11.6	a.	sports teams?	No	10,154	14.3
		yes	28,726	40.3			Yes	60,804	85.7
		YES!	25,935	36.4					
					b	scouting?	No	30,706	44.1
92. There a	There are lots of adults in my neighborhood I could talk to about	NO!	20,560	28.8			Yes	38,958	55.9
neighbo someth		no	19,625	27.5					
someth	min mportanic.	yes	17,972	25.2	C.	boys and girls clubs?	No	25,564	36.5
		YES!	13,120	18.4			Yes	44,398	63.5
93. I'd like	to get out of my	NO!	28,670	40.2	ď	4-H clubs?	No	34,108	49.9
neighbo	orhood.	no	22,679	31.8			Yes	34,207	50.1
		yes	11,663	16.4				, -	
		YES!	8,241	11.6	A	service clubs?	No	31 426	45.8
					e.		Yes	37 194	54.2
94. There a	are people in my	NO!	17,445	24.5			100	57,174	51.2
neighbo when I	orhood who are proud of me	no	18,015	25.3	00	K - 1 ¹ - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	NO	15 420	21.0
when I	uo sometining well.	yes	22,870	32.2	98.	neighborhood would he or she be		12,428	26.2
		YES!	12,738	17.9		caught by the police?	no	20,000	20.2
							yes YESI	13 780	19.5

	Question	Response	#	%
99.	If a kid drank some beer, wine	NO!	18,986	26.9
or ha vodka neigh caugl	or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) in your neighborhood would he or she be	no	28,769	40.8
		yes	12,808	18.2
	caught by the police?	YES!	9,990	14.2
100.	If a kid carried a handgun in your	NO!	13,859	19.7
	neighborhood would he or she be	no	20,308	28.8
	caught by the police.	yes	17,953	25.5
		YES!	18,272	26.0
101.	If you wanted to get some	Very hard	28,431	40.7
	cigarettes, how easy would it be for you to get some?	Sort of hard	7,840	11.2
		Sort of easy	11,443	16.4
		Very easy	22,061	31.6
102.	you wanted to get some beer,	Very hard	26,289	37.8
	wine or hard liquor (for example,	Sort of hard	9,325	13.4
	would it be for you to get some?	Sort of easy	13,937	20.0
		Very easy	20,041	28.8
103.	If you wanted to get a drug like	Very hard	48,909	70.4
	cocaine, LSD, or amphetamines,	Sort of hard	9,385	13.5
	some?	Sort of easy	5,875	8.5
		Very easy	5,303	7.6
104.	If you wanted to get a handgun,	Very hard	39,511	56.9
	how easy would it be for you to get	Sort of hard	11,166	16.1
	OIIC:	Sort of easy	8,417	12.1
		Very easy	10,401	15.0

	Question	Response	#	%
105.	If you wanted to get some	Very hard	39,584	57.0
	marijuana, how easy would it be for	Sort of hard	6,428	9.3
	you to get some.	Sort of easy	8,135	11.7
		Very easy	15,296	22.0
106.	During the past 12 months, have you or seen any alcohol prevention mess	a participated in any alcohol preve ages in your school or community	ention prog ?	rams
a.	Yes, a school-based program	No	55,771	70.1
	focused on preventing underage drinking and/or drinking and driving.	Yes	23,827	29.9
b.	Yes, a community-based program focused on preventing underage drinking and/or drinking and	No	73,108	91.8
	driving (for example, through your church or temple or through youth groups like Boys and Girls Club or 4-H).	Yes	6,490	8.2
c.	Yes, a media campaign addressing	No	69,873	87.8
	drinking and driving (for example, newspaper ads, posters, pamphlets, radio, TV).	Yes	9,725	12.2
d.	No	No	42,989	54.0
		Yes	36,609	46.0
107.	How wrong do your parents feel it w	ould be for YOU to:		
a.	drink beer, wine or hard liquor (for	Very wrong	50,357	72.4
	example, vodka, whiskey or gin) regularly?	Wrong	10,435	15.0
		A little bit wrong	6,728	9.7
		Not wrong at all	2,020	2.9

	Question	Response	#	%
b.	smoke cigarettes?	Very wrong	56,239	81.0
		Wrong	8,040	11.6
		A little bit wrong	3,416	4.9
		Not wrong at all	1,776	2.6
c.	smoke marijuana?	Very wrong	62,715	90.8
		Wrong	3,545	5.1
		A little bit wrong	1,704	2.5
		Not wrong at all	1,137	1.6
d.	steal something worth more than \\$5?	Very wrong	59,603	86.1
	(ψ 0 .	Wrong	7,289	10.5
		A little bit wrong	1,587	2.3
		Not wrong at all	755	1.1
e	draw graffiti write things or draw	Very wrong	58 576	84 5
с.	pictures on buildings or other	Wrong	6.979	10.1
property (without the	property (without the owner's permission)?	A little bit wrong	2,483	3.6
		Not wrong at all	1,246	1.8
f.	pick a fight with someone?	Very wrong	41,872	60.5
		Wrong	16,004	23.1
		A little bit wrong	8,717	12.6
		Not wrong at all	2,631	3.8
100				
108.	Have any of your brothers or sisters	ever:	26,690	52.2
a.	(for example, vodka, whiskey or	No	20,089	55.Z
	gin)?		29,127	42.2
		I don t have any brothers or sisters	2,122	4.3
b.	smoked marijuana?	No	51,925	75.4
		Yes	13,782	20.0
		I don't have any brothers or sisters	3,118	4.5

	/0
8,504	63.4
,994	32.0
8,162	4.6
4,420	93.9
,136	1.7
8,081	4.5
,492	69.1
3,056	26.3
8,163	4.6
9,924	54.9 45.1
2,767	4.0
6,669	8.3
6,474	37.1
1,668	50.6
3,946	27.8
,210	38.4
5,751	23.1
,354	10.8
	5,504 ,994 ,162 ,162 ,136 ,081 ,136 ,081 ,136 ,081 ,136 ,081 ,136 ,081 ,144 ,0924 ,767 ,669 ,444 ,668 ,946 ,210 ,751 ,354

#

% 8.2

10.0

26.3

55.6

13.3

20.6

28.7

37.4

14.6

21.9

35.4 28.2

24.4

25.1

26.3

24.2

6.8

7.7

35.0

50.5

13.6

9.3

32.7

44.3

	Question	Response	#	%		Question	Response	#
112.	When I am not at home, one of my	NO!	2,914	4.3	118.	Do you feel very close to your	NO!	5,488
	parents knows where I am and who I am with	no	4,791	7.0		mother?	no	6,706
	i din with.	yes	23,765	34.9			yes	17,667
		YES!	36,571	53.7			YES!	37,330
113.	We argue about the same things in	NO!	16,816	24.7	119.	Do you share your thoughts and	NO!	8,902
	my family over and over.	no	23,182	34.1		feelings with your mother?	no	13,834
		yes	18,974	27.9			yes	19,298
		YES!	9,016	13.3			YES!	25,102
114.	If you drank some beer or wine	NO!	9,754	14.4	120.	My parents ask me what I think	NO!	9,754
	or liquor (tor example, vodka, whiskey or gin) without your	no	16,497	24.3		before most family decisions	no	14,642
	parents' permission, would you be	yes	13,537	20.0			yes	23,656
	caught by your parents?	YES!	28,034	41.3			YES!	18,861
115.	My family has clear rules about	NO!	3,810	5.6	121.	Do you share your thoughts and feelings with your father?	NO!	16,348
	alcohol and drug use.	no	6,754	10.0			no	16,787
		yes	17,447	25.7			yes	17,591
		YES!	39,752	58.7			YES!	16,152
116.	If you carried a handgun without	NO!	6,273	9.3	122.	122. Do you enjoy spending time with your mother?	NO!	4,583
	your parents' permission, would	no	7,661	11.4			no	5,140
	you be caught by your parents.	yes	13,718	20.3			yes	23,406
		YES!	39,772	59.0			YES!	33,837
117.	If you skipped school would you be	NO!	6,426	9.5	123.	Do you enjoy spending time with	NO!	9,063
	caught by your parents?	no	10,229	15.2		your father?	no	6,225
		yes	15,909	23.6			yes	21,813
		YES!	34,953	51.8			YES!	29,535
Appendix C: Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category

124. If I had a personal problem, I could ask my mom or dad for help. NO! 6,672 9.9 no 6,604 9.8 yes 19,694 29.3 YES! 34,211 50.9 125. Do you feel very close to your father? NO! 10,854 16.1 no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 123 36.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 9.5 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 11.5 <th></th> <th>Question</th> <th>Response</th> <th>#</th> <th>%</th>		Question	Response	#	%
ask my mom or dad for help. no 6,604 9,8 yes 19,694 29.3 YES! 34,211 50.9 125. Do you feel very close to your father? NO! 10,854 16.1 no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 76.88 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221	124.	If I had a personal problem, I could	NO!	6,672	9.9
yes 19,694 29.3 YES! 34,211 50.9 125. Do you feel very close to your father? NO! 10,854 16.1 no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 51.0 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 51.0 51.0 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 <td></td> <td>ask my mom or dad for help.</td> <td>no</td> <td>6,604</td> <td>9.8</td>		ask my mom or dad for help.	no	6,604	9.8
YES! 34,211 50.9 125. Do you feel very close to your father? NO! 10,854 16.1 no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 YES! 19,587 29.3 no arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910			yes	19,694	29.3
125. Do you feel very close to your father? NO! 10,854 16.1 no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 92.7 19.0 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			YES!	34,211	50.9
father? no 10,180 15.1 yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4 10.0 10.2 10.0	125.	Do you feel very close to your	NO!	10,854	16.1
yes 18,799 27.9 YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4		father?	no	10,180	15.1
YES! 27,527 40.9 126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			yes	18,799	27.9
126. My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them. NO! 5,123 7.6 no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			YES!	27,527	40.9
to do fun things with them. no 12,438 18.4 yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 128. Vould your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4 14.5 14.5	126.	My parents give me lots of chances	NO!	5,123	7.6
yes 23,830 35.3 YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4 12.9 12.9 12.9		to do fun things with them.	no	12,438	18.4
YES! 26,123 38.7 127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			yes	23,830	35.3
127. My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done. NO! 4,244 6.3 no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			YES!	26,123	38.7
homework done. no 7,225 10.7 yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4	127.	My parents ask if I've gotten my	NO!	4,244	6.3
yes 21,518 31.9 YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4		homework done.	no	7,225	10.7
YES! 34,397 51.0 128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			yes	21,518	31.9
128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			YES!	34,397	51.0
128. People in my family have serious arguments. NO! 19,587 29.3 no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4					
arguments. no 27,408 41.0 yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4	128.	People in my family have serious	NO!	19,587	29.3
yes 12,237 18.3 YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4 35,107 52.4		arguments.	no	27,408	41.0
YES! 7,688 11.5 129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			yes	12,237	18.3
129. Would your parents know if you did not come home on time? NO! 3,221 4.8 no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4			YES!	7,688	11.5
did not come home on time? no 6,720 10.0 yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4	129.	Would your parents know if you	NO!	3,221	4.8
yes 21,910 32.7 YES! 35,107 52.4		did not come home on time?	no	6,720	10.0
YES! 35,107 52.4			yes	21,910	32.7
			YES!	35,107	52.4

	Question	Response	#	%
130.	It is important to be honest with	NO!	3,256	4.9
	your parents, even if they become	no	5,959	8.9
	upset of you get pullished.	yes	22,167	33.1
		YES!	35,500	53.1
131.	My parents notice when I am doing	Never or Almost Never	5,722	8.6
	a good job and let me know about :+	Sometimes	16,865	25.2
		Often	19,915	29.8
		All the time	24,293	36.4
132.	How often do your parents tell you	Never or Almost Never	6,023	9.1
	they're proud of you for something	Sometimes	15,621	23.5
	you ve done.	Often	20,889	31.4
		All the time	23,943	36.0
133.	How many brothers and sisters,	0	21,924	33.3
	including stepbrothers and stepsisters, do you have that are	1	19,207	29.2
	younger than you?	2	11,096	16.9
		3	5,979	9.1
		4	3,142	4.8
		5	1,798	2.7
		6 or more	2,702	4.1
134.	How many brothers and sisters,	0	21,065	31.8
	including stepbrothers and stepsisters, do you have that are	1	18,032	27.2
	older than you?	2	11,529	17.4
		3	6,330	9.5
		4	3,820	5.8
		5	2,182	3.3
		6 or more	3,378	5.1
135.	Have you changed homes in the	No	48,376	73.3
	past year (the last 12 months)?	Yes	17,655	26.7

Appendix C: Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category

	Question	Response	#	%
136.	How many times have you changed	Never	18,262	27.6
	homes since kindergarten?	1 or 2 times	21,400	32.4
		3 or 4 times	13,208	20.0
		5 or 6 times	6,358	9.6
		7 or more times	6,892	10.4
137.	Have you changed schools (including changing from	No	39,689	60.3
	elementary to middle and middle to high school) in the past year?	Yes	26,111	39.7
138.	How many times have you changed	Never	15,586	23.8
	schools since kindergarten	1 or 2 times	19,316	29.5
	elementary to middle and middle	3 or 4 times	17,869	27.3
	to high school)?	5 or 6 times	7,581	11.6
		7 or more times	5,110	7.8
139.	Has anyone in your family ever had	No	41,161	63.4
	severe alcohol or drug problems?	Yes	23,743	36.6
140.	About how many adults (over 21) ha	we you known personally wh	o in the past yea	r
a.	used marijuana, crack, cocaine, or	0	39,368	60.2
	other drugs?	1	9,640	14.7
		2	5,720	8.7
		3-4	4,185	6.4
		5+	6,500	9.9

	Question	Response	#	%
b.	sold or dealt drugs?	0	47,619	73.1
		1	7,022	10.8
		2	3,991	6.1
		3-4	2,600	4.0
		5+	3,934	6.0
c.	done other things that could get	0	44,827	68.8
	like stealing, selling stolen goods,	1	8,340	12.8
	mugging or assaulting others, etc.?	2	4,347	6.7
		3-4	2,851	4.4
		5+	4,810	7.4
d.	gotten drunk or high?	0	27,481	42.2
		1	11,641	17.9
		2	6,743	10.4
		3-4	5,600	8.6
		5+	13,649	21.0
141.	Have you attended a RAVE party?	NO!	45,191	69.8
		no	12,960	20.0
		yes	3,844	5.9
		YES!	2,761	4.3
142.	Have you used drugs while	NO!	51,047	79.0
	attending a RAVE party?	no	10,995	17.0
		yes	1,429	2.2
		YES!	1,181	1.8

143. Think of your four best friends (the friends you feel closest to). In the past year (12 months), how many of your best friends have:

Appendix C: Survey Results, Frequency and Percentage for Each Response Category

	Question	Response	#	%
a.	attended a RAVE party?	0	53,265	82.4
		1	4,453	6.9
		2	2,772	4.3
		3	1,215	1.9
		4	2,946	4.6
Ь.	used drugs while at a RAVE party?	0	57.951	89.9
		1	2,915	4.5
		2	1,521	2.4
		3	680	1.1
		4	1,372	2.1
144.	How honest were you in filling out	I was very honest	54,662	83.1
	this survey?	I was honest pretty much of the time	9,109	13.8
		I was honest some of the time	1,476	2.2
		I was honest once in a while	526	0.8
		I was not honest at all		

APPENDIX D. ITEM DICTIONARY FOR THE 2007 APNA SURVEY

ITEM DICTIONARY FOR 2007 APNA QUESTIONNAIRE		
SCALES AND QUESTIONS	RESPONSE CATEGORIES	APNA Question #
DEMOGRAPHICS		
Are you:	Female Male	1
How old are you?	10 or younger, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 or older	2
What grade are you in?	6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12	3
Are you Hispanic or Latino?	No, Yes	4
What is your race? Select one or more	Black or African American, Asian, American Indian, Alaskan Native, White, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, Other	5
Think of where you live most of the time. Which of the following people live there with you?	ere See questionnaire for complete list of family members	
How many brothers and sisters, including stepbrothers and stepsisters, do you have that are older than you?	0, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 more	134
How many brothers and sisters, including stepbrothers and stepsisters, do you have that are younger than you?	same as above	133
What is your Zip Code?	Zip Code	
What is the highest level of schooling completed by your mother or father?	See questionnaire for complete list of school completion categories	6
COMMUNITY: Low Neighborhood Attachment		
I'd like to get out of my neighborhood.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	93
I like my neighborhood.	same as above	91
If I had to move, I would miss the neighborhood I now live in.	same as above	89

COMMUNITY: Community Disorganization			
How much do each of the following statements describe your neighborhood:			
crime and/or drug selling.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	88a	
fights.	same as above	88b	
lots of empty or abandoned buildings.	same as above	88c	
lots of graffiti.	same as above	88d	
I feel safe in my neighborhood.	same as above	96	

COMMUNITY: Transitions and Mobility		
Have you changed homes in the past year (the last 12 months)?	No, Yes	135
How many times have you changed homes since kindergarten?	Never, 1or 2 times, 3 or 4 times, 5 or 6 times, 7 or more times	136
Have you changed schools in the past year (including changing from elementary to middle and middle to high school)?	No, Yes	137
How many times have you changed schools since kindergarten?	Never, 1or 2 times, 3 or 4 times, 5 or 6 times, 7 or more times	138
COMMUNITY: Laws and Norms Favorable to Drug Use		
How wrong would most adults in your neighborhood think it was for kids your age:		
to use marijuana.	Very Wrong, Wrong, A little bit wrong, Not wrong at all	87a
to drink alcohol.	same as above	87b
to smoke cigarettes.	same as above	87c
If a kid drank some beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) in your neighborhood, would he or she be caught by the police?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	99
If a kid smoked marijuana in your neighborhood would he or she be caught by the police?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	98
If a kid carried a handgun in your neighborhood would he or she be caught by the police?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	100
COMMUNITY: Perceived Availability of Drugs	•	
If you wanted to get some beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin), how easy would it be for you to get some?	Very hard, Sort of hard, Sort of easy, Very easy	102
If you wanted to get some cigarettes, how easy would it be for you to get some?	same as above	101
If you wanted to get some marijuana, how easy would it be for you to get some?	same as above	105
If you wanted to get a drug like cocaine, LSD, or amphetamines, how easy would it be for you to get some?	same as above	103
COMMUNITY: Perceived Availability of Handguns		
If you wanted to get a handgun, how easy would it be for you to get one?	same as above	104

COMMUNITY: Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement		
There are lots of adults in my neighborhood I could talk to about something important.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	92
Which of the following activities for people your age are available in your community?		
sports teams.	No, Yes	97a
scouting.	same as above	97b
boys and girls clubs.	same as above	97c
4-H clubs.	same as above	97d
service clubs.	same as above	97e
COMMUNITY: Rewards for Prosocial Involvement		

My neighbors notice when I am doing a good job and let me know about it.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	90
There are people in my neighborhood who encourage me to do my best.	same as above	95
There are people in my neighborhood who are proud of me when I do something well.	same as above	94
FAMILY: Poor Family Management		
My parents ask if I've gotten my homework done.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	127
Would your parents know if you did not come home on time?	same as above	129
When I am not at home, one of my parents knows where I am and who I am with.	same as above	112
The rules in my family are clear.	same as above	110
My family has clear rules about alcohol and drug use.	same as above	115
If you drank some beer or wine or liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) without your parents' permission, would you be caught by	same as above	114
your parents?		
If you skipped school would you be caught by your parents?	same as above	117
If you carried a handgun without your parents' permission, would you be caught by your parents?	same as above	116
FAMILY: Family Conflict		0
People in my family often insult or yell at each other.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	111
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments.	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above	111 128
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over.	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above	111 128 113
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above	111 128 113
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes	111 128 113 139
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever:	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes	111 128 113 139
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever: drunk beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes No, Yes, I don't have any brothers or	111 128 113 139 108a
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever: drunk beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes No, Yes, I don't have any brothers or sisters	111 128 113 139 108a
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever: drunk beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)? smoked marijuana?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes No, Yes, I don't have any brothers or sisters same as above	111 128 113 139 108a 108b
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever: drunk beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)? smoked marijuana? smoked cigarettes?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes No, Yes, I don't have any brothers or sisters same as above same as above	111 128 113 139 108a 108b 108c
People in my family often insult or yell at each other. People in my family have serious arguments. We argue about the same things in my family over and over. FAMILY: Family History of Antisocial Behavior Has anyone in your family ever had a severe alcohol or drug problem? Have any of your brothers or sisters ever: drunk beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)? smoked marijuana? smoked cigarettes? taken a handgun to school?	NO!, no, yes, YES! same as above same as above No, Yes No, Yes, I don't have any brothers or sisters same as above same as above same as above same as above same as above	111 128 113 139 108a 108b 108c 108d

About how many adults have you known personally who in the past year have:				
used marijuana, crack cocaine, or other drugs?	None, 1 adult, 2 adults, 3 or 4 adults, 5 or more adults	140a		
sold or dealt drugs?	same as above	140b		
done other things that could get them in trouble with the police like stealing, selling stolen goods, mugging or assaulting others, etc?	same as above	140c		
gotten drunk or high?	same as above	140d		
FAMILY: Parental Attitudes Favorable Toward Drug Use				
How wrong do your parents feel it would be for you to:				

drink beer, wine, or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin) regularly?	Very wrong, Wrong, A little bit wrong, Not wrong at all	107a
		107h
smoke cigarettes?	same as above	1070
smoke marijuana?	same as above	107c
FAMILY: Parental Attitudes Favorable to Antisocial Behavior		
steal anything worth more than \$5?	Very wrong, Wrong, A little bit wrong, Not wrong at all	107d
draw graffiti, or write things, or draw pictures on buildings or other property (without the owner's permission)?	same as above	107e
pick a fight with someone?	same as above	107f
FAMILY: Attachment		
Do you feel very close to your mother?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	118
Do you share your thoughts and feelings with your mother?	same as above	119
Do you feel very close to your father?	same as above	125
Do you share your thoughts and feelings with your father?	same as above	121
FAMILY: Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement		
My parents give me lots of chances to do fun things with them.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	126
My parents ask me what I think before most family decisions affecting me are made.	same as above	120
If I had a personal problem, I could ask my mom or dad for help.	same as above	124
FAMILY: Rewards for Prosocial Involvement		
My parents notice when I am doing a good job and let me know about it.	Never or almost never, Sometimes, Often, All the time	131
How often do your parents tell you they're proud of you for something you've done?	same as above	132
Do you enjoy spending time with your mother?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	122
Do you enjoy spending time with your father?	same as above	123

SCHOOL: Academic Failure		
Putting them all together, what were your grades like last year?	Mostly F's, Mostly D's, Mostly C's, Mostly B's, Mostly A's	20
Are your school grades better than the grades of most students in your class?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	16
SCHOOL: Little Commitment to School		
How often do you feel that the school work you are assigned is	Almost Always, Often, Sometimes, Seldom, Never	19
meaningful and important?		
How interesting are most of your courses to you?	Very Interesting & Stimulating, Quite Interesting, Fairly Interesting, Slightly Dull, Very Dull	22
How important do you think the things you are learning in school are going to be for your later life?	Very Important, Quite Important, Fairly Important, Slightly Important, Not at all Important	21

Now, thinking back over the past year in school, how often did you		
enjoy being in school?	Never, Seldom, Sometimes, Often, Almost Always	18a
hate being in school?	same as above	18b
try to do your best work in school?	same as above	18c
During the LAST FOUR WEEKS how many whole days of school have	None, 1, 2, 3, 4-5, 6-10, 11 or more	23
you missed because you skipped or "cut"		
SCHOOL: Opportunities for Prosocial Involvement	•	
In my school, students have lots of chances to help decide things like	NO!, no, yes, YES!	8
class activities and rules.		
There are lots of chances for students in my school to talk with a	same as above	12
teacher one-on-one.		
Teachers ask me to work on special classroom projects.	same as above	9
There are lots of chances for students in my school to get involved in	same as above	11
sports, clubs, and other school activities outside of class.		
I have lots of chances to be part of class discussions or activities.	same as above	17
SCHOOL: Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	·	
My teacher(s) notices when I am doing a good job and lets me know	NO!, no, yes, YES!	10
about it.		
The school lets my parents know when I have done something well.	same as above	14
I feel safe at my school.	same as above	13
My teacher(s) praise me when I work hard in school.	same as above	15

PEER-INDIVIDUAL: Rebelliousness		
I do the opposite of what people tell me, just to get them mad.	Very False, Somewhat False, Somewhat True, Very True	39
I ignore the rules that get in my way.	same as above	41
I like to see how much I can get away with.	same as above	40
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Early Initiation of Drug Use		
How old were you when you first:		
smoked marijuana?	Never, 10 or younger, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 or older	26a
smoked a cigarette, even just a puff?	same as above	26b
had more than a sip or two of beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey, or gin)	same as above	26c
began drinking alcoholic beverages regularly, that is, at least once or twice a month?	same as above	26d
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Early Initiation of Antisocial Behavior	•	
How old were you when you first:		
got suspended from school?	Never, 10 or younger, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 or older	26f
		1

got arrested?	same as above	26g
carried a handgun?	same as above	26h
attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them?	same as above	26i
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Favorable Attitudes Toward Antisocial Behavior		
How wrong do you think it is for someone your age to		
take a handgun to school?	Very Wrong, Wrong, A Little Bit Wrong, Not Wrong at All	27a
steal anything worth more than \$5?	same as above	27b
pick a fight with someone?	same as above	27c
attack someone with the idea of seriously hurting them?	same as above	27d
stay away from school all day when their parents think they are at school?	same as above	27e
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Favorable Attitudes Toward Drug Use		
How wrong do you think it is for someone you age to:		
drink beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey or gin) regularly?	Very Wrong, Wrong, A Little Bit Wrong, Not Wrong at All	27f
smoke cigarettes?	same as above	27g
smoke marijuana?	same as above	27h
use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or another illegal drug?	same as above	27i

PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Intentions to Use		
Sometimes we don't know what we will do as adults, but we may have an idea. Please answer how t	rue these statements may be for you. WHEN I AM AN ADULT I WILL:	
smoke cigarettes.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	50a
drink beer, wine, or liquor.	same as above	50b
smoke marijuana.	same as above	50c
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Perceived Risks of Drug Use		
How much do you think people risk harming themselves (physically or in other ways) if they:		
Smoke one or more packs of cigarettes per day?	No Risk, Slight Risk, Moderate Risk, Great Risk	51a
Try marijuana once or twice?	same as above	51b
Smoke marijuana regularly?	same as above	51c
Take one or two drinks of an alcoholic beverage (beer, wine, liquor) nearly every day.	same as above	51d
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Interaction with Antisocial Peers		
Think of your four best friends. In the past year, how many of your best friends have:		
been suspended from school?	None, 1, 2, 3, 4	24h
carried a handgun?	same as above	24j
sold illegal drugs?	same as above	24k

stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle?	same as above	24m
been arrested?	same as above	24n
dropped out of school?	same as above	240
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Friends' Use of Drugs		
Think of your four best friends. In the past year, how many of your best friends have:		
smoked cigarettes?	0, 1, 2, 3, 4	24b
tried beer, wine or hard liquor (for example, vodka, whiskey or gin) regularly?	same as above	24c
used marijuana?	same as above	24e
used LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or another illegal drug?	same as above	24g
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Sensation Seeking	·	
How many times have you done the following things?		
Done what feels good no matter what.	Never, I've done it but not in the past year, Less than once a month, About once a month, 2 or 3 times a month, Once a week	29a
	or more	
Done something dangerous because someone dared you to do it.	same as above	29b
Done crazy things even if they are a little dangerous.	same as above	29c

PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Rewards for Antisocial Involvement			
What are the chances you would be seen as cool if you:			
smoked cigarettes?	No or Very Little Chance Very Good Chance	e, Little Chance, Some Chance, Pretty Good Chance,	25a
began drinking alcoholic beverages regularly, that is, at least once or twice a month?	same as above		25c
used marijuana?	same as above		25e
carried a handgun?	same as above		25f
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Gang Involvement			
Think of your four best friends (the friends you feel closest to).			
In the past year (12 months), how many of your best friends have been members of a gang?		0, 1, 2, 3, 4	24p
Have you ever belonged to a gang?		No; No, but would like to; Yes, in the past; Yes, belong now; Yes, but would like to get out	32
If you have ever belonged to a gang, did that gang have a name?		No, Yes, I have never belonged to a gang	33
How old were you when you first belonged to a gang?		Never, 10 or younger,11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 or older	26j
PEER/INDIVIDUAL: Depressive Symptoms			
Sometimes I think that life is not worth it.	NO!, no, yes, YES!		44
At times I think I am no good at all.	same as above		45
All in all, I am inclined to think that I am a failure.	same as above		46
In the past year have you felt depressed or sad MOST days, even if you felt OK sometimes.	same as above		47

PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Religiosity		
How often do you attend religious services or activities?	Never, Rarely, 1-2 Times a Month, About Once a Week or More	38
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Social Skills		
You're looking at CD's in a music store with a friend. You look up and see her slip and CD under her	Ignore her, Grab a CD and leave the store, Tell her to put the CD back, Act	34
coat. She smile and says "Which one do you want? Go ahead, take it while nobody's around. "There is	like it's a joke and ask her to put the CD back	
nobody in sight, no employees and no other customers. What would you do now?		
It's 8:00 on a week night and you are about to go over to a friend's home when your mother asks you	Leave the house anyway, Explain what you are going to do with your friends,	37
where you are going. You say "Oh, just going to go hang out with some friends. "She says, "No, you'll	tell her when you'd get home, and ask if you can go out, Not say anything	
just get into trouble if you go out. Stay home tonight. "What would you do now?	and start watching TV, Get into an argument with her	

You are visiting another part of town, and you don't know any of the people your age there. You are walking down the street, and some teenager you don't know is walking toward you. He is about your size, and as he is about to pass you, he deliberately bumps into you and you almost lose your balance. What would you say or do?	Push the person back, Say "Excuse me" and keep on walking, Say "Watch where you're going" and keep on walking, Swear at the person and walk away	35
You are at a party at someone's house, and one of your friends offers you a drink containing alcohol. What would you say or do?	Drink it; Tell your friend "No thanks, I don't drink" and suggest that you and your friend go and do something else; Just say "No, thanks" and walk away; Make up a good excuse, tell your friend you had something else to do, and leave	36
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Belief in Moral Order	·	
I think it is okay to take something without asking if you can get away with it.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	49
I think sometimes it's okay to cheat at school.	same as above	42
It is all right to beat up people if they start the fight.	same as above	48
It is important to be honest with your parents, even if they become upset or you get punished.	same as above	130
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Prosocial Involvement		
How many times in the past year (12 months) have you		
participated in clubs, organizations and activities at school?	Never 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+	30e
done extra work on your own for school?	Same as above	30g
volunteered to do community service?	Same as above	30j
PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Rewards for Prosocial Involvement	·	
What are the chances you would be seen as cool if you:		
worked hard in school?	Very good change, Pretty good chance, Some chance, Little chance, No or very little chance	25b
defended someone who was being verbally abused at school?	Same as above	25d
regularly volunteered to do community service?	Same as above	25g

PEER-INDIVIDUALS: Interaction with Prosocial Peers Think of your four best friends. In the past year, how many of your best friends have: participated in clubs, organizations and activities at school? 0, 1, 2, 3, 4 24a made the commitment to stay drug-free? Same as above 24d tried to do well in school? Same as above 24f liked school? Same as above 24i 24 regularly attended religious services? Same as above

DRUG USE OUTCOMES		
Have you ever used smokeless tobacco (chew, snuff, plug, dipping tobacco, chewing tobacco)?	Never; Once or twice; Once in a while but not regularly; Regularly in the past: Regularly now	76
How often have you taken smakeless tobacco during the past 30 days?	Not at all Once or twice Once or twice per week. Three to five	77
The past so days:	times per week. About once a day. More than once a day.	<i>''</i>
	times per week, About once a day, wore than once a day	
Have you ever smoked cigarettes?	Never; Once or twice; Once in a while but not regularly;	78
	Regularly in the past; Regularly now	
How frequently have you smoked cigarettes during the past 30 days?	Not at all, Less than 1 cigarette per day, 1 to 5 cigs per day,	79
	About 1 half pack per day, About 1 pack per day, About 1 and 1	
	half packs per day, 2 or more packs per day	
On how many occasions (if any) have you had alcoholic beverages (beer, wine or hard liquor) to drink in your	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-39, 40 or more	52
lifetime - more than just a few sips?		
On how many occasions (if any) have you had beer, wine or hard liquor during the past 30 days?	same as above	53
Think back over the last two weeks. How many times have you had five or more alcoholic drinks in a row?	None, Once, Twice, 3-5 times, 6-9 times, 10 or more times	75
On how many occasions (if any) have you been drunk or very high from drinking alcoholic beverages during the past	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-39, 40+	74
30 days?		
On how many occasions (if any) have you used marijuana in your lifetime?	same as above	54
On how many occasions (if any) have you used marijuana during the past 30 days?	same as above	55
During the last month, about how many marijuana cigarettes, or the equivalent, did you smoke a day, on the	None, Less than 1 a day, 1 a day, 2-3 a day, 4-6 a day, 7-10 a	80
average?	day, 11 or more a day	
On how many occasions (if any) have you used LSD or other psychedelics in your lifetime?	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-39, 40+	56
On how many occasions (if any) have you used LSD or other psychedelics during the past 30 days?	same as above	57
On how many occasions (if any) have you used cocaine or crack in your lifetime?	same as above	58
On how many occasions (if any) have you used cocaine or crack during the past 30 days?	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-39, 40 or more	59
On how many occasions (if any) have you sniffed glue, breathed the contents of an aerosol spray can, or inhaled	same as above	60
other gases or sprays, in order to get high in your lifetime?		

On how many occasions (if any) have you sniffed glue, breathed the contents of an aerosol spray can, or inhaled	same as above	61
other gases or sprays, in order to get high during the past 30 days?		

On how many occasions (if any) have you used stimulants other than methamphetamines (such as amphetamines, Ritalin or Dexedrine)	same as above	68
without a doctor telling you to take them in your lifetime?		
On how many occasions (if any) have you used stimulants other than methamphetamines (such as amphetamines, Ritalin or Dexedrine)	same as above	69
without a doctor telling you to take them in the past 30 days?		
On how many occasions (if any) have you used sedatives (tranquilizers, such as Valium or Xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pills) without a	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-	64
doctor telling you to take them in your lifetime?	39, 40+	
On how many occasions (if any) have you used sedatives (tranquilizers, such as Valium or Xanax, barbiturates, or sleeping pills) without a	same as above	65
doctor telling you to take them in the past 30 days?		
On how many occasions (if any) have you used methamphetamines (meth, speed, crank, crystal meth) in your lifetime?	0 occasions, 1-2, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-	66
	39, 40+	
On how many occasions (if any) have you used methamphetamines (meth, speed, crank, crystal meth) in the past 30 days?	same as above	67
On how many occasions (if any) have you used heroin in your lifetime?	same as above	70
On how many occasions (if any) have you used heroin in the past 30 days?	same as above	71
On how many occasions (if any) have you used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) in your lifetime?	same as above	72
On how many occasions (if any) have you used MDMA ('X', 'E', or ecstasy) in the past 30 days?	same as above	73
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior	1	
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you		
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19,	30a
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+	30a
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above	30a 30b
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above same as above same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30d
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above same as above same as above same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30f
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30h
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school taken a handgun to school?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30i 30k
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school taken a handgun to school?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+ same as above same as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30i 30k
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school taken a handgun to school? ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS It is important to think before you act.	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+same as abovesame as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30i 30k 43
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school taken a handgun to school? ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS It is important to think before you act. How old were you when you first:	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+same as abovesame as above	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30i 30k 43
OUTCOME: Antisocial Behavior How many times in the past year (12 months) have you been suspended from school? carried a handgun? sold illegal drugs? stolen or tried to steal a motor vehicle such as a car or motorcycle? been arrested? attacked someone with the idea of seriously hurting them? been drunk or high at school taken a handgun to school? ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS It is important to think before you act. How old were you when you first: used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze)?	Never, 1 or 2 times, 3-5, 6-9, 10-19, 20-29, 30-39, 40+same as abovesame as aboveNO!, no, yes, YES!Never, 10 or younger, 11, 12, 13, 14,	30a 30b 30c 30d 30f 30h 30i 30k 43 26e

At school during the past 12 months, did you receive help from the resource teacher, speech therapist or other special education teacher?	No, Yes	28
Are you currently on probation, or assigned a probation officer with Juvenile Court?	No, Yes	31
Sometimes we don't know what we will do as adults, but we may have an idea. Please a	answer how true these statements may be for you. WHEN I AM AN ADULT I WILL:	
use LSD, cocaine, amphetamines or another illegal drug.	NO!, no, yes, YES!	50d
How much do you think people risk harming themselves (physically or in other ways) if t	hey:	
Have five or more drinks once or twice each weekend?	No Risk, Slight Risk, Moderate Risk, Great Risk	51e
On how many occasions (if any) have you used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze) in your lifetime?	same as above	62
On how many occasions (if any) have you used phenoxydine (pox, px, breeze) in the past 30 days?	same as above	63
Have you attended a RAVE party?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	141
Have you used drugs while attending a RAVE party?	NO!, no, yes, YES!	142
Think of your four best friends. In the past year, how many of your best friends have:		
attended a RAVE party?	0, 1, 2, 3, 4	143a
used drugs while at a RAVE party?	0, 1, 2, 3, 4	143b
If you drank alcohol (not just a sip or taste) in the past year, how did you usually get it? Select the one best answer.	I did not drink alcohol in the past year, I bought it myself with a fake ID, I bought it myself without a fake ID, I got it from someone I know age 21 or older, I got it from someone I know under age 21, I got it from my brother or sister, I got it from home with my parents' permission, I got it from home without my parents' permission, I got it from another relative, A stranger bought it for me, I took it from a store or shop, Other	81
If you drank alcohol (not just a sip or taste) in the past year, where did you usually drink it? Select the one best answer.	I did not drink alcohol in the past year, at my home; at someone else's home; at an open area like a park, beach, back road, or a street corner; at a sporting event or concert; at a restaurant, bar, or a nightclub; at an empty building or a construction site; at a hotel/motel; in a car	82

If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff or drag) in the past year, how did you usually get them? Select the one best answer.	I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year, I bought them myself with a fake ID, I bought them myself without a fake ID, I got them from someone I know age 18 or older, I got them from someone I know under age 18, I got them from my brother or sister, I got them from home with my parents' permission, I got them from home without my parents' permission, I got them from another relative, A stranger bought them for me, I took them from a store or shop, Other	83
If you smoked cigarettes (not just a puff or drag) in the past year, where did you usually smoke them? Select the one best answer.	I did not smoke cigarettes in the past year, at my home; at someone else's home; at an open area like a park, beach, back road, or a street corner; at a sporting event or concert; at a restaurant, bar, or a nightclub; at an empty building or a construction site; at a hotel/motel; in a car	84

Appendix D: Item D	ictionary
--------------------	-----------

FINAL QUESTION		
How honest were you in filling out this survey?	I was very honest; I was honest pretty much of the time; I was honest some of the time; I was honest once	144
	in a while; I was not honest at all	

Risk and Protective Factor Scales and Profiles

Many of the questions on the APNA Survey have been combined into risk and protective factor scales. This allows the information contained in items that measure the same type of information to be summarized as a scale score. All of the scales are scored so that the higher the score, the greater the risk for risk factors and the greater the protection for protective factors.

The risk and protective factor model for adolescent social problems provides a method of measuring levels of risk and protection. Once the areas of highest risk and the areas of lowest protection are identified, they can be addressed by programs designed to reduce levels of risk and increase levels of protection. The decreases in risk and increases in protection will ultimately result in a reduction of the rate of youth problem behaviors. After the prevention programs have been implemented, the risk and protective factor levels can again be measured to determine the effectiveness of the intervention.

The questions on the survey have been divided into 26 risk factor scales and 13 protective factor scales. A new risk factor scale that measures intention to use ATODs was added in 2005 to the survey and three protective factors (Interaction with Prosocial Peers, Prosocial Involvement, and Rewards for Prosocial Involvement) were added to the survey in 2004. An item dictionary that lists the risk and protective factor scales and the questions they contain can be found in Appendix D.

In order to make the results of the 2007 APNA Survey more usable, risk and protective profiles have been developed that show the percentage of youth at-risk and the percentage of youth with protection on each scale. The profiles allow a comparison between the percentage of youth at-risk for the state of Arkansas and specific areas within the state. Also, each report presents data from 2006 and 2007 APNA Surveys, allowing the state, schools, counties and regions to identify changing rates over time. Profiles have been prepared for counties, regions, school districts, and individual schools.

Interpreting Risk and Protective Factor Profile Reports

In 2002, a profile report was developed to help disseminate the results of the APNA Survey to a wider range of readers. The profile reports for the APNA Survey contain results from the previous and current administrations. The purpose of the report is to provide information to prevention planners that will allow them to begin planning prevention services for their areas. The profile reports contain information specific to a geographic area or population group and are designed to assist in prevention planning at the school, county, region, and state levels. This Appendix contains an example of a complete profile report (grades 6, 8, 10, and 12). Briefly, the report contains: a description of the Risk and Protective Factor Framework; a section on how to use the information provided in the report; substance use and antisocial behavior charts for grades 6, 8, 10, and 12; risk and protective factor charts for the four grades; school safety charts for the four grades; risk and protective factor definitions; and numeric tables that contain all of the data displayed in the charts.

An advantage of having the data available from the profile report is that the ATOD use, antisocial behavior, and the percentage of youth at risk and with protection provide a baseline that can be used to compare the results from future surveys. A community can determine whether it is becoming more or less at-risk in an area by comparing the survey results from one survey administration to the next. Through future student survey administrations, schools, communities, and regional and state agencies that deliver prevention services can effectively evaluate their prevention efforts and determine if those efforts are having the desired effect of reducing risk and increasing protection among youth. These changes in risk and protection will, hopefully, result in

the reduction of the level of youth problem behaviors in the community.

For more information on the APNA Survey, how to conduct a student survey in your community, the risk and protective factor model of prevention, resource allocation, prevention's best practices, and program evaluation, contact the Office of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention at (501) 686-9030.



Contents

S	ŝ	4	Ŋ	9	42	43	43	45		3 S	4	33	34	35	35	35	36	36	36	37	38	39	39
	•						•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
	•						:	:		•	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:
	•						•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
	•						:	:		•	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:
	•				S		•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
					E																		
	•				5		:	:		:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:	:
	•				AS		•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
					E																		
	•				2		:	•		:	:	:	•	•	•	•	:	:	•	•	•	•	:
	•				RE		•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•	ays	ŝ	H	•	•	•	•	
	•				Q		•	•		•	•	•	•	•	ime.	Q	ette	Yea	•	•	•	•	otal
					I		:			:	:	:	•	:	fet	30	gar	st.	•	•	:	•	Ĕ
	•				AL		•	:		•	:	:	•	:	Ē	ast	ΰĨ	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{a}}$:	÷	:	J	- T
	•		T		Ř		•	•		•	•	•	ed)	•	leii	е	nd	che	•	•	S	avic.	Mic
	on	78	DA		00		:	:			:	•	inu	:	Ē	th	ol a:	E.	:	:	sue	eh£	eh£
	mti	Ž	۲.		Ř			:		•	:	:	ont	N e	Ë.	Ë.	ohc	or	•	•	v Is] B	, B
	eve	Z	E				•	•		•	•	•	Ŭ	ILVE	Dur	Dur	Alc	avi	г	•	fet	cia	cia
	\mathbf{P}_{1}	Z	R		E E		:	:			:	on	on	$\mathbf{S}_{\mathbf{U}}$	I S	S I	of	3eh	tion		Sa	tisc	tisc
	l of	LA			6		:	:		•	:	liti	niti	the	OD	OD	se	al I	tec		loc	An	An
	ode	С,	U U		ਰ		•	•		•	•	efir	efir	g	AT	AT	D /) Ci	² ro	lsi\$	Sche	م	بح
	M	<u> </u>	Ž	70	SC		:	:		•	:	D	D	lete	g	g	avy	tise	ы 1	<u>س</u>	50 50	aı	ar
	OI	A	S	E	S		•	:		S	:	cale	cale	du	Use	Use	He	An	tin	tin	tin	Use	Use
	act	E		AR		$\mathbf{\tilde{s}}$	STS	ts		ant	•	Š	Š	G	g	g	th	th	Iod	Iod	Iod	D	Ā
	ен	Z	z	Ħ	Ę	E S	ente	tac		ci <u>b</u>	:	stor	ctor	po	M	M	M.	M.	Re	Re	Re	2	2
	tiv		E	0	5	Z	Ŭ	Con		urti	:	Fac	Fac		lts	\mathbf{ts}	ıts	ıts	ıts	nts	lts	A'	Ā
	otec	SS	E	Ĥ	N	Z	rce	al		Ъ	•	ve	ve	\mathbf{nts}	der	der	der	der	der	der	der	irst	irst
z	Prc	E	\geq	H	N	2	nos	ona		of	:	scti	scti	dei	Stu	Stu	Stu	Stu	Stu	Stu	Stu	f FI	لتا ب
0	p	S	R	9	5		Re	lati	S	tics	sk	ote	ote	Stu	of	of	of	of	of	of	of	e o	e 0
E	ar	~	Ð	Ē		0	B	Z P	le	ris	Bi	P	Ъ	of	e G G	e G	e Be	e Be	e B G	e B G	e G G	Ag	Ag
Б	lisk	ō		2	SE .	E	ntio	ano	de	lcte	l at	pur	puq	er	nta	nta	nta	nta	nta	nta	nta	ee	ê
Q	еЪ		IC	2	Ę	- Z	eve	ate	Ĥ	ara	uth	k K	쏞	mb	[]	ICC	LCe]	LCe]	LCe]	LCe]	[]	era	era
RC	$\mathbf{T}\mathbf{h}$)LS	ŏ	\mathbf{N}	Ğ	- <u>S</u>	$P_{r($	${ m St}_{ m c}$	f	Ch	\mathbf{Y}_{0}	Ris	Ris	Nu	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{I}}}$	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{I}}}$	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{I}}}$	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{I}}}$	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{l}}}$	Pe_{B}	$\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{e}_{\mathbf{I}}}$	$\mathbf{A}\mathbf{v}$	Av
E		00	HO	6	RI	RE		2											_				
		Ē	Š	Η	D	Ъ	.9	6.5	ist		2	က	4	r0	9	2	∞	6	10	11	12	13	14
-		8	e	4	NO.	9			Ē														

Appendix E: Sample Profile Report and Selected Charts for Males Compared to Females

 \mathbf{S}

15	15 Percentage of Students Reporting Alcohol Use	40
16	16 Percentage of Students Reporting Cigarette Use	41
17	17 Core Measures by Grade	42
List	st of Figures	
1	ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 6	2
3	2 ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 8	∞
3	3 ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 10	6
4	4 ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 12	10
Ŋ	5 Risk Profile, Grade 6	11
9	3 Risk Profile, Grade 8	12
1-	7 Risk Profile, Grade 10	13
×	8 Risk Profile, Grade 12	14
6) Protective Profile, Grade 6	15
10	10 Protective Profile, Grade 8	16
11	11 Protective Profile, Grade 10	17
12	12 Protective Profile, Grade 12	18
13	13 School Safety Profile, Grade 6	19
14	14 School Safety Profile, Grade 8	19
15	15 School Safety Profile, Grade 10	20
16	16 School Safety Profile, Grade 12	20
17	17 No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 6	21
18	18 No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 8	22
19	19 No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 10	23
20	20 No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 12	24
21	21 Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 6	25
22	22 Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 8	26
23	23 Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 10	27

ŝ

282930 3231. • • . . . • • • . • • • . • . . . • • • • • • • • . . • . . • · • 12Sources and Places of Cigarette Use, Grade 10 Sources and Places of Cigarette Use, Grade 6 Sources and Places of Cigarette Use, Grade 8 Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 12 Sources and Places of Cigarette Use, Grade 2425 2627 28

4

App:56

all Arkansas public school districts that chose to participate. The survey was designed to assess adolescent substance use and related behaviors, and risk and protective factors that predict these behaviors. In this report, the results are This report summarizes findings from the Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey (APNA), a survey of 6th, 8th, 10th and 12th grade school students, conducted in the fall of 2007. This survey was available free of charge to presented for each grade along with the overall results for the State. Table 1 contains characteristics of the students who completed the survey.

Student Totals				
	State	2006	State	2007
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent
Total Students	66113		79598	100.0
# of Districts	194		208	100.0
# of Schools	508		570	100.0
Grade				
9	17539	26.5	22910	28.8
8	18080	27.3	22082	27.7
10	16833	25.5	19315	24.3
12	13661	20.7	15291	19.2
Gender				
Male	33507	51.7	37614	47.9
Female	31255	48.3	40835	52.1
Ethnicity				
Hispanic	5876	7.9	7386	8.3
Black	11149	15.0	14752	16.5
Asian	1175	1.6	1339	1.5
American Indian	3299	4.4	4041	4.5
Alaska Native	164	0.2	192	0.2
White	47346	63.6	54915	61.3
Native Hawaiian	447	0.6	487	0.5
Other	5016	6.7	6406	7.2

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

Table 1: Characteristics of Participants

 $\rm T_{0}^{-}$ The APNA Survey was first administered in the fall of 2002 and has been administered in the fall of each school Because trends over are very important to prevention cohol, tobacco and other drugs) use and els of risk and protective factors can be portant to note that the results in this report are for students who were not vey. Those students are now in grades gether, the results of the current and past APNA surveys provide a complete ior, risk, and protection for students in planning, readers are encouraged to review the results from the previous surveys. By comparing the results of the previous surveys, changes in ATOD (alrates of ASB (antisocial behavior), levdetermined for a specific grade. It is imsampled in the even grades (6, 8, 10, and 12) during the previous years' surpicture of ATOD use, antisocial behavof school. 9, 11 or are out year since then. Arkansas. time 7,

(Methods Note Regarding Long-Term Trend Data:) The 2006 procedures varied from those used in this report, as

well as those used in the 2005 and earlier reports. Non-standard procedures for calculating: 1) drug prevalence rates, and 2) for calculating scores on the risk and protective factor questions, were used in the 2006 report. The variation in 2006 procedures related to how missing data (i.e., instances where the student did not respond to a question) were counted. The effect of the 2006 procedure was to slightly reduce the reported prevalence levels for all drugs, and to ower the calculated scores for the risk and protective factor questions.

reports. In addition, to produce the most accurate long-term trend data possible, 2006 results have been recalculated using standard procedures consistent with all reporting years. This means that, in some cases, small deviations in In this report, the computational methods used for all calculations are identical to those used in the 2005 (and prior) 2006 data points will be noted between this report and the previous 2006 report.

The Risk and Protective Factor Model of Prevention 1.1

Just as medical researchers have found risk factors for heart attacks such as diets high in fats, lack of exercise, and Risk and protective factor-focused prevention is based on a simple premise: To prevent a problem from happening, we need to identify the factors that increase the risk of that problem developing and then find ways to reduce the risks. smoking, a team of researchers, the Social Development Research Group (SDRG), at the University of Washington

S

The research team also found that some children exposed to multiple risk factors manage to avoid behavior problems later even though they were exposed to the same risks as children Based on research, they identified protective factors and processes that work together to buffer children from the effects of high risk exposure and lead to the development of healthy behaviors. have defined a set of risk factors for drug abuse. who exhibited behavior problems.

include characteristics of school, community, and family environments, as well as characteristics of students and their peer groups that are known to predict increased likelihood of drug use, delinquency, and violent behaviors among youth (Hawkins, Catalano & Miller, 1992; Hawkins, Arthur & Catalano, 1995; Brewer, Hawkins, Catalano & Neckerman, 1995). factors Risk

AND PLANNING ASSESSMENT FOR TOOLS 2

Protective factors exert a positive influence or buffer against the negative influence of risk, thus reducing the likelihood that adolescents will engage in problem behaviors. Protective factors identified through research reviewed by the Social Development Research Group include social bonding to family, school, community and peers; and healthy beliefs and clear standards for behavior.

portant implications for prevention efforts. The mote positive youth development and prevent address tion, specific risk factors that are elevated and prove academic performance, and also increase premise of this approach is that in order to prosuring risk and protective factors in a populaand targeted by lated protective factors. For example, if aca-Research on risk and protective factors has imthose factors that predict the problem. By meapreventive interventions that also promote redemic failure is identified as an elevated risk factor in a community, then mentoring and tutoring interventions can be provided that will imopportunities and rewards for classroom particproblem behaviors, it is necessary to widespread can be identified ipation. Risk and protective factor-focused drug abuse prevention is based on the work of J. David Hawkins, Ph.D., Richard F. Catalano, Ph.D.; and a team of researchers at the University of Washington in Seattle. Beginning in the early 1980's, the group researched adolescent problem behaviors and identified risk factors for adoles

Risk	
at	
Youth	
Table 2:	

	Ч	ROBL	EM BEH	HAVIOR	S
YOUTH AT RISK	Substance Substance	VənənpniləD	Pregnancy Teen	School Drop-Out	sonsloiV
Community					
Availability of Drugs and Firearms	>				>
Community Laws and Norms Favorable	>				
Toward Drug Use				`	
Iransitions and Mobility	>	>		>	
Low Neighborhood Attachment and	>	>			>
Community Disorganization		•			•
Extreme Economic and Social Deprivation	>	>	>	>	>
Family					
Family History of High Risk Behavior	>	>	>	>	
Family Management Problems	>	>	>	>	>
Family Conflict	>	>	>	>	>
Favorable Parental Attitudes and					`
Involvement in the Problem Behavior	>	>			>
School					
Early and Persistent Antisocial Behavior	>	>	>	>	>
Academic Failure in Elementary School	>	>	>	>	>
Lack of Commitment to School	>	>	>	>	
Individual/Peer			_		
Alienation and Rebelliousness	>	>		>	
Friends Who Engage in a Problem Behavior	>	>	>	>	>
Favorable Attitudes Toward the Problem	>	>	>	>	
Behavior			,	,	
Early Initiation of the Problem Behavior	>	>	>	>	>

The chart above shows the links between the 16 risk factors and the five problem behaviors. The check marks have been placed in the chart to indicate where at least two well designed, published research studies have shown a link between the risk factor and behaviors and identified risk factors for adolescent drug abuse and delinquency. the problem behavior.

9

Data from the Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment Survey can be used to help school and community planners assess current conditions and prioritize areas of greatest need. protective factor can be linked to specific types of interventions that have been shown to be effective in either reducing the risk(s) and enhancing the protection(s). The steps outlined below will help your school and community make key decisions regarding allocation of resources, how and when to address specific needs, and which strategies are most effective and known to produce results. Each risk and

What are the numbers telling you?

Review the charts and data tables presented in this report. Using the table on the next page, note your findings as you discuss the following questions

- Which 3 to 5 risk factors appear to be higher than you would want?
- Which 3 to 5 protective factors appear to be lower than you would want? •
- Which levels of 30 day drug use are increasing and/or unacceptably high? •
- Which substances are your students using the most?
- At which grades do you see unacceptable usage levels?
- Which levels of antisocial behaviors are increasing and/or unacceptably high?

•

- Which behaviors are your students exhibiting the most?
- At which grades do you see unacceptable behavior levels?

How to decide if a rate is "unacceptable."

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

- Look across the charts to determine which items stand out as either much higher or much lower than the others. •
- Compare your data to statewide data and national data. Differences of 5% or more between the local and other data should be carefully reviewed. •
- Determine the standards and values held in your area. For example: Is it acceptable in your community for 75%of high school students to drink alcohol regularly even when the statewide percentage is 90? ٠

Use these data for planning:

- Substance use and antisocial behavior data raise awareness about the problems and promote dialogue. •
- Risk and protective factor data identify exactly where the community needs to take action. •
- about programs that have been proven effective in addressing the risk factors that are high in your area, and in improving the Promising approaches - talk with resources listed on the last page of this report for ideas protective factors that are low. ٠

	cceptable	Unacceptable	Unacceptable	Unacceptable
Measure	e #1	Rate $#2$	Rate $#3$	Rate $#4$
30 day drug use				
Antisocial behavior				
Risk factors				
Protective factors				

- Strategies should be selected based on the risk factors that are high in your community and the protective factors that are low.
- Strategies should be age appropriate and employed prior to the onset of the problem behavior. •
- Strategies chosen should address more than a single risk and protective factor. •
- No single strategy offers the solution.

How do I know whether or not the intervention was effective?

Participation in the annual administration of the survey provides trend data necessary for determining the effectiveness of the implemented intervention(s) and also provides data for determining any new efforts that are needed. •

4 HOW TO READ THE CHARTS

- Student responses for risk and protective factors, substance use and antisocial behavior questions are displayed by grade on the following pages. ÷
- The factors are grouped into 4 domains: community, family, peer-individual, and school. сi
- The bars represent the percent of students in the grade who reported elevated risk or protection, substance use, antisocial behaviors or school safety concerns. с. С
- Scanning across these charts, you can easily determine which factors are most (or least) prevalent, thus identifying which are the most important for your community to address. 4
- Bars will be complemented by a small dot. The dot shows the comparison from the state and provides additional information for you in determining the relative importance of each risk or protective factor. ы.
- group were Colorado, Illinois, Kansas, Maine, Oregon, Utah and Washington. This gives you a comparison to a for the seven state sample upon which the cut-points were developed. The seven states included in the norm A dashed line on each risk and protective factor chart represents the percentage of youth at risk or with protection national sample. 6.
- Brief definitions of the risk and protective factors can be found following the graphs. 2
- Actual percentages are provided in the data tables following the charts. ø.



App:60

Figure 1: ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 6 9



Figure 2: ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 8 10



App:62

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

Figure 3: ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 10 11



Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

App:63

Figure 4: ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior, Grade 12 12



App:64

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E



Community Family Peer / Individual School

RISK PROFILE, GRADE 10 2007 Arkansas

2



Figure 7: Risk Profile, Grade 10 15





App:68

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

Figure 9: Protective Profile, Grade 6 17



Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E



App:70

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E


Figure 12: Protective Profile, Grade 12 20

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

PROTECTIVE PROFILE, GRADE 12 2007 Arkansas



21



22

Appendix E: Sample Profile Report and Selected Charts for Males Compared to Females Avg Age of First ATOD Use of Those Who Used... Avg Age of First Antisocial Behavior of Those Who...



State 2007

Figure 17: No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 6 23

App:74

NO CHILD LEFT BEHIND PROFILE, GRADE 8 2007 Arkansas



Figure 18: No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 8 24



Figure 19: No Child Left Behind Profile, Grade 10 25





Figure 21: Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 6 27





Figure 23: Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 10 29



Figure 24: Sources and Places of Alcohol Use, Grade 12 30



App:82





App:84

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E



Community and Personal Transitions & Mobility	Neighborhoods with high rates of residential mobility have been shown to have higher rates of inventle crime and drug selling while children who exnemience frequent residential moves and
	stressful life transitions have been shown to have higher risk for school failure, delinquency, and
	drug use.
Community	Research has shown that neighborhoods with high population density, lack of natural surveillance
Disorganization	of public places, physical deterioration, and high rates of adult crime also have higher rates of juvenile crime and drug selling.
Low Neighborhood Attachment	A low level of bonding to the neighborhood is related to higher levels of juvenile crime and drug selling.
Laws and Norms	Research has shown that leval restrictions on alcohol and tobacco use such as raising the leval
Favorable Toward	drinking age, restricting smoking in public places, and increased taxation have been followed by
Drug Use	decreases in consumption. Moreover, national surveys of high school seniors have shown that shifts
	in normative attitudes toward drug use have preceded changes in prevalence of use.
Perceived Availability of	The availability of cigarettes, alcohol, marijuana, and other illegal drugs has been related to the
Di ugo anu manuguno	use of these substances by addresentes. The availability of naturguis is also related to a inglici tion of crime and substance use by addlescents.
	Community Domain Protective Factors
Opportunities for	When opportunities are available in a community for positive participation, children are less likely
Positive Involvement	to engage in substance use and other problem behaviors.
Rewards for Positive	Rewards for positive participation in activities help children bond to the community, thus lowering
Involvement	their risk for substance use. Family Domain Risk Factors
Family History of	When children are raised in a family with a history of problem behaviors (e.g., violence or ATOD
Antisocial Behavior	use), the children are more likely to engage in these behaviors.
Family Conflict	Children raised in families high in conflict, whether or not the child is directly involved in the
	connict, appear at risk for both deinquency and drug use.
Farental Attitudes Favorable Toward	In tamines where parents use lilegal drugs, are neavy users of alcohol, or are tolerant of children's use children are more likely to herome drug shusers during adolecence. The risk is further
Antisocial Behavior &	increased if parents involve children in their own drug (or alcohol) using hehavior for example
Drugs	asking the child to light the parent's cigarette or get the parent a beer from the refrigerator.
Poor Family	Parents' use of inconsistent and/or unusually harsh or severe punishment with their children
Management	places them at higher risk for substance use and other problem behaviors. Also, parents' failure
	to provide clear expectations and to monitor their children's behavior makes it more likely that
	Family Domain Protective Factors
Family Attachment	Young people who feel that they are a valued part of their family are less likely to engage in
	substance use and other problem behaviors.
Opportunities for Desitive Involvement	Young people who are exposed to more opportunities to participate meaningfully in the respon- sibilities and activities of the family are less likely to answe in drug use and other problem
	behaviors and activities of the family are ress likely to engage in thing use and other problem behaviors.
Rewards for Positive	When parents, siblings, and other family members praise, encourage, and attend to things done
Involvement	well by their child, children are less likely to engage in substance use and problem behaviors.
-	School Domain Risk Factors
Academic Failure	Beginning in the late elementary grades (grades 4-6) academic failure increases the risk of both
	drug abuse and deinquency. It appears that the experience of failure itself, for whatever reasons, increases the risk of mobilem habouriers
T	nucreases the risk of problem behaviors. Gummers of high school contains have shown that the use of hellinging many groups change of invitants.
to School	and sedatives or non-medically prescribed tranquilizers is significantly lower among students who
	expect to attend college than among those who do not. Factors such as liking school, spending
	time on homework, and perceiving the coursework as relevant are also negatively related to drug
	use.

	SCHOOL DOMAIN FLORECIVE FACTORS
Opportunities for Positive Involvement	When young people are given more opportunities to participate meaningfully in important activ- ities at school, they are less likely to engage in drug use and other problem behaviors.
Rewards for	When young people are recognized and rewarded for their contributions at school, they are less
Positive Involvement	likely to be involved in substance use and other problem behaviors.
	Peer-Individual Risk Factors
Early Initiation	Early onset of drug use predicts misuse of drugs. The earlier the onset of any drug use, the greater
of Antisocial Behavior	the involvement in other drug use and the greater frequency of use. Onset of drug use prior to
and Drug Use	the age of 15 is a consistent predictor of drug abuse, and a later age of onset of drug use has been
	shown to predict lower drug involvement and a greater probability of discontinuation of use
Attitudes Favorable	During the elementary school years, most children express anti-drug, anti-crime, and pro-social
Toward Antisocial	attitudes and have difficulty imagining why people use drugs or engage in antisocial behaviors.
Behavior and	However, in middle school, as more youth are exposed to others who use drugs and engage in
Drug Use	antisocial behavior, their attitudes often shift toward greater acceptance of these behaviors. Youth who express positive attitudes toward drug use and antisocial behavior are more likely to engage
	in a variety of problem behaviors, including drug use.
Friends' Use of Drugs	Young people who associate with peers who engage in alcohol or substance abuse are much more
	likely to engage in the same behavior. Peer drug use has consistently been found to be among
	the strongest predictors of substance use among youth. Even when young people come from well- managed families and do not evnemiance other risk factors snanding time with friends who use
	drugs greatly increases the risk of that problem developing.
Interaction with	Young people who associate with peers who engage in problem behaviors are at higher risk for
Antisocial Peers	engaging in antisocial behavior themselves.
Perceived Risk of	Young people who do not perceive drug use to be risky are far more likely to engage in drug use.
Drug Use	
Rewards for	Young people who receive rewards for their antisocial behavior are at higher risk for engaging
Antisocial Behavior	further in antisocial behavior and substance use.
Rebelliousness	Young people who do not feel part of society, are not bound by rules, don't believe in trying to be
	successful or responsible, or who take an active rebellious stance toward society, are at higher risk
	of abusing drugs. In addition, high tolerance for deviance, a strong need for independence and
	normlessness have all been linked with drug use.
Sensation Seeking	Young people who seek out opportunities for dangerous, risky behavior in general are at higher
	risk for participating in drug use and other problem benaviors.
Intention to Use ATODs	Many prevention programs focus on reducing the intention of participants to use ATODs later in life. Reduction of intention to use ATODs often follows successful prevention interventions.
Depressive Symptoms	Young people who are depressed are overrepresented in the criminal justice system and are more
	likely to use drugs. Survey research and other studies have shown a link between depression and
	other youth problem behaviors.
Gang Involvement	Youth who belong to gangs are more at risk for antisocial behavior and drug use.
	Peer-Individual Protective Factors
Religiosity	Young people who regularly attend religious services are less likely to engage in problem behaviors.
Social Skills	Young people who are socially competent and engage in positive interpersonal relations with their
	peers are less likely to use drugs and engage in other problem behaviors.
Belief in the Moral Order	Young people who have a belief in what is "right" or "wrong" are less likely to use drugs.
Opportunities for	Participation in positive school and community activities helps provide protection for youth.
Prosocial Involvement	
Rewards for	Young people who are rewarded for working hard in school and volunteering in the community are
Prosocial involvement	less likely to engage in problem behavior.
Interaction with Duccorial Doore	Young people who associate with peers who engage in prosocial behavior are more protected from
1 10201141 1 2213	cheaging in antisocial Denaviol and substance use.

36

Survey
$_{\mathrm{the}}$
npleted
Con
Who
Students
$_{\rm of}$
Number
Table 5:

	Grac	le 6	Grac	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Surveys Completed	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Number of Youth	17539	22910	18080	22082	16833	19315	13661	15291

Table 6: Percentage of Students Who Used ATODs During Their Lifetime

	Gra	de 6	Grae	de 8	Grad	le 10	Grad	e 12
Drug Used	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Alcohol	19.4	17.7	40.7	41.0	62.4	62.1	72.5	71.9
Cigarettes	13.2	10.8	28.8	26.8	43.3	40.0	51.3	49.7
Chewing Tobacco	7.6	6.1	14.5	13.5	22.2	19.6	25.1	23.2
Marijuana	2.5	1.5	10.7	9.5	25.5	23.4	34.9	34.8
Hallucinogens	0.5	0.2	1.5	0.7	3.4	2.0	4.7	4.0
Cocaine	0.9	0.4	2.2	1.2	4.3	2.4	6.5	5.0
Inhalants	9.3	9.3	15.4	16.0	16.4	14.9	13.2	12.0
Sedatives	5.3	4.9	10.7	10.2	18.6	16.6	22.4	20.2
Meth	0.8	0.4	1.9	1.2	4.0	2.1	5.0	3.4
Stimulants	0.9	0.5	2.6	1.6	6.3	4.6	7.9	6.9
Heroin	0.7	0.3	1.1	0.6	2.0	1.1	2.6	2.0
Ecstasy	0.6	0.2	1.9	1.2	4.6	3.4	6.5	5.4
Any Drug	13.2	13.2	24.8	25.0	36.7	35.0	42.7	42.3

V.S
Ę,
р
0
က
\mathbf{st}
a.
д
le
t,
60
Е.
П
รี
Ξ
\tilde{O}
Ξ
2
7
4
2
<u> </u>
1 2
\sim
] Q
/ho (
Who U
s Who U
nts Who U
lents Who U
udents Who U
students Who U
Students Who U
of Students Who U
e of Students Who U
ge of Students Who U
tage of Students Who U
entage of Students Who U
centage of Students Who U
ercentage of Students Who U
Percentage of Students Who U
: Percentage of Students Who U
7: Percentage of Students Who U
le 7: Percentage of Students Who U
ble 7: Percentage of Students Who U
Table 7: Percentage of Students Who U

	Grae	de 6	Grao	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Drug Used	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Alcohol	5.1	3.6	16.4	15.5	31.9	30.3	42.5	40.3
Cigarettes	2.7	1.9	8.8	8.1	17.0	15.3	23.8	23.5
Chewing Tobacco	2.5	1.7	5.8	5.5	10.9	9.5	11.8	10.8
Marijuana	1.0	0.5	5.2	4.1	12.4	10.4	16.2	15.3
Hallucinogens	0.4	0.1	0.9	0.3	1.5	0.6	1.6	1.1
Cocaine	0.6	0.2	1.0	0.5	1.6	0.6	2.0	0.9
Inhalants	4.1	3.9	6.5	6.5	5.2	4.1	3.1	2.3
Sedatives	2.4	1.9	5.3	4.6	9.9	7.6	11.3	9.2
Meth	0.4	0.1	0.9	0.4	1.6	0.6	1.6	0.6
Stimulants	0.5	0.2	1.3	0.7	2.6	1.4	3.1	1.8
Heroin	0.3	0.1	0.6	0.2	1.0	0.3	1.0	0.6
Ecstasy	0.3	0.1	0.8	0.4	1.7	1.0	2.1	1.4
Any Drug	6.1	5.9	12.7	12.2	19.6	17.1	22.6	20.6

Table 8: Percentage of Students With Heavy Use of Alcohol and Cigarettes

	Grao	de 6	Grad	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Drug Used	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Binge Drinking	4.5	3.5	11.3	10.3	20.8	19.3	27.5	26.0
Pack of Cigarettes	0.3	0.1	1.0	0.7	2.3	1.8	3.5	3.1

Table 9: Percentage of Students With Antisocial Behavior in the Past Year

	Grad	de 6	Grao	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Behavior	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Suspended from School	10.0	11.1	15.8	16.6	14.8	14.8	11.4	10.6
Drunk or High at School	2.9	2.0	9.2	8.3	18.0	15.0	20.7	18.7
Sold Illegal Drugs	0.9	0.4	3.2	2.6	7.8	6.4	9.9	8.7
Stolen Vehicle	1.8	1.3	3.5	2.7	4.5	3.4	3.2	2.2
Been Arrested	2.6	2.2	6.1	5.7	8.8	7.4	8.2	7.1
Attacked to Harm	12.9	13.1	17.8	18.1	19.1	18.0	16.1	14.6
Carried a Handgun	4.8	4.0	6.0	5.3	6.9	6.0	6.8	5.7
Handgun to School	0.7	0.4	1.2	0.8	1.6	0.9	1.4	0.9

Protection
bſ
ortin
5
Ř
sudents
-75
01
of
Ο
60
ಹ
÷
E
Ð
U,
5
~
щ
÷
Ξ
e)
-
-9

	Crar	40.6	Grad	8 9	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 10
						- + - + J		
Protective Factor	State	State	State	State	State	State	State	State
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Community								
Opportunities for								
Prosocial Involvement	54.7	44.7	69.6	50.5	71.2	48.4	73.4	48.4
Rewards for								
Prosocial Involvement	48.2	51.7	42.2	43.3	47.5	49.3	48.3	48.4
Family								
Family Attachment	45.3	57.0	45.1	52.6	40.0	45.3	51.1	56.2
Opportunities for								
Prosocial Involvement	49.5	62.1	54.2	63.9	49.1	55.1	50.6	55.6
Rewards for								
Prosocial Involvement	43.1	55.8	53.7	64.2	48.0	54.7	48.7	54.4
School								
Opportunities for								
Prosocial Involvement	44.9	49.2	63.0	66.5	60.1	65.3	61.8	65.2
Rewards for								
Prosocial Involvement	56.0	58.9	55.3	56.1	62.7	64.5	49.1	50.0
Peer / Individual								
Religiosity	65.3	63.7	68.0	68.0	65.0	64.9	59.7	86.1
Social Skills	82.3	71.0	83.1	60.9	75.3	57.4	86.1	67.4
Belief in Moral Order	67.5	65.0	57.2	64.4	83.2	66.5	72.6	51.4
Interaction with								
Prosocial Peers	83.7	56.7	86.2	65.3	86.7	63.3	86.7	60.5
Prosocial Involvement	44.7	43.2	48.8	47.6	48.3	49.1	42.6	43.5
Rewards for								
Prosocial Involvement	62.1	63.2	68.1	69.8	62.5	64.1	53.9	53.9

Risk
leporting
of Students I
Percentage c
Table 11:

	Grae	de 6	Grae	le 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Risk Factor	State	State	State	State	State	State	State	State
Community	2004	2004	2007	1007	2004	1004	0004	1004
Low Neighborhood								
Attachment	41.1	44.3	33.9	36.2	40.5	41.6	42.7	45.3
Community	ļ			0		1		
Uisorganization	37.1	31.2	32.1	32.8	40.9	45.2	44.0	43.3
I ransitions and Mobility	51.2	52.6	53.4	56.6	58.1	60.5	49.5	49.6
Laws and Norms								
Favor Drug Use	63.4	41.0	25.9	34.9	18.4	40.9	9.8	33.6
Perceived Availability								
of Drugs	24.4	22.4	29.0	27.6	42.9	38.9	48.9	45.8
Perceived Availability of Handguns	25.1	25.7	37.2	39.3	33.1	33.1	38,8	38.7
Family								
Poor Family Management	31.2	35.0	33.0	38.7	35.7	37 F	37.0	30.6
Family Conflict	33.1	36.2	42.4	47.6	37.3	39.4	34.7	35.4
Family History of								
ASB	33.0	34.9	34.4	37.1	39.6	40.8	36.2	37.7
Parent Attitudes Favorable to ASB	13.1	32.7	24.6	45.3	39.7	50.1	50.3	48.4
Parent Attitudes								
Favorable to ATOD	29.6	13.3	40.1	27.0	47.8	41.7	28.4	41.4
				:	1	1		
Academic Failure	37.2	44.2	43.7	47.0	46.7	48.5	41.6	41.3
Low Commitment to School	50.9	42.0	31.4	35.3	31.2	39.5	38.3	42.2
Peer / Individual								
Rebelliousness	47.0	46.8	36.9	38.1	46.0	44.6	42.6	43.0
Early Initiation								
of ASB	25.7	25.9	35.9	37.3	41.4	40.6	40.1	39.1
Early Initiation of ATOD	00 0	75.4	16.3	787	34.4	37.4	55 4	33.0
Attitudes Favorable)			
to ASB	37.4	37.5	32.3	33.3	42.8	41.7	39.7	39.0
Attitudes Favorable	10.01	17.0	33 F	а <i>сс</i>	35 7	33 1	33 1	32.0
Perceived Risk of								
Drug Use	31.7	32.6	36.1	36.4	36.1	34.6	40.7	41.6
Interaction with								
Antisocial Peers	37.8	38.9	49.5	50.6	52.9	52.1	49.3	49.4
Friends' Use of Drugs	22.9	20.6	39.8	30.8	48.3	33.1	47.0	31.0
Sensation Seeking	53.5	50.6	50.1	49.6	50.2	48.4	51.1	50.5
Rewards for	L C	Ċ	u v c	7 7	C T	ţ	T L	C L
Antisocial Benavior	C.23.5	1.22	30.02	31.4	41.9	41.3	54.1	54.8
Depressive Symptoms	40.1	39.5	43.6	44.1	45.9	46.2	41.0	40.4
Intention to Use Drugs	36.2	35.3	26.7	26.4	40.2	38.3	28.7	28.7
Gang Involvement	9.8	20.2	9.7	21.5	9.6	25.7	5.8	22.7

dents Reporting School Safety
dents Reporting School
dents Reporting
dents
e of Stu
Percentag
able 12:

	Gra	de 6	Grad	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Response	State	State	State	State	State	State	State	State
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
I feel safe at my sch	ool.							
ion	5.7	6.2	8.4	8.2	9.2	9.4	7.3	6.8
ou	9.6	9.2	14.1	15.1	15.3	15.0	12.1	12.0
yes	37.9	37.4	49.2	49.3	54.4	54.3	54.8	55.6
YESI	46.9	47.1	28.3	27.4	21.0	21.3	25.9	25.5
How many times in	the past	have yo	u taken a	a handgu	in to sch	ool?		
Never	99.3	9.66	98.9	99.2	98.4	99.1	98.6	99.1
1-2 times	0.4	0.2	0.5	0.3	0.6	0.4	0.4	0.3
3-5 times	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.2	0.2	0.1
6-9 times	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1
10-19 times	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.1	0.2	0.1	0.2	0.1
20-29 times	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.0
30-39 times	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0
40+ times	0.1	0.0	0.2	0.1	0.4	0.2	0.4	0.2
How wrong do you t	think it i	s for son	neone yo	ur age to	o take a	handgun	to schoo	512
Very Wrong	92.6	93.3	87.0	86.7	86.6	87.1	90.2	90.3
Wrong	5.7	5.3	9.5	9.8	9.1	9.2	6.5	6.8
A Little Bit Wrong	1.0	0.9	2.3	2.6	2.9	2.6	2.1	2.0
Not Wrong at All	0.7	0.5	1.2	0.9	1.4	1.0	1.3	1.0
Have any of your br	others o	r sisters (ever take	en a hano	dgun to s	school?		
No	94.8	95.0	93.6	94.0	92.4	93.2	92.7	92.9
Yes	1.0	0.9	1.8	1.6	2.3	2.2	1.9	2.1
I don't have any								
brothers or sisters	4.2	4.1	4.6	4.4	5.3	4.7	5.4	5.0

or
.12
she
ğ
F
Ċi ⁵
Antisc
and
\mathbf{Use}
\cap
Ō
AT(
ב
irs
Ē
of
Age
e,
rag
ve
\triangleleft
13:
Ъ
q
Ĕ

Grao	le 6	Grac	de 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
State	State	State	State	State	State	State	State
2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
D Use o	of Those	Who Us	ed				
10.8	10.8	12.1	12.0	13.2	13.3	13.7	14.5
10.5	10.4	11.3	11.2	12.1	12.1	12.6	13.2
10.6	10.5	11.8	11.6	12.8	12.9	13.4	14.0
11.0	11.0	12.4	12.3	13.8	14.0	14.0	15.3
social B	ehavior o	f Those	Who				
10.7	10.5	11.9	11.6	12.6	12.5	12.9	13.4
11.1	10.9	12.4	12.3	13.4	13.6	13.5	15.0
10.9	10.8	11.9	11.7	12.6	12.8	12.7	14.1
10.8	10.7	12.0	11.7	12.8	12.8	12.9	13.7
11.1	11.0	12.2	12.2	12.8	13.1	12.5	13.7
	Grad State 2006 2006 0 Use 10.8 10.6 11.0 10.7 11.1 10.9 10.9 10.8 10.9 10.8 11.1	Grade 0 State State 2006 2007 2005 2007 2006 2007 2001 10.8 10.5 10.4 10.6 10.5 11.0 11.0 10.7 10.5 10.7 10.6 10.7 10.6 10.7 10.6 10.8 10.8 10.9 10.8 11.1 10.9 10.8 10.8 10.9 10.8 10.1 10.9 10.1 10.9 11.1 11.1	Grade 0 Grade 0 State State State 2006 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 ID Use of Those Who Us 10.8 10.8 12.1 10.6 10.5 11.3 11.0 11.0 12.4 11.0 11.0 12.4 11.0 11.0 12.4 11.1 10.5 11.8 11.1 10.5 11.8 11.1 10.5 11.9 10.7 10.5 11.9 10.8 10.8 11.9 11.1 10.9 12.4 10.8 10.8 11.9 10.8 10.7 12.4 10.8 10.7 12.0 10.8 10.7 12.0 10.8 10.7 12.0	Unade 0 Unade 0 State State State State 2006 2007 2006 2007 DUse of Those Vho Lsed: 10.8 10.8 12.1 12.0 10.6 10.5 11.3 11.2 11.0 11.0 12.4 12.3 11.0 11.0 12.4 12.3 11.0 11.0 12.4 12.3 social Behavior of Those Mho 11.6 11.1 10.9 12.4 12.3 10.7 10.5 11.9 11.6 11.1 10.9 12.4 12.3 10.7 10.8 11.9 11.7 10.8 10.8 11.9 11.7 10.8 10.7 12.3 11.7 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 10.1 11.0 12.2 12.2 10.1 <t< td=""><td>Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 State State State State State State 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 D Use of Those Who Usedition 11.2 2006 2007 2006 10.8 10.8 12.1 12.0 13.2 12.1 12.1 10.6 10.5 11.8 11.2 12.1 12.1 11.0 11.0 12.4 12.3 13.8 social Behavior<of td="" those<=""> Mho 12.6 12.6 11.1 10.9 12.4 12.3 13.4 10.7 10.8 11.9 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.9 12.4 12.3 13.4 10.9 10.8 11.9 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 12.6</of></td><td>Utrade 0 Utrade 0</td><td>Utade 0 Utade 0 <</td></t<>	Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 Otrade 0 State State State State State State 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 D Use of Those Who Usedition 11.2 2006 2007 2006 10.8 10.8 12.1 12.0 13.2 12.1 12.1 10.6 10.5 11.8 11.2 12.1 12.1 11.0 11.0 12.4 12.3 13.8 social Behavior <of td="" those<=""> Mho 12.6 12.6 11.1 10.9 12.4 12.3 13.4 10.7 10.8 11.9 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.9 12.4 12.3 13.4 10.9 10.8 11.9 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 12.6 10.8 10.7 12.0 11.7 12.6</of>	Utrade 0 Utrade 0	Utade 0 <

Table 14: Average Age of First ATOD Use and Antisocial Behavior - Total

Total Average	State	2007	of Those Who Used	13.6	12.0	12.6	14.1	ehavior of Those Who	12.0	13.5	12.4	12.2	12.4
	State	2006	D Use	13.3	12.0	12.5	13.7	isocial B	12.2	13.2	12.2	12.3	12.4
			Avg Age of First ATC	Marijuana	Cigarettes	Alcohol Use	Regular Alcohol Use	Avg Age of First Anti	School Suspension	Been Arrested	Carried a Gun	Attacked to Harm	Belonged to a Gang

41

\mathbf{Use}	
Alcohol	
Reporting	
of Students]	
Percentage o	
15:	
Table	

	Grae	de 6	Grac	le 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Risk Factor	State							
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Last Time I Drank Alcoh	lor							
Bought It WITH a Fake ID	1 7	1 3	13	06	1 1	7 0	1 4	1 0
		2	2	5				i
Bought It WITHOUT a Fake ID	1.2	0.6	0.9	0.8	1.4	1.2	3.0	3.2
Got It From								
Someone 21 or OLDER	20.1	16.2	24.2	22.5	35.2	34.0	51.4	48.2
Got It From								
Someone UNDER 21	7.5	5.3	11.8	11.3	18.6	17.4	15.3	15.0
Got It From								
a Brother/Sister	5.3	3.6	4.9	4.9	4.9	4.5	3.2	3.3
Home WITH								
Parent's Permission	18.8	21.8	15.8	17.4	11.5	12.4	7.6	8.3
Home WITHOUT								
Parent's Permission	8.0	10.1	12.1	11.8	6.0	6.5	1.8	2.2
Got It From								
Another Relative	9.1	10.5	8.4	10.1	5.5	6.8	3.6	4.1
A Stranger								
Bought It For Me	1.3	1.0	1.3	1.0	1.5	1.6	2.0	2.4
Took It								
From a Store	1.1	1.2	0.8	0.7	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.4
Other	25.8	28.4	18.5	18.7	13.8	14.6	10.2	11.9
I Drank at								
Home	43.7	47.4	36.0	38.8	26.6	27.1	18.4	19.1
Someone Else's Home	28.4	27.9	40.6	42.6	51.2	54.3	58.6	60.3
Open Area	12.5	12.5	10.7	10.0	11.0	10.4	12.3	12.3
Sporting Event								
or Concert	3.0	2.1	2.4	1.6	2.1	1.3	1.6	0.9
Restaurant or Bar	2.9	3.0	2.1	1.8	1.7	1.7	2.1	2.1
Empty Building								
or Site	2.4	2.1	1.8	0.9	0.8	0.4	0.6	0.4
Hotel/Motel	1.5	1.8	1.2	0.9	1.5	1.2	1.7	1.5
In a Car	3.1	1.8	3.1	2.1	2.9	2.6	3.4	2.6
School	2.5	1.5	2.1	1.3	2.1	1.1	1.3	0.8

42

\mathbf{Use}	
Cigarette	
Reporting	
Students	
of	
Percentage	
16:	
Table	

	Grae	de 6	Grao	le 8	Grad	e 10	Grad	e 12
Risk Factor	State	State	State	State	State	State	State	State
	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007	2006	2007
Last Time I Smoked a C	igarette,	l						
Bought It								
WITH a Fake ID	2.0	2.0	1.1	0.8	1.6	1.1	1.9	1.5
Bought It								
WITHOUT a Fake ID	1.7	0.8	1.3	1.8	6.2	5.1	23.7	23.7
Got It From								
Someone 18 or OLDER	17.9	12.9	14.7	23.3	35.5	37.7	38.0	41.1
Got It From								
Someone UNDER 18	14.7	13.3	11.0	20.8	19.0	18.2	9.3	8.8
Got It From								
a Brother/Sister	7.3	6.3	4.5	6.0	4.8	5.0	2.7	2.2
Home WITH								
Parent's Permission	3.8	3.5	2.1	3.3	5.5	4.8	3.8	3.4
Home WITHOUT								
Parent's Permission	10.3	15.7	6.8	13.4	6.4	7.1	2.0	1.7
Got It From								
Another Relative	7.7	8.5	4.2	7.5	4.9	5.7	2.1	1.9
A Stranger								
Bought It For Me	3.0	1.9	1.0	1.8	1.9	1.4	1.1	0.9
Took It								
From a Store	1.7	2.1	0.9	1.4	0.6	0.8	1.1	0.5
Other	29.9	32.9	11.1	19.9	13.6	13.3	14.3	14.2
I Smoked at								
Home	29.8	32.4	17.0	30.9	31.6	34.2	26.5	26.0
Someone Else's Home	27.5	28.3	17.4	33.2	28.5	28.0	20.0	20.1
Open Area	22.4	25.9	12.3	24.8	20.4	20.4	15.4	18.5
Sporting Event								
or Concert	1.9	1.0	1.6	1.2	1.8	1.2	1.6	0.7
Restaurant or Bar	2.5	1.1	1.0	0.6	1.1	0.6	2.0	1.6
Empty Building								
or Site	3.8	4.5	1.8	1.9	1.5	0.8	0.5	0.6
Hotel/Motel	1.9	1.3	0.4	0.5	0.8	0.5	0.7	0.5
In a Car	6.1	3.1	3.3	4.5	11.3	12.0	30.9	30.9
School	4.1	2.5	1.9	2.6	3.1	2.1	2.6	1.2

CORE PROGRAM SUPPORT COMMUNITIES DRUG-FREE **MEASURES** S

specific data which is typically referred to as the Core Measures. The drug categories measured are tobacco, alcohol and marijuana and the table is broken down by grade level. A *Combined* drug category has been created for all of The Drug-Free Communities Support Program, administered by the Center for Substance Abuse Prevention, requests these areas.

- **Past 30-Day Use** The question On how many occasions have you used ... in the past 30 days? is used to measure this statistic by reporting the percentage of students who report using 1-2 times or more often.
- measure this statistic by reporting the percentage of students who report that using the drug is a Moderate Risk is used to ∾: Perception of Risk The question How much do you think people risk harming themselves if they or a *Great Risk* to their health.
- ...? is used to measure this statistic by reporting the percentage of students who report that parents would feel it is Wrong or Perception of Disapproval The question How wrong do your parents feel it would be for you to Very Wrong to use tobacco, alcohol and marijuana.
- The table shows the average age of onset of Age of Onset The question How old were you when you first...? is used to measure this statistic. The possible use of those students who answered the question with a response other than Never Used. responses to this question range from 10 or Under to 17 or Older.

ned	pct		20.5	11.1	6.8	24.5		62.6	85.9	58.5	90.6		87.4	92.5	95.9	97.9		12.6	12.0	13.6	12.0
Combi	c		75239	74396	75257	75823		75232	75550	75152	75732		69540	69471	69101	69708		38563	25920	12826	41801
12	pct		40.3	23.5	15.3	47.2		61.3	89.3	42.9	93.2		76.5	83.5	91.7	95.6		14.0	13.2	14.5	13.2
Grade	c		14571	14548	14582	14686		14651	14683	14633	14707		13889	13883	13844	13918		11251	8208	5579	11756
10	pct		30.3	15.3	10.4	35.8		60.6	88.3	51.8	92.8		83.3	91.3	94.4	97.3		12.9	12.1	13.3	12.3
Grade	c		18368	18204	18375	18516		18459	18515	18421	18542		17193	17171	17120	17224		12429	8458	4752	13223
e 8	pct		15.5	8.1	4.1	18.8		62.4	86.3	64.5	91.3		90.2	95.0	0.79	98.5		11.6	11.2	12.0	11.2
Grad	L		20902	20641	20915	21057		20894	21000	20897	21043		19159	19147	19023	19205		2666	6527	2159	11093
e 6	pct		3.6	1.9	0.5	4.8		65.6	80.9	69.1	86.2		96.2	97.6	99.2	99.5	0	10.5	10.4	10.8	10.4
Grad	c	y Use	21398	21003	21385	21564	Risk	21228	21352	21201	21440	sapproval	19299	19270	19114	19361	First Use	4886	2727	336	5729
		Past 30 Da	Alcohol	Cigarettes	Marijuana	Combined	Perceived F	Alcohol	Cigarettes	Marijuana	Combined	Parental Di	Alcohol	Cigarettes	Marijuana	Combined	Avg Age of	Alcohol	Cigarettes	Marijuana	Combined

Table 17: Core Measures by Grade

App:95

App:96

Prevention Resource Centers 6.1

Region 1 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by *Decision Point*

614 East Emma Street, Suite M426 Springdale, AR 72764 JTL Shop Building Springdale

E-MAIL: lreh©jtlshop.jonesnet.org Counties: Benton, Carroll, Madison, Washington Ms. Laurie Reh, PRC Coordinator Fax: (479) 927-2752 (479) 927-2655

Region 2 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by North Arkansas Partnership for

Harrison, AR 72601 1515 Pioneer Drive Harrison

Health Education

Counties: Boone, Baxter, Newton, Marion, Shelly McCall, PRC Coordinator E-MAIL: smccall@northark.edu Fax: (870) 391-3507 (870) 391-3178 Searcy Ms.

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

Region 3 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Health Resources of Arkansas, Inc.

Augusta, AR 72006 893 Hwy 64 East Augusta

E-MÀIL: pat_huckeby@yahoo.com Counties: Fulton, Izard, Sharp, Stone, Jackson, Cleburne, Van Buren, White, Woodruff, Ms. Pat Huckeby, PRC Coordinator Fax: (870) 347-1457 (870) 347-5903 Independence

Region 4 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Crowley's Ridge Development Council

(520 West Monroe Street) Jonesboro, AR 72403 P.O. Box 16720 Jonesboro

Counties: Randolph, Clay, Lawrence, Greene, Ms. Dorothy Newsom, PRC Coordinator E-MAIL: dnewsom@ritternet.com Craighead, Mississippi, Poinsett Fax: (870) 933-0048 (870) 933-0033

Region 5 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Harbor House, Inc.

(615 North 19th Street) Fort Smith, AR 72914 P.O. Box 4207 Fort Smith

Counties: Crawford, Franklin, Logan, Scott, Cindy Stokes, PRC Coordinator COR E-MAIL: hhiprc@aol. Fax: (479) 783-1914 Sebastian, Polk (479) 783-1916 M_{S} .

Region 6 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER **Operated by** Community Service, Inc.

(100 South Cherokee Street) Morrilton, AR 72110 P.O. Box 679 Morrilton

Counties: Johnson, Pope, Conway, Yell, Perry, E-MAIL: tlove@communityserviceinc.com Mr. Terrence Love, PRC Coordinator Fax: (501) 354-5410 (501) 354-4589Faulkner

Brinkley P.O. Box 344 1116 North Main Brinkley, AR 72021 Mr. Kendon Gray, PRC Coordinator (870) 734-1554 Fax: (870) 734-2423 E-MAIL: kendonGray@sbcglobal.net Counties: Cross, Crittenden, St. Francis, Phillips, Lee, Monroe

Region 8 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Family Service Agency

Hot Springs 1401 Malvern Avenue, Suite 100 Hot Springs, AR 71901 Ms. Michelle Moore-Rather, PRC Coordinator (501) 318-2648 Fax: (501) 624-5636 E-MAIL: mmoore-rather@fsainc.org Counties: Clark, Garland, Hot Spring, Montgomery, Pike Region 9 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Family Service Agency

North Little Rock 628 West Broadway, Suite 300 North Little Rock, AR 72114 Mr. Hayse Miller, PRC Coordinator (501) 372-4242 Ext. 328 Fax: (501) 372-6565 E-MAIL: hmiller@fsainc.org Counties: Pulaski, Saline, Lonoke, Praire Region 10 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER

Operated by Southwest Arkansas Counseling & Mental Health Center, Inc.

Texarkana 601 Hazel Street Texarkana, AR 71854 Ms.Trena Goings, PRC Coordinator (870) 774-2435 Fax: (870) 774-4216 E-MAIL: tgoings@swacmhc.com Counties: Howard, Sevier, Hempstead, Little River, Lafayette, Miller

Region 11 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by *Health Sciences Education* Foundation-South Arkansas

El Dorado 460 W. Oak El Dorado, AR 71730 Ms. Susan Rumph, PRC Coordinator (870) 862-2489, Exts. 151 & 152 Fax: (870) 863-9341 E-MAIL: srumph@ahecsa.uams.edu Counties: Dallas, Calhoun, Union, Columbia, Ouachita, Nevada

Region 12 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Southeast Arkansas Economic Development District

Pine Bluff P.O. Box 6806 8th & Wahut Streets Pine Bluff, AR 71611 Mrs. Judith Smith, PRC Coordinator (870) 536-1971 Fax: (870) 536-7718 E-MALL: jsmithprc12@gmail.com Counties: Grant, Jefferson, Lincoln, Arkansas, Cleveland

Region 13 PREVENTION RESOURCE CENTER Operated by Phoenix Youth & Family Services

Crossett P.O. Box 654 310 N. Alabama Street Crossett, AR 71635 Mr. Clifford Hawkins, PRC Coordinator (870) 364-1676 Fax: (870) 364-1779 E-MAIL: chawkins@phoenixyouth.com Counties: Desha, Drew, Bradley, Ashley, Chicot

46

Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention Division of Behavioral Health Services Arkansas Department of Human Services 4313 West Markham - 3rd Floor Administration Little Rock, AR 72205 Telephone: (501) 686-9866 FAX: (501) 686-9366 FAX: (501) 686-9396

Tommie Johnson Waters, Director Prevention Services Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention

Joe M. Hill, Director Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention

E-MAIL: Joe.Hill@arkansas.gov

E-MAIL: Tommie.Waters@arkansas.gov

Arkansas Department of Education Federal Programs Liaison Safe and Drug-Free Schools Program Officer Learning Services/School Improvement #4 Capitol Mall Room 304B Little Rock, AR 72201 Telephone: (501) 683-5425 FAX: (501) 683-5409

Otistene Smith Federal Program Liaison Safe and Drug-Free Schools Program Officer E-MAIL: otistene.smith@arkansas.gov

Website: http://www.arkansased.org

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E

International Survey Associates dba Pride Surveys

dba Pride Surveys 160 Vanderbilt Court Bowling Green, KY 42103 Telephone: (800) 279-6361 FAX: (270) 746-9598 Website: http://www.pridesurveys.com Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities U.S. Department of Education Website: http://www.ed.gov/offices/DESE/SDFS

Southwest Center for the Application of Prevention Technology Website: http://captus.samhsa.gov/southwest

Southwest Prevention Center/ The University of Oklahoma Website: http://swpc.ou.edu/

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMSHA) Website: http://www.samba.gov Electronic copies of reports can be found at http://ww.arkansas.gov/dhs/dmhs/adap_survey.htm. Some reports require passwords.



ATOD USE AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOR 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 6



RISK PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 6



PROTECTIVE PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 6







ATOD USE AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOR 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 8



RISK PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 8



PROTECTIVE PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 8



SCHOOL SAFETY PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 8


ATOD USE AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOR 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 10



RISK PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 10



PROTECTIVE PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 10



SCHOOL SAFETY PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 10

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E



ATOD USE AND ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOR 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 12

Arkansas Prevention Needs Assessment (APNA) Student Survey - Appendix E



RISK PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 12



PROTECTIVE PROFILE 2007 Gender Student Survey, Grade 12





APPENDIX F. LIFETIME AND 30-DAY ATOD USE FOR PARTICIPATING REGIONS AND COUNTIES

		Pe	ercentac	e of Yo	uth Who	Used A	Alcohol,	Cigaret	tes or S	mokeles	ss Toba	cco in T	heir Life	etime by	Region			
Pagion			Alco	ohol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeles	s Tobac	co	
Region	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	53.2	54.0	51.2	44.2	44.5	41.9	41.6	40.6	38.1	30.3	28.6	24.7	22.0	21.7	18.3	15.5	13.2	11.2
2		53.1	62.2	50.2	50.0	46.2		48.1	56.2	36.6	38.9	33.3		31.2	29.6	23.5	21.9	18.7
3	48.5	57.4	51.3	52.0	49.4	49.1	43.9	55.2	41.6	40.1	37.1	35.1	23.8	31.8	22.9	22.5	23.1	21.0
4 51.4 47.9 49.9 48.2 45.4 44.7 43.2 39.0 38.7 37.5 34.8 32.7 21.1 18.9 18.8 18.5 5 49.2 50.2 48.9 49.2 48.1 47.8 42.8 38.4 36.4 35.2 32.9 30.9 25.2 16.4 15.1 16.0															17.8	16.7		
4 51.4 47.9 49.9 48.2 45.4 44.7 43.2 39.0 38.7 37.5 34.8 32.7 21.1 18.9 18.8 18.5 5 49.2 50.2 48.9 49.2 48.1 47.8 42.8 38.4 36.4 35.2 32.9 30.9 25.2 16.4 15.1 16.0															16.0	16.6	15.6	
6			51.2	53.4	51.0	45.7			37.9	38.2	33.0	28.4			19.6	23.1	19.5	17.3
7	55.0	56.1	47.1	48.1	48.9	42.2	49.1	46.9	37.7	35.7	36.4	30.7	24.3	24.1	9.7	11.6	16.5	10.4
8	52.5	50.4	50.2	48.9	47.9	47.6	45.8	39.7	38.5	35.3	33.3	31.9	25.5	20.1	18.3	15.4	18.2	15.7
9	45.5	58.1	51.5	48.4	43.8	42.4	35.0	47.6	36.8	31.6	27.1	25.1	14.7	25.6	16.4	15.3	11.2	10.0
10	51.3	57.1	50.0	52.6	45.7	46.3	44.0	45.7	40.7	37.3	31.6	30.2	20.5	22.8	18.2	21.0	18.1	14.6
11	51.5	48.7	44.5	49.6	47.0	47.5	47.5	40.5	36.5	38.3	35.8	33.0	23.4	20.7	14.0	16.8	15.4	13.7
12	51.1	51.5	50.9	47.6	45.8	49.6	43.3	38.3	38.8	33.8	32.3	32.0	18.8	16.8	17.3	13.6	14.1	15.8
13	50.1		54.7	51.3	49.2	50.4	41.4		43.2	39.6	38.0	35.9	18.2		19.7	17.8	18.6	17.2
Cells containii	ng the sym	bol indicate	an area whe	re data are n	ot available	because the	region did n	ot participate	e that year.									

			Percen	tage of	Youth W	/ho Use	d Mariju	ana, Inh	alants (or Hallu	cinogen	s in The	eir Lifeti	me by R	egion			
Pagion			Marij	uana					Inha	ants					Halluci	nogens		
Region	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	23.2	24.6	20.3	14.6	16.4	13.7	15.8	11.9	17.4	13.7	14.4	12.9	4.8	5.2	2.8	1.6	3.1	1.8
2		23.5	23.2	16.2	18.3	15.5		12.0	22.7	16.0	14.9	13.3		5.1	3.4	1.5	2.7	1.9
3	19.6	27.2	19.5	17.8	17.9	15.3	16.7	17.7	16.4	15.6	15.2	14.9	4.9	4.3	1.7	1.8	2.3	1.6
4	4 21.4 19.0 18.9 16.6 16.3 15.4 13.4 12.7 15.1 14.7 13.9 13.5 3.7 3.5 1.8 1.4 2.0 5 21.8 23.2 19.7 17.5 17.3 13.4 14.3 14.0 13.8 13.1 13.5 4.1 4.8 2.4 1.9 2.7															1.3		
5	4 21.4 19.0 18.9 16.6 16.3 15.4 13.4 12.7 15.1 14.7 13.9 13.5 3.7 3.5 1.8 1.4 2.0 5 21.8 23.2 19.7 17.2 17.5 17.3 13.4 14.3 14.0 13.8 13.1 13.5 4.1 4.8 2.4 1.9 2.7															2.1		
6			16.6	19.0	18.3	15.8			17.5	15.6	13.5	14.2			1.9	1.8	2.5	1.6
7	22.9	26.1	21.7	18.4	18.4	15.0	14.3	11.0	8.5	10.9	13.8	10.4	4.7	4.2	0.8	1.1	2.0	0.8
8	22.5	19.7	19.1	19.5	17.1	16.9	15.1	15.6	15.5	15.0	15.5	15.2	4.3	3.0	2.1	2.1	2.1	1.5
9	21.1	28.4	20.3	19.1	17.3	16.5	11.2	15.6	17.1	13.7	11.4	12.0	4.0	5.1	1.1	1.8	2.4	1.6
10	24.2	26.5	17.8	17.4	13.7	13.5	11.9	10.7	15.9	12.7	13.8	11.3	2.8	3.4	1.4	1.7	2.2	1.2
11	19.7	22.8	17.0	18.0	17.9	15.1	11.9	12.4	11.2	13.0	12.5	11.3	2.4	2.6	0.9	1.2	1.7	1.0
12	23.7	26.0	22.0	18.1	18.6	17.4	11.1	11.7	15.3	12.2	10.6	12.0	3.7	3.5	1.9	1.1	2.3	1.3
13	20.5		18.0	15.3	16.9	14.2	10.7		13.7	13.0	12.1	11.0	2.6		1.8	0.7	1.4	0.7
Cells contain	ing the syr	nbol indicate	an area wh	ere data are	not available	e because th	e region did	not participa	te that year.									

		Per	rcentage c	of Youth V	/ho Used	Cocaine,	Methamph	<u>netamines</u>	or Stimu	lants in Th	neir Lifetii	ne by Rec	ion		
Pagion			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines			Stimu	lants	
Region	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	4.2	5.3	4.3	2.7	4.4	2.4	4.1	4.3	3.0	3.8	1.9	6.0	3.2	4.7	3.3
2		3.9	1.8	2.7	2.7	1.9		5.4	3.0	2.7	1.9	4.7	3.9	4.2	3.6
3	4.7	4.9	2.8	2.6	3.5	2.1	6.5	4.5	2.8	2.9	1.9	4.7	4.0	4.3	3.3
4	4 3.2 3.1 3.1 2.0 3.8 3.1 2.1 2.6 1.6 4.3 3.5 4.1 5 3.8 4.5 3.1 2.8 3.7 2.2 3.5 4.4 3.0 3.5 2.2 4.9 3.4 4.2														
4 3.2 3.1 3.1 2.3 3.1 2.0 3.8 3.1 2.1 2.6 1.6 4.3 3.5 4.1 5 3.8 4.5 3.1 2.8 3.7 2.2 3.5 4.4 3.0 3.5 2.2 4.9 3.4 4.2 6 3.8 3.1 2.1 2.2 2.0 1.6 5.2 4.6 4.6															3.3
6			3.2	2.5	3.1	2.1			3.2	3.0	1.6	5.2	4.6	4.6	3.3
7	4.4	2.7	0.8	1.7	3.0	1.7	4.7	2.5	1.4	2.6	1.0	2.1	2.1	4.2	2.2
8	4.0	2.8	2.9	3.4	3.1	2.1	4.3	2.1	2.5	2.4	1.5	4.5	3.8	4.8	3.6
9	3.6	4.7	2.7	2.4	2.9	1.9	3.8	5.6	2.0	1.9	1.3	5.2	4.8	3.9	3.3
10	3.0	2.3	2.2	2.8	2.9	1.6	2.3	2.8	2.2	2.7	1.2	3.7	2.9	3.0	1.7
11	2.0	2.1	1.4	1.9	2.3	1.6	1.9	2.6	2.0	2.0	1.1	2.8	2.2	2.6	2.0
12	2.7	3.8	3.6	2.1	2.7	1.8	3.1	2.6	1.5	2.4	1.3	5.6	3.3	4.1	3.1
13	2.3		3.3	0.7	2.2	1.1	1.9		1.9	2.6	1.3	4.7	2.8	3.7	2.8
Cells containi	ng the symbo	l indicate an are	ea where data is	not available o	lue to the regior	not participatir	ng for that year.								

			Per	centag	<u>e of Yoι</u>	uth Who	Used S	Sedativ	<u>es, Ecs</u>	tasy, Ho	eroin or	Any Dr	ug in T	heir Lif	etime b	y Regio	n			
Decion		Seda	tives				Ecs	tasy				Her	oin				Any	Drug		
Region	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	13.3	10.2	12.8	11.6	4.3	3.9	3.1	1.8	3.3	2.1	1.8	1.1	2.0	1.0	32.7	31.6	42.4	29.0	27.7	25.9
2	16.5	13.8	14.9	13.8		3.5	2.5	2.4	3.2	1.7	2.4	1.4	1.6	1.2		29.5	46.1	30.8	30.5	27.5
3	14.2	14.2	16.2	13.3	4.3	3.6	2.1	2.2	3.0	2.1	1.2	1.1	1.5	1.1	28.6	36.2	38.5	33.6	30.3	28.3
4 14.2 13.9 14.0 12.6 2.8 2.6 2.1 2.0 2.8 2.0 1.1 0.8 1.3 0.9 29.2 26.5 37.8 31.3 27.1 5 12.3 12.5 13.9 12.9 5.2 5.0 3.3 2.8 3.9 3.5 1.2 1.2 1.8 1.1 29.5 31.1 37.0 31.3 28.4															27.0					
4 14.2 13.9 14.0 12.6 2.8 2.6 2.1 2.0 2.8 2.0 1.1 0.8 1.3 0.9 29.2 26.5 37.8 31.3 27.1 5 12.3 12.5 13.9 12.9 5.2 5.0 3.3 2.8 3.9 3.5 1.2 1.8 1.1 29.5 31.1 37.0 31.3 28.4														28.8						
6	13.0	15.3	14.6	12.5			2.4	1.9	3.1	2.2	1.0	1.1	1.2	0.9			38.0	34.4	29.2	27.9
7	5.7	9.9	13.6	10.5	3.7	3.4	1.1	1.2	3.3	2.3	0.3	0.5	0.9	0.6	31.8	34.1	35.1	30.4	29.5	25.0
8	13.4	13.6	15.1	14.1	3.5	2.4	2.1	2.5	3.2	2.6	1.3	1.4	1.5	0.9	30.9	30.2	38.6	33.6	30.6	30.8
9	14.7	14.7	12.4	11.4	3.9	3.8	2.7	2.3	2.9	2.3	0.8	1.1	1.7	1.0	27.8	36.6	38.8	32.0	27.5	27.4
10	9.7	12.7	11.9	10.9	3.9	4.4	2.4	2.8	3.0	1.6	0.7	1.0	1.5	0.5	32.2	33.9	38.5	31.1	26.2	25.1
11	10.2	12.9	12.6	11.6	2.3	2.1	1.5	1.9	3.1	2.4	0.6	0.9	1.0	0.7	29.5	31.2	33.0	33.9	29.5	27.2
12	13.9	11.2	11.4	11.1	4.5	3.7	2.9	1.9	3.1	1.8	0.7	0.6	1.5	0.7	31.4	33.0	41.8	31.1	27.6	28.9
13	12.6	11.3	11.9	10.7	2.8		2.4	1.3	2.8	1.4	1.1	0.3	1.0	0.3	27.6		37.3	31.5	28.5	26.3
Cells contain	ing the s	ymbol= indi	cate an area	a where dat	a are not av	ailable beca	ause the reg	ion did not p	participate t	hat year.										

		Per	centage	of Youth	<u>1 Who U</u>	sed Alco	ohol, Cic	arettes	<u>or Smok</u>	<u>eless To</u>	obacco I	During t	he Past :	30 Days	by Regi	on		
Pagion			Alco	ohol					Cigar	ettes				Sr	nokeles	s Tobaco	0	
Region	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	30.4	29.9	24.8	20.3	22.0	18.6	17.1	17.3	15.0	10.5	10.3	8.7	8.8	9.6	8.4	6.6	5.8	4.8
2		27.2	33.1	23.0	22.6	18.4		22.8	21.4	16.5	15.8	13.2		15.3	15.3	10.4	10.2	8.0
3	22.3	30.2	24.5	24.6	24.3	22.4	20.4	21.6	17.2	15.4	15.2	14.1	10.0	12.6	10.2	9.5	10.7	9.6
4 28.5 24.5 25.2 23.0 22.3 19.8 18.2 15.7 16.2 14.3 14.2 12.9 8.0 7.3 8.8 8.1 7.9 5 25.2 25.4 23.2 22.9 22.9 21.6 15.9 14.7 12.7 11.3 11.8 10.9 10.0 6.3 5.7 6.4 7.3															7.4			
4 28.5 24.5 25.2 23.0 22.3 19.8 18.2 15.7 16.2 14.3 14.2 12.9 8.0 7.3 8.8 8.1 7.9 5 25.2 25.4 23.2 22.9 22.9 21.6 15.9 14.7 12.7 11.3 11.8 10.9 10.0 6.3 5.7 6.4 7.3															6.8			
6			22.5	25.9	24.4	22.0			13.4	14.0	11.9	10.9			6.8	9.5	8.2	8.1
7	31.4	32.3	21.4	21.7	22.9	18.5	19.4	16.4	12.1	11.6	13.2	10.3	8.8	8.9	3.9	4.7	7.4	4.6
8	26.8	24.4	23.5	22.9	22.7	21.6	19.1	15.1	14.4	13.9	13.1	11.9	12.4	9.0	8.6	6.2	8.0	7.0
9	24.0	31.7	22.8	22.4	20.4	19.1	13.4	20.0	14.3	11.5	9.1	9.4	5.6	12.3	9.0	6.2	4.8	4.2
10	30.2	33.0	24.2	26.6	22.5	20.6	17.5	17.2	14.2	13.8	11.8	10.4	8.0	10.5	7.4	10.2	7.6	6.0
11	26.8	26.3	19.7	23.3	21.5	21.2	16.6	15.0	12.9	13.7	12.9	11.4	8.0	8.1	6.0	7.3	7.2	5.1
12	30.9	28.3	24.4	21.5	23.7	25.4	19.5	15.7	15.2	11.2	10.8	11.7	8.4	7.3	7.3	4.9	6.3	6.9
13	25.7		27.0	21.8	24.2	21.5	15.5		16.3	11.7	14.3	13.1	6.7		10.0	6.7	8.4	7.2
Cells containi	ing the sym	bol indicate a	an area where	e data are no	t available be	cause the re	gion did not p	participate that	at year.									

		P	ercenta	<u>ge of Yo</u>	uth Who	Used N	larijuana	i, Inhala	nts or H	allucino	gens Du	ring the	Past 30	Days by	Region			
Pagion			Marij	uana					Inha	ants					Halluci	nogens		
negion	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	11.1	12.3	10.0	5.8	8.0	6.3	6.1	4.3	5.8	5.0	5.3	4.2	1.7	1.8	1.0	0.6	1.3	0.5
2		10.1	9.6	8.3	7.9	5.9		4.5	6.9	6.6	5.4	3.9		2.3	0.6	0.9	1.0	0.5
3	9.9	12.8	8.1	7.1	7.7	5.6	6.1	5.5	5.6	5.6	5.3	5.0	0.8	1.7	0.5	0.6	0.8	0.4
4	4 10.3 7.9 8.3 7.3 7.5 6.3 4.8 4.4 5.7 4.9 5.3 4.8 1.3 1.4 0.7 0.5 1.0 5 11.3 10.8 9.1 7.6 8.5 7.4 4.9 4.7 4.8 4.6 4.5 4.3 1.3 1.7 0.9 0.6 1.2															0.4		
5	4 10.3 7.9 8.3 7.3 7.5 6.3 4.8 4.4 5.7 4.9 5.3 4.8 1.3 1.4 0.7 0.5 1.0 5 11.3 10.8 9.1 7.6 8.5 7.4 4.9 4.7 4.8 4.6 4.5 4.3 1.3 1.7 0.9 0.6 1.2 6 7.1 0.2 8.4 6.6 6.6 5.2 4.5 4.2 0.7 0.7 0.0															0.7		
6			7.1	9.3	8.4	6.6			5.4	5.3	4.5	4.3			0.7	0.7	0.9	0.5
7	10.1	12.8	12.4	8.8	8.7	7.9	4.2	4.6	3.0	4.0	5.0	4.0	1.5	1.9	1.3	0.6	0.9	0.3
8	10.5	8.4	9.1	9.4	8.0	8.0	5.4	6.7	5.2	5.1	5.7	5.3	1.8	1.0	0.7	0.7	0.9	0.4
9	10.4	13.6	10.5	9.0	8.5	8.1	3.7	5.2	6.0	4.3	3.6	4.1	1.3	1.9	0.7	0.7	0.9	0.6
10	11.6	10.7	8.9	9.0	7.3	6.6	3.6	4.2	5.4	3.7	5.3	3.8	1.0	1.7	0.3	0.8	1.4	0.3
11	8.5	9.5	7.1	7.6	8.3	6.6	4.3	4.3	3.7	5.0	4.6	3.8	0.9	0.6	0.4	0.4	1.1	0.4
12	12.8	16.6	10.3	8.1	10.0	6.9	3.4	4.0	5.5	4.2	4.6	4.1	1.3	1.0	0.6	0.4	1.1	0.3
13	9.4		7.4	6.3	7.6	5.3	3.5		4.1	5.1	3.5	3.8	0.8		1.1	0.4	0.8	0.1
Cells containi	ng the sym	bol indicate a	an area wher	e data are no	t available be	ecause the re	gion did not i	participate the	at year.									

		Percen	tage of Yo	outh Who	Used Coc	aine, Metl	nampheta	mines or S	Stimulants	s During t	he Past 3) Days by	Region		
Pagion			Coca	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines			Stimu	llants	
Region	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	1.3	1.4	1.7	0.7	1.6	0.6	1.5	1.5	0.8	1.3	0.6	2.8	1.1	2.1	1.1
2		1.2	0.6	1.0	0.8	0.4		1.5	0.8	0.7	0.5	2.4	1.3	1.5	0.7
3	1.0	1.5	0.9	0.8	1.1	0.6	1.9	1.9	0.5	1.1	0.5	2.2	1.1	1.7	0.9
4	4 1.1 1.0 1.2 0.7 1.3 0.6 1.7 1.2 0.6 1.1 0.3 2.4 1.2 1.9 5 0.7 1.4 1.3 0.9 1.6 0.5 1.4 1.9 0.9 1.5 0.5 2.2 1.1 1.6														
5	0.7	1.4	1.3	0.9	1.6	0.9	1.5	0.5	2.2	1.1	1.6	0.9			
6			1.1	0.5	1.0	0.5			0.9	1.0	0.3	2.1	1.7	1.5	0.8
7	1.2	0.8	0.3	0.9	1.0	0.4	2.5	0.8	0.4	0.9	0.3	1.3	0.9	1.9	1.1
8	1.4	0.8	0.9	0.8	1.0	0.6	1.8	0.9	0.8	0.9	0.5	1.6	1.7	2.0	1.0
9	1.0	1.3	0.7	0.8	0.9	0.5	1.3	1.9	0.6	0.8	0.4	2.1	1.7	1.5	1.0
10	1.0	0.5	0.6	1.1	1.6	0.4	0.8	1.3	0.8	1.2	0.4	1.4	1.1	1.3	0.6
11	0.3	0.8	0.6	1.0	1.1	0.6	0.7	0.8	0.6	1.1	0.3	0.9	0.9	1.4	0.7
12	0.4	1.0	1.4	0.7	1.4	0.4	1.2	1.2	0.2	1.0	0.2	2.4	1.2	2.3	0.9
13	0.7		1.4	0.6	1.2	0.2	1.0		0.9	1.2	0.2	2.8	1.0	2.1	1.0
Cells containi	ing the symbol	l indicate an are	a where data a	re not available	because the re	gion did not pai	ticipate that yea	ar.							

			Percen	tage of	Youth V	<u>Vho Us</u>	ed Seda	<u>atives, E</u>	<u>Ecstasy</u>	, Heroir	n or Any	<u>Drug I</u>	During t	the Pas	t 30 Dav	<u>/s by R</u>	egion			
Decien		Seda	tives				Ecst	tasy				Her	oin				Any	Drug		
Region	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
1	6.3	4.6	6.3	4.8	1.4	1.0	0.8	0.7	1.2	0.6	0.6	0.4	0.8	0.3	18.5	16.6	22.9	13.7	14.6	12.2
2	8.8	7.4	7.0	5.7		0.8	0.0	0.8	0.9	0.3	1.2	0.6	0.7	0.2		13.6	24.8	18.4	14.8	11.8
3	6.6	6.8	7.7	6.0	0.3	0.9	0.5	0.6	1.0	0.6	0.2	0.3	0.6	0.3	16.8	17.6	19.4	16.2	15.4	13.0
4 7.5 6.9 7.5 5.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.7 0.3 15.7 11.7 21.1 16.2 14. 5 5.8 6.1 7.0 5.9 1.3 1.8 0.9 0.9 1.5 1.2 0.4 0.3 0.8 0.3 17.4 15.3 19.9 16.1 15.														14.2	12.8					
4 7.5 6.9 7.5 5.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.7 0.3 15.7 11.7 21.1 16.2 1 5 5.8 6.1 7.0 5.9 1.3 1.8 0.9 0.9 1.2 0.4 0.3 0.8 0.3 17.4 15.3 19.9 16.1 1														15.0	14.0					
6	6.0	7.9	7.1	5.3			0.6	0.3	0.8	0.5	0.1	0.1	0.5	0.2			19.3	19.0	15.0	12.8
7	4.2	4.4	7.4	5.0	0.7	1.2	0.3	0.6	1.4	0.7	0.3	0.3	0.6	0.3	16.8	17.1	21.6	15.9	15.5	13.9
8	6.3	7.1	7.7	7.1	1.4	0.9	0.6	0.8	1.2	0.9	0.6	0.5	0.6	0.4	16.2	14.2	20.6	18.2	15.5	15.8
9	7.1	7.4	6.0	5.1	1.0	1.1	0.6	0.6	1.1	0.6	0.3	0.2	0.8	0.3	15.3	17.0	21.0	16.5	13.9	13.9
10	4.7	5.7	6.3	5.0	1.1	1.4	0.6	0.9	1.4	0.5	0.1	0.5	0.8	0.2	16.6	14.5	21.2	16.1	14.2	12.9
11	5.2	6.6	6.7	5.8	0.6	0.5	0.4	0.7	1.4	0.9	0.1	0.3	0.7	0.2	13.5	14.1	17.2	17.6	15.3	13.1
12	7.4	5.3	7.1	4.7	1.5	1.1	1.0	0.6	1.3	0.6	0.3	0.3	0.8	0.3	17.4	21.1	22.9	15.8	16.3	13.4
13	6.1	5.3	6.7	4.8	0.7		0.6	0.4	1.6	0.3	0.3	0.2	0.6	0.0	13.6		18.5	15.2	13.8	12.0
Cells containi	ing the syr	nbol indicate	e an area w	here data a	re not availa	able becaus	e the region	did not par	ticipate that	year.										

			Percent	<u>age of Y</u>	<u>outh Wh</u>	<u>no Used</u>	<u>Alcohol</u>	, Cigaret	<u>ttes or S</u>	mokeles	<u>ss Tobac</u>	<u>co in Th</u>	<u>neir Lifet</u>	<u>ime by (</u>	<u>County</u>			
County			Alco	ohol					Cigar	ettes				Sr	nokeles	s Tobaco	0	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	52.9	50.1	53.1	55.0	48.3	50.3	43.0	37.5	39.4	38.6	37.5	34.5	19.4	14.2	12.7	11.2	13.7	16.2
Ashley	48.6		56.6	53.4	54.5	56.4	38.9		41.5	43.5	40.7	40.7	17.6		21.0	17.9	22.5	19.1
Baxter					51.2	45.9					37.6	30.7					16.0	13.4
Benton	55.8	53.3	55.2	45.0	45.8	43.2	44.7	37.1	39.8	29.7	28.4	25.7	20.4	21.2	20.8	13.6	12.0	11.0
Boone				50.2	45.9	44.2				36.6	37.8	32.0				23.5	23.1	20.0
Bradley	57.5		57.1	50.8	47.3	49.2	49.8		52.9	37.7	35.2	38.5	23.2		20.0	20.4	17.3	17.2
Calhoun	55.4	58.4		63.7	52.1		44.9	39.0		47.9	42.7		28.8	32.9		28.7	25.5	
Carroll	49.8	48.8	54.0	50.4	53.1	47.4	39.9	35.2	42.5	36.1	36.0	31.0	21.6	19.6	18.5	15.0	18.4	15.2
Chicot	46.5		51.2	49.0	39.1	39.9	38.7		44.4	35.5	34.7	28.1	14.5		14.4	12.9	6.3	5.2
Clark	46.7	49.4	46.2	41.7	45.4	45.5	40.5	43.4	33.3	28.2	28.4	30.2	27.4	21.7	17.5	15.7	15.9	13.5
Clay	50.1	39.4	50.8	48.4	48.9	47.7	37.4	32.4	39.7	42.8	41.4	38.5	23.1	20.8	23.7	22.0	26.0	23.7
Cleburne	62.5			56.1	55.1	49.4	56.5			39.0	41.3	35.3	31.9			20.7	25.2	21.3
Cleveland						50.6						42.0						28.9
Columbia	55.0	45.8	49.6	54.0	35.3	48.6	42.5	40.3	30.0	42.3	23.5	37.5	35.0	28.2	16.5	23.5	14.7	17.4
Conway				52.0	54.9	50.4				34.0	39.0	30.1				17.1	22.6	17.6
	49.2	45.3	47.6	45.2	42.3	43.2	37.6	34.7	34.9	32.5	30.3	28.8	16.5	15.8	14.5	14.8	13.6	14.1
Crawford	53.0	51.2	45.9	44.5	42.0	45.0	50.7	44.2	39.0	31.7	32.9	28.8	29.1	23.3	24.6	15.7	25.9	17.3
	45.3		31.5	46.1	46.6	44.0	53.8		28.6	34.9	34.0	34.2	13.2		6.4	11.8	14.8	10.2
Cross	56.2	62.4		68.8	52.5	49.9	50.8	53.0		50.3	41.1	36.8	27.6	31.9		22.2	21.9	20.2
Dallas	48.4	59.3	49.3	54.8	49.8	49.0	46.4	37.0	39.5	49.0	36.7	38.6	24.6	14.8	20.1	21.2	16.3	18.6
Desha				25.7	54.6					23.7	41.6					5.3	17.1	
Drew			57.3	67.4	43.4	46.8			48.9	47.9	34.4	30.6			27.2	26.0	22.2	18.7
Faulkner			41.3	50.6	58.3	44.2			26.5	35.4	36.9	26.1			24.5	24.6	27.0	21.1
Franklin	52.9	64.6		58.3	55.7	51.8	42.2	57.7		46.9	37.9	34.3	35.9	40.2		26.5	24.0	23.2
Fulton		49.0	48.6	49.1	46.6	49.6		55.0	41.6	38.8	34.8	36.6		38.0	24.0	21.3	24.2	25.3
Cells containi	ing the sym	bol indicate a	an area wher	e data are no	t available be	ecause the re	eaion did not i	participate the	at vear.									

		Perce	ntage of	<u>f Youth \</u>	<u>Nho Use</u>	ed Alcoh	ol, Ciga	rettes o	<u>r Smoke</u>	eless To	bacco ir	<u>n Their L</u>	<u>ifetime</u>	by Cour	ity, Cont			
County			Alco	ohol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeless	s Tobaco	co	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	48.2	44.8	47.0	49.5	48.5	45.9	48.2	31.6	35.9	35.5	32.5	29.9	16.0	13.7	10.9	11.8	13.7	10.8
Grant	51.3	58.2	48.8	51.3	47.6	47.2	39.8	41.8	37.3	36.3	34.8	30.7	20.4	29.3	19.2	20.1	20.4	17.5
Greene	48.2	45.2	44.2	50.6	42.0	43.6	39.0	41.4	36.6	38.4	32.9	32.3	24.5	19.5	17.9	24.0	18.8	18.2
Hempstead	44.6		49.3		53.1	44.9	42.1		38.4		36.5	28.2	13.0		10.0		16.6	11.0
Hot Spring	51.6	51.3	55.2	47.7	49.3	47.9	43.8	40.8	40.6	33.8	36.0	32.2	25.2	17.6	24.2	18.5	25.2	21.5
Howard			58.1	47.6	44.8	45.8			49.2	33.5	30.9	31.8			14.0	19.9	15.7	15.4
Independence	53.8		52.8	50.8	45.5	43.9	35.8		41.5	37.6	33.9	29.2	30.9		21.3	19.6	17.5	18.0
Izard			51.3	51.5	51.5	47.4			45.3	40.8	43.9	35.8			26.1	26.7	22.7	25.1
Jackson	47.4		48.7	50.5	48.1	49.8	49.4		38.1	34.9	36.5	37.5	20.8		19.6	20.2	20.2	22.7
Jefferson	49.1		37.0	41.5	41.9	52.7	44.4		27.2	27.9	26.0	25.4	18.0		7.1	6.0	3.9	5.4
Johnson			45.6	67.2	49.5	48.3			32.0	50.6	29.4	28.9			10.1	31.8	15.8	19.1
Lafayette	50.0	51.2	57.2	51.2	43.6	48.4	43.1	49.4	50.0	35.9	39.4	39.7	30.2	27.6	24.7	12.0	20.8	14.2
Lawrence	57.3	51.7	54.1	51.1	46.9	51.7	54.2	44.3	43.5	36.8	38.1	35.8	29.7	21.9	24.3	16.7	25.0	20.5
Lee			62.5	55.8	37.2	36.9			48.4	42.2	30.7	29.7			7.0	9.0	7.4	3.8
Lincoln			57.1	50.6	47.3	48.1			46.4	42.5	34.9	34.9			24.8	26.2	21.6	19.5
Little River					47.5	41.5					27.7	22.0					18.6	11.8
Logan		56.6	56.8	51.1	51.7	52.0		50.2	43.3	38.6	38.7	35.3		29.0	23.2	22.6	22.1	21.8
Lonoke	46.4	59.3	49.9	44.0	50.1	46.2	37.4	50.0	35.2	27.8	32.0	27.5	16.2	24.7	14.7	12.8	15.2	13.8
Madison	59.3	57.3	55.1	47.9	52.1	47.3	47.3	47.7	40.3	39.7	36.7	33.9	33.2	33.9	28.4	26.7	24.3	25.6
Marion					51.5	49.9					37.2	37.8					25.9	20.7
Miller	52.0	60.2	44.6	52.8	42.1	46.1	42.4	45.2	36.4	37.3	30.0	31.3	19.2	19.7	16.5	20.1	17.6	16.7
Mississippi	52.0	55.9	56.6	43.9	44.3	37.4	46.3	46.2	44.9	39.7	36.2	31.0	20.4	22.9	16.3	14.0	12.2	9.5
Monroe		55.7	44.2	43.9	55.5	53.0		44.1	36.0	31.2	36.5	37.5		21.2	10.0	12.1	14.4	10.5
Montgomery	63.8			56.1	52.6	64.5	54.2			33.7	37.1	44.5	32.3			32.4	22.0	33.2
Nevada		49.9	41.6	48.9	47.6	44.6		43.8	32.0	39.7	35.1	32.4		24.3	15.8	21.2	19.6	15.2
Cells containing the	e symbol ir	ndicate an are	ea where dat	ta are not ava	ailable becau	ise the regior	i did not parti	icipate that y	ear.									

	1	Perc	entage o	of Youth	Who Us	ed Alco	hol, Ciq	arettes of	or Smok	<u>eless To</u>	<u>obacco i</u>	<u>n Their</u>	<u>Lifetime</u>	by Cou	nty, Cor	nt.		
County			Alco	hol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeles	s Tobaco	:0	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton		51.7			50.0	46.4		47.8			41.0	31.7		33.4			26.4	27.8
Ouachita	44.6		50.3	50.0	47.6	48.1	47.6		42.1	39.1	38.0	34.3	14.0		13.8	14.6	12.9	12.3
Perry			62.7	56.8	55.5	55.1			47.4	44.0	38.8	38.3			23.2	23.7	22.1	22.4
Phillips	56.8	37.7	30.4	43.4		34.6	46.1	27.9	25.0	31.7		22.3	24.3	14.3	4.2	7.8		4.0
Pike	59.5	57.7	53.4	58.1	40.6	50.8	51.3	47.2	48.1	49.5	35.5	37.9	30.9	34.2	25.9	26.3	23.9	21.3
Poinsett	48.7	48.0	54.5	56.3	50.7	52.1	48.8	43.9	44.8	42.1	40.0	39.2	22.0	18.8	21.9	24.8	19.4	18.6
Polk	52.7	38.1	53.8	48.8	50.2	44.4	52.1	46.8	43.7	33.3	34.7	29.7	34.1	32.9	36.4	18.6	20.0	15.4
Pope			44.2	63.3	43.6	42.1			32.7	47.9	28.0	26.7			21.8	35.9	14.7	13.1
Prairie	73.4			61.7	55.8	49.1	53.8			50.0	34.1	41.9	39.4			24.8	19.6	22.1
Pulaski	37.2			56.7	39.8	40.6	28.6			36.5	23.5	23.1	7.2			16.0	6.7	7.2
Randolph	56.7	52.1	55.9	54.8	56.9	48.6	45.7	43.1	43.7	42.8	41.9	36.6	22.7	23.7	26.5	23.9	27.6	27.0
Saint Francis		57.0	54.8	40.6	44.3	35.9		51.9	39.8	30.4	29.9	22.4		21.3	18.4	10.3	13.4	6.4
Saline	51.3	56.4	59.2	43.9	43.8	42.5	38.3	44.2	44.5	28.8	29.1	28.2	19.4	26.9	24.7	16.8	18.0	15.8
Scott				50.8	49.9	50.6				42.2	42.3	35.4				27.3	26.2	24.1
Searcy		55.3	62.2		60.8	49.4		48.5	56.2		48.7	41.5		27.9	29.6		28.7	23.2
Sebastian	44.4	49.7	47.3	50.4	46.4	48.0	35.8	36.0	34.6	35.2	30.1	30.3	14.1	13.3	11.5	12.6	12.2	11.1
Sevier	58.4	53.6	54.5	54.3	49.8	52.2	51.2	45.6	42.7	39.1	33.6	31.1	28.2	26.4	31.5	25.5	19.8	16.8
Sharp			52.5	49.8	48.8	51.2			46.3	40.9	38.4	39.0			29.0	24.7	24.3	26.0
Stone		62.5	46.6	49.6	41.7	43.5		57.3	35.7	43.3	34.6	39.3		36.9	28.6	24.5	25.4	25.4
Union	53.9	46.5	41.8	46.6	45.9	47.3	49.6	39.6	35.8	34.1	33.9	30.8	22.7	16.7	12.6	14.2	14.8	13.2
Van Buren	36.1		59.9	58.4	53.7	55.5	35.2		48.3	46.0	37.9	40.6	17.9		26.1	24.9	22.2	19.7
Washington	51.5	54.9	50.5	41.7	41.0	39.7	39.1	41.8	37.4	27.7	26.5	22.3	19.6	18.3	16.4	15.0	11.9	9.4
White	42.3	59.2	51.8	51.4	51.7	50.5	35.6	55.0	40.7	39.5	38.4	34.7	19.2	28.8	21.8	24.6	27.0	20.4
Woodruff			38.9	53.2	44.4	48.8			38.0	46.7	29.3	34.8			18.1	15.8	17.2	12.5
Yell			63.2	45.5	49.5	44.2			56.4	32.4	31.7	28.0			28.8	19.3	14.6	16.6
Cells containing	the symbo	l indicate an	area where o	data are not a	available bec	ause the req	ion did not p	articipate tha	t year.									

	Percentage of Youth Works Universe Instruction of the																	
Country			Marij	uana					Inhal	ants					Hallucir	nogens		
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	26.8	23.7	26.7	23.5	19.9	15.2	9.3	10.1	12.0	12.9	10.3	10.4	3.5	2.1	3.2	0.2	2.3	0.8
Ashley	19.7		17.0	16.4	16.8	16.1	12.1		14.2	12.5	14.8	12.9	2.3		1.9	1.0	2.1	1.1
Baxter					19.0	16.7					13.7	11.1					3.5	1.9
Benton	26.2	22.1	24.7	13.8	17.9	14.4	18.2	14.7	19.5	13.4	15.6	13.0	5.7	4.7	3.8	1.1	3.7	2.1
Boone				16.2	16.2	13.3				16.0	15.3	15.2				1.5	2.2	1.9
Bradley	22.8		11.6	15.7	14.8	13.6	10.9		10.8	11.2	10.9	11.6	2.9		3.0	0.2	0.6	0.8
Calhoun	20.8	17.4		26.2	14.6		12.2	8.1		14.7	19.3		1.9	1.9		1.8	1.6	
Carroll	21.3	13.9	22.2	15.5	19.2	14.9	13.8	10.3	18.5	13.1	16.1	14.4	3.6	2.7	3.4	2.3	3.0	1.9
Chicot	20.0		23.7	20.2	20.5	15.3	7.0		11.5	13.7	7.6	6.0	2.9		1.8	0.5	1.6	0.0
Clark	16.9	15.7	14.6	8.2	12.7	13.6	10.8	18.7	10.5	12.3	13.1	13.7	3.6	2.4	0.5	0.8	0.9	1.2
Clay	15.9	12.7	19.5	19.4	17.3	19.3	10.2	7.7	14.4	14.6	13.4	17.0	4.8	1.7	1.0	1.6	1.5	2.0
Cleburne	26.3			20.9	25.5	19.4	23.5			20.0	19.1	15.4	5.8			2.0	3.8	1.8
Cleveland						15.3						12.4						2.5
Columbia	12.5	13.9	10.1	7.0	7.4	11.5	5.0	10.0	4.8	10.9	7.4	13.6	2.5	2.8	0.0	1.0	0.0	0.0
Conway				18.0	24.3	19.7				11.3	15.4	12.1				1.6	2.2	0.8
Craighead	19.4	18.0	19.4	14.1	14.6	14.7	11.9	12.4	14.3	13.7	12.7	13.0	3.6	3.4	1.9	1.4	1.9	1.4
Crawford	30.7	18.6	18.0	15.9	16.8	15.3	16.8	16.3	13.6	15.1	14.4	13.2	5.0	4.7	1.8	1.7	2.9	2.1
Crittenden	18.9		10.0	19.4	19.8	18.3	9.8		7.2	12.8	13.7	10.2	5.7		0.0	1.1	1.5	1.5
Cross	24.2	22.3		23.3	20.0	17.2	14.0	12.9		14.6	17.5	17.2	6.2	5.1		3.3	3.1	1.2
Dallas	16.5	29.6	17.6	22.3	17.7	15.6	9.9	11.5	15.3	16.5	15.3	12.3	0.7	3.7	0.8	1.6	1.9	0.4
Desha				3.0	16.7					10.1	11.6					1.0	0.7	
Drew			19.7	11.9	16.0	11.7			18.0	20.9	11.0	10.0			1.7	0.8	1.2	0.5
Faulkner			11.9	15.2	20.7	12.2			11.2	18.6	13.5	14.2			2.0	0.6	4.5	1.8
Franklin	14.2	30.2		17.7	17.2	16.0	14.9	24.0		15.8	13.2	13.0	2.2	4.1		1.8	2.7	2.5
Fulton		20.0	17.0	14.1	13.6	12.0		10.0	13.6	14.9	17.7	19.1		2.0	1.3	0.9	2.4	0.8
Cells containin	a the svmb	ol indicate ai	n area where	data are not	available bed	cause the red	nion did not pa	articipate that	t vear.									

		Per	centage	e of Yout	<u>h Who l</u>	<u>Jsed Ma</u>	<u>rijuana,</u>	Inhalan	ts or Ha	llucinog	<u>ens in 1</u>	heir Lif	<u>etime by</u>	County	, cont.			
County			Marij	uana					Inhal	ants					Hallucir	nogens		
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	30.7	15.7	20.5	22.3	19.9	19.0	16.9	16.3	15.3	15.6	16.9	14.5	7.1	3.1	2.6	3.0	2.5	2.0
Grant	26.8	36.7	21.0	18.8	19.6	17.1	14.4	19.4	17.1	17.4	14.4	15.2	2.7	10.2	2.2	2.3	3.1	2.3
Greene	15.5	17.2	14.2	17.5	16.8	13.7	18.7	13.8	16.4	18.1	14.4	15.8	2.4	3.6	1.3	1.8	2.3	1.3
Hempstead	17.4		19.1		14.1	13.2	13.7		15.3		17.8	10.4	2.2		1.4		2.1	0.4
Hot Spring	22.7	22.9	21.2	17.9	16.2	14.8	15.9	12.4	18.4	14.9	14.5	17.0	3.9	3.3	2.9	1.1	2.5	1.2
Howard			18.8	12.6	8.2	12.4			16.4	13.2	14.1	8.5			0.0	0.0	1.6	0.8
Independence	13.8		21.9	20.5	15.8	11.7	12.3		15.1	15.1	12.3	12.3	2.5		1.2	2.9	1.7	1.5
Izard			21.0	14.7	16.6	17.0			15.7	12.3	13.1	15.5			2.4	1.8	1.5	0.9
Jackson	25.3		17.7	14.1	16.6	11.4	18.8		13.7	12.6	12.2	12.8	7.2		0.5	0.9	1.8	0.4
Jefferson	20.0		11.9	14.6	17.6	21.2	12.1		11.9	7.7	7.0	9.0	4.1		0.2	0.4	1.6	0.3
Johnson			14.2	26.4	14.7	16.6			14.6	20.9	14.0	16.2			0.9	2.9	2.3	1.4
Lafayette	12.3	17.6	21.2	16.6	15.3	13.0	10.0	9.8	13.1	15.2	12.7	13.5	1.1	3.5	1.2	2.5	2.1	1.2
Lawrence	25.8	21.6	19.1	12.6	16.2	16.3	14.5	12.0	14.5	13.0	11.9	13.5	4.0	3.4	1.5	1.3	2.4	1.6
Lee			30.1	21.3	10.2	11.8			6.2	8.7	7.0	7.6			0.8	1.0	0.9	0.0
Lincoln			22.3	22.9	16.5	16.2			16.2	12.8	9.2	11.3			1.0	1.4	1.5	0.6
Little River					15.5	9.9					13.0	9.5					1.7	1.5
Logan		25.8	19.5	14.8	15.2	16.0		17.8	18.3	14.4	13.4	16.4		4.1	1.3	1.1	1.8	1.1
Lonoke	23.1	31.2	20.1	14.7	18.2	16.4	14.1	17.1	17.7	13.4	14.5	13.3	4.7	5.8	1.2	1.6	2.8	1.2
Madison	21.4	26.3	19.2	17.4	18.6	17.3	13.5	13.8	12.2	10.8	12.4	13.7	3.0	3.5	1.7	1.5	3.7	2.8
Marion					17.5	19.2					14.5	13.6						2.2
Miller	30.4	31.0	16.1	21.1	14.2	17.0	11.9	10.8	16.0	13.3	14.2	12.9	3.5	3.9	1.4	2.3	1.7	1.9
Mississippi	25.5	23.5	21.5	18.1	17.5	14.3	14.7	14.1	13.4	14.8	12.3	10.0	2.1	3.2	1.2	1.3	2.2	0.7
Monroe		33.9	20.4	16.2	17.7	15.2		11.8	15.2	11.0	10.7	8.2		3.9	0.0	0.6	2.1	1.0
Montgomery	23.2			15.1	16.4	15.5	18.1			8.5	15.5	14.8	4.2			0.0	1.3	2.0
Nevada		20.4	10.4	15.3	10.1	8.4		14.4	14.2	11.8	16.9	10.8		1.6	0.0	0.9	1.7	1.4
Cells containing the	symbol inc	dicate an are	a where data	a are not avai	lable becaus	e the region	did not partic	cipate that ye	ar.									

		P	ercentac	ge of Yo	uth Who	Used M	<u>larijuana</u>	i <mark>, Inhala</mark>	nts or H	<u>allucino</u>	<u>gens in </u>	<u>Their Li</u>	fetime b	v Count	y, cont.			
County			Marij	uana					Inha	ants					Hallucir	nogens		
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton		21.1			20.8	11.9		10.6			11.8	13.4		4.8			1.7	0.9
Ouachita	21.6		23.1	19.0	21.1	17.2	11.3		9.1	11.2	11.0	9.1	1.8		1.1	1.2	3.9	0.6
Perry			22.2	19.0	18.4	13.8			23.5	16.5	17.2	18.1			2.9	2.5	1.4	0.7
Phillips	22.7	6.5	11.1	17.0		12.5	16.0	1.6	0.0	8.3		5.8	2.8	0.0	0.0	0.3		0.3
Pike	19.0	21.4	17.6	22.7	10.6	16.2	13.0	19.2	17.5	16.8	13.8	16.8	4.2	2.6	1.3	1.0	0.5	0.7
Poinsett	25.8	20.3	19.7	21.3	18.7	18.3	11.7	12.6	14.6	12.5	16.3	14.6	4.6	4.8	2.2	1.2	1.7	1.4
Polk	22.2	16.7	14.3	10.7	15.0	10.2	12.1	10.6	16.9	12.3	11.4	13.2	4.4	4.5	1.4	0.7	1.9	0.8
Pope			12.1	21.6	16.1	16.6			17.2	15.5	12.8	13.9			1.4	1.8	1.6	2.0
Prairie	32.3			25.4	13.8	17.4	13.8			12.7	9.4	9.9	1.5			0.8	0.0	2.9
Pulaski	17.6			27.8	17.2	16.5	8.0			13.3	9.3	11.3	3.2			1.8	2.3	1.7
Randolph	20.8	19.2	22.8	17.5	18.2	15.8	18.3	13.7	18.4	15.6	19.3	13.0	3.4	4.3	3.0	1.4	1.8	0.4
Saint Francis		31.1	29.9	10.1	12.4	9.6		12.0	14.6	5.9	9.3	7.5		5.6	1.2	0.7	1.0	0.0
Saline	22.5	24.4	21.4	14.6	15.8	16.1	11.8	13.5	14.5	14.6	12.7	13.4	4.3	4.1	0.9	1.9	2.1	2.1
Scott				19.8	20.3	16.3				15.7	15.0	13.2				1.6	4.5	2.2
Searcy		27.0	23.2		23.9	17.0		14.1	22.7		18.9	13.1		5.5	3.4		3.4	2.0
Sebastian	22.5	23.1	20.1	19.3	18.2	20.5	12.6	13.8	13.1	13.1	13.0	13.2	4.6	4.9	2.7	2.4	2.9	2.4
Sevier	23.8	21.4	17.5	13.0	14.4	11.6	10.8	10.9	15.9	11.0	12.4	13.1	2.7	2.7	2.5	1.0	3.0	1.2
Sharp			19.2	15.8	12.9	15.2			20.4	15.1	15.8	16.0			1.2	1.2	0.7	1.4
Stone		25.2	14.5	22.2	17.6	15.4		19.6	13.7	12.6	12.9	17.0		3.9	1.9	3.1	3.7	2.2
Union	21.1	25.2	17.1	17.8	18.3	15.2	13.9	12.6	11.0	13.9	11.7	12.5	3.9	3.0	1.1	1.2	1.9	1.3
Van Buren	15.7		25.6	22.0	22.2	19.4	17.4		22.1	21.0	15.6	18.1	5.8		3.5	2.4	3.6	2.6
Washington	23.1	28.9	19.6	14.4	14.5	12.7	16.0	10.4	17.8	14.4	13.3	12.5	5.2	6.9	2.7	1.8	2.5	1.5
White	11.4	30.3	18.5	17.1	18.3	16.2	6.9	19.7	18.6	15.7	17.4	14.6	1.0	5.3	2.0	1.4	2.5	1.8
Woodruff			7.4	13.5	13.8	13.0			3.8	14.3	9.5	12.9			0.0	0.4	0.4	0.7
Yell			21.4	21.0	16.4	16.5			10.2	14.6	10.0	12.3			3.6	2.7	1.8	1.8
Cells containing	the symbo	l indicate an	area where d	lata are not a	vailable beca	ause the regi	on did not pa	rticipate that	vear.									

		Perc	entage of	<u>i Youth W</u>	ho Used (<u>Cocaine, I</u>	<u>/lethamph</u>	etamines	or Stimul	ants In Th	eir Lifetir	ne by Cou	inty		
County			Coci	aine				Metha	amphetam	nines			Stimu	lants	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	2.6	3.8	4.5	2.7	2.7	1.2	3.0	2.1	1.0	1.6	1.0	6.3	5.1	4.6	4.1
Ashley	1.8		2.5	1.1	3.2	1.2	2.5		2.5	3.3	2.3	5.7	5.0	5.1	4.2
Baxter					3.1	2.1				3.0	1.6			4.3	3.4
Benton	6.2	4.9	5.1	2.4	5.3	2.7	5.0	3.3	2.4	4.2	2.2	8.4	3.5	6.3	4.2
Boone				2.7	2.5	1.6			3.0	2.1	1.9		3.9	4.2	3.7
Bradley	1.6		6.2	0.0	1.8	0.8	1.0		0.6	2.4	0.3	6.2	1.0	3.0	1.8
Calhoun	2.4	1.2		1.2	1.0		2.5	1.2	1.5	0.5			3.0	3.6	
Carroll	2.8	2.3	4.8	2.7	4.7	2.0	3.0	2.6	3.0	3.8	1.6	5.5	2.9	3.3	2.8
Chicot	4.1		5.7	1.0	1.3	0.5	1.6		2.2	2.2	0.0	3.2	1.0	1.9	1.0
Clark	2.6	2.4	0.5	1.8	2.2	1.2	3.6	1.8	0.7	1.5	0.4	2.4	2.3	2.8	2.9
Clay	1.9	1.8	2.0	2.0	2.4	2.7	2.1	1.8	2.4	2.2	2.3	2.4	3.9	2.9	3.8
Cleburne	5.9			3.6	4.1	2.5	7.5		3.1	3.8	1.8		5.0	6.4	3.8
Cleveland						2.5					1.1				4.3
Columbia	0.0	1.4	1.0	0.5	0.0	2.0		1.4	0.0	0.0	2.0	0.9	0.5	0.0	2.7
Conway				2.0	2.0	1.4			1.1	2.4	1.4		1.7	4.2	2.5
Craighead	3.8	3.0	3.6	2.3	3.5	2.3	4.0	2.8	1.8	2.2	1.4	4.8	3.9	4.1	3.4
Crawford	4.0	2.3	2.6	2.5	3.1	2.1	3.0	7.0	2.8	3.1	2.2	4.3	2.9	4.3	3.4
Crittenden	3.8		0.0	2.0	2.7	2.4	2.0		1.9	2.1	1.6	1.6	2.5	3.8	2.5
Cross	4.5	2.2		3.3	4.8	3.3	6.8	4.5	3.3	3.9	2.0		6.3	5.9	4.5
Dallas	1.5	0.0	0.8	1.2	2.8	0.4	0.8	3.8	0.5	1.4	0.0	2.1	2.5	2.3	1.2
Desha				1.0	1.0				2.3	1.0			0.0	2.7	
Drew			2.6	0.8	2.1	1.4	<u> </u>		2.7	2.6	1.1	4.5	4.6	3.3	2.2
Faulkner			0.0	0.8	5.2	2.5			1.6	3.9	1.6	1.2	3.3	7.2	3.5
Franklin	1.9	2.1		2.7	3.3	2.7	1.2	5.2	2.5	4.8	3.5		1.8	3.7	3.8
Fulton		1.0	2.6	3.1	3.2	2.1		2.0	1.8	2.9	0.8	4.0	3.7	3.5	1.1
Cells containinç	; the symbol i	ndicate an area	where data are	e not available t	pecause the reg	jion did not part	icipate that year	:125							

		Percentac	<u>ge of Yout</u>	<u>h Who Us</u>	sed Cocai	ne, Metha	mphetam	ines or S	<u>timulants</u>	<u>in Their L</u>	ifetime b	y County,	cont.		
County			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetam	nines			Stimu	ilants	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	6.7	2.8	3.2	4.2	3.6	2.6	5.4	1.4	3.3	2.9	1.9	5.9	4.6	6.4	4.6
Grant	4.5	4.1	4.0	4.3	4.3	2.9	4.5	5.1	3.4	3.6	2.2	6.5	6.5	6.9	4.3
Greene	4.0	2.5	2.9	2.4	3.3	2.2	2.8	2.8	2.2	2.7	1.9	3.2	4.3	3.8	2.5
Hempstead	1.5		2.1		2.5	1.5	0.5			2.1	0.6	3.4		2.1	1.0
Hot Spring	3.7	2.8	3.7	1.8	3.6	2.1	4.0	2.6	1.5	2.5	1.2	4.7	2.6	3.5	2.7
Howard			0.8	0.5	1.4	1.0			0.0	2.0	1.0	0.9	1.5	2.7	1.0
Independence	3.7		3.0	2.9	3.1	2.2	3.7		3.1	3.1	1.8	5.6	3.7	3.4	2.4
Izard			3.1	2.4	2.9	2.3			1.8	2.3	2.6	2.8	3.9	3.2	4.0
Jackson	6.5		2.1	1.3	4.0	0.8	12.0		1.1	1.6	0.6	2.9	2.5	2.4	1.4
Jefferson	2.4		0.7	0.4	0.9	0.4	3.0		0.2	1.6	0.5	1.7	0.3	1.2	0.3
Johnson			3.0	3.5	1.8	1.4			6.9	2.4	1.4	4.4	7.6	3.5	1.9
Lafayette	0.6	3.7	1.2	0.6	0.8	0.8	1.7	4.9	1.3	0.8	0.4	1.2	1.9	2.5	0.8
Lawrence	2.5	1.6	2.0	1.7	2.5	1.9	5.4	3.0	2.5	2.8	1.5	4.2	3.0	4.6	2.8
Lee			0.0	0.0	0.9	0.3			1.0	1.4	0.0	0.0	1.0	1.4	0.3
Lincoln			3.9	1.7	2.5	2.3			1.8	1.5	0.9	5.8	2.5	2.5	2.3
Little River					3.1	1.5				2.7	1.3			3.5	1.9
Logan		3.1	2.6	2.1	2.9	1.5		3.5	1.4	3.8	1.1	3.4	2.5	2.2	2.6
Lonoke	3.9	5.1	2.7	2.5	3.6	2.0	4.6	5.4	2.0	2.9	1.5	5.0	4.5	5.1	3.4
Madison	2.9	3.5	2.2	2.2	3.9	3.3	2.7	2.4	3.6	3.2	2.8	4.8	2.5	5.0	3.5
Marion						2.5					1.9				5.1
Miller	3.6	2.4	1.9	3.1	2.1	2.1	2.9	2.6	2.7	2.6	1.7	4.2	3.9	4.1	2.3
Mississippi	2.6	4.4	2.4	2.0	3.1	1.3	3.6	3.5	1.4	2.7	0.8	3.9	2.3	3.4	1.0
Monroe		3.4	0.0	2.2	2.6	2.0		1.7	1.3	3.1	1.0	2.4	1.7	3.7	5.1
Montgomery	4.2			0.9	1.0	1.5	5.4		1.0	1.7	1.0		0.0	3.7	2.5
Nevada		0.8	1.2	1.5	2.2	2.1		1.1	2.6	1.7	2.1	2.3	1.9	4.3	1.8
Cells containing the	symbol indica	te an area whe	re data are not	available beca	use the region of	did not participa	te that year.								

		Percent	age of Yo	uth Who	Used Coc	aine, Meth	nampheta	mines or	<u>Stimulant</u>	<u>s in Their</u>	Lifetime	by County	I, cont.		
County			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines			Stimu	lants	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton		3.1			3.0	1.4		3.1		3.0	1.9			2.4	2.4
Ouachita	1.8		1.9	1.6	3.9	1.5	1.2		2.1	2.8	0.5	2.7	1.8	3.9	1.6
Perry			3.5	4.8	1.6	2.1			5.3	1.9	1.8	6.2	6.6	2.4	4.1
Phillips	4.5	0.0	0.0	1.0		0.0	3.4	0.0	0.3		0.0	2.3	0.6		0.3
Pike	3.8	3.0	3.5	5.9	1.1	1.8	4.2	2.6	3.3	0.8	2.0	3.9	4.9	3.7	2.5
Poinsett	3.4	4.9	2.3	2.4	2.7	2.1	3.7	4.9	3.5	2.9	2.4	5.8	2.7	4.4	3.9
Polk	4.1	5.9	2.8	1.6	2.9	1.0	4.1	3.3	1.5	1.9	1.4	4.1	2.0	2.2	1.2
Pope			3.4	1.8	2.8	2.5			2.2	3.0	1.4	5.4	5.4	3.6	3.5
Prairie 3.1 3.1 1.4 4.0 3.1 1.6 0.0 2.9 7.1 Pulaski 2.6 2.8 2.7 1.8 2.1 2.6 1.4 1.2 5.9 Randolph 3.2 4.3 4.2 3.0 3.7 1.4 3.3 3.7 2.1 2.7 1.3 4.1 3.4															2.9
Pulaski	2.6			2.8	2.7	1.8	2.1		2.6	1.4	1.2		5.9	3.3	2.9
Randolph	3.2	4.3	4.2	3.0	3.7	1.4	3.3	3.7	2.1	2.7	1.3	4.1	3.4	4.6	3.4
Saint Francis		3.7	3.5	0.7	1.0	0.2		1.9	0.9	1.0	0.0	3.7	0.0	2.1	0.8
Saline	4.2	4.1	2.8	1.7	2.4	2.4	4.7	5.7	1.3	1.4	1.5	6.5	3.5	3.6	5.1
Scott				2.6	3.6	1.7			2.6	6.1	2.2		3.2	7.2	2.5
Searcy		5.2	1.8		2.5	2.5		8.9		3.9	3.0	4.7		3.9	3.5
Sebastian	4.4	4.7	3.2	3.4	4.1	2.6	4.3	4.4	3.7	3.3	2.3	5.2	4.2	4.6	3.8
Sevier	4.6	1.9	3.7	3.6	4.3	1.8	3.1	2.5	2.3	4.3	1.3	5.6	1.9	2.8	2.2
Sharp			2.4	2.2	2.2	2.0			2.8	2.5	2.7	4.6	3.7	3.0	2.9
Stone		4.9	1.9	3.4	4.1	2.5		4.9	3.2	3.1	2.5	10.0	4.6	5.4	4.0
Union	2.5	2.8	1.4	2.5	2.7	1.8	2.8	3.5	2.3	2.3	1.5	3.5	2.7	2.9	2.4
Van Buren	5.0		3.4	3.3	5.4	2.4	5.0		5.5	3.8	3.6	7.7	4.9	4.6	4.6
Washington	4.3	7.1	4.6	3.0	3.6	2.2	4.6	6.2	3.2	3.5	1.6	5.7	3.1	3.7	2.6
White	1.0	5.9	3.1	2.4	3.4	2.1	1.0	5.0	2.7	3.3	1.9	4.8	4.9	5.3	4.1
Woodruff			1.3	0.7	1.3	1.1			1.7	0.9	1.1	0.0	1.1	2.2	2.2
Yell			5.2	3.0	2.0	2.2			5.0	2.1	2.7	7.1	7.5	2.7	4.2
Cells containing	the symbol ir	ndicate an area	where data are	not available b	ecause the regi	on did not parti	cipate that year								

			Perc	<u>entage</u>	of Yout	<u>h Who</u>	<u>Used S</u>	<u>edative</u>	<u>s, Ecst</u>	<u>asy, He</u>	<u>roin or</u>	Any Dr	ug in Tl	<u>neir Life</u>	etime by	<u>/ Count</u>	V			
County		Seda	tives				Ecs	asy				Her	oin				Any I	Drug		
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	14.4	11.6	9.4	10.5	4.0	3.0	3.9	2.9	2.1	1.0	0.5	0.9	0.7	0.5	33.9	31.4	40.2	34.6	27.4	26.6
Ashley	12.8	15.4	12.6	14.2	3.3		2.2	1.3	3.7	2.2	1.0	0.2	1.4	0.4	26.9		38.2	30.2	28.1	30.0
Baxter			14.7	13.9					3.6	1.6			2.2	1.1					30.1	27.6
Benton	17.7	10.5	14.1	12.1	3.6	3.9	4.5	1.6	3.7	2.6	2.3	0.8	2.4	1.1	36.6	31.7	49.4	29.2	29.6	26.4
Boone		13.8	13.6	12.9				2.4	3.3	1.7		1.4	1.1	1.0				30.8	29.1	25.8
Bradley	10.1	8.0	12.1	8.5	2.0		1.5	1.2	2.1	1.0	3.1	0.0	0.9	0.5	31.0		31.0	32.6	25.2	26.2
Calhoun		15.2	8.3		2.5	1.9		4.3	2.1			2.4	1.0		30.3	23.9		48.6	29.1	
Carroll	17.0	12.5	13.6	15.0	3.3	1.9	3.4	2.4	3.1	1.8	2.4	2.0	2.6	1.0	29.9	21.1	50.7	31.9	31.0	28.9
Chicot	12.3	6.9	10.4	5.2	2.3		3.2	1.5	2.8	0.5	1.1	1.0	0.9	0.0	25.7		36.9	32.5	31.0	22.1
Clark	9.0	9.5	12.8	12.0	2.6	2.4	0.9	1.3	2.6	1.6	0.5	0.6	0.8	0.6	24.2	31.3	31.1	23.7	26.8	28.6
Clay	13.8	14.6	15.6	15.9	2.1	1.2	1.6	1.8	1.7	2.2	0.7	0.8	0.2	1.5	21.7	17.8	38.9	34.4	29.0	31.4
Cleburne		15.3	20.4	15.1	6.8			2.6	4.1	2.9		1.2	2.6	1.0	39.4			40.1	38.3	31.5
Cleveland				13.6						2.3				1.4						28.5
Columbia	6.5	9.5	5.9	11.6	2.5	0.0	1.0	0.5	1.5	2.1	1.0	0.5	0.0	0.7	17.5	21.7	21.1	21.7	13.2	26.4
Conway		12.3	15.0	12.4				0.6	2.9	2.8		0.5	0.5	0.7				30.5	36.1	30.2
Craighead	13.7	13.6	13.6	12.6	3.0	2.5	2.5	1.8	2.7	2.2	1.5	1.0	1.1	1.0	26.1	25.7	37.6	28.6	25.6	25.8
Crawford	16.7	13.1	16.1	14.2	7.6	2.3	2.2	2.3	5.5	4.2	0.7	1.2	1.9	1.2	37.9	23.3	34.3	29.3	28.5	27.8
Crittenden	3.2	10.0	13.6	11.7	2.0		1.5	1.9	3.2	2.8	1.6	0.6	0.4	0.7	27.5		25.5	32.3	31.4	27.5
Cross		19.8	18.3	15.2	4.5	3.4		3.0	4.3	3.9		0.7	1.8	0.4	32.4	30.9		37.3	31.9	30.3
Dallas	6.1	12.0	14.9	10.3	1.1	0.0	1.3	1.6	4.2	0.8	0.4	0.0	0.5	0.0	24.3	40.7	37.1	43.4	28.0	28.0
Desha		7.1	10.2					0.0	2.0			0.0	0.7					19.3	29.7	
Drew	15.4	15.5	12.4	9.4			2.7	2.4	2.1	1.0	0.9	0.8	0.7	0.2			41.1	41.0	29.3	22.9
Faulkner	11.7	13.7	18.4	10.7			2.3	1.5	5.3	1.7	0.0	0.6	2.6	1.2			34.2	32.7	32.1	24.6
Franklin		10.8	15.4	15.2	3.8	2.1		1.9	4.5	3.7		0.9	1.1	1.0	26.3	40.4		36.4	28.1	28.7
Fulton	13.7	12.3	16.2	8.5		2.0	1.0	1.2	1.8	0.8	1.3	0.9	2.4	0.8		26.8	33.7	31.5	27.8	27.8
Cells containin	a the sym	bol indicate	an area wh	ere data are	e not availa	ble because	the region	did not part	icipate that	vear.										

		Per	centag	<u>e of Yo</u>	uth Wh	o Used	Sedat	ives, Ec	<u>stasy.</u>	<u>Heroin</u>	<u>or Any</u>	Drug i	<u>n Their</u>	<u>Lifetim</u>	<u>e by Co</u>	<u>ounty, c</u>	cont.			
County		Seda	tives				Ecs	tasy				Her	oin				Any	Drug		
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	14.2	15.5	16.8	15.0	4.9	2.3	2.1	3.0	3.7	3.4	2.3	1.8	2.1	1.2	38.9	27.1	39.0	37.1	34.3	31.0
Grant	14.4	16.4	17.3	14.8	6.3	7.2	3.1	2.9	4.6	2.9	0.8	0.7	2.1	1.0	33.6	40.8	42.5	36.3	30.5	29.9
Greene	13.2	16.4	15.1	14.5	1.6	3.3	1.9	2.6	3.0	2.1	1.1	0.8	1.6	0.7	27.7	25.1	33.4	32.9	26.2	27.9
Hempstead	6.6		12.0	9.2	2.2		2.2		1.7	0.9	0.7		1.7	0.0	27.8		42.5		29.3	23.5
Hot Spring	14.3	11.6	14.0	12.4	2.7	2.8	3.1	1.8	3.2	1.8	0.6	0.8	1.4	0.8	31.5	31.2	44.3	31.6	28.3	30.9
Howard	6.9	8.0	9.8	8.2			1.9	1.0	1.6	1.7	0.0	0.0	1.1	0.2			44.4	27.1	23.5	22.0
Independence	15.1	13.6	14.7	10.3	1.2		2.5	2.7	2.6	1.5	1.5	1.1	1.4	0.8	20.0		38.9	33.6	27.7	22.6
Izard	10.1	10.4	13.1	12.1			1.3	1.8	1.5	2.0	1.5	0.9	0.3	1.2			37.1	23.0	28.4	27.5
Jackson	15.0	11.0	13.6	12.4	5.3		1.3	1.7	2.4	0.4	0.8	0.8	1.2	0.0	34.2		40.0	33.5	26.2	24.9
Jefferson	6.7	5.8	5.1	5.1	4.5		1.8	0.7	2.3	0.9	0.4	0.4	1.3	0.1	28.4		30.8	24.6	25.3	29.6
Johnson	11.2	20.5	12.3	14.8			1.4	3.4	1.9	2.3	0.2	1.7	0.5	1.1			32.5	46.7	25.8	28.4
Lafayette	7.6	6.5	13.6	11.2	3.9	4.9	2.5	1.3	1.7	1.6	0.6	0.0	0.8	0.0	20.2	22.5	35.6	30.7	27.1	24.3
Lawrence	15.8	12.8	10.7	11.8	2.6	1.9	1.5	2.0	3.7	2.9	0.6	0.4	1.6	0.6	34.4	28.0	36.3	27.7	24.9	27.9
Lee	4.1	7.8	7.0	4.8			0.8	0.0	1.9	0.7	0.0	0.5	0.9	0.0			40.9	36.4	21.7	18.2
Lincoln	16.1	15.5	12.0	11.3			1.1	1.7	1.8	1.4	0.7	0.9	1.3	0.3			46.3	36.5	25.1	30.0
Little River			11.6	9.2					3.5	2.2			1.4	1.5					25.3	20.3
Logan	12.2	11.0	11.6	9.4		1.4	2.8	0.8	2.2	1.8	1.0	0.7	1.5	0.5		34.2	40.8	29.2	25.7	27.4
Lonoke	14.1	13.6	16.3	13.7	4.1	3.8	3.0	2.2	4.1	2.5	0.8	0.8	2.0	1.0	30.3	39.8	38.8	27.8	30.0	27.8
Madison	9.9	10.8	13.5	11.8	4.4	3.6	1.0	0.5	3.0	2.2	1.5	1.8	1.8	2.0	30.0	34.0	38.0	29.4	27.4	27.5
Marion				16.4						1.1				2.2						30.9
Miller	10.5	15.7	15.2	14.9	4.5	5.1	2.8	4.3	1.7	2.4	0.7	1.5	1.3	0.8	37.5	38.0	36.4	34.3	27.5	30.2
Mississippi	13.1	11.4	12.2	8.7	3.4	3.1	1.6	2.2	4.0	1.3	0.0	1.0	1.5	0.6	34.9	34.0	39.5	33.2	27.9	24.4
Monroe	4.5	10.7	11.9	14.3		3.4	0.0	0.8	3.1	4.1	0.0	0.9	1.2	3.1		42.0	40.5	28.4	26.5	24.2
Montgomery		9.3	8.4	15.3	5.5			0.0	2.7	3.0		0.0	0.3	0.0	32.6			24.5	29.2	30.5
Nevada	7.0	8.2	14.2	7.7		1.9	0.5	1.3	2.6	1.0	0.7	0.9	0.9	0.7		30.2	27.7	26.7	24.6	22.9
Cells containing the	symbol ir	ndicate an a	rea where	data are no	t available l	because the	e region did	not particip	oate that ye	ar.										

		F	Percent	age of	Youth W	<u>/ho Use</u>	ed Seda	<u>atives, l</u>	Ecstasy	<u>, Heroii</u>	<u>n or An</u>	<mark>y Drug</mark> i	in Their	Lifetim	<u>e by C</u>	<u>ounty, c</u>	cont.			
County		Seda	tives				Ecst	tasy				Her	oin				Any	Drug		
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton			7.8	11.5		3.1			2.7	1.0			1.4	0.5		26.8			29.2	25.0
Ouachita	11.9	13.0	15.7	10.1	1.2		2.0	2.0	3.4	2.4	0.5	0.9	1.1	0.1	32.3		38.2	34.5	31.2	26.7
Perry	15.1	19.5	13.0	14.3			3.3	3.1	3.5	2.8	1.4	2.6	0.5	0.7			45.5	40.3	29.4	30.1
Phillips	4.4	5.9		8.0	3.4	3.2	0.0	0.1		1.1	0.0	0.0		0.0	32.6	10.0	15.8	25.3		20.3
Pike	15.4	12.9	12.2	15.9	5.0	1.7	1.9	2.6	1.1	1.8	1.2	1.6	0.0	0.7	26.2	31.9	37.5	32.0	22.9	32.6
Poinsett	14.5	16.0	17.6	16.1	3.1	5.4	2.5	1.7	2.5	1.7	1.0	0.5	1.3	1.2	31.6	26.0	41.9	35.2	30.7	30.5
Polk	10.0	10.3	12.8	10.6	4.1	1.3	0.9	2.1	1.5	1.4	0.5	0.6	1.7	0.8	27.9	24.3	34.0	26.0	25.6	23.3
Pope	12.4	17.4	12.0	12.1			2.0	1.8	2.3	2.2	1.8	1.2	0.7	0.7			35.3	36.7	26.4	28.9
Prairie		15.0	7.2	9.2	3.2			3.9	2.2	3.5		0.8	0.0	0.6	40.6			35.2	24.3	24.9
Pulaski		16.0	10.0	10.0	2.7			2.6	2.4	2.1		1.2	1.6	0.9	24.1			39.1	26.3	27.5
Randolph	16.8	12.7	13.8	10.1	2.9	2.3	1.6	2.2	2.7	1.6	1.1	0.7	1.6	0.5	31.7	26.0	41.7	31.6	30.5	25.9
Saint Francis	11.1	8.1	6.2	6.6		3.7	2.5	0.7	1.0	0.8	0.0	0.0	1.0	0.8		40.2	44.3	24.3	19.1	20.7
Saline	17.8	14.5	13.5	14.1	4.7	3.8	1.4	1.8	2.5	3.1	0.5	1.5	1.3	2.0	28.9	32.2	38.5	29.3	26.8	26.6
Scott		11.8	17.8	10.9				2.4	5.0	3.1		1.3	2.2	1.4				31.7	31.7	25.2
Searcy	16.5		19.4	14.9		4.2	2.5		3.4	3.0	2.4		2.3	1.2		33.5	46.1		37.6	30.5
Sebastian	12.0	13.2	13.7	13.0	5.7	5.7	3.6	3.7	4.3	3.8	1.3	1.5	2.0	1.1	29.5	30.9	36.7	33.6	29.0	31.1
Sevier	14.6	10.9	12.2	9.8	4.1	3.1	2.5	1.0	2.5	0.5	0.6	0.7	2.1	0.7	30.8	29.9	33.7	26.8	25.1	24.6
Sharp	14.6	14.7	14.6	14.7			1.2	1.4	2.2	2.1	0.9	1.0	0.7	1.1			41.9	29.5	27.1	30.8
Stone	10.9	15.5	13.2	13.6		2.0	0.0	2.1	2.4	1.2	1.8	2.0	2.0	1.9		35.3	30.2	35.9	25.9	31.3
Union	11.8	14.1	13.7	13.7	3.3	2.4	1.7	2.0	2.9	2.9	0.5	0.8	1.3	1.1	32.5	33.2	32.7	33.9	30.3	28.4
Van Buren	17.3	17.9	18.0	15.2	4.9		3.8	3.2	4.2	3.2	1.7	2.2	2.4	1.8	25.0		48.9	40.2	33.3	32.0
Washington	12.1	9.4	11.5	10.6	5.1	4.6	3.1	2.0	3.1	1.8	1.6	1.1	1.5	0.7	32.8	34.1	40.1	28.2	25.6	24.8
White	14.5	15.1	18.0	14.5	1.0	4.7	2.6	2.6	3.5	2.7	1.1	0.9	1.5	1.4	17.2	39.6	38.4	33.5	32.6	29.4
Woodruff	3.8	13.4	11.6	14.0			0.0	1.5	2.2	1.1	1.3	0.4	0.4	0.7			22.6	33.1	22.5	25.3
Yell	12.3	15.4	13.7	12.9			3.6	2.5	1.4	2.2	0.0	1.2	0.5	1.0			36.7	31.6	26.9	26.2
Cells containing	the symb	ol indicate a	an area whe	ere data are	not availabl	e because	the region c	lid not partic	cipate that y	rear.										

		Perc	centage	<u>of Youth</u>	Who Us	sed Alco	hol, Cig	arettes (<u>or Smok</u>	<u>eless To</u>	bacco D	ouring th	<u>ne Past 3</u>	0 Days	<u>by Coun</u>	ity		
Ocumbu			Alco	hol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeles	s Tobaco	;0	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	35.1	25.7	28.7	32.4	29.7	27.5	17.7	14.0	17.2	14.7	12.6	12.8	9.1	5.5	5.6	4.5	6.4	7.3
Ashley	26.5		28.9	20.4	27.3	24.7	15.5		15.1	12.4	15.8	15.1	7.0		10.6	7.1	9.9	8.4
Baxter					22.4	16.9					14.6	11.9					6.2	4.2
Benton	30.4	28.8	26.9	19.5	23.0	19.3	16.8	15.8	16.1	9.8	9.7	9.0	6.7	9.4	9.0	5.2	5.1	4.7
Boone				23.0	21.6	19.0				16.5	15.5	14.4				10.4	12.0	9.2
Bradley	28.0		25.7	22.5	27.3	24.2	18.8		20.8	11.0	17.3	13.9	9.1		14.7	6.4	9.1	7.9
Calhoun	29.1	31.2		39.5	31.3		15.6	14.6		22.0	14.6		10.6	13.5		13.8	9.4	
Carroll	28.2	24.7	30.9	23.1	24.9	23.6	19.0	12.4	18.2	13.2	14.5	9.9	9.3	9.9	8.2	6.6	6.3	5.8
Chicot	21.5		23.6	26.2	15.1	16.2	12.1		16.3	11.9	10.4	8.7	3.5		5.8	5.4	3.5	2.9
Clark	26.9	24.1	21.5	18.7	23.8	23.2	17.9	13.3	11.2	8.0	11.1	11.9	15.2	10.8	8.2	6.9	6.8	8.5
Clay	24.6	14.5	23.1	24.3	25.8	21.7	14.8	9.8	17.7	17.7	19.2	20.7	9.8	8.7	11.0	8.5	14.1	10.1
Cleburne	37.7			29.4	32.8	24.2	27.5			15.5	19.0	15.9	15.9			6.8	13.6	9.7
Cleveland						29.3						21.5						12.6
Columbia	35.0	18.1	19.1	24.9	10.3	23.3	10.0	13.9	11.7	9.5	10.3	13.9	20.0	9.7	10.8	6.1	8.8	6.2
Conway				26.4	27.0	23.6				9.7	12.8	11.5				5.4	10.5	6.8
Craighead	27.9	24.7	24.8	21.8	20.4	19.4	15.8	14.1	14.4	12.0	12.0	12.2	6.0	6.2	6.0	5.9	6.0	6.2
Crawford	25.4	27.9	18.9	19.0	22.5	18.8	19.8	20.9	15.1	10.5	12.9	9.8	12.1	9.3	9.3	5.8	11.0	8.1
Crittenden	24.5		15.8	22.1	20.0	20.1	20.8		5.1	13.1	13.5	13.1	7.5		1.3	5.0	5.1	4.8
Cross	30.5	33.0		38.6	28.5	25.0	23.8	22.7		17.3	15.0	14.8	12.2	16.0		7.7	11.5	9.0
Dallas	25.8	48.1	27.2	30.9	26.5	22.7	16.5	14.8	19.4	21.8	18.6	12.0	7.1	3.7	8.4	10.7	6.0	7.5
Desha				8.9	28.7					4.2	15.0					3.2	6.5	
Drew			30.8	28.1	19.1	17.4			21.1	16.4	11.2	11.4			13.5	10.7	9.8	6.7
Faulkner			15.4	23.5	31.2	21.2			7.7	11.5	16.5	11.6			10.0	12.3	13.7	10.1
Franklin	27.7	37.5		34.2	31.1	25.9	14.1	29.9		14.9	14.8	14.4	13.9	26.8		7.1	10.2	10.5
Fulton		22.0	24.3	24.3	22.7	23.7		15.0	14.5	17.0	13.3	16.0		19.0	9.1	8.4	11.2	14.2
Cells containin	a the symb	ol indicate al	n area where	data are not	available bed	cause the red	ion did not pa	articipate that	t vear.									

	Per	centage	e of You	<u>th Who</u>	Used A	<u>cohol, (</u>	<u>Cigarette</u>	<u>es or Sn</u>	<u>nokeles</u> :	<u>s Tobac</u>	<u>co Durii</u>	<u>ng the P</u>	<u>ast 30 D</u>	ays by	<u>County,</u>	cont.		
Country			Alco	hol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeles	s Tobac	со	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	24.4	23.1	22.2	24.6	22.8	20.3	21.9	12.0	13.5	14.7	13.0	11.1	5.8	7.3	3.4	4.3	6.1	4.3
Grant	27.4	40.8	22.1	22.8	24.2	22.9	21.2	24.5	14.8	13.6	14.1	11.9	7.1	16.3	8.5	7.7	9.4	7.5
Greene	24.4	22.3	21.2	22.8	20.9	18.7	11.5	15.0	13.2	15.9	13.6	10.5	8.3	8.5	9.1	12.4	8.3	8.0
Hempstead	23.0		22.9		25.7	19.5	14.2		15.4		15.8	8.0	4.8		3.3		7.5	3.0
Hot Spring	24.3	22.7	26.4	20.5	22.9	20.7	18.2	15.2	15.8	12.5	14.4	12.3	12.3	7.0	13.4	9.0	11.7	9.6
Howard			20.8	21.2	19.3	21.3			8.4	10.6	10.5	10.3			5.2	9.8	7.0	7.0
Independence	15.2		27.7	27.6	22.3	19.2	17.3		20.2	18.0	13.2	12.1	12.5		9.0	7.4	7.3	8.4
Izard			23.1	24.2	19.8	24.4			17.7	16.1	13.7	14.7			10.6	9.7	7.6	14.2
Jackson	23.5		21.1	20.8	22.8	20.4	23.5		12.1	9.4	14.0	13.0	9.1		9.2	8.1	8.4	9.5
Jefferson	27.6		17.0	16.7	21.4	24.4	20.8		8.9	7.4	6.1	4.6	7.9		2.4	1.9	1.9	2.0
Johnson			18.3	31.0	20.5	23.7			8.1	21.0	8.7	10.0			1.6	14.5	7.6	9.7
Lafayette	27.5	31.0	30.4	26.2	23.7	27.6	14.4	18.6	20.3	13.0	14.0	16.1	9.9	13.8	10.4	7.7	9.3	7.7
Lawrence	31.9	22.2	27.4	22.3	21.0	21.7	23.5	19.1	18.8	15.4	15.5	13.9	12.6	7.4	12.8	7.1	10.4	9.8
Lee			27.6	24.5	13.5	12.5			14.7	9.6	7.0	4.5			1.6	4.0	1.9	1.4
Lincoln			24.1	22.5	20.9	27.3			16.0	13.8	10.9	14.5			9.7	8.3	8.4	9.3
Little River					24.8	17.7					10.7	6.8					6.2	4.7
Logan		29.3	27.1	21.4	22.4	21.0		22.1	16.4	11.4	13.5	13.3		13.4	7.6	10.1	11.0	9.0
Lonoke	25.9	37.0	22.1	20.4	24.1	21.0	16.6	21.8	14.3	9.6	11.1	10.4	6.4	13.4	7.8	4.5	6.5	5.5
Madison	33.2	33.7	25.2	25.8	22.9	20.8	19.3	18.2	15.7	15.7	13.5	13.8	16.9	15.4	13.3	13.2	11.7	11.7
Marion						21.1						11.6						9.1
Miller	32.5	35.7	21.5	26.8	21.4	20.3	20.0	17.1	11.4	14.4	15.4	12.2	7.3	9.5	7.5	9.4	11.5	6.6
Mississippi	28.8	28.3	24.5	20.2	20.3	16.2	21.6	18.0	18.0	13.3	11.0	10.1	7.3	9.5	4.4	5.2	7.6	3.9
Monroe		39.0	10.2	21.5	19.5	24.0		14.0	7.7	12.8	14.6	11.5		5.0	4.3	6.1	4.9	5.2
Montgomery	34.0			22.4	24.4	33.5	25.8			10.4	13.7	14.4	13.4			10.6	7.0	17.3
Nevada		29.0	18.6	20.3	23.3	15.0		17.3	9.8	14.3	12.9	11.4		10.1	7.1	9.0	7.8	5.0
Cells containing the	symbol ind	licate an area	a where data	are not ava	ilable becau	se the regior	did not part	icipate that y	rear.									

		Percent	<u>age of Y</u>	outh Wh	no Used	Alcohol	, Cigare	<u>ttes or S</u>	mokele	<u>ss Toba</u>	<u>cco Duri</u>	ng the F	<u>Past 30 [</u>	Days by	County,	cont.		
County			Alco	hol					Cigar	ettes				Sn	nokeless	s Tobaco	;0	
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton		26.5			22.0	18.2		22.7			12.5	8.7		16.6			8.1	13.4
Ouachita	21.8		24.9	24.2	25.8	21.5	16.5		14.7	13.8	16.9	10.9	5.3		6.7	7.1	11.2	4.3
Perry			27.2	27.8	21.6	26.1			18.6	18.0	13.2	13.7			8.9	9.0	6.0	7.2
Phillips	34.3	11.7	11.1	15.0		11.4	14.6	4.8	6.4	7.3		4.9	5.6	3.2	2.1	2.4		1.1
Pike	35.0	30.3	24.1	23.6	26.6	22.9	18.3	20.9	18.4	22.6	14.4	13.8	16.3	14.5	12.2	9.1	5.7	8.2
Poinsett	27.7	26.3	28.6	27.8	19.9	22.7	21.0	21.7	19.3	16.1	12.5	16.1	7.6	10.0	10.2	11.7	9.3	8.1
Polk	28.9	17.4	27.5	23.1	26.9	19.3	18.2	15.4	13.3	9.7	17.1	10.9	13.4	18.7	18.6	7.0	6.6	6.1
Pope			20.0	28.8	20.4	20.9			12.7	19.4	10.7	10.6			8.0	18.3	7.2	6.5
Prairie	41.5			28.9	20.5	20.9	24.6			20.5	9.0	18.1	20.0			11.3	4.7	10.6
Pulaski	18.3			26.0	26.1	17.6	7.6			13.4	13.0	8.0	2.6			7.2	7.2	2.9
Randolph	31.8	26.5	29.4	28.9	17.7	24.4	19.6	16.3	21.9	16.8	7.5	14.4	8.5	8.0	14.6	12.2	2.9	12.6
Saint Francis		31.8	32.2	11.5	30.9	14.5		16.7	21.1	10.9	14.8	6.1		6.5	10.4	5.1	13.6	2.7
Saline	27.1	24.4	26.2	20.6	18.6	22.8	16.0	17.5	14.2	10.9	7.2	14.0	7.3	10.9	15.1	7.2	6.2	7.4
Scott				31.0	21.9	27.5				17.3	10.8	16.0				17.2	7.9	13.4
Searcy		28.1	33.1		22.3	18.4		22.9	21.4		17.3	17.2		13.4	15.3		10.3	10.8
Sebastian	22.0	25.0	22.5	23.4	27.0	22.3	14.3	13.2	11.8	11.2	20.8	9.8	5.8	4.2	4.3	4.5	14.1	4.3
Sevier	35.2	29.2	29.7	28.3	22.3	21.2	17.1	17.0	19.0	14.1	10.7	10.6	12.9	11.3	12.9	12.5	5.7	8.0
Sharp			28.4	23.8	25.5	25.6			24.4	13.4	12.7	17.9			14.0	11.4	8.4	14.6
Stone		31.7	25.5	25.4	22.8	14.8		25.0	10.5	21.2	15.3	14.0		11.5	12.5	14.3	14.1	11.5
Union	27.4	24.4	17.0	20.1	19.3	21.7	17.6	14.2	12.3	11.8	15.6	11.3	7.3	6.4	4.6	5.8	13.9	5.2
Van Buren	12.3		28.2	27.4	20.0	27.2	14.8		17.7	18.8	11.8	15.4	5.8		10.5	9.3	7.5	7.6
Washington	30.4	30.9	23.8	19.3	26.5	17.1	15.8	19.6	14.4	9.4	17.6	7.9	7.3	7.4	7.8	6.4	10.0	4.1
White	17.3	32.3	22.9	22.2	20.7	23.2	15.4	22.4	17.3	13.8	9.6	13.2	6.7	11.3	10.9	11.2	5.6	8.3
Woodruff			14.8	21.6	25.9	17.9			11.1	13.4	16.3	14.3			6.5	8.4	12.8	4.8
Yell			29.3	22.7	16.8	19.7			24.1	13.8	10.8	9.6			10.5	5.9	7.8	8.4
Cells containing	the symbo	l indicate an	area where o	lata are not a	vailable beca	ause the regi	on did not pa	rticipate that	vear.									

		Pe	rcentag	<u>e of You</u>	th Who	<u>Used Ma</u>	<u>arijuana,</u>	Inhalan	ts or Ha	llucinog	ens Dur	<u>ing the</u>	<u> Past 30</u>	<u>Days by</u>	County			
Ocumbu			Marij	uana					Inha	ants					Hallucir	nogens		
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Arkansas	15.7	13.9	14.9	9.1	9.6	5.6	2.0	3.8	3.5	4.0	6.4	4.2	1.2	0.6	1.0	0.0	1.1	0.3
Ashley	9.8		7.9	6.3	8.2	6.6	3.8		4.6	4.2	4.1	4.6	0.8		1.3	0.2	1.3	0.1
Baxter					8.8	6.3					4.4	3.0					1.4	0.7
Benton	12.5	11.5	12.2	4.8	8.7	6.4	7.5	5.6	6.1	4.8	6.4	4.1	2.4	1.9	1.4	0.2	1.7	0.7
Boone				8.3	6.2	5.6				6.6	5.2	4.9				0.9	0.6	0.5
Bradley	8.1		4.4	6.4	7.9	4.6	3.3		4.6	2.9	4.2	4.1	0.6		0.0	0.2	0.3	0.3
Calhoun	4.9	5.6		9.5	5.7		5.9	1.2		3.6	4.7		1.0	0.6		0.0	0.5	
Carroll	9.8	8.1	12.8	5.9	10.1	9.0	5.9	4.8	6.7	5.1	5.4	6.4	0.6	1.7	1.7	0.9	1.6	0.6
Chicot	9.6		8.0	8.3	9.1	5.0	2.9		2.8	10.2	1.6	1.9	1.0		0.7	0.5	0.9	0.0
Clark	9.3	4.8	6.8	2.9	4.9	6.8	3.1	5.4	4.5	4.7	4.2	5.1	3.1	0.6	0.0	0.4	0.8	0.1
Clay	6.4	2.3	6.9	9.6	6.8	8.3	5.1	1.8	5.3	4.4	4.4	5.7	1.6	0.0	0.6	0.8	1.5	0.2
Cleburne	13.1			9.3	13.2	8.0	11.9			7.5	6.2	3.8	0.7			0.8	1.6	0.5
Cleveland						5.9						4.5						0.0
Columbia	7.7	6.9	2.8	2.5	0.0	6.1	0.0	2.9	3.7	4.5	2.9	4.8	0.0	0.0	0.9	0.5	0.0	0.0
Conway				10.0	12.7	8.0				2.7	5.2	3.0				0.5	0.7	0.1
Craighead	9.8	7.5	8.1	6.1	7.0	6.1	4.0	4.2	4.9	4.2	5.0	4.9	1.0	1.4	0.5	0.5	0.9	0.7
Crawford	14.4	0.0	6.1	6.6	8.2	5.8	6.0	0.0	3.2	5.2	5.0	4.6	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.7	1.2	0.5
Crittenden	15.1		4.5	10.0	9.1	10.0	1.9		4.2	4.8	4.1	4.0	1.9		0.0	0.4	0.9	0.5
Cross	10.7	11.7		9.9	10.0	9.1	4.5	7.3		5.0	6.9	7.1	2.2	2.8		2.0	1.4	0.1
Dallas	6.5	18.5	9.5	7.5	8.8	6.0	4.4	3.8	7.0	8.1	8.8	3.7	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.8	1.9	0.0
Desha				2.0	6.8					5.1	3.4					2.0	0.0	
Drew			7.9	6.0	5.5	4.1			3.1	7.6	3.3	3.2			1.3	0.0	0.7	0.0
Faulkner			5.2	7.4	9.4	4.4			5.6	7.8	5.1	5.5			0.0	0.2	1.4	0.5
Franklin	5.9	13.5		5.3	8.6	7.0	6.5	6.2		1.9	3.7	2.8	0.9	0.0		0.0	1.3	0.6
Fulton		8.1	9.0	5.8	4.4	4.0		3.0	3.2	7.1	6.2	8.6		1.0	0.6	0.3	0.6	0.3
Cells containing	the symbo	ol indicate an	area where	data are not	available bed	cause the red	ion did not pa	articipate that	t vear.									

Percentage of Youth Who Used Marijuana, Inhalants or Hallucinogens During the Past 30 Days by County, cont.																		
County			Marij	uana					Inha	ants		Hallucinogens						
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	14.7	9.6	10.2	11.2	9.8	9.8	6.7	8.2	4.9	5.5	6.5	4.8	1.8	1.1	0.8	1.0	1.1	0.7
Grant	15.0	29.6	10.5	8.2	10.0	6.1	2.7	5.1	6.5	5.1	5.4	4.4	0.0	3.1	0.7	0.5	1.3	0.5
Greene	5.6	7.1	6.8	7.7	6.8	5.6	7.6	5.8	6.7	5.9	5.4	5.2	1.2	2.2	0.6	0.3	0.7	0.5
Hempstead	8.8		8.1		7.1	7.2	4.2		4.9		5.8	4.3	0.7		0.2		1.2	0.3
Hot Spring	10.1	10.2	9.5	7.9	7.9	6.4	5.5	6.3	5.3	5.0	5.2	6.0	1.6	1.2	1.3	0.3	1.0	0.2
Howard			6.6	5.9	3.2	6.4			5.0	7.7	7.5	3.4			0.0	0.0	1.4	0.0
Independence	5.0		8.7	8.0	6.9	4.1	3.7		5.3	5.4	3.6	3.6	0.0		0.5	1.0	0.7	0.2
Izard			6.3	5.9	4.1	5.2			5.1	4.4	3.5	5.5			0.9	0.0	0.3	0.3
Jackson	12.3		7.1	4.1	5.8	4.0	5.3		4.3	4.3	3.0	4.6	2.0		0.4	0.4	0.4	0.0
Jefferson	9.3		5.5	7.2	10.5	9.5	4.9		6.3	3.6	3.5	3.5	1.8		0.2	0.2	1.0	0.3
Johnson			5.3	11.6	6.1	6.6			5.1	8.1	4.7	5.0			0.7	1.2	0.8	0.5
Lafayette	4.5	11.6	10.6	8.9	8.5	6.7	2.8	1.2	3.5	2.5	4.2	3.2	0.0	1.2	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.4
Lawrence	12.2	7.4	7.1	5.9	7.4	6.5	4.5	5.9	7.1	4.8	5.1	3.7	1.7	1.2	0.7	0.4	1.8	0.4
Lee			16.2	11.1	3.3	5.5			1.6	1.5	2.8	3.4			0.8	1.0	0.0	0.0
Lincoln			5.5	10.0	9.2	7.8			3.0	4.2	2.5	3.5			0.3	0.8	0.5	0.3
Little River					7.4	3.6					5.6	3.2					0.8	0.4
Logan		9.3	5.3	6.0	5.7	5.0		7.4	9.0	5.1	4.0	4.2		1.7	0.6	0.5	0.8	0.1
Lonoke	11.4	16.1	10.4	6.9	8.8	7.7	4.6	5.2	6.2	3.7	4.5	4.2	1.8	2.4	0.7	1.2	1.0	0.4
Madison	9.5	9.6	7.9	7.4	8.2	7.0	4.0	5.7	4.2	4.0	4.6	3.2	0.9	1.0	0.5	1.0	1.6	1.1
Marion						7.7						4.4						0.0
Miller	15.1	12.4	9.6	11.4	7.1	9.1	4.0	4.0	6.3	2.9	7.9	3.7	1.1	2.3	0.5	1.1	0.4	0.6
Mississippi	12.3	10.5	13.6	9.0	7.7	6.3	5.0	4.8	5.8	5.5	4.0	3.3	0.7	0.9	0.4	0.8	1.4	0.3
Monroe		17.4	8.0	8.2	8.9	12.1		3.9	4.3	4.2	4.6	4.1		1.1	0.0	0.3	1.1	0.0
Montgomery	11.6			6.5	8.4	6.5	6.4			0.9	5.0	7.9	2.1			0.0	0.0	0.0
Nevada		8.7	5.3	5.0	4.7	4.2		3.8	5.1	6.2	4.7	3.1		0.5	0.2	0.3	0.9	0.7
Cells containing the	symbol indic	cate an area	where data a	are not avail	able because	the region	did not partic	pate that ye	ar.									

Percentage of Youth Who Used Marijuana, Inhalants or Hallucinogens During the Past 30 Days by County, cont.																		
County			Marij	uana		ľ		Inhal	ants		Hallucinogens							
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Newton		10.9			6.1	4.7		5.4			8.4	5.7		2.4			1.4	0.0
Ouachita	12.0		10.3	8.0	12.9	6.0	3.6		2.9	3.7	5.6	3.7	0.0		0.3	0.5	1.1	0.4
Perry			7.1	8.8	9.6	5.0			7.5	4.2	3.8	4.1			1.5	1.3	0.7	0.2
Phillips	8.0	0.0	6.7	7.0		7.2	4.5	0.0	0.0	3.6		2.1	0.6	0.0	2.2	0.3		0.5
Pike	8.7	5.6	8.8	12.0	5.7	5.7	5.3	6.0	6.8	3.9	5.0	5.5	1.1	0.9	0.2	0.3	0.5	0.2
Poinsett	12.9	12.3	10.9	8.2	5.0	7.7	4.3	2.7	5.0	5.0	6.1	6.3	1.9	2.2	1.3	0.5	0.3	0.3
Polk	10.9	6.4	4.4	4.2	8.2	4.3	4.4	3.9	8.3	5.1	6.0	5.4	1.8	2.0	0.4	0.3	0.7	0.1
Pope			7.3	10.7	6.2	7.6			4.8	6.5	4.3	4.4			0.0	1.8	0.7	0.6
Prairie	18.5			10.9	8.0	7.5	4.6			3.9	4.3	2.9	1.5			0.8	0.7	0.0
Pulaski	8.5			12.6	5.8	8.1	3.0			4.3	2.9	4.1	0.9			0.4	0.0	0.7
Randolph	10.0	8.2	8.9	6.5	8.9	5.1	7.5	4.1	6.7	5.1	3.1	5.0	1.2	1.4	1.1	0.4	1.0	0.2
Saint Francis		14.2	21.4	5.0	8.8	3.7		3.7	4.5	0.7	6.4	2.0		2.8	3.5	0.0	0.9	0.0
Saline	11.0	10.0	11.1	7.5	7.2	8.7	3.7	5.3	4.9	5.4	1.0	4.5	1.3	1.1	0.9	0.5	1.0	0.9
Scott				9.7	7.0	7.3				4.9	3.5	5.6				0.3	0.8	1.1
Searcy		9.0	9.6		8.4	4.5		3.1	6.9		7.2	2.2		2.1	0.6		1.9	0.5
Sebastian	13.2	11.3	10.2	8.9	10.7	9.6	4.1	4.5	4.1	4.2	5.6	4.1	1.4	1.8	1.0	0.7	2.0	1.1
Sevier	9.9	7.8	7.9	6.0	9.5	3.7	2.5	5.2	5.0	3.9	4.5	4.3	1.5	0.8	0.4	0.7	1.3	0.2
Sharp			8.5	6.5	8.8	4.4			6.2	4.0	6.1	6.4			0.3	0.2	2.1	0.4
Stone		11.7	3.6	11.5	5.7	4.3		6.8	1.9	5.4	6.7	8.7		0.0	0.0	1.1	0.5	0.9
Union	10.2	10.5	6.2	8.3	8.5	7.5	4.1	5.2	2.9	5.3	5.1	4.0	1.6	0.6	0.6	0.3	1.0	0.5
Van Buren	10.7		10.6	10.0	8.5	7.8	5.8		8.9	7.1	3.9	6.0	0.8		1.0	1.0	1.2	0.8
Washington	11.4	15.1	9.4	6.2	11.4	5.8	6.1	2.9	5.8	5.3	6.2	4.1	2.1	2.2	0.8	0.8	1.2	0.4
White	4.8	14.6	8.1	5.7	7.0	6.0	2.0	5.9	6.8	5.2	4.4	4.3	0.0	2.5	0.4	0.6	1.0	0.4
Woodruff			4.9	5.4	7.7	6.4			0.0	7.5	6.6	6.1			0.0	0.0	0.7	0.4
Yell			15.8	9.6	6.9	7.1			3.4	4.7	3.4	2.6			0.0	0.5	0.4	0.8
Cells containing th	e symbol ir	ndicate an ar	rea where da	ta are not av	ailable becau	use the region	n did not part	icipate that y	/ear.									

		Percentag	e of Yout	<u>n Who Us</u>	ed Cocair	ne, Metha	<u>mphetami</u>	<u>nes or St</u>	imulants	During the	<u>e Past 30</u>	Days by	County			
County			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines		Stimulants				
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	
Arkansas	0.4	1.3	2.8	0.9	1.4	0.3	1.0	0.9	0.0	0.9	0.0	3.0	1.8	2.3	1.4	
Ashley	0.4		1.6	0.4	1.6	0.1	1.5		1.1	1.5	0.4	3.2	1.9	3.3	1.8	
Baxter					1.0	0.4				1.0	0.4			1.5	0.6	
Benton	2.3	1.0	1.2	0.5	2.0	0.6	1.9	1.1	0.9	1.2	0.6	4.5	1.2	2.8	1.5	
Boone				1.0	0.6	0.4			0.8	0.5	0.3		1.3	1.9	0.8	
Bradley	0.7		0.0	0.5	0.9	0.0			0.3	1.8	0.3	6.3	0.2	1.8	0.5	
Calhoun	0.0	0.0		2.5	0.5		0.5	0.6	0.8	0.5			3.0	2.1		
Carroll	0.9	1.1	1.8	0.7	1.7	0.5	1.0	1.7	0.4	1.6	0.8	3.1	0.7	1.2	1.9	
Chicot	1.3		1.8	0.5	0.6	0.5	0.6		0.5	0.6	0.0	1.1	0.5	1.6	0.0	
Clark	1.0	0.0	0.0	0.8	0.5	0.4	2.1	0.6	0.2	0.8	0.1	0.7	1.0	0.8	0.7	
Clay	1.1	0.6	1.1	0.5	0.7	0.7	1.3	0.0	0.7	0.7	0.3	1.1	1.6	1.0	1.5	
Cleburne	1.5			1.2	1.1	0.9	0.8		0.5	1.0	0.5		1.4	2.8	0.9	
Cleveland						0.0					0.0				1.4	
Columbia	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.5	1.5	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.0	0.7	1.0	1.0	0.0	2.7	
Conway				0.2	0.5	0.3			0.2	0.5	0.3		0.9	1.9	0.3	
Craighead	1.1	1.0	1.2	0.8	1.6	0.9	1.6	1.1	0.5	1.2	0.4	2.3	1.3	2.1	1.1	
Crawford	0.0	2.3	0.4	0.7	1.0	0.5	0.5	2.3	0.8	1.0	0.5	1.8	0.9	2.2	1.1	
Crittenden	2.0		1.6	0.8	0.7	0.7			0.5	0.2	0.5	0.0	1.2	1.9	1.2	
Cross	1.1	0.6		1.0	1.6	0.6	2.8	1.1	0.7	1.8	0.7		1.3	2.3	1.9	
Dallas	0.4	0.0	1.3	0.4	0.5	0.4	0.4	3.8	0.0	1.4	0.0	0.4	1.2	0.9	0.4	
Desha				1.0	0.0				3.4	0.0			0.0	1.7		
Drew			0.9	1.5	1.7	0.3			0.0	1.4	0.0	2.2	0.8	0.7	0.6	
Faulkner			1.1	0.4	1.8	0.7			0.4	1.9	0.5	1.1	0.4	2.7	0.8	
Franklin	0.3	2.1		0.0	1.8	0.6	0.9	2.1	1.2	1.9	1.1		0.9	1.0	1.3	
Fulton		0.0	1.0	1.2	1.2	0.5		1.0	0.0	0.3	0.3	1.6	1.5	1.2	0.5	
Cells containing the	e symbol india	cate an area wh	nere data are no	ot available bec	ause the region	did not particit	pate that year.									

Percentage of Youth Who Used Cocaine, Methamphetamines or Stimulants During the Past 30 Days by County, cont.																		
County			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines		Stimulants						
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007			
Garland	2.2	1.1	0.6	1.0	1.1	0.6	1.8	0.8	1.0	1.0	0.6	1.6	1.8	2.8	1.6			
Grant	0.0	0.0	1.6	1.0	1.7	0.5	2.7	3.1	0.6	1.2	0.4	2.7	2.6	3.7	1.1			
Greene	0.4	1.1	1.0	0.7	0.9	0.5	0.4	1.9	0.7	0.7	0.1	2.0	1.3	1.3	1.0			
Hempstead	0.5		0.7		1.7	0.6	0.3			1.2	0.3	1.6		0.8	0.3			
Hot Spring	1.0	0.6	1.5	0.4	1.3	0.7	1.6	1.2	0.3	0.9	0.5	2.3	1.3	1.2	0.2			
Howard			0.8	0.5	1.6	0.0			0.0	0.7	0.0	0.0	0.0	1.4	0.1			
Independence	0.0		1.2	1.2	1.3	0.7			0.8	1.2	0.3	2.4	1.8	1.4	0.5			
Izard			0.6	0.9	0.9	0.3			0.6	1.2	0.6	0.9	0.6	1.5	0.6			
Jackson	1.3		1.1	0.4	1.6	0.4	5.3		0.0	0.4	0.2	1.8	0.4	1.0	0.2			
Jefferson	0.4		0.2	0.4	1.2	0.4	1.2		0.0	1.1	0.3	0.9	0.1	0.9	0.1			
Johnson			1.0	1.8	0.3	0.4			2.8	0.6	0.2	1.6	1.8	0.8	0.6			
Lafayette	0.0	2.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.4	1.1	2.4	0.0	0.8	0.4	0.0	1.3	1.3	1.2			
Lawrence	1.3	0.5	0.7	0.9	1.6	0.7	2.1	1.6	1.5	1.5	0.3	3.6	1.1	2.4	0.3			
Lee			0.0	0.5	0.9	0.3			0.0	0.5	0.0	0.8	0.0	1.4	0.3			
Lincoln			0.3	1.1	1.0	0.9			0.3	0.3	0.3	1.7	1.1	1.3	0.6			
Little River					1.0	0.6				0.8	0.6			1.4	0.6			
Logan		1.1	0.4	1.1	0.8	0.3		0.7	0.7	1.3	0.0	1.5	0.2	0.6	0.4			
Lonoke	1.3	1.1	0.5	0.7	0.9	0.4	1.3	2.2	0.8	1.1	0.4	2.0	1.6	2.0	1.2			
Madison	0.6	1.2	0.5	0.7	1.4	1.1	0.6	0.6	1.0	2.0	0.9	2.2	0.3	1.6	2.0			
Marion						0.0					0.8				0.8			
Miller	1.3	0.3	0.8	1.2	1.1	0.5	0.6	1.1	0.9	0.2	0.6	1.5	1.5	1.3	0.9			
Mississippi	1.2	1.2	0.8	0.8	1.3	0.4	1.7	0.7	0.3	0.8	0.5	2.0	1.1	1.1	0.4			
Monroe		0.6	0.0	1.4	1.2	2.0		1.1	0.3	1.4	0.0	2.2	0.8	1.5	1.0			
Montgomery	3.2			1.9	0.3	0.0	3.2		0.0	1.0	0.0		1.0	2.3	1.0			
Nevada		0.8	0.7	0.3	0.9	1.0		0.0	2.0	0.9	1.1	0.5	1.2	2.6	1.1			
Cells containing the s	symbol indicate	an area where	data are not a	vailable becaus	se the region di	d not participat	e that year.											
	Per	centage c	of Youth V	Vho Used	Cocaine,	Methamp	phetamines or Stimulants During the Past 30 Days by County, cont.											
----------------------	---------------	-----------------	-----------------	------------------	------------------	-------------------	---	-------	----------	-------	------	------------	------	------	------	--	--	--
County			Coc	aine				Metha	amphetan	nines		Stimulants						
County	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007			
Newton		1.0			1.7	0.0		1.4		1.7	0.0			2.4	0.0			
Ouachita	0.0		0.8	0.9	0.0	0.8			0.4	0.0	0.1	1.1	0.6	0.6	0.6			
Perry			1.2	0.8	0.5	0.7			0.5	0.8	0.2	2.6	2.0	1.2	0.5			
Phillips	1.2	0.0	0.0	0.9		0.0	2.8	0.0	0.1		0.0	2.3	0.4		0.3			
Pike	1.9	1.3	1.8	0.7	0.7	0.2	1.9	0.4	1.0	0.7	0.5	1.6	2.6	1.7	0.7			
Poinsett	0.7	2.2	1.3	0.5	0.3	0.1	2.4	2.7	1.1	0.5	0.4	2.6	1.1	1.6	1.2			
Polk	1.3	2.0	0.0	0.6	0.6	0.6	1.8	2.0	0.0	1.4	0.3	2.3	0.9	2.6	0.6			
Pope			1.1	0.6	0.8	0.5			0.7	0.7	0.2	2.3	2.4	0.4	1.2			
Prairie	3.1			0.8	0.9	0.0	3.1		0.8	0.8	0.0		2.4	0.7	0.6			
Pulaski	1.0			1.2	0.0	0.6	1.0		0.6	0.0	0.4		2.4	0.0	0.8			
Randolph	1.2	0.8	2.2	0.7	0.9	0.5	1.4	0.9	0.2	0.7	0.4	2.4	1.3	1.3	1.1			
Saint Francis		1.9	0.0	0.0	2.3	0.0		0.0	0.0	0.7	0.0	2.6	0.7	2.1	0.7			
Saline	0.9	1.5	1.9	0.4	1.0	0.4	1.7	1.5	0.3	1.0	0.4	2.7	1.1	0.0	1.9			
Scott				1.3	1.0	0.6			0.6	0.5	0.6		1.3	1.6	0.6			
Searcy		1.6	0.6		1.4	0.7		1.6		2.5	0.7	2.4		3.1	0.7			
Sebastian	0.9	1.4	1.6	1.0	1.4	0.6	1.6	2.0	1.2	1.4	0.6	2.3	1.5	1.1	1.0			
Sevier	1.5	0.3	0.0	1.3	1.9	0.2	1.6	1.4	1.0	1.5	0.3	2.7	0.7	1.9	1.0			
Sharp			0.6	0.8	3.0	0.4			0.2	2.6	1.1	2.4	0.5	1.5	0.9			
Stone		1.9	0.0	0.6	0.7	0.9		0.0	0.0	0.7	0.3	1.8	1.2	1.7	1.2			
Union	0.5	1.1	0.4	1.2	1.0	0.4	1.4	1.2	0.7	0.3	0.4	1.1	0.7	1.4	0.6			
Van Buren	1.7		1.5	0.8	1.6	0.8	1.7		1.3	1.2	1.2	4.7	1.0	1.4	1.0			
Washington	1.3	1.8	2.1	0.9	1.4	0.5	1.7	2.0	0.8	2.2	0.5	2.4	1.2	2.6	0.7			
White	0.0	1.9	0.7	0.6	1.4	0.5		2.8	0.4	1.3	0.4	2.0	1.1	1.8	1.1			
Woodruff			0.0	0.4	1.1	0.4			0.9	1.3	0.0	1.4	1.1	1.7	1.1			
Yell			1.7	0.5	0.4	0.6			2.1	0.4	0.3	3.3	4.0	0.9	1.1			
Cells containing the	e symbol indi	cate an area wh	nere data are n	ot available bed	cause the regior	n did not partici	pate that year.											

	or Any Drug During the Past 30 Days by County																				
County		Seda	tives		Ecstasy							Heroin				Any Drug					
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	
Arkansas	8.7	5.5	5.9	4.2	1.2	1.1	0.8	0.7	0.7	0.1	0.3	0.7	0.7	0.1	19.4	18.4	24.9	16.6	17.4	12.2	
Ashley	6.3	8.0	6.7	6.7	1.0		0.8	0.6	2.0	0.6	0.4	0.4	0.6	0.0	14.4		19.7	14.1	14.4	15.2	
Baxter			7.5	5.6					0.8	0.4			0.7	0.2					15.2	11.5	
Benton	9.3	4.2	6.8	5.6	0.9	1.1	0.9	0.6	1.2	0.7	0.8	0.4	0.9	0.4	21.5	17.2	28.0	13.1	15.9	13.0	
Boone		7.4	5.9	5.9				0.8	0.8	0.5		0.6	0.5	0.2				18.4	13.2	11.9	
Bradley	7.6	2.7	7.0	3.4	0.7		0.0	0.2	1.2	0.3	1.6	0.0	0.6	0.0	12.6		17.9	13.5	13.8	11.3	
Calhoun		10.3	4.2		1.0	0.0		1.9	0.5			0.6	0.5		12.6	7.6		26.7	11.7		
Carroll	8.5	5.6	7.4	7.0	0.6	0.4	1.8	0.7	1.2	0.1	1.2	0.4	1.4	0.3	16.0	12.5	30.2	15.3	16.2	16.5	
Chicot	5.7	3.4	5.7	2.8	0.3		0.7	0.5	1.3	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.9	0.0	12.7		17.2	20.4	15.1	8.1	
Clark	2.2	3.7	6.3	6.2	1.0	1.2	0.3	0.6	1.1	0.4	0.2	0.2	0.3	0.1	12.0	10.3	14.3	11.4	12.2	14.8	
Clay	7.8	7.0	8.0	7.7	0.3	0.0	0.7	0.6	0.2	0.7	0.2	0.2	0.0	0.0	11.2	4.2	20.2	17.8	14.3	15.6	
Cleburne		9.0	10.3	7.1	0.8			0.8	1.3	1.0		0.2	1.0	0.3	24.2			22.6	23.2	14.1	
Cleveland				5.4						0.9				0.6						13.5	
Columbia	2.7	5.5	1.5	6.8		0.0	1.0	0.0	1.5	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	10.3	8.7	9.9	12.5	5.9	14.9	
Conway		5.7	6.6	4.3				0.4	0.5	0.6		0.2	0.0	0.0				16.0	18.4	13.3	
Craighead	7.1	6.6	7.0	5.1	0.5	0.8	0.7	0.7	1.1	0.7	0.5	0.2	0.7	0.3	14.5	11.4	20.6	14.7	13.4	11.8	
Crawford	6.3	6.0	9.1	6.6	2.5	0.0	0.0	0.7	1.2	1.6	0.4	0.3	1.0	0.2	21.9	2.3	16.4	14.8	16.1	13.2	
Crittenden	3.0	4.4	7.1	5.8			0.0	0.7	1.2	0.9	0.0	0.4	0.0	0.4	15.7		13.6	17.4	16.0	15.3	
Cross		8.6	9.6	7.0	1.1	1.7		0.7	1.8	1.3		0.7	1.1	0.1	19.8	17.0		18.8	18.6	18.0	
Dallas	3.3	7.6	9.3	5.3	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	2.3	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.0	10.2	22.2	23.8	22.0	19.9	12.9	
Desha		4.1	5.8					0.0	1.0			0.0	0.3					12.6	13.3		
Drew	7.0	6.2	4.8	3.7			0.5	0.8	1.9	0.2	0.5	0.0	0.7	0.2			18.3	18.6	12.1	9.6	
Faulkner	5.3	5.8	9.9	4.2			0.0	0.0	1.3	0.2	0.0	0.0	1.1	0.1			22.2	17.6	18.1	10.9	
Franklin		6.3	7.8	8.0		0.0		0.0	1.0	1.3		0.0	0.5	0.1	13.6	18.3		13.4	14.5	13.4	
Fulton	7.8	6.5	6.5	3.7		0.0	0.0	0.0	0.9	0.0	0.6	0.0	0.6	0.5		12.4	18.2	16.7	13.2	14.1	
Cells containing th	ne symbol	indicate an	area where	e data are n	ot available	because th	ne reaion di	d not partici	pate that ve	ear.											

	<u> </u>	ercenta	age of \	<u>Youth V</u>	<u>Vho Used Sedatives, Ecstasy, Heroin or Any Drug During the Past 30 Da</u>									Days by County, cont.						
County		Seda	tives		Ecstasy							Her	oin		Any Drug					
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007
Garland	6.8	8.4	8.8	7.5	0.9	0.8	0.6	0.8	1.6	1.3	0.8	0.7	0.7	0.6	22.4	16.7	21.3	21.1	17.7	16.7
Grant	7.2	8.2	11.3	5.9	0.9	1.0	1.4	1.1	1.7	0.7	0.5	0.1	0.6	0.5	18.2	33.7	24.2	18.6	18.5	12.7
Greene	7.6	8.2	8.2	6.8	0.8	1.7	0.8	0.7	0.8	0.6	0.6	0.4	0.7	0.3	13.8	11.5	19.1	17.4	13.2	13.4
Hempstead	4.8		7.1	4.2	0.5		1.0		1.2	0.1	0.5		0.8	0.0	13.3		23.0		13.5	13.2
Hot Spring	6.8	6.1	7.3	6.5	1.0	1.2	0.6	0.8	1.0	0.4	0.6	0.4	0.7	0.4	16.2	15.7	23.2	16.0	15.1	14.9
Howard	1.8	2.5	4.3	4.2			0.0	0.5	0.9	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.5	0.0			17.9	14.1	12.9	11.7
Independence	6.7	6.5	6.5	4.2			0.6	0.9	0.9	0.4	0.1	0.4	0.5	0.3	11.4		19.8	15.9	13.0	9.3
Izard	5.3	4.4	5.2	4.3			0.0	0.3	0.9	0.3	0.3	0.3	0.6	0.0			16.0	10.9	10.4	12.3
Jackson	7.1	4.7	6.6	5.8			0.4	0.4	0.4	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.4	0.0	21.2		20.5	12.7	11.7	11.9
Jefferson	4.3	2.7	3.0	2.4	2.0		0.6	0.1	1.3	0.5	0.0	0.3	1.1	0.3	15.2		17.1	12.9	14.6	14.9
Johnson	3.3	10.4	5.2	5.0			0.0	1.2	0.5	0.8	0.0	0.6	0.2	0.4			14.7	26.5	11.6	12.3
Lafayette	5.4	1.9	8.9	8.0	1.7	2.4	0.0	0.0	1.3	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	8.6	13.4	19.4	12.7	16.1	16.1
Lawrence	7.3	6.7	6.3	6.5	1.0	0.4	0.2	1.3	0.7	0.3	0.7	0.0	1.0	0.0	17.3	12.4	20.2	14.6	13.3	13.0
Lee	3.3	4.8	5.6	2.8			0.0	0.5	0.5	0.3	0.8	0.0	1.4	0.0			23.9	18.4	9.0	10.3
Lincoln	8.1	6.2	6.6	6.7			0.0	0.3	1.0	0.9	0.0	0.8	0.3	0.0			18.3	17.6	12.7	14.7
Little River			7.0	3.8					1.2	0.6			0.6	0.6					14.0	9.0
Logan	6.3	4.6	5.7	4.2		0.0	0.2	0.3	0.8	0.6	0.2	0.2	0.4	0.1		14.8	21.1	14.9	11.3	11.5
Lonoke	6.7	7.6	8.1	5.7	1.2	1.6	0.6	0.7	1.4	0.6	0.4	0.1	0.8	0.3	17.3	19.6	20.9	14.8	15.6	13.3
Madison	3.7	3.8	6.2	4.8	1.5	1.4	0.5	0.0	1.1	0.9	0.7	0.5	0.7	0.2	15.9	14.5	19.0	13.0	13.6	10.9
Marion				6.7						0.0				0.0						14.0
Miller	4.4	7.4	6.6	6.4	0.5	1.7	0.7	1.5	0.9	0.8	0.0	0.8	1.1	0.3	21.1	16.2	21.5	17.9	14.4	15.9
Mississippi	6.6	6.1	6.4	3.6	1.7	0.9	1.2	1.0	1.7	0.6	0.0	0.2	1.0	0.5	18.9	15.2	26.2	18.5	15.4	11.9
Monroe	2.2	6.2	6.5	6.1		0.6	0.0	0.9	1.4	0.0	0.0	0.9	0.9	0.0		21.1	14.3	15.8	13.3	18.2
Montgomery		5.6	5.0	5.9	2.2			0.0	1.7	0.5		0.0	0.7	0.0	15.1			10.6	10.9	15.3
Nevada	4.2	3.7	6.5	3.8		0.5	0.0	0.9	0.4	0.7	0.5	0.3	0.4	0.0		13.2	16.0	13.3	15.1	10.1
Cells containing the	symbol india	cate an are	a where da	ta are not a	vailable be	cause the r	egion did n	ot participa	te that year	:										

		Perce	ntage o	of Youth	h Who Used Sedatives, Ecstasy, Heroin or Any Drug During the									<u>Past 30</u>	30 Days by County, cont.						
County		Seda	tives				Ecst	tasy			Heroin				Any Drug						
County	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2004	2005	2006	2007	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	
Newton			6.1	3.3		1.4			2.0	0.0			1.4	0.0		14.8			18.3	11.4	
Ouachita	6.3	6.5	9.0	5.4			0.4	0.6	0.0	1.0	0.0	0.4	0.0	0.0	15.6		20.2	17.2	16.5	12.3	
Perry	7.6	9.7	7.9	5.0			1.2	0.3	1.1	0.9	0.0	0.3	0.2	0.5			22.1	22.3	13.5	12.5	
Phillips	8.9	1.9		2.7	0.6	0.0	0.0	0.1		0.5	0.0	0.0		0.0	14.0	0.0	18.4	13.2		11.9	
Pike	9.8	6.8	7.0	8.2	3.5	0.0	0.9	0.6	0.7	0.7	0.5	0.3	0.5	0.2	14.2	9.9	22.9	16.1	12.4	15.2	
Poinsett	8.2	8.8	5.0	9.3	0.7	2.2	1.6	0.9	0.8	0.3	0.5	0.0	0.3	0.3	17.6	14.2	24.0	17.4	16.9	16.1	
Polk	5.3	5.4	10.1	4.4	1.0	0.7	0.0	0.3	0.7	0.4	0.5	0.0	0.8	0.0	15.6	9.7	18.0	13.3	13.1	11.0	
Pope	6.4	11.3	7.1	6.2			0.6	0.0	0.4	0.5	0.0	0.0	0.6	0.3			20.1	22.9	13.7	14.5	
Prairie		7.9	6.1	5.2	1.6			0.8	0.7	0.0		0.8	0.4	0.0	23.4			16.8	9.6	11.0	
Pulaski		7.1	2.2	4.5	0.6			0.4	0.0	0.7		0.4	0.0	0.3	12.8			19.1	13.4	14.1	
Randolph	8.8	4.9	4.6	4.5	0.8	0.5	0.9	0.7	1.0	0.0	0.2	0.4	1.0	0.2	17.1	11.1	21.9	14.6	15.6	10.8	
Saint Francis	4.9	2.2	7.4	3.6		1.9	1.2	0.7	1.1	0.3	0.0	0.0	0.7	0.5		20.2	29.9	9.8	7.4	9.2	
Saline	9.0	7.4	2.1	6.7	1.2	0.4	1.0	0.7	1.0	0.7	0.0	0.2	0.0	0.7	16.0	13.5	21.5	15.9	12.9	14.7	
Scott		6.6	7.0	5.0				1.3	0.8	1.1		0.5	0.2	1.1				18.8	16.8	13.7	
Searcy	8.8		10.6	5.2		0.0	0.0		2.2	0.3	1.2		0.8	0.7		11.7	24.8		18.0	10.8	
Sebastian	5.8	6.6	9.9	5.9	1.7	2.2	1.2	1.2	1.7	1.3	0.4	0.4	1.4	0.4	18.7	15.8	20.1	17.2	15.8	15.7	
Sevier	6.8	4.8	6.5	4.2	3.2	0.6	0.4	0.2	1.8	0.3	0.0	0.2	1.0	0.0	13.5	12.1	17.1	14.4	14.4	10.0	
Sharp	7.6	4.9	5.8	5.7			0.3	0.3	1.2	0.4	0.3	0.0	1.3	0.4			22.6	13.1	14.9	13.2	
Stone	1.8	9.4	8.2	6.5		0.0	0.0	0.9	0.2	0.3	0.0	0.3	0.2	0.3		16.7	8.5	20.6	12.9	13.8	
Union	5.6	6.8	6.1	6.4	0.9	0.5	0.5	0.7	0.3	1.1	0.1	0.3	0.3	0.5	15.6	15.7	15.3	18.0	14.8	14.0	
Van Buren	7.3	9.8	6.3	7.2	0.8		0.7	1.0	1.5	0.8	0.2	0.8	0.9	0.2	13.3		24.7	21.4	18.1	16.4	
Washington	5.4	4.7	8.6	3.9	1.9	1.1	0.7	0.9	2.2	0.5	0.5	0.4	1.2	0.3	18.7	18.3	21.0	13.9	13.3	11.2	
White	6.3	6.5	5.7	6.5		1.6	0.7	0.6	1.2	0.8	0.3	0.4	0.6	0.5	8.2	19.6	19.9	14.9	16.7	13.7	
Woodruff	3.8	7.6	8.8	8.3			1.3	0.7	1.2	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.0			13.8	17.3	12.3	14.7	
Yell	8.6	9.9	6.0	6.1			1.8	0.5	0.4	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.4	0.0			22.4	18.0	12.5	12.0	
Cells containing th	ne symbol	indicate ar	area wher	e data are n	ot available	because th	e region di	d not partici	ipate that ye	ar.											